

COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL STATE OF NEW MEXICO SAN MIGUEL COUNTY PAGES: 443

I Hereby Certify That This Instrument Was Filed for Record On The 2ND Day Of December, 2014 at 02:20:28 PM And Was Duly Recorded as Instrument #201403765 Of The Records Of San Miguel

) 55

Withness My Hand And Seal Of Office Melanie Y. Rivera ánty Clerk, San Miguel, NM



San Miguel County 2014 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan November 2014

Prepared for: San Miguel County City of Las Vegas Village of Pecos

500 West National Avenue, Suite 201 Las Vegas, New Mexico 87701



Prepared by: Witt O'Brien's 1501 M Street NW, 5th Floor Washington, DC 20005 T: +1 (202) 585-0780 F: +1 (202) 585-0792 www.wittobriens.com

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The following representatives contributed information and participated in the planning efforts as part of the Mitigation Planning Group to develop the San Miguel County Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation Plan. Their contributions were instrumental to the development of this document.

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY

Les Montoya, San Miguel County Manager Dennis English, Emergency Manager, San Miguel County/City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management Connie Abila, San Miguel County/City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management Kurt Parkinson, San Miguel County/City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management Harold Garcia, Public Works Supervisor, San Miguel County Melinda Gonzales, San Miguel County Alex Tofoya, San Miguel County Russell Pacheco, Fire Chief, San Miguel County Fire Department Patrick Snedeker, San Miguel County Detention Center

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

Arthur Herrera, City of Las Vegas Fire Department Eugene Garcia, City of Las Vegas Police Department Christian Montano, Las Vegas Police Department Carlos Ortiz, City of Las Vegas David Martinez, City of Las Vegas Don Cole, City of Las Vegas

VILLAGE OF PECOS

Ralph Lopez, Fire Chief, Village of Pecos Fire Department Ramona Quintana, Village Clerk Tony Roybal, Village Mayor Arthur Varela, Village Treasurer Brian Ambrogi, Wilson and Company

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

Wendy Blackwell, New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management Benito Armijo, New Mexico Behavioral Health Robert Sanchez, New Mexico Behavioral Health Joe Aragon, New Mexico Behavioral Health Comelita Austin, New Mexico Forestry Division David Trujillo, New Mexico Department of Transportation, District 4 Christopher Blake, New Mexico State Police

FEDERAL AGENCIES

Joe Julian, U.S. Forest Service

LOCAL AGENCIES, GOVERNMENTS, AND NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

Sally Flores, Local Emergency Planning Committee Venita Menapace, Harding County Government 2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Acknowledgements

David Watson, AVRH Martin Salazar, Optic Ramon Lucero, El Valle Water Alliance Ken Bentson, New Mexico Highlands University Michael Garcia, P & Z

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RESOLUTION	1
1.1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	1
1.2 ORGANIZATION OF THE PLAN	3
1.3 SUMMARY OF HAZARDS IN SAN MIGUEL COUNTY	3
1.3.1 Prioritized Mitigation Strategies	4
1.3.2 Existing/On-Going Mitigation Strategies	5
1.3.3 Resolution Adopting Plan	6
1.3.4 Status of the Plan	13
2. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF PLAN	15
2.1 OVERVIEW	15
2.2 DEFINITION OF HAZARD MITIGATION	15
2.3 MITIGATION PLANNING	15
2.4 PURPOSE OF THE PLAN	16
2.5 CONCLUSION	16
3 THE PLANNING PROCESS	10
3.1 INTERIM FINAL RULF REQUIREMENTS FOR THE PLANNING PROCESS	19
3.2 INTRODUCTION	19
3.3 MULTI-IURISDICTION PLANNING EFFORT	20
3.4 MITIGATION PLANNING GROUP	
3.5 SAN MIGUEL COUNTY/CITY OF LAS VEGAS	
OFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT	21
3.6 LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE	22
3.7 PUBLIC INPUT	22
3.8 RESEARCH AND PLAN REVIEW	
3.9 HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN REVIEW AND APPROVAL	24
4. SAN MIGUEL COUNTY PROFILE	25
4.1 HISTORY	
4.2 TOPOGRAPHY and HYDROLOGY	
4.3 POPULATION OVERVIEW	29
4.4 CLIMATE	30
4.5 ECONOMY	30
4.6 LAND OWNERSHIP	31
4.7 HISTORIC, CULTURAL, and ECOLOGICAL INTEREST	32
4.8 LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT TRENDS	32
4.9 SAN MIGUEL COUNTY HAZARD EXPOSURE PROFILE	39
5. HAZARD PROFILE	
5.1 DAM FAILURE	
5.2 DROUGHT	51
5.3 EARTHQUAKE	56
5.4 EXPANSIVE SOILS	65
5.5 EXTREME HEAT	67
5.6 FLOOD	70
5.7 HAILSTORM	79

5.8 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INCIDENTS	
5.9 HIGH WIND	
5.10 LANDSLIDE	
5.11 LEVEE FAILURE	
5.12 PANDEMIC/EPIDEMIC	
5.13 PESTS	
5.14 SEVERE WINTER WEATHER	
5.15 TERRORISM	
5.16 THUNDERSTORM	110
5.17 TORNADO	112
5.18 WILDFIRE	117
6. VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT	131
6.1 INTERIM FINAL FULE FOR ASSESSING VULNERABILITY	131
6.2 INTRODUCTION AND METHODOLOGY	131
6.3 SAN MIGUEL COUNTY VULNERABILITY	134
6.4 DROUGHT	141
6.5 EXTREME HEAT	142
6.6 FLOOD	143
6.7 HAILSTORM	147
6.8 HIGH WIND	148
6.9 SEVERE WINTER STORM	149
6.10 THUNDERSTORM	150
6.11 WILDFIRE	151
7. CAPABLITY ASSESSMENT	
7.1. INTERIM FINAL RULE FOR ASSESSING CAPABILITY	
7.2 OVERVIEW AND PURPOSE OF CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT	
7.3 METHODOLOGY	
7.4 FEDERAL AND STATE REGULATIONS, PLANS, AND FUNDING SOURCES	
7.5 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT FOR THE PLANNING AREA	
7.6 HAZARD MITIGATION PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS	
7.7 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	
O MITICATION ACTION DI AN	170
0. MITIGATION ACTION PLAN	1/3 172
0.1 INTERIM FINAL RULE FOR MITHGATION ACTION PLANS	1/3
0.2 MITIGATION ACTION PLANNING METHODOLOGI	1/3
0.5 MITIGATION GOALS AND ODJECTIVES	1/4 176
0.4 MITIGATION ACTIONS	1/0
0.5 CURRENT WILDFIRE MITIGATION PROGRAMS	
8.0 CORRENT COMMUNICATIONS MITIGATION PROGRAMS	
O DI AN IMDI EMENTATION MONITODING AND LIDDATES	225
9. FLAN IMPLEMENTATION, MONITORING AND OF DATES	
9.2 METHOD FOR MONITORING THE PLAN	223 225
9 3 SCHEDUI F FOR MONITORING THE PLAN	223 227
9.4 METHOD AND SCHEDULE FOR EVALUATING AND LIDDATING THE DIAN	
9 5 ΙΝΓΩΡΩΡΑΤΙΩΝ ΙΝΤΩ ΕΧΙΣΤΙΝΟ ΡΙ ΔΝΝΙΝΟ ΜΕCHANISMS	<u>2</u> 27 227
9.6 CIRCUMSTANCES THAT WILL INITIATE PLAN REVIEW AND HDDATES	
97 CONTINUED PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT	<u>220</u> 220

LIST OF FIGURES

5.2-1 Causes and Impacts of Drought	
5.2.3-1 U.S. Drought Monitor – New Mexico	
5.3.5-1 Probability of a 5.0 or Greater Magnitude Earthquake within 50 Yeats an	d 50 Km56
5.5.1-1 Heat Index	59
5.6.1-1 FIRM Example for San Miguel County	64
5.14.1-1 NWS Windchill Chart	
5.17.1-1 Precipitating factors for Tornado Development	105
5.17.1-2 Enhanced Fujita Scale Expected Damage by Tornado Wind Speeds	106
5.18.1-1 Example of Wildland Urban Intermix Zone	109
5.18.1-2 Example of Wildland Urban Island Zone	110
5.18.1-3 Example of Wildland Urban Boundary Zone	110
5.18.3-1 Top 10 Counties in New Mexico by Wildland Fire Risk	117
7.5.1-1 Hazard Mitigation and the Phases of Emergency Management	152

LIST OF MAPS

4.1-1 San Miguel County	
4.1-2 City of Las Vegas	27
4.1-3 Village of Pecos	27
4.2-1 San Miguel County Land Cover	29
5.1.3-1 San Miguel County High, Significant, and Low Hazard Dams	45
5.3.3-1 New Mexico Earthquake History, 1962-2004	61
5.3.3-2 New Mexico Seismicity, 1973-2013	62
5.3.3-3 New Mexico Seismic Hazard (2% in 50 years PGA)	63
5.4.3-1 Expansive Soils in New Mexico	66
5.6.3-1 San Miguel County SFHA	74
5.6.3-2 City of Las Vegas SFHA	75
5.6.3-3 Village of Pecos SFHA	75
5.9.1-1 New Mexico Wind Zones	
5.10.3-1 Landslide Susceptible Areas in New Mexico	94
5.13.3-1 Hantavirus in the United States	
5.13.3-2 Plague in the United States	103
5.17.3-1 New Mexico Historic Tornados, 1950-2012	116
5.18.3-1 San Miguel County Wildfire Potential	126
5.18.3-2 Las Vegas Wildfire Potential	126
5.18.3-3 Village of Pecos Wildfire Potential	127
6.6.3-1 Special Flood Hazard Areas and San Miguel Critical Assets	145
6.6.3-2 Special Flood Hazard Areas and Las Vegas Critical Assets	145
6.6.3-3 Special Flood Hazard Areas and Pecos Critical Assets	146
6.11.3-1 San Miguel County Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability	153
6.11.3-2 Las Vegas Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability	154
6.11.3-3 Pecos Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability	155

LIST OF TABLES

4.3-1 Racial and Ethnic Diversity in San Miguel County	
4.5-1 Employment and Income in San Miguel County	
4.6-1 San Miguel County Agriculture	

4.8-1 San Miguel County Land Use and Ownership	
4.9-1 San Miguel County Assets and Value	
5-1 Hazard Ranking Methodology	
5-2 Hazard Risk Scoring	
5-3 Hazard Impact Ranking	
5-4 Probability of Occurrence Methodology	41
5.1-1 Dam Size Classification	42
5.1-2 Dam Hazard Classification	43
5.1.3-1 New Mexico Dam Data	44
5.1.3-2 OSE Regulated Dams and Noted Deficiencies	46
5.1.4.1-1 Storrie Lake Dam Draft Inundation Model	48
5.1.4.2-1 Bradner Dam Draft Inundation Model	49
5.1.4.3-1 Peterson Dam Draft Inundation Model	50
5.2.1-1 Palmer Drought Severity Index (PDSI)	53
5.3.1-1 Richter Scale	57
5.3.1-2 Modified Mercali Intensity Scale	58
5.5.3-1 Average and High Temperatures at Conchas Dam	
5.5.3-2 Average and High Temperatures, City of Las Vegas	69
5.5.3-3 Average and High Temperatures, Village of Pecos	
5.6.1-1 Flood Zone Designations and Descriptions	72
5.6.3-1 CRS Classes and Insurance Premium Discounts	
5.6.4-1 NCDC Flood Records for all of San Miguel County	77
5.7.1-1 TORRO Hailstorm Intensity Scale	
5.7.1-2 Traditional Object to Size Conversion Chart	80
5.8.2-1 Hazardous Materials Release Records	
5.9.1-1 Wind Zones	
5.10.1-1 Alexander Scale	
5.10.3-1 Landslide Risk Zones	
5.12.4-1 Biohazard Classification Levels	
5.14.2-1 FEMA Disaster Relief Program for Snowstorms	106
5.17.1-1 Differences of Fujita Scale and Enhanced Fujita Scale	114
5.18.1-1 Characteristics of Fuels Related to Fire Behavior	119
5.18.1-2 Wildfire Susceptibility Matrix	121
5.18.1-3 Fire Danger Rating System	121
5.18.3-1 Relative Hazard Rankings for Communities in San Miguel County	127
5.18.3-2 2008 CWPP Hazard Rankings for San Miguel County Communities	128
5.18.4-1 San Miguel County Wildfire History	129
6.2-1 Summary of Hazard Mitigation Plan Risk Assessment Data	132
6.3.1-1 Building Exposure by Occupancy Type for San Miguel County	134
6.3.1-2 San Miguel County Critical Assets	135
6.3.2-1 Building Exposure by Occupancy Type for the City of Las Vegas	139
6.3.2-2 City of Las Vegas Critical Assets	139
6.3.3-1 Building Exposure by Occupancy Type for the Village of Pecos	140
6.3.3-2 Village of Pecos Critical Assets	141
6.11.3-1 San Miguel County Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability	153
6.11.3-2 Las Vegas Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability	154
6.11.3-3 Village of Pecos Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability	155
7.4.1-1 Summary of State and Federal Regulations, Programs and Funding Sources	158
7.5.1-1 Capability Assessment Findings – Plans	163
7.5.1-2 Capability Assessment Findings – Codes and Ordinances	164

7.5.2-1 Capability Assessment Findings – Administrative and Technical	165
7.5.3-1 Capability Assessment Findings – Financial Capability	167
7.5.4-1 Capability Assessment Findings – Community Resilience Capability	168
7.5.5-1 Capability Assessment Findings – Local Political Capability	169
7.6-1 HMGP Projects in San Miguel County	170
7.6-2 Fire Codes and ISO Ratings in the Planning Area	170
7.6-3 Buildings in the Planning Area	171
7.6-4 Summary of NFIP Policies by County and Municipality in the Planning Area	171
7.6-5 Floodplain Management Program Participation Information	172
8.4-1 San Miguel County Mitigation Actions	177
8.4-2 City of Las Vegas Mitigation Actions	193
8.4-3 Village of Pecos Mitigation Actions	207
8.5.3-1 County Active Fire Stations and Proposed Sub-Stations	222

APPENDICES

А	Definitions	A-1
В	National Climatic Data Center History of Hazards	B-1
C.	Presidential Disaster Declarations	C-1
D	Meetings Notes and Attendance Rosters	D-1
E.	Invitations and Advertisements	E-1
F	Public Surveys	F-1
G	Mitigation Action Ranking Worksheets	G-1
H.	Capability Assessment Worksheets	H-1
I.	Risk Analysis Worksheets	I-1
J.	Safe Growth Audit Worksheets	J-1
K.	NFIP Worksheets	K-1
L.	Reference Documents and Materials	L-1
М.	Multi-Jurisdiction Participation Summary	M-1
N.	Public and Stakeholder Draft Comments	N-1
0.	FEMA Plan Review Tool	

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Table of Contents

This page is intentionally blank.

Key Acronyms and Abbreviations

AEL	Annualized Earthquake Loss
AELR	Annualized Earthquake Loss Ratio
BBER	University of New Mexico Bureau of Business and Economic Research
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
CLV	City of Las Vegas
CRS	Community Rating System
CWPP	Community Wildfire Protection Plan
DEM	Digital Elevation Model
DMA 2000	Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000
EAP	Emergency Action Plan
EF scale	Enhanced Fujita Scale
F	Fahrenheit
FEMA	Federal Emergency Management Agency
FR	Forest Road
F-Scale	Fujita scale
GIS	Geographic Information System
HAZUS	Hazards U.S.
HMP	Hazard Mitigation Plan
LCC	Luna Community College
LEPC	Local Emergency Planning Committee
Μ	Magnitude
MDWCA	Mutual Domestic Water Consumers Association
MPG	Mitigation Planning Group
mph	miles per hour
NCDC	National Climatic Data Center
NFIP	National Flood Insurance Program
NIBS	National Institute of Building Sciences
NMDOT	New Mexico Department of Transportation
NMED	New Mexico Environment Department
NMEMNRD	State of New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department
NMHU	New Mexico Highlands University
NOAA	National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
NWS	National Weather Service
OEM	Office of Emergency Management
OSE	Office of the State Engineer
PGA	Peak Ground Acceleration
Plan	San Miguel County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan
PNM	Public Service Company of New Mexico
PSHA	Probabilistic Seismic Hazard Assessment Models
RL	Repetitive Loss
SMC	San Miguel County
SRL	Severe Repetitive Loss
STAPLEE	Social, Technical, Administrative, Political, Legal, Economic, & Environmental
TORRO	Tornado and Storm Research Organisation (sic)
USDA	U.S. Department of Agriculture
USFS	U.S. Forest Service
USGS	U.S. Geological Survey

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Key Acronyms and Abbreviations

UWCUnited World CollegeVOPVillage of Pecos

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RESOLUTION

1.1 Executive Summary

On October 30, 2000, the President signed into law the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, also known as DMA 2000. Among its other features, DMA 2000 established a requirement that in order to remain eligible for federal disaster assistance and grant funds, local and state governments must develop and adopt hazard mitigation plans. DMA-2000 (Public Law 106-390) was an amendment of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988 (Public Law 93-288) and incorporated as the Code of Federal Regulations 44 CFR 201.6 dated October, 2007. On February 26, 2002, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) published an Interim Final Rule (IFR) that sets forth the guidance and regions under which such plans are supposed to be developed. The IFR provides detailed descriptions of both the planning process that states and localities are required to observe and the contents of the plan that emerges. This San Miguel County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (the Plan) responds to those requirements.

Hazard mitigation is often defined as actions taken to reduce the effects of natural hazards on a place and its population. San Miguel County decided to develop the Plan because of increasing awareness that natural hazards, especially wildfire, drought, flood, and wind, have the potential to affect people, physical assets, and operations in the County.

Contact information for the Plan is:

Dennis English San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management 518 Valencia Street, Suite 102 Las Vegas, NM 87701 (505) 425-6190 (phone) (505) 426-3034 (fax) denglish@smcounty.net

The San Miguel County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is designed to protect people and property from the effects of natural and human-caused hazards. By taking action today, we can reduce the likelihood of injuries, loss of life and damage to our communities. That is what hazard mitigation planning is all about - taking action based on a solid understanding of our vulnerabilities to reduce the impacts of hazards that may strike sometime in the future. In addition to developing a framework for action, the Plan enables participating counties and municipalities to apply for pre and post-disaster mitigation funding that would not otherwise be available. This funding can help local jurisdictions implement identified projects that meet the goals and objectives outlined in the plan.

The County and each of its municipalities were responsible for identifying and vetting their own hazards, risks, and vulnerabilities, then developing their own mitigation projects written in the form of goals, objectives and actions. The Mitigation Action Plan includes assigned responsibilities, potential funding sources and a timeline for implementation. The Mitigation Action Plan links the broad ideas established in the Plan with strategic, action-oriented tasks.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Executive Summary and Resolution

This publication constitutes the Hazard Mitigation Plan, including instructions for its implementation, for San Miguel County and the incorporated communities within its borders, including the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos.

The continually changing nature of hazard risks within the County requires that updates to this plan occur on a regular basis. An Implementation and Maintenance Plan is included as part of the Plan.

Hazardous conditions and situations exist in all communities. They from natural hazards such as wildfire and drought to technological hazards such as hazardous materials release and dam failure. Citizens often give little thought to potential hazards until they occur or threaten the community. The county emergency managers, staff, and municipal leaders have the responsibility to identify real and potential hazards and, to the extent possible, prepare plans for coping when they occur.

County and municipal government response to life-threatening hazards requires continuous planning, training and education, all of which may be coordinated through the San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management. This Hazard Mitigation Plan identifies hazards affecting the County and its municipalities, and recommends actions to prevent or limit loss of life, injury, and property damage due to those hazards.

The first step in the planning process was the review and consideration of the hazards identified and profiled in the 2010 draft plan. These hazards were reviewed and discussed by the Mitigation Planning Group (MPG) participants, and their applicability to the current plan was considered. After discussion, 18 hazards natural, technological, and human-caused hazards were identified for inclusion in the Plan. It is understood that FEMA will only review and approve the 14 natural hazards. San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos have decided to include technological and human-caused hazards as an all-hazards approach toward stronger and better mitigation measures to protect the County's residents and assets.

Emergency mitigation and response actions are designed for every person in the County who might be affected by an emergency. These services will be provided regardless of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, or handicap.

"Hazard mitigation" does not mean that all hazards are stopped or prevented. It does not suggest complete elimination of the damage or disruption caused by such incidents. Most natural hazard events are well beyond human control. Similarly, technological and human-caused hazards are often unpredictable. Mitigation is not designed or intended as a quick fix, but rather a long-term approach for reducing vulnerability. As defined by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), "hazard mitigation" is any sustained action or strategy taken to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life and property from a hazard event.

Focused, integrated, comprehensive planning is one of the best ways to spot vulnerabilities and produce strategies to improve the County's approach to hazard response and preparation. A well-prepared plan ensures that actions and strategies are reviewed and implemented so that problems are addressed with the most appropriate and efficient solutions. It can also ensure that strategies are coordinated with other programs, preventing conflicts and potentially reducing the costs of implementing individual activities.

1.2 Organization of the Plan

The San Miguel County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan generally conforms to the basic plan set forth in Federal Emergency Management Agency guidelines for the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. The Plan is organized to parallel the structure provided in the IFR. The Plan has 10 sections.

Section 1 Executive Summary and Resolution
Section 2 Introduction and Purpose of the Plan
Section 3 Planning Process
Section 4 San Miguel County Community Profiles
Section 5 Hazard Profiles
Section 6 Assessing Vulnerabilities
Section 7 Capability Assessments
Section 8 Mitigation Action Plan
Section 9 Plan Monitoring and Maintenance
Section 10 References
Appendices

There are references to the IFR throughout the Plan. Where possible, these provide specific section and subsection notations to aid the review process.

1.3 Summary of Hazards in San Miguel County

The following list of hazards that have impacted or are likely to impact San Miguel County and its municipalities was developed through research into the history of hazards and through discussion at the first MPG meeting of the planning period. A detailed list of events that have impacted San Miguel County are provided in Appendices B and C (Hazard History and Presidential Declarations).

- Bridge Failure (addressed in related natural hazards)
- Dam Failure
- Drought
- Earthquake
- Flood
- Expansive Soils
- Extreme Heat
- Hailstorm
- Hazardous Materials Incidents
- High Wind
- Landslide
- Levee Failure
- Pandemic/Epidemic
- Pests
- Severe Winter Weather
- Terrorism
- Thunderstorm

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Executive Summary and Resolution

- Tornado
- Wildfire

1.3.1 Prioritized Mitigation Strategies

The mitigation actions that were ranked as a high priority by the MPG and that received a STAPLEE score of 17 or greater include the following actions:

- San Miguel County:
 - Develop water storage/hydrant systems in for raw, drinking and effluent water
 - Implement a county-wide mass notification/emergency messaging system to provide a centralized notification system
 - Create a centralized GIS/Data System to be able to obtain/compile/disseminate information for all hazard events (mapping, assessments, cost analysis, etc.)
 - Improve and protect existing culverts, arroyos, and acequias, and install new culverts within the county as needed to reduce flooding county-wide
 - Identify critical infrastructure facilities to install generator hook-ups and purchase mobile generators to use in power outages
 - Identify senior centers, community centers, and schools throughout the county that can be used for heating/cooling stations and install generator hook ups, towable generators and electric A/C & heating combination systems
- City of Las Vegas
 - Develop water storage/hydrant systems in for raw, drinking and effluent water
 - Research funding opportunities and garner support for repair to the reservoir seepage area
 - Identify critical infrastructure facilities to install generator hook-ups and purchase mobile generators to use in power outages
 - Conduct field testing & sampling of surface and sub-surface water sources
 - Well exploration to identify potable water supplies
 - Increase aquifer storage and recovery
 - Enlarge reservoir
 - Construct a tower and transponder to have the ability to receive NOAA weather alert notification and purchase NOAA radios for public facilities and vulnerable populations to receive these messages
 - Design & develop an OEM web-site that provides drop down links toward mitigation/preparedness/response/recovery and identify funding sources toward hailstorm mitigation programs
 - Work with USGS to install continuous monitoring stream gages on Tecolote Creek, the Conchas River (above the lake), the Canadian River, the Pecos River, and the Gallinas River 1000' south of the diversion gate
 - Rehabilitate old wells
 - Research vulnerable infrastructure and harden/improve water/sewer sanitation services in identified areas
 - Conduct a seismic study of all critical infrastructure within the county to identify the effects of an earthquake on existing facilities
 - Develop emergency evacuation and sheltering plans Conduct a geological study on local structures, strengthen historic structures/chimneys in the Cat D seismic zone

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Executive Summary and Resolution

- Develop and distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using various means to reach adults, children, visitors, and vulnerable populations
- Implement a county-wide mass notification/emergency messaging system to provide a centralized notification system
- Research and identify public warning systems that use redundant means of contact to reach stakeholders and the community to deliver and receive information regarding hazards, threats, impacts, and damage. Purchase, install, and implement the warning system
- Create a centralized GIS/Data System to be able to obtain/compile/disseminate information for all hazard events (mapping, assessments, cost analysis, etc.)
- Create a public awareness program to promote "See Something, Say Something" in conjunction with New Mexico Department of Homeland Security
- Village of Pecos (The highest ranking hazards for the Village of Pecos scored 15 points. They are noted below)
 - Conduct a more in depth hazard analysis for wildfires and their effects on residences, infrastructure, water supplies, and the economy
 - Improve and protect existing culverts, arroyos, and acequias, and install new culverts within the county as needed to reduce flooding county-wide
 - Identify funding streams and resources for technical assistance to scope bridge repair or reinforcement projects on identified vulnerable bridges

1.3.2 Existing/On-Going Mitigation Strategies

The following list includes projects that are currently being used by the County as mitigation strategies. Updates to those projects were provided by the San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management on July 20, 2013:

- Limiting the number of vehicular camping spaces near streams;
 - Travel Management Plan was approved in 2013. A map that depicts where camping is permitted will be issued annually
- Respect the Rio: a public education campaign where rangers visit campgrounds to teach visitors about water quality hazards, and appropriate use of sites near streams;
- Ongoing project dependent on funding
- Upper Pecos Watershed Project;
 - The Upper Pecos Watershed Association is completing a NEPA analysis for "roadside thinning" within the Pecos Canyon
- FireWise programs;
 - o On-going
- Gallinas Fuels Reduction project;
 - To date, approximately 2,500 acres of thinning has been completed with a balance of 5,000 acres. Approximately 400 acres of piles have been reduced by prescribed burns. No broadcast burns yet with a balance of approximately 1,500 acres.
- Travel Management, 2005 project to define the roads in USFS and Wilderness lands;
 - Travel Management Plan was approved in 2013. A map that depicts where camping is permitted will be issued annually
- USFS Fire Prevention Officer provides outreach about fire prevention strategies;
 - o On-going
- USFS Public Information Officer provides informational wildfire flyers;

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Executive Summary and Resolution

- On-going (www.nmfireinfo,com)
- NM State Parks: Conchas Lake State Park has a Wildfire Evacuation Plan; and
 On-going
- Historical tree thinning project on City of Las Vegas land that produced 200 to 300 cords of free firewood for residents.
 - o On-going
- Install and maintain ITAC channels in public safety radios to improve inter-operability with Santa Fe County
- San Miguel County and Santa Fe County have established Joint Command Operations in previous disaster events
- San Miguel County, City of Las Vegas, and Village of Pecos have adopted the state fire and building codes

1.3.3 Resolution Adopting Plan

The following pages include the local adoption resolutions for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.



Board of County Commissioners

Nicolas 7. Leger Chairman -- District 5

Ron R. Ortega Vice-Chair -District 1

Marcellino A. Ortiz Commissioner-District 2

Arthur J. Padilla Commissioner-District 3

Gilbert J. B. Sena Commissioner - District 4

Les W.J. Montoya County Manager

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 11-12-14-OEM-MITIGATION

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PARTICIPATION IN THE ALL HAZARDS MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL MITIGATION PLANNING PROCESS AND ADOPTION OF THE ALL HAZARDS MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL MITIGATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the San Miguel County Government desires to prepare and mitigate for such hazards and seeks to promote the public health, and general welfare of the jurisdiction and the safe, orderly, and healthful development of the jurisdiction, and.

WHEREAS, the San Miguel County Government worked with their members and other participating jurisdictions and entities to develop an all-hazards multi-jurisdictional mitigation plan; and,

WHEREAS, mitigation plans must conform 10/44 CFR, Part 201, and all applicable mitigation planning guidance issued by FEMA, and,

WHEREAS, a community must be a participant in a current, FEMA-approved mitigation plan to be eligible for FEMA mitigation grant funding; and,

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management supports local mitigation planning and encourages local governments to participate in the County mitigation planning process.

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the San Miguel County Government approve the All Hazards Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation Plan Update; and

WHEREAS, the San Miguel County Government deems it in the public interest to approve this plan.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the San Miguel County Government that this plan be approved. **MOVED, SECONDED AND ADOPTED** by the Board of Commissioners of San Miguel County, New Mexico, on this 12th day of November, 2014.

Nicolas T. Leger Chairman District 5 Ron R. Ortega Marcellino A. Ortiz Vice-Chair Commissioner District 1 District 2 Arthur J. Padilla Gilbert J. B. Sena Commissioner Commissioner District 3 District 4 Les W.J. Montoya San Miguel County Manager, ATTEST: Melanie Y. Rivera San Miguel County Clerk

RESOLUTUION NO. 11-12-2014 – OEM-MITIGATION



CITY OF LAS VEGAS RESOLUTION NO. 14-67

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING PARTICIPATION IN THE ALL HAZARDS MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL MITIGATION PLANNING PROCESS AND ADOPTION OF THE ALL HAZARDS MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL MITIGATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas Governing body desires to prepare and mitigate for such hazards and seeks to promote the public health, and general welfare of the jurisdiction and the safe, orderly, and healthful development of the jurisdiction ; and

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas Governing body worked with their members and other participating jurisdictions and entities to develop an all-hazards multi-jurisdictional mitigation plan; and

WHEREAS, mitigation plans must conform to 44 CFR, Part 201, and all applicable mitigation planning guidance issued by FEMA ; and

WHEREAS, a community must be a participant in a current, FEMA-approved mitigation plan to be eligible for FEMA mitigation grant funding; and

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management supports local mitigation planning and encourages local governments to participate in the All Hazards Multi-jurisdictional mitigation planning process; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the City of Las Vegas Governing body approve the All Hazards Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation Plan Update; and

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas Governing body deems it in the public interest to approve this plan.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the governing body of the City of Las Vegas

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19 day of November, 2014.

Mayor Alfonso E. Ortiz, Jr.

ATTEST Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

REVIEWED AND APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY ONLY:

Dave Romero Jr., City Attorney

All Hazard Multi-Jurisdiction Mitigation Plan Resolution No. 14-67



The Village of Pecos

P.O. Drawer 337 Pecos, New Mexico 87552 Phone (505) 757-6591 Fax (505) 757-2833 Tony J. Roybal *Mayor*

Ramona Quintana Village Clerk

Arthur R. Varela, *Village Treasurer*

Board of Trustees Joe M. Benavidez Florencio Varela Herman Gallegos Ralph Lopez

VILLAGE OF PECOS RESOLUTION NO. 2014-265

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING PARTICIPATION IN THE ALL HAZARDS MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL MITIGATION PLANNING PROCESS AND ADOPTION OF THE ALL HAZARDS MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL MITIGATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the Village of Pecos Governing body desires to prepare and mitigate for such hazards and seeks to promote the public health, and general welfare of the jurisdiction and the safe, orderly, and healthful development of the jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Pecos Governing body worked with their members and other participating jurisdictions and entities to develop an all-hazards multi-jurisdictional mitigation plan; and

WHEREAS, mitigation plans must conform to 44 CFR, Part 201, and all applicable mitigation planning guidance issued by FEMA ; and

WHEREAS, a community must be a participant in a current, FEMA-approved mitigation plan to be eligible for FEMA mitigation grant funding; and

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management supports local mitigation planning and encourages local governments to participate in the All Hazards Multi-jurisdictional mitigation planning process; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the Village of Pecos Governing body approve the All Hazards Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation Plan Update; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Pecos Governing body deems it in the public interest to approve this plan.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the governing body of the Village of Pecos

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of November, 2014.

ATTEST:

Ramona Quintana, Village Clerk

Tony J. Roybal, Village Mayor

nen Florencio Varela, Trustee

Joe Modesto Benavidez, Mayor Pro-Tem

Herman Gallegos, Trustee

-h Ralph Lopez, Trustee

1.3.4 Status of the Plan

San Miguel County contracted with Witt O'Brien's, LLC, to review, update, and complete the local Multi-Jurisdictional All-Hazards Mitigation Plan. Dennis English, the San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management (OEM) Manager, Les Montoya, the San Miguel County Manager, Wendy Blackwell, the New Mexico (NM) State Hazard Mitigation Officer, and other stakeholders met with the Witt O'Brien's planning team on May 30, 2013 to outline the planning process and timeline, and to discuss the hazards that may impact San Miguel County. The meeting was also provided clarification regarding how the county stakeholders and Witt O'Brien's will proceed with the planning effort

The Plan was completed using the 2011FEMA Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide and the 2013 FEMA Local Mitigation Planning Handbook. The new FEMA planning guidance replaced the previous crosswalk guidelines, but not the requirement of the plan as prescribed under 44 CFR 201.6. These guidelines and requirements were incorporated into the Plan.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Executive Summary and Resolution

2. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF PLAN

2.1 Overview

Across the United States, natural and human-caused disasters have led to increasing levels of death, injury, property damage, and interruption of business and government services. The impact on individuals can be immense, and damages to businesses and infrastructure can result in regional economic consequences. The time, money, and effort spent to respond to and recover from these disasters often divert public resources and attention from other important programs and problems. San Miguel County recognizes the consequences of disasters and the need to reduce the impacts of natural, technological, and human-caused hazards. The elected and appointed officials of the County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos also know that with careful selection, mitigation actions in the form of projects and programs can become long-term, cost-effective means for reducing the impacts of natural, technological, and human-caused hazards. The Plan was prepared with input from county residents, local government officials, state and federal government entity partners, private sector stakeholders, and with the support of the San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management (SMCLV OEM), the New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management, (NDDHSEM) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). The planning period included nearly a year of coordination with representatives from various jurisdictions and agencies in the County. The Plan includes the local jurisdictions of San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

2.2 Definition of Hazard Mitigation

A hazard is a situation or event that poses a threat to life, health, property, or the environment. Hazard mitigation is defined as sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate the impact of disasters on people, property, and infrastructure.¹ The Plan specifies "all-hazards," which includes natural, technological, and human-caused hazards that have or could impact the County. The Plan documents the community's process of identifying hazards and ranking vulnerability, developing mitigation goals and strategies, and outlines a specific approach to make the County more disaster resilient. Definitions of terminology used in this document are presented in Appendix A.

2.3 Mitigation Planning

The purpose of performing hazard mitigation planning is to understand the risks to hazards that could impact the planning area, then identify ways in which the community can reduce its vulnerability to those identified hazards. The planning process documents community demographics, assets, and infrastructure, and develops strategies to reduce vulnerability. Hazards that may impact San Miguel County are identified by the MPG and then prioritized according to the potential severity of the impact and the likelihood of occurrence.

A community-wide inventory of critical facilities allows decision-makers to understand what assets are at risk, and where they are located. This inventory also helps emergency managers to be more prepared in the event of a disaster and to mitigate vulnerability in advance of the disaster. There are a wide range of mitigation strategies available to reduce community vulnerability, including

¹ FEMA "What is Mitigation. Collected 07.09.13 from http://www.fema.gov/what-mitigation#1

public education, modifications to building code or zoning maps, capital improvements in key infrastructure, preparedness training, and inter-jurisdictional coordination.

The ultimate purpose of mitigation planning is to build resiliency into the community. Through broad-based community involvement, the County MPG determined the primary hazards of concern, vulnerable assets, programs and projects that aim to reduce potential impacts due to natural and human-caused disasters. The Plan will serve as a guide toward greater disaster resilience against those hazards that threaten San Miguel County, its municipalities, residences, industry, and infrastructure.

2.4 Purpose of the Plan

The San Miguel County All-Hazard Mitigation Plan is intended to serve a variety of purposes. These include:

- *Enhance Public Awareness and Understanding* to help residents of the County better understand the natural and human-caused hazards that threaten public health, safety, and welfare; economic vitality; and the operational capability of important institutions
- *Create a Decision Tool for Management* to provide information that managers and leaders of local government, business and industry, community associations, and other key institutions and organizations need to take action to address vulnerabilities to future disasters
- *Promote Compliance with State and Federal Program Requirements* to ensure that San Miguel County and its incorporated communities can take full advantage of State and federal grant programs, policies, and regulations that encourage or mandate that local governments develop comprehensive hazard mitigation plans
- *Enhance Local Policies for Hazard Mitigation Capability* to provide the policy basis for mitigation actions that should be promulgated by participating jurisdictions to create a more disaster-resistant future
- *Inter-Jurisdictional Coordination of Mitigation-Related Programming* to ensure that proposals for mitigation initiatives are reviewed and coordinated among the participating jurisdictions within the County.

2.5 Conclusion

This plan is an official policy document adopted by the San Miguel County Commission, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos, in order to guide emergency mitigation efforts. It is intended to influence future development decisions, public awareness and training efforts, and other mitigation measures. The scope of the plan is long-range and County-wide. The proposed mitigation strategies may apply to the entire county or to specific jurisdictions as defined in the Mitigation Action Plan, however, it is important to note that the City of Las Vegas Comprehensive Plan governs land use and development within Las Vegas city limits.

This Plan is specifically written to satisfy the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA 2000), which is the latest legislation that guides the hazard planning process. By adopting the Plan, San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos will become eligible for a variety of federally-funded hazard mitigation grant opportunities for five years. This plan must be

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Introduction and Purpose of the Plan

updated, approved, and adopted every five years for the County and participating jurisdictions to remain eligible for potential federal mitigation funding streams.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Introduction and Purpose of the Plan

This page is intentionally blank.

3. THE PLANNING PROCESS

3.1 Interim Final Rule Requirements for the Planning Process

Requirement §201.6(b): An open public involvement process is essential to the development of an effective plan. In order to develop a more comprehensive approach to reducing the effects of natural disasters, the planning process shall include:

(1) An opportunity for the public to comment on the plan during the drafting stage and prior to plan approval;

(2) An opportunity for neighboring communities, local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, and agencies that have the authority to regulate development, as well as businesses, academia, and other private, and non-profit interests to be involved in the planning process; and

(3) Review and incorporation, if appropriate, of existing plans, studies, reports, and technical information.

Requirement §201.6(c)(1): [The plan shall document] the planning process used to develop the plan, including how it was prepared, who was involved in the process, and how the public was involved.

3.2 Introduction

San Miguel County received partial funding from FEMA to perform a hazard mitigation plan and geo-hydrological study. The County contracted Witt O'Brien's, a consulting firm, to assist the county in developing the hazard mitigation plan. The County Manager, Les Montoya, and the San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Emergency Manager, Dennis English led development of the Plan which identifies and details the goals, objectives, and mitigation strategies for building resiliency and lessening the impacts of the profiled hazards. The Plan follows DMA 2000 planning requirements and guidance for developing local hazard mitigation plans.

The Code of Federal Regulations [44 CFR §201.6(b) and §201.6(c)(1)] (CFR) requires that the planning process includes an opportunity for the neighboring communities, agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, and members of the public to participate and comment on the plan during the drafting stages. Under the CFR, the Plan must include review of existing plans, studies, reports, and other technical information. The plan must also document the process used to develop the plan, including how it was prepared, who was involved in the process, and how the public was involved. In order to develop a more comprehensive approach to reducing the effects of natural, technological, and human-caused hazards, the MPG incorporated the following public involvement into the planning process:

- An opportunity for the public to comment on the plan during the draft stage;
- An opportunity for the public to comment on the plan prior to plan approval; and
- An opportunity for each of the following to be involved in the process:
 - Agencies that have authority to regulate development;
 - Neighboring communities and counties;
 - Academia (public, private, and institutions of higher education);

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Planning Process

- Local, regional, and state agencies;
- o Local private sector; and
- Locally affiliated and supportive non-governmental organizations.

The MPG, listed by name and jurisdiction in the Acknowledgements (p. i), included staff from the County, the City of Las Vegas, the Village of Pecos, and other local, state, and federal agencies, private partners, and interest groups who contributed technical information based on their areas of expertise, performed the hazard identification, asset ranking, and project prioritization process, and reviewed draft plans. Names of jurisdictional points of contacts are noted in Appendix D, *Meeting Notes and Attendance Rosters*, and Appendix M, *Multi-Jurisdiction Participation Summary*. Invitations and Advertisements for participation are found in Appendix E, *Invitations and Advertisements*.

3.3 Multi-Jurisdiction Planning Effort

The Plan is structured as a multi-jurisdictional plan. This means that all incorporated local governments within the County were involved in the planning effort and are identified in the Acknowledgements. Jurisdictional points of contact and related participation tracking is noted in Appendix M, *Multi-Jurisdiction Participation Summary*. Because this is the first mitigation plan for the County, all participating jurisdictions are newly participating. For San Miguel County, there are only two incorporated municipalities, the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos. Additionally, San Miguel County is the local government body that led the planning effort and administered the FEMA planning grant. The MPG worked with each jurisdiction to identify the present emergency response capacity and resources, the history of hazards experienced in each region, concerns about future disasters, and potential mitigation projects to improve the capacity for local response to hazards. Furthermore, representatives from each jurisdiction were invited to participate in the MPG.

3.4 Mitigation Planning Group

The purpose of the MPG is to guide the process of developing the Plan for San Miguel County. The MPG consists of representatives from federal, state, and local governing bodies, utility service providers, higher education, water associations, and private sector stakeholders. Participants are recognized in the Acknowledgements section. There were three MPG meetings, held between May 2013 and November 2013, local individual jurisdiction meetings with the County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. Members of the MPG participated by attending planning meetings, sharing relevant plans, photos and data related to hazards, and contributing specific input.

3.4.1 Roles and Responsibilities of the MPG

The Mitigation Planning Group is responsible for:

- Increasing community awareness and understanding of hazard mitigation
- Identification of the community's hazard threat
- Assessment of recent disaster events
- Vulnerability assessment
- Evaluation of existing policies, plans, and regulations
- Identification and characterization of proposed mitigation initiatives

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Planning Process

- Prioritization of proposed mitigation initiatives
- Review and coordination of proposed mitigation initiatives
- Incorporation of proposed mitigation initiatives into the strategy
- Implementation of proposed mitigation initiatives
- Monitoring of implementation of mitigation initiatives
- Approval and issuance of the San Miguel County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

The first meeting was held following the preliminary research and public outreach efforts. The MPG presented the process of hazard mitigation planning and data on the history of potential hazards in San Miguel County. The intent of the first meeting was to discuss the benefits of participation, the project timeline, and to identify the hazards of concern for the planning area. Based on experience and local knowledge, the MPG identified the hazards that were of the highest concern within the county. Participants were also asked to share any relevant existing plans and procedures that they follow to address emergency events.

The second meeting provided an update to the MPG, and reviewed the mitigation goals, asset ranking methodology, risk assessment data, and public surveys. The focus of the second meeting was to identify and prioritize mitigation goals and to perform qualitative assessments of the identified hazards based on available data and hazard history. The MPG was presented with the results of the hazard history research and methodologies for ranking hazard impacts and assets. The data and methodologies allowed the MPG to provide an informed evaluation of the severity of the potential hazards and identify potential impacts through the qualitative assessment process.

The third set of meetings with San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos focused on the Mitigation Action Plan and included refining mitigation objectives and identifying specific mitigation actions. Specific actions were identified for each hazard in each of the participated jurisdictions. Risk, capability assessment, and public survey results were reviewed, where necessary, to determine appropriate actions. Actions were later organized into the appropriate goals and objectives, then provided to stakeholder jurisdictions for prioritization using FEMA recommended evaluation criteria.²

Meeting notes and rosters can be found in Appendix D.

3.5 San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management

The San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management provided oversight and guidance for the development of the Plan. The Emergency Management Office coordinated the efforts of all-local governmental departments and agencies within the county as well as served as the county liaison with external emergency management agencies and organizations at the state and federal level. Emergency Management staff provided valuable understanding and expertise in the area of emergency management, as well as allowed the MPG to utilize their existing community and agency relationships to help inform this planning process.

² FEMA Local Mitigation Planning Handbook, March 2013. Task 6, Page 6-7. Print

3.6 Local Emergency Planning Committee

The Emergency Management Office facilitates the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC). The role of the LEPC is to form a partnership with local governments and industries as a resource for enhancing hazardous materials preparedness. The membership comes from the local area and is familiar with factors that affect public safety, the environment, and the economy of the community. Members of the LEPC represent various organizations, agencies, departments, facilities, and other groups within the county. The LEPC is most familiar with hazards and vulnerabilities in the community and therefore works to advise the county in the development of the emergency plans.

The San Miguel County LEPC provided input regarding the HMP throughout the planning process. The LEPC chairperson participated in the MPG and served as the primary link between the two organizations.

In addition to being a valued member of the hazard mitigation planning process, the LEPC will also be critical in the implementation of this plan. One of the key roles of the LEPC is to increase the general public's awareness of the benefits of hazard mitigation and the available techniques for making the community more prepared to handle natural, technological, and human-caused hazard situations. An important assessment for determining the effectiveness of this plan is a demonstrated change in the level of public understanding of, acceptance for and willingness to implement a range of mitigation initiatives as well as how it influences future decision-making within the participating jurisdictions.

3.7 Public Input

The public was involved in the planning process through public surveys and public comment periods on the draft plan. Invitations for public participation were advertised through local traditional and social media outlets and were available online or through print copies via the SMCLVOEM office. The public survey included questions about risk from natural, technological, and human-caused hazards, disaster history, level of preparedness and experiences. The public survey was available on-line and was advertised through local media including the Las Vegas Optic Newspaper as well as on the county and municipal websites:

- City of Las Vegas website
- San Miguel County website
- OEM Facebook page
- LEPC Distribution list (email)
- Las Vegas Daily Optic newspaper

A total of 123 surveys were completed between August 2013 and October 2013. The survey results are included in Appendix F and a summary follows.

According to survey respondents, 42.2 percent have received information about making their homes and families safer from natural disasters with 42.6 percent of those respondents saying they had received information in the last six month. Over 60 percent of the respondents believe they are at least adequately prepared for the impacts of natural or human-caused disasters having first-aid

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Planning Process

training, maintaining flashlights and batteries, and knowing their home's utility shut-off locations. Less than 30 percent have a prepared disaster supply kit or a designated family meeting place. All respondents showed that they had experienced at least one of the identified hazards in the Plan, and all identified hazards had been experienced by between five (expansive soils hazard) and 59 (hailstorm hazard) respondents. Nearly every respondent showed some level of concern for the drought and wildfire hazards; both hazards were of the most concern to the majority of respondents. Earthquake, expansive soils, and landslide were of the least concern to the majority of respondents.

While 59 percent of the respondents do not believe they live in a designated flood zone, 24 percent are unsure, and 17 percent affirm they do. Twenty-four percent claim to have flood insurance and 76 percent do not. Of those that do not, 24 percent say they are not familiar with it, 15 percent say it is too expensive, and 35 percent believe they don't need it because their home is not in a floodplain

Only 30 percent of respondents considered the potential impacts of hazards of their home prior to purchasing/moving in. Approximately 43 percent of the respondents would be willing to invest a portion of their own money into mitigation actions on their own homes, and 85 percent believe that incentive programs such as tax breaks or permit waivers would encourage personal mitigation actions. Of those living in high-hazard areas or having properties that have received repeated damages from hazards, nearly 62 percent said they would consider an allocation, relocation, or elevation mitigation proposal if offered by a public agency.

The May 7, 2014 to Jun3 7, 2014 public comment period provided an opportunity for the residents to review the draft plan, ask questions, and make comments for consideration by the Mitigation Planning Committee. The draft plan was made available for review through the San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas websites, the San Miguel/City of Las Vegas OEM Facebook page, and in print at local libraries. The public was asked to utilize the comment review forms and provide them to SMCLVOEM for review. Vetted comments were incorporated into the plan prior to submitting the document for state and FEMA approval. Copies of the advertisements and posted locations of available copies for this comment period are located in Appendix E, Invitations and Advertisements. Public comment sheets are provided in Appendix N, *Public Comments.*

3.8 Research and Plan Review

The MPG gathered and reviewed various existing plans and documents provided by participating stakeholders and conducted extensive research related to identifying the hazards threatening the planning area. Plans and related documents included:

- 2012 New Mexico State Hazard Mitigation Plan
- 2010 Draft San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan
- San Miguel County Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan
- San Miguel County Community Wildfire Protection Plan
- Assessing Seismic Preparedness of New Mexico (Report)
- Groundwater Well Data of San Miguel County (Report)
- Local Dam Emergency Action Plans

The purpose of this analysis was to identify locations, facilities, or systems within San Miguel County that may be vulnerable to the impacts of the profiled hazards and to identify potential land

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Planning Process

uses that may be affected by those hazards. The MPG also utilized data provided in a geographic information system (GIS) for identifying, depicting and analyzing hazards.

3.9 Hazard Mitigation Plan Review and Approval

The draft hazard mitigation plan was reviewed by the MPG as well as by the participating jurisdictions including San Miguel County, City of Las Vegas, and Village of Pecos. The MPG also provided the public, neighboring jurisdictions, and stakeholder representatives the opportunity to review and comment on the Plan. In addition, the Plan was reviewed by the New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management as well as FEMA Region VI to ensure compliance with the hazard mitigation planning guidance and 44 CFR 201.6
4. COMMUNITY PROFILES

4.1 History

The record of human events in San Miguel County begins circa 1100 A.D., the estimated date of the settlement of Pecos Pueblo near the modern day Village of Pecos. Over the next two centuries, the Pueblo become a vital regional trading center for people of the southern High Plains (i.e. Apaches) and the Puebloan Southwest. By the beginning of the fifteenth century, Pecos Pueblo was the area's most important settlement, acting as both a center of commerce and a fortress for the region.

The first Spanish explorers met with the Pecos Puebloans in 1540. There was intermittent contact between the Pueblo and the *conquistadores* over the next forty years. Conquest occurred in1580 and, aside from a ten-year span after the Pueblo revolt in 1692, was continuous until the last remaining seventeen residents abandoned the Pueblo at the beginning of the nineteenth century. Disease, occupation, shifting trade routes, and intra-tribal conflict had combined to deplete the community of its resources, deprive it of its strategic position, and diminish its cultural cohesion. Throughout the Spanish and American settlement period, large Pueblo communities dominated the landscape of the Rio Grande Valley and Four Corners region. The fortified village of Pecos Pueblo was a major population and trading center for plains buffalo meat and hides, and Rio Grande ceramics and agricultural products until approximately 1700. Pecos Pueblo came under Spanish jurisdiction and religious rule in 1590. Pecos Pueblo participated in the Pueblo Revolt of 1680, but accepted Spanish re-conquest in 1692. In 1794, settlers from Santa Fe came to the valley of the Pecos River, established the San Miguel del Vado land grant, and started farming and ranching. They founded communities that survived through the rugged life on the Spanish and Mexican frontiers, and the eventual loss of their grant's common lands in the 1800s (Hall 1991). By the end of the eighteenth century, the San Miguel del Vado Land Grant represented the furthest extension of Spanish colonization in the northeast. The early nineteenth century was marked by Mexico's War of Independence. Under Mexican rule, the land grant system remained essentially the same as under the previous Spanish system.

In 1846, Mexican rule of New Mexico was terminated when United States troops arrived in Las Vegas and claimed New Mexico. On August 14, 1846, General Stephen Kearney Watts stood on top of a plaza building in Las Vegas and claimed the territory for the United States. A commemorative plague located in Plaza Park documents the event. Over the course of the century, Las Vegas became an important stop along the Santa Fe Trail and one of the largest settlements in the territory. The United States' forced occupation of New Mexico lasted until 1848, when much of the West was ceded by Mexico as a result of the American victory in the Mexican-American War, and in 1851, Fort Union was built just 20 miles outside of Las Vegas to protect Santa Fe Trail travelers from Indian raids. Fort Union became an important part of the area's economy as milling and farming became critical support industries for the fort. San Miguel County was one of nine original counties created in the New Mexico Territory in 1852.

By the 1860's, Las Vegas had grown to over 1000 people including an influx of Jewish, French, Canadian, and European traders, trappers, and merchants. The plaza square shifted from residential to mercantile properties. Las Vegas became a leading commercial center in New Mexico. In 1879, the Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railway reached Las Vegas. With six train stops a day, Las Vegas became so large that it rivaled Denver, Tucson, and El Paso in size. The town became a center of commerce drawing immigrant, settlers, and some of American history's most notorious desperados. East Las Vegas and the rail terminus was soon policed by the "Dodge City Gang" a

group comprised of a judge, a group of peace officers, and several known outlaws with ties to Dodge City, Kansas. Such notable and notorious characters as Hyman G. "Hoodoo Brown" Neill, Joe Carson, "Mysterious Dave" Mather, Doc Holliday, Big-Nose Kate, Jesse James, Billy the Kid, Bob Ford, and Wyatt Earp visited or made home of Las Vegas during the boomtown years. By 1898, the town's people had reclaimed the lawless city and provided 21 Rough Riders (the first U.S. volunteer cavalry) to Teddy Roosevelt, most of whom were with him on the charge up San Juan Hill. The town became the home for Rough Rider reunions and a Rough Rider Memorial.

Settlement and activity in San Miguel County was at its high point during the 1930s to 1950s during which villages experienced maximum population growth (Forrest 1998). The County is now home to approximately 29,000 residents and over 900 buildings listed on the National Registry of Historic Places. The area is mostly home to ranchers, local business owners, academia staff and students, and commuters who work in the Santa Fe area. The Village of Pecos, rich in natural wilderness and a draw for eco-tourism, is growing as a bedroom community for Santa Fe commuters.



Map 4.1-1 San Miguel County

Map 4.1-2 City of Las Vegas



Map 4.1-3 Village of Pecos



4.2 Topography, and Hydrology

San Miguel County is the ninth largest county in New Mexico with approximately four million acres $(4,717 \text{ square miles})^3$. It is located at the interface between the southern margin of the southern Rocky Mountain physiographic province, the northern extent of the Sacramento Section of the Basin and Range physiographic province, and the southwestern boundary of the Raton Section of the Great Plains physiographic province. High mountain ranges separated by deep structural basins typify the Southern Rocky Mountain physiographic province, whereas high tablelands with broad, rolling summit plains and widely separated structural basins characterize the Sacramento Section. The Raton Section contains high piedmont plains, the remains of extensive basalt flows, and deep canyons of the Canadian and Cimarron river systems (Hawley 1986). The typical land cover types that occur in the general area include the Southern Rocky Mountain Piñon-Juniper Woodland, the Rocky Mountain Gambel's Oak-Mixed Montane Woodland, and the North American Warm Desert Lower Montane Riparian Woodland and Shrubland (Prior-Magee et al. 2007). The southern Rocky Mountain Piñon-Juniper ecological system occurs on dry mountains and foothills in southern Colorado and in mountains and plateaus of north-central New Mexico. The Rocky Mountain Gambel Oak-Mixed Montane Woodland occurs in the mountains, plateaus, and foothills in the southern Rocky Mountains. These shrublands are most commonly found along dry foothills, lower mountain slopes, and are often situated above Piñon-Juniper woodlands. The North American Warm Desert Lower Montane Riparian Woodland and Shrubland occurs in mountain canyons and valleys of southern Arizona, New Mexico, and adjacent Mexico and consists of mid- to low-elevation riparian corridors along perennial and seasonally intermittent streams. The vegetation is a mix of riparian woodlands and shrublands.

The major aquifer within the Las Vegas Plateau is the Cretaceous Dakota Sandstone. Depth to water is generally less than 250 ft. below land surface (bls). In the plains area, groundwater is derived primarily from the Triassic Chinle Formation and Santa Rosa Sandstone, at depths of about 100–300 ft. bls. San Miguel County is drained primarily by the Pecos and Canadian Rivers. The Pecos River and its major tributaries originate in the Sangre de Cristo Mountains, as do the headwaters of the Sapello River, which flows into the Mora River in Mora County to the north. The Mora River flows into the Canadian River south of the San Miguel–Mora County line. The principal tributaries of the Pecos River are, in downstream order, the Rio Mora (distinct from the Mora River), Bull Creek, Tecolote Creek, and the Gallinas River. The Gallinas River and Tecolote Creek drain to the east and southeast, cutting through a series of steep structural ridges in transition areas between the western mountains and the eastern plains. The valleys of these streams are generally narrow and confined. The Canadian River, in the eastern plains region, enters San Miguel County at the northern county border and flows in a southerly direction through the Canadian River canyon to Conchas Lake and then continues generally easterly below Conchas Lake to the eastern county line.⁴

There are three major lakes in San Miguel County: Lake Isabel, Conchas Lake on the Canadian River, and Storrie Lake on the Sapello River (New Mexico State Engineer Office, 1975; Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc., 2005). Conchas Lake is a 25-mi-long water body with a surface area of about 6,419 acres and average storage of 61,532 acre-feet (acre-ft.) (Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc., 2005) that is fed by the Canadian and Conchas Rivers; the reservoir supplies appropriated water to irrigated lands around Tucumcari, about 35 mi to the southeast (U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, 1979). Lake Isabel, averaging 530 acres in surface area and 6,500 acre-ft. of storage (Daniel B. Stephens &

³ Retrieved 10.28.13 http://www.indexmundi.com/facts/united-states/quick-facts/new-mexico/land-area#chart

⁴ US Geological Survey, Scientific Investigations Report 2012–5238: *Characterization of the Hydrologic Resources of San Miguel County, New Mexico, and Identification of Hydrologic Data Gaps, 2011*

Associates, Inc., 2005), also supplies irrigation water. Storrie Lake, averaging 907 acres in surface area and 21,747 acre-ft. of storage (Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc., 2005), supplies water to Las Vegas and acequias of the Las Vegas Acequia Association (Ebright, 2009). Additionally, twenty-two springs have been located in San Miguel County (Griggs and Hendrickson, 1951; White and Kues, 1992). Most are reported to yield less than 12 gallons per minute, with five of the springs reported to yield 40–150 gallons per minute and one reported to yield an anomalously high 400 gallons per minute. No other published sources updating spring yields reported by Griggs and Hendrickson (1951) were located.⁵



Map 4.2-1 San Miguel County Land Cover

4.3 Population Overview

San Miguel County is a rural area in northeastern New Mexico (4,717 square miles with 6.2 persons/square mile⁶) located to the northeast of Santa Fe and southeast of Taos. The population is predominately of Hispanic origin (76.8 percent). Over half of the population speaks a language other than English at home (58.7 percent) but only one percent speak no English at all⁷. The population of San Miguel County, based on 2012 U.S. Census data estimates was 28,891.⁸ The population in San Miguel County saw a 22 percent growth between the years of 1910 and 1940. The Second World War changed the community, and it marked the beginning of a population decline. After a peak population of 27,910 residents in 1940, the population began to decline through the 1970s. By 1990, the population had turned back around and increased by 17 percent since 1980 to 25,743 people.

⁵ US Geological Survey, Scientific Investigations Report 2012–5238: Characterization of the Hydrologic Resources of San Miguel County, New Mexico, and Identification of Hydrologic Data Gaps, 2011

⁶ U.S. Department of Commerce, U.S. Census Bureau. Retrieved 07.15.13 from http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/35/35047.html

⁷ Retrieved 7.15.13 from http://www.city-data.com/county/San_Miguel_County-NM.html

⁸ U.S Department of Commerce, US Census Bureau. Retrieved 7.15.13 http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/35/35047.html

The majority of San Miguel County's population consists of individuals who are of Hispanic or Latino origin. In the 2010 US Census, 76.9 percent of residents identified themselves as Hispanic or Latino. Hispanic and Latino populations have both cultural and racial identification, and may be of any race. They are therefore included in the ethnic and applicable Census race categories in Table 4.3-1 for San Miguel County population statistics.⁹

Race/Ethnicity	Percent of County Population
Hispanic or Latino	76.9%
Caucasian	92.4%
Caucasian (not Hispanic or Latino)	19.6%
African-American (not-Hispanic or Latino)	1.7%
Native American or Native Alaskan	2.8%
Two or more races	1.9%
Asian	1.0%
Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander	0.2%

Table 4.3-1
Racial and Ethnic Diversity in San Miguel County

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census data.

According to 2011 Census estimates, there are 15,762 housing units with a 67 percent ownership rate in the County. The median value of owner-occupied housing units in \$118,000. The County also has 12,010 households and averages 2.28 persons per household.

4.4 Climate

Average maximum and minimum temperatures range from a high of 85° Fahrenheit (F) to a low of 16° F. Mean annual rainfall is 16 inches and mean annual total snowfall is 32 inches with an averaged 62 precipitation days per year.¹⁰

4.5 Economy

According to the U.S. Census 2007-2011 American Community Survey, 2.1 percent of San Miguel County residents were in the labor force with 46.6 percent employed and 5.3 percent unemployed (Table 4.5-1). The percentage of people employed and in the labor force in the county was lower than those employed and in the labor force in the state (56.1 percent). The percentage of unemployed in the county is slightly higher than those unemployed within the state (5.0 percent).¹¹ San Miguel County has a median household income of \$32,332 where 26.2 percent of residents live below the poverty level.¹²

The three most common industries within the County include educational, health and social services which constitutes 33 percent of the labor force, retail trade which constitutes 13 percent of

¹⁰ Retrieved 7.15.13 from http://www.bestplaces.net/climate/county/new_mexico/san_miguel

¹¹ U.S. Department of Commerce, U.S. Census Bureau. Retrieved 7.16.13 from

⁹ U.S Department of Commerce, US Census Bureau. Retrieved 7.15.13 http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/35/35047.html

http://factfinder2.census.gov/bkmk/table/1.0/en/ACS/11_5YR/DP03/0500000US35047%7C0400000US35

¹² U.S. Department of Commerce, U.S. Census Bureau. Retrieved 7.16.13 from http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/35/35047.html

the labor force, and public administration that constitutes 10 percent of the labor force.¹³ The County's two major employers are the Las Vegas Medical Center and the New Mexico State Department of Transportation.¹⁴ Other main industries include accommodation and food services, construction, professional, management, administration, and waste management services.

Another economic interest for San Miguel County is the entertainment industry. The communities' unique culture, historic preservation, and climate provide favorable locations for filming movies and television programs. There have been at least 62 productions at least partly filmed in the County. Some of the more notable films include Easy Rider (1969), Red Dawn (1984), Wyatt Earp (1994), No Country for Old Men (2006), and True Grit (2010).¹⁵

Employment and Income in San Miguel County					
Economic Status Indicator	State of New Mexico	San Miguel County			
Population (2012 Estimate)	2,085,538	28,891			
Civilian Labor Force	974,512	12,316			
Employed	886,857	11,013			
Unemployed	78,901	1,260			
Armed Forces	8,754	43			
Median Family Income	\$53,956	\$41,309			
Per-Capita Income	\$23,537	\$19,130			
Individuals Below Poverty Level	19.0%	26.2%			
Families Below Poverty Level	14.4%	17.5%			

Table 4.5-1Employment and Income in San Miguel County

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, U.S. Census Bureau, Census. 2007-2011 American Community Survey 5-year Estimates

4.6 Agriculture

Beef cattle ranching is the single largest private business, with an estimated 35,000 head of cattle in San Miguel County, ranking 11th in the state. There are 565 farms with an estimated 2,091,643 acres of farmland.¹⁶ Table 4.6-1 provides more detail about agriculture in San Miguel County.

¹³ Retrieved 07.17.13 from http://www.city-data.com/county/San_Miguel_County-NM.html

¹⁴ New Mexico State University, San Miguel County Extension Office. Retrieved 07.15.13 from http://sanmiguelextension.nmsu.edu/ ¹⁵ Las Vegas Film Commission. 2013 Guide – Las Vegas & San Miguel County. Print.

¹⁶ New Mexico State University, San Miguel County Extension Office. Retrieved 07.15.13 from http://sanmiguelextension.nmsu.edu/

Agricultural Element	Size/Value
Average size of farms	3702 acres
Average value of products sold per farm	\$21,731
Average value of crops sold per acre	\$264.18
Average total production expenses per farm	\$22,474
Average value of machinery and equipment per farm	\$39,093
Average age of principle farm operators	58 years

Table 4.6-1San Miguel County Agriculture

Source: City-Data, San Miguel County, New Mexico. Retrieved 07.17.13 from http://www.citydata.com/county/San_Miguel_County-NM.html

4.7 Historic, Cultural, and Ecological Interest

San Miguel County is home to 106 districts, sites and locations on the National Historic Register ranging from parts of the Santa Fe Trail, Glorieta Pass Battlefield, and Pecos National Historic Park, to railroad icons, merchant structures, and residential homes. The rich history of San Miguel County and its communities serves as a living testament to ancient native culture, 19th Century Mexican land grant settlements, and the industrialization of the Old West.

Local historic and cultural attractions include the Montezuma Castle, an homage to the railroad days that now serves as an international college, and the Rough Rider Museum which houses a collection of over 7,000 objects, photographs, and archival materials. The Museum's collection includes items dating from as early as the 1300s.¹⁷ Other attractions include the only surviving Carnegie Library in New Mexico, the Old Town Plaza Historic District, "The Well" known to be the oldest surviving well along the Santa Fe Trail, and a number of uniquely preserved Acequias.

The County hosts a number of ecological and eco-tourism assets. The Las Vegas National Wildlife Refuge provides 8,672 acres of native grasslands, croplands, marshes, ponds, timbered canyons, and streams as a habitat for over 270 species of birds. Other animal life includes mule deer, American pronghorn, wild turkey, and coyote. Amphibian, reptile, and insects are also found in abundance on the refuge. Eco-tourism activities include hiking the refuge, horseback riding, fishing in the Pecos Wilderness, canoeing on Storrie Lake, and snow skiing the slopes of the lower Rocky Mountains

4.8 Land Use and Development Trends

Land use patterns within the County include a mix of private, state, and federal property. The mesas and upland areas are predominately used for cattle grazing. The farming lands are located along the Gallinas and Pecos River valleys with development clustered in villages, towns, and cities. The County also provides large, open ranchland, and federally protected forest lands. Federal and state lands together make up 19 percent of the County's land area. The remaining 81 percent is private land.¹⁸ Table 4.8-1 outlines land use and ownership in the County.

¹⁷ New Mexico State University, San Miguel County Extension Office. Retrieved 07.15.13 from http://sanmiguelextension.nmsu.edu/

¹⁸ 2004-2014 San Miguel County Comprehensive Plan. Printed.

Land Use	Percentage
Federal/State Protected Lands	19%
Farm and Pasture Lands	2%
Developed – Village and City Lands	1%
Ranch Lands	78%
Land Ownership	Percentage
Land Ownership Federal	Percentage 13%
Land Ownership Federal State	Percentage 13% 6%
Land OwnershipFederalStateNative American	Percentage 13% 6% 0%

Table 4.8-1San Miguel County Land Use and Ownership

Source: 2004-2014 San Miguel County Comprehensive Plan. Printed.

Approximately half of the County's population resides in the City of Las Vegas and nearby surrounding areas. Between 1990 and 2000, County areas outside of the City of Las Vegas grew nearly 40 percent, while city population remained stagnant (BBER 2010). Land ownership indicates that the private sector is largely in control, but the large lot and ranch sizes make governmental regulations more feasible (San Miguel County 2004). In more recent years, the county has experienced slower growth and land conversion from rural/wild to urban is not a current concern. However, future national economic recovery could result in increased growth.

Proximity to the job centers of Santa Fe and Albuquerque will likely mean future growth pressures. Water consumption will continually be an associated issue with growth. Continued low density growth in less developed areas will only exacerbate vulnerability to the hazards as described in later sections of this plan. According to a Las Vegas Land Use Focus Group presentation in 2010, 620 acres are projected to be needed for urban growth between 2010 and 2030. Renovation, revitalization, and infill within existing activity centers will be keys to alleviating some of these issues.

4.9 San Miguel County Hazard Exposure Profile

San Miguel County has a total land area of 4,717 square miles, and a population of 28,891 according to U.S. Census. Table 4.9-1 summarizes the critical community infrastructure and facilities that are potentially at risk from disasters. Understanding the value of assets within the county will assist with determining the potential impacts of natural and human-caused disasters.

Facility	Number	Description	Replacement Cost		
Utility Infrastructure					
Power Plants	1	Public Service Company NM Las Vegas Turbine	\$105,600,000		
Natural Gas Utility Lines	4,028	miles	unavailable		
Public Water Supplies	9	Dams/reservoirs	unavailable		
Potable Water Pipeline	10,070	miles	unavailable		
Wastewater Treatment Plants	2	City of Las Vegas; San Miguel County Co-Operation Break	\$127,872,000		
Wastewater Pipeline	6,042	miles	unavailable		
Sewage Treatment Sites	2	City of Las Vegas and Village of Pecos	unavailable		
Dams	9	Lake Isabel Dam, Storrie Dam, Bradner Dam, Peterson Dam, Aragon Dam, Sink Hole Gap Reservoir, Corralitas Dam, Conchas Dam, Pecos Arroyo Watershed Site 1	unavailable		
Tr	ansportation	n Infrastructure			
Roads/Streets	434	miles of major and urban roadway	\$2,735,606,000		
Bridges	117		\$105,938,000		
Railroad Lines	132	miles of railroad track	\$117,672,00		
Railroad Facility	1	TNM & O, Las Vegas	\$2,663,000		
Bus Facility	1	TNM & O, Las Vegas	\$1,046,000		
Airport	1	Las Vegas Municipal Airport	\$10,651,000		
(Critical Comn	nunity Facilities			
Medical Facilities	2	Northeastern Regional Hospital; Las Vegas Medical Center	\$20,160,000		
Schools	26		\$65,733,000		
City/County Facilities		George Arellanes Municipal Complex, Intermodal Facility, Museum, Utilities Dept., etc.			
Radio Broadcast Facilities	6	KFUN, KNMX, KEDP Ch 216, KLVF Ch 264,	\$576,000		

Table 4.9-1San Miguel County Assets and Value

Facility Number		Description	Replacement Cost		
		KBAC Ch 251, KMDZ Ch 244			
Hazardous Materials					
Toxic Chemical Inventory Sites	unknown		N/A		
Superfund Sites	unknown		N/A		
Nuclear Power Plants	0	No operating nuclear power reactors in NM	N/A		

This page is intentionally blank.

5. HAZARD PROFILES

This chapter describes the potential hazards that could affect San Miguel County. The MPG evaluated historical occurrences of each potential hazard, as well as the likelihood of other potential hazards to impact San Miguel County in the future. The following 18 hazards were selected for inclusion in the plan by the MPG:

- Dam Failure
- Drought
- Earthquake
- Expansive Soils
- Extreme Heat
- Flood
- Hailstorm
- Hazardous Materials Incidents
- High Wind
- Landslide
- Levee Failure
- Pandemic/Epidemic
- Pests
- Severe Winter Weather
- Terrorism
- Thunderstorm
- Tornado
- Wildfire

This Section profiles the 18 hazards listed above, including a description of the hazards, history of previous occurrences, location the hazard has occurred or is likely to occur, the extent and severity of the hazard, impact on life and property, and probability of future occurrences. The MPG discussed the county and participating jurisdiction's vulnerability to each of the hazards profiled above. They evaluated the impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure using the methodology described in Table 5-1.

Impacts to People				
Hazard	Metric			
Low	10% or less of people impacted			
Moderate	11% to 30% of people impacted			
High	31% or more of people impacted			
Additional Parameters	Psychological and sociological impacts; "people" includes residents,			
Auditional Lanameters	tourists, visitors, and commuters to San Miguel County.			
Impacts to Buildings				
Hazard	Metric			
Low	10% or less of buildings impacted, or limited to L5 facilities			

Table 5-1Hazard Ranking Methodology

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Hazard Profiles

Moderate	11% to 30% of buildings impacted, or limited to L4 and L5 facilities		
High	31% or more of buildings impacted		
Additional Parameters	Degree of structural damages, available mitigation measures, continuity of operations, and loss of function.		
Impacts to Infrastructure			
Hazard	Metric		
Low	Loss of Function for 12-24 hours		
Moderate	Loss of Function for 24-72 hours		
High	Loss of Function for greater than 72 hours		
Additional Parameters	Includes transportation, communications, electricity or gas for heat,		

Each hazard was given a rank of High, Moderate, or Low for each of the three categories (potentially affecting people, buildings, and infrastructure). One point was given for each "low" ranking, two points for "moderate", and 3 points for "high" and noted in Table 5-2.

	0
Rank	Score
Low	1
Moderate	2
High	3

Table 5-2 Hazard Risk Scoring

From these rankings, a numeric value was calculated and an overall hazard ranking was assigned for each hazard in each jurisdiction. Table 5-3 summarizes the results from the group discussion.

Jurisdiction	People	Buildings	Infrastructure	Score	Overall Ranking
		Dam Fail	ure		
San Miguel County	М	Н	Н	8	High
Las Vegas	Н	Н	Н	9	High
Village of Pecos	М	L	Н	6	Moderate
		Drougl	nt		
San Miguel County	Н	L	Н	7	High
Las Vegas	Н	L	Н	7	High
Village of Pecos	Н	L	Н	7	High
Earthquake					
San Miguel County	L	L	L	3	Low

Table 5-3 Hazard Impact Ranking

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Hazard Profiles

Jurisdiction	People	Buildings	Infrastructure	Score	Overall Ranking
Las Vegas	L	L	L	3	Low
Village of Pecos	L	М	Н	6	Moderate
		Flood	l		
San Miguel County	М	М	Н	7	High
Las Vegas	М	М	Н	7	High
Village of Pecos	Н	Н	Н	9	High
		Expansive	Soils		
San Miguel County	L	L	L	3	Low
Las Vegas	L	L	L	3	Low
Village of Pecos	L	L	L	3	Low
		Extreme l	Heat		
San Miguel County	Н	L	L	5	Moderate
Las Vegas	L	L	L	3	Low
Village of Pecos	L	L	L	3	Low
		Hailston	rm		
San Miguel County	Н	Н	М	8	High
Las Vegas	Н	Н	М	8	High
Village of Pecos	L	М	L	4	Low
	Hazai	rdous Mater	ials Incident		
San Miguel County	М	L	М	5	Moderate
Las Vegas	М	Н	М	7	High
Village of Pecos	Н	Н	Н	9	High
		High Wi	nd		
San Miguel County	Н	М	М	7	High
Las Vegas	Н	Н	Н	9	High
Village of Pecos	Н	Н	Н	9	High
Landslide					
San Miguel County	L	L	L	3	Low
Las Vegas	L	L	L	3	Low
Village of Pecos	L	L	L	3	Low
Levee Failure					
San Miguel County	L	L	L	3	Low
Las Vegas	L	L	L	3	Low

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Hazard Profiles

Jurisdiction	People	Buildings	Infrastructure	Score	Overall Ranking			
Village of Pecos	L	L	L	3	Low			
Pests								
San Miguel County	L	L	L	3	Low			
Las Vegas	L	L	L	3	Low			
Village of Pecos	L	L	L	3	Low			
	Se	vere Winter	Weather	_	_			
San Miguel County	Н	М	Н	8	High			
Las Vegas	Н	М	Н	8	High			
Village of Pecos	Н	L	Н	7	High			
		Terroris	sm					
San Miguel County	L	L	L	3	Low			
Las Vegas	М	L	М	5	Moderate			
Village of Pecos	L	L	L	3	Low			
		Thunders	torm					
San Miguel County	Н	М	Н	8	High			
Las Vegas	Н	М	Н	8	High			
Village of Pecos	Н	Н	Н	9	High			
		Tornad	lo					
San Miguel County	М	М	М	6	Moderate			
Las Vegas	Н	Н	Н	9	High			
Village of Pecos	М	М	М	6	Moderate			
		Wildfir	re					
San Miguel County	Н	Н	Н	9	High			
Las Vegas	Н	L	Н	7	High			
Village of Pecos	Н	Н	Н	9	High			
	F	Pandemic/Ep	pidemic					
San Miguel County	М	L	Н	7	High			
Las Vegas	Н	L	Н	8	High			
Village of Pecos	Н	L	Н	8	High			

Probabilities of occurrence for the hazards are generally defined through annualization of events. Those probabilities are then further defined using the metrics in Table 5-4.

Frequency	Description			
Highly Likely	Nearly 100% probability in the next year			
Likely	10% - 100% probability in the next year or at least 1 chance over the next 10 years			
Possible	1% - 10% probability or at least one chance in the next 100 years			
Unlikely	Less than 1% chance in the next 100 years.			

Table 5-4Probability of Occurrence Methodology

5.1 Dam Failure

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the hazard of dam failure was ranked in terms impacts to people, buildings and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed MPG responses, dam failure had high rankings for impacts to infrastructure in all three jurisdictions. Impacts to people and buildings were mixed among the jurisdictions as noted in Table 5-3. The overall dam failure hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos Moderate

5.1.1 Description of the Hazard

Dams are defined by the National Dam Safety Act as an artificial barrier that impounds or diverts water and (1) is more than 6 feet high and stores 50 acre feet or more or (2) is 25 feet or more high and stores more than 15 acre feet. According to the Association of State Dam Safety Officials, dams are life-sustaining assets to people in all regions of the United States and are as important to the nation's infrastructure as bridges, roads, and airports. Dams can serve several functions at the same time, including providing water supply for domestic, agricultural, industrial, and community use; flood control; recreation; and clean, renewable energy through hydropower¹⁹.

According to the American Society of Engineers, The nation's dams are aging and the number of high-hazard dams is on the rise. Many of the nation's dams were built as low-hazard dams protecting undeveloped agricultural land, but with an increasing population and greater development below dams, the overall number of high-hazard dams continues to increase, to nearly

¹⁹ Association of State Dam Safety Officials. (2013). *Dams are a vital part of the national infrastructure*. Retrieved from http://www.damsafety.org/news/?p=09a34183-4894-4781-9bfb-d4ce980d8cd1

14,000 in 2012²⁰, including 210 dams in the State of New Mexico²¹. Thus, greater attention to and investment in measures that reduce risks to public safety and economic assets is needed.

The consequences of a dam failure event can be catastrophic. Since 2007, there have been over 135 fatalities and more than \$2.6 billion in property damage in the United States from dam failures²². Dam failures can result from any one, or a combination of the following causes:

- Prolonged periods of rainfall and flooding;
- Inadequate spillway capacity, resulting in excess overtopping of the embankment;
- Internal erosion caused by embankment or foundation leakage or piping;
- Improper maintenance, including failure to remove trees, repair internal seepage problems, or maintain gates, valves, and other operational components;
- Improper design or use of improper construction materials;
- Failure of upstream dams in the same drainage basin;
- Landslides into reservoirs, which cause surges that result in overtopping;
- High winds, which can cause significant wave action and result in substantial erosion;
- Destructive acts of terrorists; and
- Earthquakes, which typically cause longitudinal cracks at the tops of the embankments, leading to structural failure²³.

Dam hazard classifications vary between states, but generally include three classes based on estimated loss of life and downstream damage from a dam failure. The hazard potential classification is a rating for a dam based on the potential consequences of failure. The rating is based on loss of life and economic loss, and environmental damage that is likely to occur in the event of dam failure. No allowances for evacuation or other emergency actions by the population should be considered. The hazard potential classification is not a reflection of the condition of the dam. Refer to Table 5.1-1 and 5.1-2 for dam size and dam hazard classifications, which are described in 19.25.12.10 NMAC²⁴.

Size Classification	Storage (Acre-Ft.)	Height (Ft.)
Small	50 acre-ft. or greater, but less than or equal to 1,000 acre-ft.	25 ft. or greater but less than or equal to 40 ft.
Intermediate	Greater than 1,000 acre-ft., but less than or equal to 50,000 acre-ft.	Greater than 40 ft., but less than or equal to 100 ft.
Large	Greater than 50,000 acre-ft.	Greater than 100 ft.

Table 5.1-1 Dam Size Classification

²⁰ American Society of Engineers. (2013). 2013 Report Card for America's Infrastructure. Retrieved from

http://www.infrastructurereportcard.org/dams/

²¹ Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management, (2010). New Mexico Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

²² Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development. (2007). Louisiana Dam Safety Program. Retrieved from

http://www.ltrc.lsu.edu/tec_07/presentations/Overview of LA Dam Safety Program.pdf

²³ Ohio Emergency Management Agency, (2012). *State of Ohio Enhanced Hazard Mitigation Plan*

²⁴ New Mexico Register, Volume XVI, Number 6. March 31, 2005. PDF.

http://www.nmcpr.state.nm.us/nmregister/xvi/xvi06/19.25.12.pdf

Hazard Classification	Loss of Life	Economic Loss
Low	No probable loss of life.	Low economic or environmental losses. Losses are principally limited to the dam owner's property.
Significant	No probable loss of life.	Cause economic loss, environmental damage, disruption of lifeline facilities, or can impact other concerns. Significant hazard potential classification dams are often located in predominantly rural or agricultural areas, but could be located in populated areas with significant infrastructure.
High	Probably cause loss of human life.	N/A

Table 5.1-2 Dam Hazard Classification

The state, local water associations, and other jurisdictions own the dams in the county. Dam owners are responsible for the safety, operations, and maintenance associated with their structure. The Dam Safety Bureau of the Office of the State Engineer inspects dams to verify they are operated and maintained in a safe condition. State Engineer Rules and Regulations require Emergency Action Plans for existing high and significant hazard potential dams. These plans must be prepared, maintained, and exercised for immediate defensive action to prevent or minimize property damage, injury, or loss of life due to an emergency-flooding situation. (19.25.12.18 NMAC).

5.1.2 Significant Past Occurrences

Storrie Lake Reservoir (intermediate size dam of 22,000 acre feet) provides water supply for domestic, agricultural, wildlife, and recreational/community use; in addition to flood control. The September 13, 2014 (DR-4152) flood event caused considerable damage to the headgates structure on the Storrie Project Water Users Association (SPWUA) main delivery canal to Storrie Lake Reservoir, off of the Gallinas River.



The Storrie Project Water Users Association is a private non-profit association that serves 50

shareholders and currently stores over 50% of the water supply for the City of Las Vegas. The headgates control the water being diverted into the canal thus managing the amount of water that flows downstream into Las Vegas and the surrounding communities along the Gallinas River. The need to control the flow in the canal to facilitate the repair to the September 13, 2014 floodcaused breach prompted the use of heavy equipment too close the headgates, thus causing further damage to the gates and railing system. Preliminary estimates to replace the gates and upgrade the diversion structure are \$900,000.00.



5.1.3 Location of Areas at Risk for Dam Failure

The New Mexico Office of the State Engineer provided the following dam data for the State of New Mexico and San Miguel County (Table 5.1.3-3):

Location and Description of Dams in New Mexico	Quantity
Dams in New Mexico	295
OSE regulated high-hazard dams in New Mexico	155
OSE regulated significant-hazard dams in New Mexico	54
Federal high-hazard dams in New Mexico	35
Federal significant-hazard dams in New Mexico	9
Non-jurisdictional high-hazard dams in New Mexico	39
Non-jurisdictional significant-hazard dams in New Mexico	24
OSE regulated dams in San Miguel County	8
High-hazard dams in San Miguel County	3
Significant-hazard dams in San Miguel County	1
Non-compliant dams under 19.25.12 NMAC in San Miguel County	7
Dams outside San Miguel County that could impact San Miguel County	None identified

Table 5.1.3-1 New Mexico Dam Data

Source: New Mexico Office of the State Engineer. Interview: Judy Leyba. October 18, 2013.

Identified, regulated high, significant, and low hazard dams are shown in their location relative to the county jurisdictions in Map 5.1.3-1 on the following page:



Map 5.1.3-1 San Miguel County High, Significant, and Low Hazard Dams

According to a 2011 report by the New Mexico Office of the State Engineer and recorded in a handout to the State Legislature, there are regulated two high hazard dams, one significant hazard dam, and four low hazard dams in the county with noted deficiencies²⁵. Those dams, their conditions, and noted deficiencies are provided in Table 5.1.3-2:

²⁵ Office of the State Engineer, Deficient Dams 2011-07-01. Handout. July 1, 2011. Downloaded from http://www.nmlegis.gov/lcs/handouts/Deficient%20Dams%202011-07-01.pdf

Regulated High Hazard Dams						
Dam Name	Owner	Condition	Deficiency	Cost	EAP	
Bradner Dam	Las Vegas	Fair	Spillway Capacity 37% of required flood, Woody Vegetation, Rodents, Erosion	\$3M	Yes	
Peterson Dam	Las Vegas	Fair	Scour of downstream toe, Woody Veg, Seepage	\$2M	Yes	
	Re	egulated Sig	nificant Hazard Dams			
Dam Name	Owner	Condition	Deficiency	Cost	EAP	
Pecos Arroyo W.S. Site 1	Tierra Y Monte Soil & Water Conservation District	Fair	Spillway Capacity 50% of required flood	\$2.5M	No	
		Regulated	Low Hazard Dams			
Dam Name	Owner	Condition	Deficiency	Cost	EAP	
Aragon Dam	T-4 Cattle Company	Fair	Woody Veg, Erosion, Maintenance needed	\$200K	N/A	
Corralitas Dam	T-4 Cattle Company	Fair	Woody Veg, Erosion, Maintenance needed	\$200K	N/A	
Lake Isabel Dam	K.W. Kirkpatrick	Spillway Capacity ~63% of Poor/Fair required flood, Lack of design info		\$300K	N/A	
Sink Hole Gap Reservoir	Paul Blanchard	Poor/Fair	Poor/Fair Spillway Capacity 38% of required flood, Lack of design info		N/A	

Table 5.1.3-2OSE Regulated Dams with Noted Deficiencies

Source: Office of the State Engineer, Deficient Dams 2011-07-01

In San Miguel County, several dams' primary function is the storage of water supply for the downstream community. The Storrie Lake Reservoir also serves to provide additional flood control capacity by buffering the volume of water that the downstream channel must carry.

Catastrophic loss of high hazard dams would not only impact the people, buildings and infrastructure within the inundation area, but would also deplete the main drinking and sanitary water resource for the county. For that reason, the high hazard dams are profiled in Section 5.1.4 below as the primary mitigation concerns for this hazard.

Throughout the county there are smaller check-dams, dikes, and levees designed for flood control and irrigation purposes. These smaller dams include the following: Concepcion, Pueblo, Tecolotito, Garanbuio, Ribera, San Bacino, San Jose, Sena, Las Vegas Irrigation Project Diversion Dam/Historic site, Los Trigos, Lovato, Villanueva, Hormigoso Diversion, and San Augustin Dam. While these structures may also pose a danger to the community, they are not included in the scope of this plan. Future updates to the County Hazard Mitigation Plan may choose to include private and other local jurisdiction drainage control structures.

5.1.4 The Extent of Damage by Dam Failure

In order to determine the areas at risk and potential loss due to dam failure, the geographic extents of dam failure were identified through the local dam Emergency Action Plans (EAPs). The flood volumes were addressed, where data was available, using the Possible Maximum Flood (PMF) figures. These water volumes represent the statistical "worst-case-scenario" of a potential dam failure. However, the exact geographic extents and extent of damage would depend on the cause of the dam failure. Depending on the cause, there may be additional sedimentation and dam debris that are unpredictable and difficult to model. In other situations, the capacity of the reservoir may be exceeded causing overtopping failures that would have a much smaller impact than if the integrity of the structure was breached. The high hazard dams are highlighted below.

5.1.4.1 Storrie Lake Dam

Based on data provided in the Storrie Lake Emergency Action Plan, the National Dam Inventory, as well as information provided during MPG meetings and local interviews, the following data describes the Storrie Lake Dam:

- Height: 80 feet
- Length: 1,490 feet
- Drainage Area: 7.0 square miles
- Storage: 45,000 acre-feet at crest elevation of 6614.0
- Built: 1921
- Material: Earth
- Hazard Classification: High
- Dam Owner: Storrie Project Water Users' Association
- River: Bonito Arroyo

The Storrie Lake EAP provides a dam breach inundation map that shows a downstream inundation area along the Sanguijuela Arroyo and Arroyo Pecos basins to the north of Las Vegas, and into the Gallinas River basin to the east and southeast of Las Vegas. Areas along Grand Avenue, Interstate 25, Harlan Road area, and northern Mills Avenue area in Las Vegas are in the inundation zones. The hospital is not defined within the inundation zone. The limits of the evacuation zones and potentially impacted areas are described below:

- Highway 518 closed southbound at Lake View Drive. Highway 518 northbound closed at Pork Chop Hill Road.
- Area directly southeast of Storrie Lake Dam along the Sanguijuela Arroyo.
- Areas along the Arroyo Pecos including areas east of Louis Road, Chico Drive, Calle El Dorado, West Drive, 7th Street, 4th Street, Pacific Street, and Grand Avenue.
- Interstate 25 closed from Exit 352 to Exit 343.
- Highway 250/Grand Avenue closed southbound at Airport Road. Grand Avenue closed northbound at Interstate 25 Exit 434 intersection.
- Highway 104 closed westbound at Highway 281 intersection.
- Areas along the Gallinas River within the flood boundaries.
- Areas along the Pecos River within the flood boundaries. ²⁶

²⁶ Storrie Lake Dam Emergency Action Plan, 2009. Print.

Location	Distance to Dam (mi)	Max Flow Rate (cfs)	Max Water Surface Elevation	Max Stage	Flood Wave Arrival Time (hr:min)	Time to Peak Flood Stage (hr:min)
Storrie Lake Dam	0.0	276,951	6,606.93'	67.0'	0:00	0:30
Legion Drive	3.4	194,544	6,486'	29.0'	0:20	1:31
Grand Avenue	3.4	194,480	6,484'	27.0'	0:20	1:31
Interstate 25	4.4	192,165	6,445'	31.0'	0:21	1:41
Highway 104	5.5	182,269	6,419'	31.0'	0:44	2:00
Sewer Plant Road	7.5	162.971	6,373'	28.0'	1:26	2:34
Agua Zarca Confluence	10.6	151,282	6,305'	41.0'	2:30	3:23

Table 5.1.4.1-1 Storrie Lake Dam Draft Inundation Model

Table 5.1.4.1-1 depicts the estimated inundation levels along the above listed basins:

Source: Storrie Lake Dam Emergency Action Plan, Dam Failure Inundation Map. June 2009

5.1.4.2 Bradner Dam

Based on data provided in the Bradner Dam Emergency Action Plan, the National Dam Inventory, as well as information provided during MPG meetings and local interviews, the following data describes the Bradner Dam:

- Height: 68 feet
- Length: 280 feet
- Drainage Area: .41 square miles
- Storage: 290 acre-feet at crest elevation of 6,777.0
- Built: 1950
- Material: Earth
- Hazard Classification: High
- Dam Owner: City of Las Vegas, NM
- River: Lime Canyon

The Bradner Dam EAP provides a dam breach inundation map that shows a downstream inundation area along the Gallinas River basin with an evacuation distance of ~1000' east and west of the river which runs just from the north and southerly through Las Vegas. Areas between State Route 65 and Castleview Drive, between State Route 65 and 71, east of Hot Springs Boulevard and south of State Route 329, areas east of South Pacific Street and north of Hwy 85, and areas north of County Road 23 extended west are subject to evacuation. The hospital is not defined within the inundation zone. A major flood caused by a sudden breach of the dam could inundate multiple homes, multiple businesses, several highways and many road bridges across the Gallinas River which includes:

- State Highway 65
- El Llano Road
- El Camino Road

- Cinder Road
- Mills Avenue
- National Avenue
- Prince Street
- US Highway 85
- County Road 23²⁷

Table 5.1.4.2-1 depicts the estimated inundation levels of Possible Maximum Flood along the above listed basin:

Location	Distance to Dam (mi)	Max Flow Rate (cfs)	Max Water Surface Elevation	Max Stage	Flood Wave Arrival Time (hr:min)	Time to Peak Flood Stage (hr:min)
Cross Section 2	.21	33,952	6,649.0'	12.9'	4:38	5:02
Cross Section 3	.57	33,287	6,629.6'	10.1'	4:44	5:04
Cross Section 4	1.14	29,112	6,607.4'	8.3'	4:56	5:08
Cross Section 5	1.50	22,979	6,568.3'	5.7'	5:08	5:16
Cross Section 6	3.34	15,395	6,500.8'	5.0'	5:26	5:33
Cross Section 7	4.16	12,049	6,464.5'	7.9'	5:38	5:47
Cross Section 8	4.35	11,866	6,454.7'	6.4'	5:39	5:49
Cross Section 9	5.10	10,529	6,424.8'	6.3'	5:50	6:00
Cross Section 10	5.52	9,537	6,406.4'	6.7'	5:56	6:07
Cross Section 11	5.72	9,226	6,399.2'	6.1'	6:05	6:11
Cross Section 12	6.11	8,770	6,380.8'	6.0'	6:08	6:18
Cross Section 13	7.48	5,355	6,335.6'	4.2	6:39	7:00

Table 5.1.4.2-1Bradner Dam Draft Inundation Model

Source: Bradner Dam Emergency Action Plan, Dam Failure Inundation Map. June 2009

5.1.4.3 Peterson Dam

Based on data provided in the Peterson Dam Emergency Action Plan, the National Dam Inventory, as well as information provided during MPG meetings and local interviews, the following data describes the Peterson Dam:

- Height: 50 feet
- Length: 210 feet
- Drainage Area: 2.06 square miles
- Storage: 211.1 acre-feet at crest elevation of 6786.0
- Built: 1911 (modified in 1983)
- Material: Concrete arch
- Hazard Classification: High
- Dam Owner: City of Las Vegas, NM
- River: Gallinas River

²⁷ Bradner Dam Emergency Action Plan, 2011. Print.

The Peterson Dam EAP provides a dam breach inundation map that shows a downstream inundation area along the Gallinas River basin to the north of Las Vegas, into and through Las Vegas. Areas between State Route 65 and Castleview Drive, between State Route 65 and 71, east of Hot Springs Boulevard and south of State Route 329, areas east of South Pacific Street and north of Hwy 85, and areas north of County Road 23 extended west are subject to evacuation. The hospital is not defined within the inundation zone. A major flood caused by a sudden breach of the dam could inundate multiple homes, multiple businesses, several highways and many road bridges across the Gallinas River which includes:

- State Highway 65
- El Llano Road
- El Camino Road
- Cinder Road
- Mills Avenue
- National Avenue
- Prince Street
- US Highway 85
- County Road 23²⁸

Table 5.1.4.3-1 depicts the estimated inundation levels of Possible Maximum Flood along the above listed basin:

Location	Distance to Dam (mi)	Max Flow Rate (cfs)	Max Water Surface Elevation	Max Stage	Flood Wave Arrival Time (hr:min)	Time to Peak Flood Stage (hr:min)
Cross Section 2	.69	59,069	6,652.7'	16.5'	2:22	6:40
Cross Section 3	1.01	56,377	6,632.1'	12.6'	2:27	6:43
Cross Section 4	1.58	50,057	6,609.5'	10.4'	2:40	6:46
Cross Section 5	2.34	44,546	6,570.1'	10'9'	3:04	6:52
Cross Section 6	3.79	39,138	6,503.0'	7.3'	3:43	7:04
Cross Section 7	4.61	36,264	6,468.0'	11.4'	4:04	7:12
Cross Section 8	4.80	35,460	6,457.9'	9.5'	4:08	7:13
Cross Section 9	5.55	33,563	6,427.5'	9.0'	4:25	7:20
Cross Section 10	5.97	31,785	6,409.6'	9.8'	4:34	7:25
Cross Section 11	6.17	30,649	6,402.5	9.3'	4:37	7:30
Cross Section 12	6.55	29,005	6383.1'	8.3'	4:48	7:34
Cross Section 13	7.92	20,240	6340.4'	9.0'	5:37	8:04

Table 5.1.4.3-1Peterson Dam Draft Inundation Model

Source: Peterson Dam Emergency Action Plan, Dam Failure Inundation Map. June 2009

5.1.5 Probability of Future Events

Dam failure or levee breeches can occur with little warning. Intense storms may produce a flood in a few hours or even minutes for upstream locations. Flash floods occur within six hours of the

²⁸ Storrie Lake Dam Emergency Action Plan, 2009. Print.

beginning of heavy rainfall, and dam failure may occur within hours of the first signs of breaching. Other failures and breeches can take much longer to occur, from days to weeks, as a result of debris jams or the accumulation of melting snow. The probability of a dam failure is unlikely for most dams, typically less than a 500-year flood. However, the age and condition of the structure plays a role in determining the level of risk that each dam poses. As the dams in San Miguel County age and given seasonal flood conditions, there is inherently increasing probability for structural damage and failure.

Since there is no history of dam failure in the county and the State required EAPs do not publicly provide any risk of probably occurrence, this plan does not attempt to assess the risk of failure or probability of failure for each structure. The plan does provide information about the general condition of the dams and any known deficiencies as recorded by the State Office of Safety and Engineering. Specific details for any given high-hazard dam can be found in the specific dam's emergency plan.

5.2 Drought

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, drought was ranked in terms of frequency, duration, severity, and intensity in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed MPG responses, drought had high rankings for impacts to people and infrastructure. The overall drought hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos High

5.2.1 Description of the Hazard

Drought is a condition of climatic dryness that reduces soil moisture, water, or snow levels below the minimum necessary for sustaining plan, animal, and economic systems. Drought conditions are usually not uniform over the entire State of New Mexico. Local and regional differences in weather, soil condition, geology, vegetation, and human influence need to be considered when assessing the impact of drought on any particular location.

The most commonly used drought definitions are based on meteorological, agricultural, hydrological, and socio-economic effects.

- **Meteorological Drought:** Period of substantially diminished precipitation duration and/or intensity. The commonly used definition of meteorological drought is an interval of time, generally on the order of months or years, during which the actual moisture supply at a given place consistently falls below the climatically appropriate moisture supply.
- **Agricultural Drought:** Occurs when there is inadequate soil moisture to meet the needs of a particular crop at a particular time. Agricultural drought usually occurs after or during meteorological drought, but before hydrological drought and can affect livestock and other dry-land agricultural operations.
- **Hydrological Drought:** Refers to deficiencies in surface and subsurface water supplies. It is measured as stream flow, snow pack, and as lake, reservoir, and groundwater levels. There is usually a delay between lack of rain or snow and less measurable water in streams,

lakes, and reservoirs. Therefore, hydrological measurements tend to lag behind other drought indicators.

• **Socio-Economic Drought:** Occurs when physical water shortages start to affect the health, well-being, and quality of life of the people, or when the drought starts to affect the supply and demand of an economic product²⁹.



Figure 5.2-1 Causes and Impacts of Drought

Source: National Drought Mitigation Center. (2013). Types of drought. Retrieved on 6.18.13 from http://drought.unl.edu/DroughtBasics/TypesofDrought.aspx

Although different types of drought may occur at the same time, they can also occur independently of one another. Drought differs from other natural hazards in three ways. First, the onset and end of a drought are difficult to determine due to the slow accumulation and lingering of effects of an event after its apparent end. Second, the lack of an exact and universally accepted definition adds

²⁹ New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management, (2010). New Mexico Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

to the confusion of its existence and severity. Third, in contrast with other natural hazards, the impact of drought is less obvious and may be spread over a larger geographic area. These characteristics have hindered the preparation of drought contingency or mitigation plans by many governments³⁰.

To help standardize the severity of drought events, W.C. Palmer developed an index in 1965 to measure the departure of the moisture supply. Palmer based his index on the supply-and-demand concept of the water balance equation, taking into account more than just the precipitation deficit at specific locations. The objective of the Palmer Drought Severity Index (PDSI), as this index is now called, was to provide measurements of moisture conditions that were standardized so that comparisons using the index could be made between locations and between months. The PDSI is used by the U.S. Department of Agriculture to determine allocations of grant emergency drought assistant.

The PDSI is most effective in determining long-term drought, over a period of several months, and is not as good with short-term forecasts, a period of weeks. It uses a zero classification as normal precipitation, and drought is shown in terms of minus numbers; for example, minus 2 is moderate drought, minus 3 is severe drought, and minus 4 is extreme drought (Refer to Table 5.2-1). The advantage of the PDSI is that it is standardized to local climate, so it can be applied to any part of the country to demonstrate relative drought or rainfall conditions³¹.

Palmer Classification	Precipitation
4.0 or more	Extremely wet
3.0 to 3.99	Very wet
2.0 to 2.99	Moderately wet
1.0 to 1.99	Slightly wet
0.5 to 0.99	Incipient wet spell
0.49 to -0.49	Near normal
-0.5 to -0.99	Incipient dry spell
-1.0 to -1.99	Mild drought
-2.0 to -2.99	Moderate drought
-3.0 to -3.99	Severe drought
-4.0 or less	Extreme drought

Table 5.2.1-1Palmer Drought Severity Index (PDSI)

Source: National Drought Mitigation Center. (2013). Comparison of major drought indices: Palmer drought severity index. Retrieved 06.18.13 from http://drought.unl.edu/Planning/Monitoring/ComparisonofIndicesIntro/PDSI.aspx

³⁰ New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management, (2010). *New Mexico Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan* ³¹ National Drought Mitigation Center. (2013). *Comparison of major drought indices: Palmer Drought Severity Index*. Retrieved 06.18.13 from http://drought.unl.edu/Planning/Monitoring/ComparisonofIndicesIntro/PDSI.aspx

5.2.2 Significant Past Occurrences

Drought events in San Miguel County are documented as far back as the 1200s and may have led to the displacement of the Sedentary Pueblo Indians from the fertile valley of Las Vegas³². In the 20th century, San Miguel County has been impacted by several severe and prolonged drought events. According to NOAA's Historical Palmer Drought Indices, periods of long-term drought since 1950 have been documented in San Miguel County during 1950-1957, 1963, 1972, 1974, 1981, 1989, 1996, 2000, 2002, 2003, 2006, 2008-2009, and 2009-2013³³.

San Miguel County has seen consistent drought conditions since the late 1990's. There are three state wide drought declarations in New Mexico: Executive Order 2003-019, 2006-012, & 2008-037. None of these orders have been rescinded.

San Miguel County most recently requested a state disaster declaration in 2011 due to drought conditions. During a period from 2010 to 2011, over 78 requests were filed for property tax reduction due to the lack of water. Several requests were approved and resulted in lower tax revenue in the County. The El Creston Mutual Water Association also requested a local declaration in 2011 due to 60 domestic wells drying up and affecting 300 County residences.

5.2.3 Location of Areas at Risk

Drought is monitored nation-wide by the National Drought Mitigation Center (NCDC). Indicators are used to describe broad scale drought conditions across the country. Indicators correspond to the intensity of the drought. As of January 28, 2014, San Miguel County was experiencing severe to extreme drought conditions throughout the County³⁴. This status is demonstrated by Figure 5.2.3-1 on the following page.

³² New Mexico Department of Tourism. (2013). *Northeast New Mexico*. Retrieved from http://nenewmexico.com/towns-counties/sanmiguel/las-Vegas.php

 ³³ National Climatic Data Center. (2013). *Historical Palmer Drought Indices*. Retrieved on 6.18.13 from http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/temp-and-precip/drought/historical-palmers.php?index=pmdi&month[]=5&beg_year=1963&end_year=2013&submitted=Submit
³⁴ National Drought Mitigation Center. (June, 2013 11). *U.S. Drought Monitor, New Mexico*. Retrieved from http://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/DM_state.htm?NM,W



Figure 5.2.3-1 U.S. Drought Monitor – New Mexico

Source: National Drought Mitigation Center. (February 2, 2014). U.S. Drought Monitor, New Mexico. Retrieved from http://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/Home/StateDroughtMonitor.aspx?NM

For San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos, drought is not a localized hazard and has no defined boundaries or buffer zones. All areas and jurisdictions of San Miguel County are equally at risk and vulnerable to the impacts of drought. All areas have equally experienced drought and are therefore assessed equally for this hazard.

5.2.4 The Extent of Damage by Drought

In San Miguel County, every drought event has adversely impacted agriculture, especially in nonirrigated areas such as dry land farms and rangelands. Droughts impact individuals (farm owners, tenants, and farm laborers), the agricultural industry, other agriculture-related sectors, and other industries such as tourism and recreation³⁵. Drought also increases the dangers of forest and wildland fires. Subsequent loss of forests and trees increases erosion, causing serious damage to aquatic life, irrigation, and power generation by heavy silting of streams, reservoirs, and rivers.

³⁵ New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management, (2010). New Mexico Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

Given the history of drought in the County, the entire planning area can expect to see PDSI conditions as low as -4 (extreme drought).

5.2.5 Probability of Future Events

Drought is analyzed and determined over long periods of time. It is not an overnight, weekly, or a monthly event and it must be considered based on long periods of annualization. Given the fact that San Miguel county is currently in a period of severe to extreme drought, and that it has experienced 13 documented periods of drought since 1950 or at least one drought event every 4.8 years, the probability of occurrence is likely.

5.3 Earthquake

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the hazard of earthquake was ranked in terms of people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, earthquake had low rankings for impacts to people countywide, but the Village of Pecos determined that impacts to buildings and infrastructure were moderate and high respectively. The overall earthquake hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County Low
- Las Vegas Low
- Village of Pecos Moderate

5.3.1 Description of the Hazard

An earthquake is caused by the breaking and shifting of rock beneath the Earth's surface. An earthquake is generated by rupture or sudden displacement along a geologic fault when it has been strained beyond its elastic strength. During this strain, the opposing sides of the fault are stressed until failure and displacement occur and the sides rebound back to an unstrained position. However, slow displacement without accompanying earthquakes has been observed along some faults. Ground shaking from earthquakes can collapse buildings and bridges; disrupt gas, electric, and phone service; and sometimes trigger landslides, avalanches, flash floods, and fires. Ground shaking is the result of seismic waves reaching the earth's surface.

Earthquake magnitude and intensity are measured by the Richter Scale and Mercalli Intensity Scale, respectively. The Richter Scale determines the magnitude of an earthquake from the logarithm of the amplitude of waves recorded by seismographs. The Richter Scale expresses an earthquake's magnitude in whole numbers and decimal fractions. For example, a magnitude 5.3 might be computed for a moderate earthquake, and a strong earthquake might be rated as magnitude 6.3. The Richter Scale is not used to express damage³⁶. The Modified Mercalli Intensity Scale assigns values to a specific site after an earthquake event to describe observed effects and/or damage (i.e. earthquake's intensity)³⁷. Refer to Tables 5.3.1-1 and 5.3.1-2(on the following page) for the Richter and Modified Mercalli Intensity Scales.

³⁶ USGS. (2013). Earthquake glossary - Richter scale. Retrieved on 6.20.13 from

http://earthquake.usgs.gov/learn/glossary/?term=Richter scale

³⁷ USGS. (2013). The Modified Mercalli Intensity Scale. Retrieved on 6.20.13 from http://earthquake.usgs.gov/learn/topics/mercalli.php

Table 5.3.1-1
Richter Scale

Value on Scale	Recording Classification	Numbers Per Year Worldwide
Less than 2.0	Micro Earthquake	130,000
2.0 - 3.9	Minor	13,000
4.0 - 4.9	Light	1,319
5.0 – 5.9	Moderate	134
6.0 - 6.9	Strong	15
7.0 – 7.9	Major	1
8.0 - 8.9	Great	1 per 10 years
More than 10	Massive	Extremely Rare (Unknown/May not be possible)

Source: USGS. (2013). Richter scale. Retrieved on 6.20.13 from http://www.vulkaner.no/v/vulkinfo/ordbok/richter.html

Mercalli Scale	Damage Description
Ι	Not felt except by a very few under especially favorable conditions. (Negligible)
II	Felt only by a few persons at rest, especially on upper floors of buildings. Delicately suspended objects may swing. (Negligible)
III	Felt quite noticeably by persons indoors, especially on upper floors of buildings. Many people do not recognize it as an earthquake. Standing cars may rock slightly. Vibrations similar to the passing of a truck. Duration estimated. (Negligible)
IV	Felt indoors by many, outdoors by few during the day. At night, some awakened. Dishes, windows, doors disturbed; walls make cracking sound. Sensation like heavy truck striking building. Standing motorcars rocked noticeably. (0.015g-0.02g)
V	Felt by nearly everyone; many awakened. Some dishes, windows broken; cracked plaster in a few places; unstable objects overturned. Disturbances of trees, poles, and other objects sometimes noticed. Pendulum clocks may stop. (0.03g-0.04g)
VI	Felt by all, many frightened. Some heavy furniture moved; a few instances of fallen plaster and damage chimneys. Damage slight. (0.06g-0.07g)
VII	Everybody runs outdoors. Damage negligible in buildings of good design and construction; slight to moderate in well-built ordinary structures; considerable damage in poorly built or badly designed structures; some chimneys broken. Noticed by persons driving cars. (0.10g-0.15g)
VIII	Damage slight in specially designed structures; considerable damage in ordinary substantial buildings with partial collapse. Damage great in poorly built structures. Panel walls thrown out of frame structures. Fall of chimneys, factory stacks, columns, monuments, and walls. Heavy furniture overturned. Sand and mud ejected in small amounts. Changes in well water. Persons driving cars disturbed. (025g-0.30g)
IX	Damage considerable in specially designed structures; well-designed frame structures thrown out of plumb. Damage great in substantial buildings, with partial collapse. Buildings shifted off foundations. Ground cracked conspicuously. Underground pipes broken. (0.50g-0.55g)
Х	Some well-built wooden structures destroyed; most masonry and frame structures destroyed with foundations; ground badly cracked. Rails bent. Landslides considerable from riverbanks and steep slopes. Shifted sand and mud. Water splashed, slopped over banks. (More than 0.60g)
XI	Few, if any (masonry) structures remain standing. Bridges destroyed. Broad fissures in ground. Underground pipelines completely out of service. Earth slumps and land slips in soft ground. Rails bent greatly.
XII	Damage total. Waves seen on ground. Lines of sight and level are distorted. Objects thrown into the air

Table 5.3.1-2Modified Mercalli Intensity Scale

Source: USGS. (2013). The Modified Mercalli Intensity Scale. Retrieved on 6.20.13 from http://earthquake.usgs.gov/learn/topics/mercalli.php

5.3.2 Significant Past Occurrences

The majority of New Mexico's population lives along the Rio Grande valley which is within the Rio Grande Rift, a region of tectonic, volcanic, and seismic activity extending from north-central Colorado south to Chihuahua, Mexico. Most of New Mexico's historical seismicity has been concentrated in the Rio Grande Valley between Socorro and Albuquerque. About half of the historical intense earthquake occurrences in the state were centered in this region. According to the NM Bureau of Geology and Mineral Resources, no earthquake larger than magnitude (M) 6.2 has occurred within the New Mexico portion of the rift since the State's first documented earthquake in 1849. The rate of earthquake activity in NM can be characterized as moderate. The Socorro area of NM has been the most seismically active portion of NM during the past 100 years and has the largest documented earthquakes in the state's history. The 1906 earthquakes near Socorro were reportedly felt as far away as the City of Las Vegas in San Miguel County. The 1918 documented M 5.25 earthquake near Cerrillos is the largest historic earthquake in the northern portion of the Rio Grande Rift within NM. There has been no history of earthquake epicenter activity within the county. The county-wide historical earthquake activity is significantly below the state average.

The 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan lists the 31 strongest earthquakes (M>4.5) in New Mexico between 1869 and 2006, the strongest being M 5.6 near Socorro in July and November of 1906. The closest earthquakes to San Miguel County are listed below.

San Miguel County

The 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan's list of 31 strongest earthquakes since 1869 include a 1918 M 5.5 in Cerrillos, a 1949 M 4.5 in Vaughn, and 2005 M 5 in Raton as the closest M>4.5 earthquakes to San Miguel County.

Between January 1, 1980 and May 19, 2013, there were 76 earthquakes that occurred within 100 miles of the county center. The four most recent earthquakes occurred over 90 miles from the county center. In 1995, there was a magnitude 3.8 earthquake that occurred 54 miles from the county center. In 1990, there was a magnitude 3.7 earthquake that occurred 70 miles from the County center.³⁸ The only reported earthquake damage in the County related to the 1918 M 5.5 Cerrillos earthquake. The damages are noted below for the City of Las Vegas.

City of Las Vegas

There have been no significant past occurrences of earthquakes within the City of Las Vegas. The closest earthquake occurrence within the last 100 years occurred approximately 85 miles southwest in Cerrillos, Santa Fe County. An earthquake with M 5.5 occurred on May 18, 1918 in Santa Fe County during which people were thrown off their feet, a break in the earth's surface was noted, and fallen plaster was reported.

Village of Pecos

There have been no significant past occurrences of earthquakes within the Village of Pecos. The 1918 Cerrillos earthquakes was the closest occurrence to the Village of Pecos, occurring approximately 43 miles southwest of the Village and caused no reported damage. A significant

³⁸ Retrieved, July 10, 2013 from http://earthquaketrack.com/us-nm-las-Vegas/recent

earthquake with an M 4.8 occurred in the town of Dulce, New Mexico on January 22, 1966 which is located approximately 156 miles from the Village. The earthquake centered in Dulce affected about 39,000 square kilometers of northern New Mexico and southern Colorado.

5.3.3 Location of Areas at Risk for Earthquake

According to the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) Earthquake Hazards Program, seismic activity in New Mexico primarily is concentrated along the Rio Grande Valley rift between Albuquerque and Socorro. San Miguel County historical earthquake activity is significantly below New Mexico state average. It is 91 percent lower than the overall U.S. average. There are two Quarternary Faults located in the county within the eastern foothills of the Sangre de Cristo Mountains, roughly running northeast from San Ignacio north to Rociada and slightly west of Fragoso Ridge. The other fault line crosses from Santa Fe County into the northwestern corner of San Miguel County for approximately three miles before entering Mora County.

Maps 5.3.3-1 through 5.3.3-3 on the following pages depict the locations, seismicity, and seismic hazard (factored a 2 percent in 50 years of Peak Ground Acceleration) of historical earthquake epicenters and relative magnitudes in New Mexico.


Map 5.3.3-1 New Mexico Earthquake History, 1962-2004

Source: 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan



Map 5.3.3-2 New Mexico Seismicity, 1973-2013

Source: USGS. Downloaded, February 2, 2014 from http://earthquake.usgs.gov/earthquakes/states/new_mexico/seismicity.php



Map 5.3.3-3 New Mexico Seismic Hazard (2% in 50 years PGA)

Source: USGS. Downloaded February 2, 2014, http://earthquake.usgs.gov/earthquakes/states/new_mexico/hazards.php

5.3.4 The Extent of Damage by Earthquakes

The extent of damage by a potential earthquake event could include impacts to residential and commercial structures, power/gas and water service infrastructure, and the social impact of the loss of life and loss of critical services. New Mexico is ranked 23 of states by Annualized Earthquake Loss (AEL) at \$20.6 million dollars per year. The AEL predicts the average annual cost to the state due to earthquakes over time. New Mexico also ranks number 13 in terms of the Annualized Earthquake Loss Ratio (AELR). This indicates that while the dollar amounts of estimated losses are lower, the actual percentage of the building inventory that is damaged is higher relative to other states.³⁹

USGS studies show the extent of earthquake damage over the next 50 years to be a Magnitude 5 or less on the Modified Mercalli Intensity Scale, meaning that worst case events would be felt by nearly everyone; many awakened. Some dishes and windows would be broken; there would be cracked plaster in a few places; unstable objects may be overturned. Disturbances of trees, poles, and other objects sometimes may be noticed. Pendulum clocks may stop

³⁹ FEMA 366. HAZUS MH Estimated Annualized Earthquake Losses for the United States. April 2008. Print.

5.3.5 Probability of Future Events

San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos all fall into the same geographic region for impacts from earthquakes, and are assessed as such for this hazard. It would be unusual for one area of the county to be impacted by a significant earthquake while other areas remain unimpacted. For that reason, all jurisdictions are assessed equally for this hazard.

The 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan suggests that the greatest risk of earthquakes are along the Rio Grande Rift from Socorro through Albuquerque and northward toward Santa Fe. Based on those findings as referenced through known data from the USGS probabilistic seismic hazard assessment models (PSHA) and the infrequency and small magnitude of earthquake events in the region, the probability of future earthquake events in the county is unlikely. The USGS PSHA probability of a 5.0 or larger magnitude earthquake occurring within the County in the next 50 years is 0.04-0.25 (Figure 5.3.5-1). The county will remain aware of any future events and make the necessary adjustments to the Plan in the future if they are needed.



Figure 5.3.5-1 Probability of a 5.0 or Greater Magnitude Earthquake within 50 Years and 50 Km

Source: USGS. Geologic Hazards Science Center, 2009 Earthquake Probability Mapping. Downloaded from: http://geoinfo.nmt.edu/publications/periodicals/litegeology/24/lite-geo_24_2002.pdf)

5.4 Expansive Soils

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the expansive soils hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, building, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, expansive soils had low rankings for impacts in all three areas. The overall expansive soils hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County Low
- Las Vegas Low
- Village of Pecos Low

5.4.1 Description of the Hazard

Expansive soils are described as earth products that contain minerals capable of absorbing water (also known as adobe or clay). As the soils absorb water, they increase in volume. Several physical, chemical, and mineralogical soil properties influence shrink-swell behavior, with no one property accurately predicting shrink-swell potential for all soil types. Often most expansive soils are clayey with high liquid limits. Dry clayey soils with low moisture content (less than 15 percent) easily absorb water and swell. Most of the soil expansion occurs by the time the moisture content reaches 30 percent. In some cases, expansive soils can increase in volume by more than 10 percent. Conversely, expansive soils will shrink when they dry out. Fissures can develop in the soil causing deep cracks in the earth. As such, a clayey soil that maintains a 30 percent or greater moisture content is less likely to significantly change its volume as the moisture content increases. Hazard impacts would be more likely in expansive soils with moisture content fluctuations below 30 percent.

Changes in the volume and stability of the earth can put pressure on structures with enough force to create cracks in foundations. The same forces can cause buried pipes to bend, crack, and fail, and road surfaces to bulge or crack. As the soils dry out and shrink, the same buildings and infrastructure can lose support resulting in damaging subsidence.

5.4.2 Significant Past Occurrences

There are no recorded significant part occurrences for this hazard in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, or the Village of Pecos, through structures in and around Pecos have reported damage from foundational shifts believed to be attributed to expansive soils.

5.4.3 Location of Areas at Risk

Map 5.4.3-1 shows the areas of expansive soils in New Mexico. The red areas in the northeast portion of the state around Taos and Colfax Counties are areas that contain abundant clay with high swelling potential. The blue areas generally have less than 50 percent clay, yet also have high swelling potential. The green areas generally have less than 50 percent clay with slight to moderate swelling potential and the brown areas have little or no swelling clay.⁴⁰

⁴⁰ 2010 Mew Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan; Fidelity Inspection and Consulting Services.



Map 5.4.3-1 Expansive Soils in New Mexico

Source: Fidelity Inspection and Consulting Services, Expansive Clay Soils. Downloaded from http://www.inspection1.com/types/soils/newmex.htm

While damages due to expansive soils have occurred in New Mexico, the fact that the onset takes a very long time, damages are cumulative rather than instantaneous. In concert with the New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan, we will not profile this hazard further, unless and until future conditions or events justify it.

5.4.4 The Extent of Damage

No verified damages from this hazard have been reported. The participating jurisdictions may look into soil analysis in parts of the county where clays are more prevalent to determine potential risks and vulnerabilities, but until then, not enough data exists to further analyze this hazard.

5.4.5 Probability of Future Events

With no recorded history of occurrence or related loss from expansive soils in San Miguel County, probabilities cannot be quantified. In concordance with the 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation

Plan and due to the unlikely probability and insignificant effects of expansive soils, the MPG has decided to not profile this hazard further. This hazard is omitted from further analysis in the plan.

5.5 Extreme Heat

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the extreme heat hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, building, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, extreme heat had low rankings for impacts in all areas except the county, where impacts to people were regarded as high. The overall extreme heat hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County Moderate
- Las Vegas Low
- Village of Pecos Low

5.5.1 Description of the Hazard

Temperatures that are significantly above normal high summertime temperatures are considered extreme heat. There is no specific point when air temperatures are defined as significantly above normal. However, the National Weather Service will initiate alert procedures such as special weather statements when the heat index is expected to exceed 105°F-110°F (depending on local climate), for at least two consecutive days. The heat index is determined by combining the actual temperature and relative humidity. When humidity is low, the heat index may cause the air to feel cooler than the actual temperature. Conversely, high humidity coupled with high temperatures can cause as much as a 45 degree increased divergence between the actual temperature and the heat index. Figure 5.5.1-1 shows the combined effects of heat and humidity on populations, including the San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.





Source: Oklahoma Climatological Survey

The severity of extreme temperature events are measured by temperature, duration, and humidity. Most events are less than a week in duration. In the United States, periods of warmer than normal temperatures typically occur several times a summer. Extreme heat waves may occur about once every five years or so where maximum daily temperatures exceed 100°F for an extended period of time. The passing of a cold front usually moderates temperatures after a few days to a week.

The major human risks associated with extreme heat that pertain to its severity are described as follows:

- Heatstroke A substantial rise in the core body temperature, often fatal.
- Heat Exhaustion Fluid and electrolyte imbalance causing weakness or fatigue with a slight body temperature elevation.
- Heat Syncope A circulatory instability response to heat that causes a sudden loss of consciousness.
- Heat Cramps Muscular pain due to mild fluid and electrolyte imbalances.

5.5.2 Significant Past Occurrences

There are no NCDC database record of extreme heat in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, or the Village of Pecos. The MPG recognizes that extreme heat events have occurred and were not captured on the NCDC database and dates could not be verified through the planning meetings.

5.5.3 Location of Areas at Risk for Extreme Heat

Extreme heat is relative to the area as it related to average high temperatures. San Miguel County is part of the high plains of northeastern New Mexico with a typically moderate climate through the summertime and occasional record heat. Extreme heat records are detailed below in red for each jurisdiction.

San Miguel County

Given the locations of the City of Las Vegas (central) and Village of Pecos (west), summer temperatures for the unincorporated areas of the county are recorded at the Conchas Dam to better reflect the variation in temperatures that can be expected across the county. For average and record temperatures in the central and west unincorporated, see the City of Las Vegas and Village of Pecos findings in the following related subsections.

	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec
Average	54	58	65	73	82	91	95	92	85	75	63	53
Record	80	82	91	97	106	114	107	107	104	97	86	78

Table 5.5.3-1
Average and High Temperatures at Conchas Dam

Source: http://www.weather.com/weather/wxclimatology/monthly/graph/USNM0075

City of Las Vegas

The City of Las Vegas average and high temperatures are recorded below:

Table 5.5.3-2	
Average and High Temperatures, City of Las V	Vegas

	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec
Average	49	52	59	67	75	83	85	83	78	68	58	49
Record	72	74	80	86	98	98	107	95	98	87	81	74

Source: http://www.weather.com/weather/wxclimatology/monthly/graph/USNM0170

Village of Pecos

The Village of Pecos average and high temperatures are recorded below:

Table 5.5.3-3Average and High Temperatures, Village of Pecos

	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec
Average	48	51	57	65	75	84	86	83	78	67	56	49
Record	90	75	78	87	97	100	99	96	95	86	82	77

Source: http://www.weather.com/weather/wxclimatology/monthly/graph/USNM0229

5.5.4 The Extent of Damage

The extent of damages aren't easily measured for this hazard but generally only apply to people, and generally vulnerable populations including children and elderly. There have been no recorded extreme heat events in the NCDC database or through local data sets, and no injuries or loss of life have been attributed to extreme heat. That may be partly due to the efforts of the local emergency management office and public safety community who prepare for extreme weather events and set up cooling stations when temperatures hit dangerous levels.

The range of high temperatures across the County include:

- San Miguel County West (near Pecos): 49° to 107°
- San Miguel County Center(near Las Vegas): 49° to 107°
- San Miguel County East (near Conchas Dam): 54° to 114°
- City of Las Vegas: 49° to 107°
- Village of Pecos: 49° to 107°

With the occasional possibility of temperatures rising to 100° in Pecos, to 107° in Las Vegas, and 114° in the County, the extent of damage could include any of the following health issues for people across the entire planning area:

• Heatstroke – A substantial rise in the core body temperature, often fatal.

- Heat Exhaustion Fluid and electrolyte imbalance causing weakness or fatigue with a slight body temperature elevation.
- Heat Syncope A circulatory instability response to heat that causes a sudden loss of consciousness.
- Heat Cramps Muscular pain due to mild fluid and electrolyte imbalances.

5.5.5 Probability of Future Events

Though long-term forecasting of extreme high temperatures is not possible, the geographic location of the planning area makes recurring extreme heat events likely. According to available weather statistics, the following high temperature records were recorded:

- San Miguel County (at Conchas Dam): 114° F, June 1998
- City of Las Vegas: 107° F, July 2008
- Village of Pecos: 100° F, June 1994

There is not enough data to accurately annualize or quantify the probabilities of this hazard for any of the participating jurisdictions. However, the 2013 New Mexico SHMP reports 3 extreme heat events in the region (Preparedness Area 2) from January 1, 2006 to December 1, 2012, an event is possible with an annualized probability of 1.2%.⁴¹

5.6 Flood

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the hazard of flooding was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, flooding had moderate (people and buildings) and high (infrastructure) rankings for impacts in all areas except the Village of Pecos, where impacts to all three metrics were high. The overall flood hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos High

5.6.1 Description of the Hazard

Flood is an overflow of an expanse of water that submerges land and is usually caused by thunderstorms that produce heavy amounts of rain or from snow melt in the spring. Floods are natural events that occur hundreds of times each year across the country, making it one of the most common hazard events. There are three basic sources of flooding events:

• **Riverine flooding** occurs when excess rainfall or snow melt causes a water body like a river to overflow its banks and move into the lowlands adjacent to the water body that are susceptible to recurring inundation (the floodplain). Although a natural occurrence, it is also a hazard in many areas – floodplains in the United States are home to over 9 million

⁴¹ State of New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan 2013. Extreme Heat, Pages 82-92. Print.

households, and floods cause millions of dollars in damage and kill an average of 150 people a year.

- **Closed-basin lake flooding** occurs when excess water accumulates in lakes with either no outlet or a relatively small one.
- **Flash flooding** occurs when a relatively impervious, sloped area receives a large amount of rainfall from slow-moving thunderstorms or chains of thunderstorms moving one after the other over the same area. The resulting run-off flows down any terrain feature that will act as a channel (rivers, gullies, roads) carrying with it any debris or loose soil in its path. Flash floods usually occur within 6 hours of heavy rainfall, and according to the National Weather Service, are usually more life threatening than other types of flooding. The majority of deaths from flash flooding occur when people become trapped in automobiles that stall while driving through flooded areas. Nearly half of all flood fatalities are vehicle-related. Several factors determine the severity of floods, including rainfall intensity (or other water source) and duration. A small amount of rain can also cause flooding in locations where the soil is saturated from a previous wet period or if the rain is concentrated in a low area of impermeable surfaces such as large parking lots, paved roadways, or other impervious developed areas.

In 1968, Congress created the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) in response to the rising cost of taxpayer funded disaster relief for flood victims and the increasing amount of damage caused by floods. The Mitigation Division, a component of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) manages the NFIP, and oversees the floodplain management and mapping components of the Program. The NFIP Community Rating System (CRS) was implemented in 1990 as a program to recognize and encourage community floodplain management activities that exceed minimum NFIP standards. The National Flood Insurance Reform Act of 1994 codified the CRS in the NFIP. Under the CRS, flood insurance premium rates are adjusted to reflect the reduced flood risk resulting from community activities that meet the three goals of the CRS:

- 1. Reduce flood losses;
- 2. Facilitate accurate insurance rating; and
- 3. Promote the awareness of flood insurance.

The National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) defines flood in the following way:

A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of two or more acres of normally dry land area or of two or more properties from overflow of inland or tidal waters, from unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source, or from mudflow.

FEMA identifies those areas that are more vulnerable to flooding by producing Flood Hazard Boundary Maps (FHBM), Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) or Digital Flood Insurance Rate Maps (DFIRM), and Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps (FBFM). Several areas of flood hazards are commonly identified on these maps. One of the areas identified in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) which is a high-risk area defined as any land that would be inundated by a flood having a one percent chance of occurrence in any given year (also known as the base flood). Flood zone designations relevant to San Miguel County are defined and described in Table 5.6.1-1. An example of a FIRM for San Miguel County is provided in Figure 5.6.1-1.

Zone Designation	Percent Annual Chance of Flood	Description				
Zone A	1%	Areas with a 1% annual chance of flooding and a 26% chance of flooding over the life of a 30-year mortgage. Because detailed analyses are not performed for such areas, no depths or base flood elevations are shown within these areas.				
Zone AE	1%	Areas with a 1% annual chance of flooding and a 26% chance of flooding over the life of a 30-year mortgage. In most instances, base flood elevations derived from detailed analyses are shown at selected intervals within these zones.				
Zone AH	1%	Areas with a 1% annual chance of flooding where shallow flooding (usually areas of ponding) can occur with average depths between one and three feet.				
Zone AO	1%	Areas with a 1% annual chance of flooding, where shallow flooding average depths are between one and three feet.				
Zone X (shaded)	0.2%	Represents areas between the limits of the 1% annual chance flooding and 0.2% chance flooding.				
Zone X (unshaded)	Undetermined	Areas outside of the 1% annual chance floodplain and 0.2% annual chance floodplain, areas of 1% annual chance sheet flow flooding where average depths are less than one (1) foot, areas of 1% annual chance stream flooding where the contributing drainage area is less than one (1) square mile, or areas protected from the 1% annual chance flood by levees. No Base Flood Elevation or depths are shown within this zone.				

Table 5.6.1-1Flood Zone Designations and Description

Source: FEMA and NFIP



Figure 5.6.1-1 FIRM Example for San Miguel County

Alluvial fans and alluvial fan flood hazards exist in the county. Alluvial fan flood hazard characteristics include heavy sediment/debris loads and high velocity flows. Heavy sedimentation can impact the river flow behavior and cause flooding in different areas.

Sheet floods are typically experienced in developed urban environments with primarily impervious ground. Heavy rainfall does not have the opportunity to infiltrate into the ground, as in undeveloped areas. Flooding occurs when the drainage facilities cannot contain the volume of water, and low-lying areas become inundated.

Previous experiences of flooding can indicate that an area is flood-prone, meaning it is likely to flood in the future. However, the absence of previous floods in an area does not mean that it will not happen in the future. Changes in topography or land development can alter existing natural drainage paths and lead to flooding. High levels of rainfall, significant snow accumulation and related melt, and wildfire scarring can also cause unforeseen flooding conditions.

Flood studies use historical records to determine the probability of occurrence for different extents of flooding in identified floodplains. The probability of occurrence is expressed as the percentage chance that a flood of a specific extent will occur in any given year. The probability of occurrence in any given year is defined as follows:

- 10-year flood = 10% chance/year
- 50-year flood = 2% chance/year
- 100-year flood = 1% chance/year
- 500-year flood = 0.20% chance/year

Site-specific drainage and hydrology studies are the only methodology for predicting the extent or location of flash flooding that impacts the built environment. Therefore, this plan does not include maps depicting flash flood risk.

5.6.2 Significant Past Occurrences

In the early 1900s, there was a major flood in Las Vegas. Historic records indicate that heavy rains, combined with deforestation in the surrounding mountains, contributed to particularly severe flood damage. There was heavy sedimentation that contaminated the city's water supply, and generally worsened the effects of the storm. This storm caused the most severe flooding on record for San Miguel County.

According to the National Weather Service, San Miguel County reported 15 floods between 1993 and 2013. Stakeholder interviews identified the following recent flooding in San Miguel County:

- 1995 and 1996 two consecutive 100-year storms Pajarito and Encino floods
- Drainage floods; flooding overflowed the Storrie Lake spillway due to insufficient capacity
- Regular flooding in downtown Las Vegas due to the backup at the railroad tracks
- Insufficient drainage capacity in the Gallinas River causes regular flooding in Las Vegas
- Roads near Pecos Independent School District have frequently washed-out during storm events; other road wash-outs impact school bus service
- El Valle area is highly prone to flooding

• 2013 floods included the Tres Lagunas Flood, Conchas Big Mesa Flood, Sabinoso Flood, and the San Rafael Flood.

5.6.3 Location of Areas at Risk for Flood

San Miguel County consists of five watersheds including the Rio Gallinas, Pecos River, Upper Canadian – Ute, Mora River, and Conchas watersheds. The Pecos River drains the western portion of the Sangre de Cristo Mountains. Adjacent and east is the Rio Gallinas watershed. This drains through the City of Las Vegas, and the area known as El Valle. All of the communities within El Valle are located within the Pecos River watershed and are situated within 0.5 mile to 1 mile from the Pecos River. The tributaries to the Pecos River within the study area include the following: El Rito Creek, Cow Creek, Arroyo Chamizal, Arroyo del Pueblo, Arroyo Begoso, Gonzales Arroyo, Cañon de la Presa, and Cañon de Peña.

San Miguel County has areas of one percent and areas of .02% annual chance floodplain along the lakeshores, rivers, creeks, and arroyos. The City of Las Vegas has areas of one percent and areas of .02% annual chance floodplain primarily along the Gallinas Creek, Arroyo Pajarito, and Pecos Arroyo beds and adjacent low-lying areas that flank the eastern and western sides of the City.. The Village of Pecos has areas of one percent annual chance floodplain along the Pecos River bed that flanks the northwestern corner of the village, then crosses to create the eastern border of the Village. Maps 5.6.3-1 through 5.6.3-3 show the identified Special Hazard Flood Areas (SFHA) for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. Additional and more specific flood map data can be found in the local Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs)._



Map 5.6.3-1 San Miguel County SFHA

Map 5.6.3-2 City of Las Vegas SFHA



Map 5.6.3-3 Village of Pecos SFHA



San Miguel County participates in the NFIP and reports only limited loss through the program. Since January 1, 1978, there have been nine claims in the City of Loss Vegas and six claims in the

county totaling \$21,617.12.⁴² There have been no claims in the Village of Pecos. It is important to note that the NFIP only reports covered flood losses, so the reports do not reflect uninsured or self-insured loss.

FEMA's Severe Repetitive Loss (SRL) Grant Program provides federal funding to assist states and communities in implementing mitigation measures to reduce or eliminate the long-term risk of flood damage to severe repetitive loss residential structures insured under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). The primary objective of this repetitive loss properties strategy is to eliminate or reduce the damage to property and the disruption to life caused by repeated flooding.

FEMA's NFIP also supports and encourages participation in the Community Rating System (CRS), a voluntary incentive program that recognizes and encourages community floodplain management activities that exceed minimum NFIP requirements.⁴³ Through this program, communities can reduce their flood insurance premiums through flood risk reduction under three primary goals:

- Reduce flood damage to insurable property,
- Strengthen and support the insurance aspects of the NFIP, and
- Encourage a comprehensive approach to floodplain management

The CRS is designed as a step improvement system which provides additional flood insurance premium reduction incentives for each class rating achieved. Only three New Mexico counties participate in the CRS: Bernalillo, Dona Ana, and San Juan. The municipalities within those counties are also participating members of the CRS. Of the three participating counties and their municipalities, the City of Las Cruces has a Class 6 rating, the lowest CRS class in the state.⁴⁴ CRS classes and their respective insurance premium incentives are listed in Table 5.6.3-1:

Class	Discount	Class	Discount					
1	45%	6	20%					
2	40%	7	15%					
3	35%	8	10%					
4	30%	9	5%					
5	25%	10	N/A					
Note: Discounts may vary by structure depending on the								
flood zone and	d class. See the	CRS Manual for	details.					

Table 5.6.3-1CRS Classes and Insurance Premium Discounts

Source: NFIP CRS Coordinator's Manual

5.6.4 The Extent of Damage by Flood

Between January 1997 and December 2013, there were a total of 20 floods (3) and flash floods (17) reported to the NCDC with an estimated financial impact of \$2.123 million (averaging \$132,687.50/year). San Miguel County local records indicate that on average, \$150,000-\$350,000 is spent per year responding to flood damage. Flood response expenses include the cost of debris

⁴² http://bsa.nfipstat.fema.gov/reports/1040.htm#35

⁴³ http://www.fema.gov/national-flood-insurance-program-community-rating-system

⁴⁴ http://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/20130726-1651-20490-3916/_19_crs_may2013_3.14.13.pdf

removal and capital expenses to repair damaged infrastructure. Flood response efforts do not include evacuation efforts, street barricading/traffic control, any long-term solutions or emergency response efforts as these expenses are primarily operating expenses born by the local jurisdiction. The NCDC flood records are listed in Table 5.6.4-1:

Location	Date	Flood Type	Death	Injury	PrD	Crd
Pecos	6/7/1997	Flash Flood	0	0	80.00K	0.00K
Trujillo	8/1/1997	Flash Flood	0	0	150.00K	0.00K
Las Vegas	7/30/1998	Flash Flood	0	0	2.00K	0.00K
Conchas Dam	8/19/1998	Flash Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Pecos	6/2/2000	Flash Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Bell Ranch	6/5/2000	Flash Flood	0	0	10.00K	0.00K
Romeroville	6/28/2000	Flash Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Romeroville	10/23/2000	Flash Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Chapelle	9/1/2005	Flash Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Aurora	7/27/2006	Flash Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Ribera	6/24/2010	Flash Flood	0	0	750.00K	0.00K
El Porvenir	7/1/2010	Flash Flood	0	0	1.00K	0.00K
Cowles	7/6/2013	Flash Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Cowles	7/10/2013	Flash Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Sanchez	8/4/2013	Flash Flood	0	0	95.00K	0.00K
Sabinoso	8/8/2013	Flash Flood	0	0	10.00K	0.00K
(LVS)Las Vegas Airport	8/9/2013	Flash Flood	0	0	25.00K	0.00K
Subtotal:			0	0	1.123M	0.00K
Trementina	9/11/2013	Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
(LVS)Las Vegas Airport	9/13/2013	Flood	0	0	1.000M	0.00K
Pecos	9/13/2013	Flood	0	0	0.00K	0.00K
Subtotal:			0	0	1.000M	0.00K
Total					2.123M	0.00K

Table 5.6.4-1 NCDC Flood Records for all of San Miguel County

Source: National Climatic Data Center

The County frequently has to request FEMA funding for declared disaster areas due to flooding. Since annual flooding damages far exceed the county's operating budget for maintenance and repairs to county roads, the county is forced to declare an emergency disaster in order to help pay for the damages. Examples of emergencies and disasters due to flooding within the last ten years include the following:

• Resolution Number SMC-09-10-13, August 2013, to address the County of San Miguel and other eligible applicants that suffered severe damage. San Miguel County suffered damage

and loss to infrastructure (eroded roadways, removal of sub-base & base course and cutting of drainage ditches) which was caused by horrendous rains and flooding especially on August 8, 2013. Then on August 9, 2013, heavy rains created flooding in the Las Vegas Area which resulted in damage to a bridge on CR 23 creating safety issues for drivers.

- Resolution Number 08-13-13, July 2013, to address flood damages in the community of Big Mesa Subdivision, Conchas, New Mexico caused by severe rainfall.
- Executive Order 2010-025, June 2007, \$316,005.00 requested for equipment, materials, and labor costs to address flood damages in the communities of Chapelle, Bernal, Meyers, San Rafael, and Ojitos Frios which suffered damage to infrastructure including bridges, public roadways, and drainage structures caused by excessive rainfall.
- FEMA DR-1659-NM, June 2006, \$44,708.00 requested for road restoration of eroded ditches and road shoulders, equipment, materials, and labor costs to address flood damages on county roads
- Executive Order 2005-058, September 2005, \$750,000 in requested assistance for significant damage to county roads by flash floods for San Miguel, Socorro, Sierra, Cibola, Rio Arriba, and Guadaloupe Counties.
- Executive Order 2005-025, June 2004, \$750,000.00 requested for culvert installation/replacements and equipment costs to address flood damages in the communities of Ojitos Frios, Las Dispensas, Pecos, and Lower Rociada
- Executive Order 2003-045, September 2003, where flash flooding caused significant damage to infrastructure and Community Ditch Associations in San Miguel County, Rio Arriba County, and the City of Elephant Butte in Sierra County. (No cost estimates available).

The number of labor-hours spent responding to flooding disaster events are included within each emergency declaration application the county submits to FEMA. There have been no documented deaths or injuries related to flooding in San Miguel County between the years of 1997 and 2013. Stakeholder interviews reported that the primary areas of concern are within the floodplains, especially within El Valle region. Existing building codes and drainage requirements are generally sufficient to protect structures that are outside of the floodplains and reported damages are generally limited to critical components of infrastructure including roadways, bridges, and drainage systems.

5.6.5 Probability of Future Events

Flooding is a natural hazard that cannot be prevented and is certain to occur at regular intervals across the planning area. The highest risk periods are during the summer monsoon season, and during the spring when snow-pack melts.

Statistical probability indicates that each year, there is a one percent chance of inundation of the 100-year floodplain. More commonly, the 10-year floodplain has a 10 percent chance of occurrence in any given year. However, flash floods are not reflected by the SFHA or the associated flood probabilities. The history of flood events in San Miguel County relates to an average of 1.6 reported events per year across the county, and as noted above, an estimated annual \$132,687.50 in loss primarily to critical infrastructure. Annualized flooding based on NCDC records for each jurisdiction are noted below:

• San Miguel County – 17 events equating to approximately one flood every 11 months making the probability of occurrence highly likely

- City of Las Vegas 3 events equating to one flood every 5.33 years making the probability of occurrence likely
- Village of Pecos 3 events equating to one flood every 5.33 years making the probability of occurrence likely

5.7 Hailstorm

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the hailstorm hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, hailstorms were viewed as a varied threat across the jurisdictions with higher expected impacts to people and buildings over infrastructure. The overall hailstorm hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos Low

5.7.1 Description of the Hazard

Hailstorms are thunderstorm events that produce hail. Hail is a form of solid precipitation that consists of balls or irregular lumps of ice, individually called hail stones. Hail stones consist mostly of water ice and measure between 0.2 and 5.9 inches in diameter, with the larger stones originating from severe thunderstorms. Hail formation requires environments of strong, upward motion of air with the parent thunderstorm and lowered heights of the freezing level. Hail is most frequently formed in the interior of continents within the mid-latitudes of the Earth, and is generally confined to higher elevations within the tropics.

The Tornado and Storm Research Organization (TORRO) Hail Scale is used to measure the intensity of hail storms. The scale ranges from H0 to H10 with its increments of intensity or damage potential related to hail size (distribution and maximum), texture, numbers, fall speed, speed of storm translation, and strength of the accompanying wind⁴⁵. Refer to Table 5.7.1-1 for the TORRO Hailstorm intensity scale and typical damage impacts by hailstorm severity.

Intensity Scale	Intensity Category	Typical Hail Diameter (millimeter)	Probable Kinetic Energy (J-m²)	Typical Damage Impacts
HO	Hard Hail	5	0-20	No damage
H1	Potentially Damaging	5- 15	>20	Slight general damage to plants, crops
H2	Significant	10 -20	>100	Significant damage to fruit, crops, vegetation

Table 5.7.1-1TORRO Hailstorm Intensity Scale

⁴⁵ TORRO. (2013). *Hail scale*. Retrieved from http://www.torro.org.uk/site/hscale.php

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Hazard Profiles

Н3	Severe	20- 30	>300	Severe damage to fruit and crops, damage to glass and plastic structures, paint and wood scored
H4	Severe	25- 40 >500		Widespread glass damage, vehicle bodywork damage
Н5	Destructive	30- 50	>800	Wholesale destruction of glass, damage to tiled roofs, significant risk of injuries
H6	Destructive	40 -60	>800	Bodywork of grounded aircraft dented, brick walls pitted
H7	Destructive	50- 75	>800	Severe roof damage, risk of serious injuries
H8	Destructive	60 -90	>800	(Severest recorded in the British Isles) Severe damage to aircraft bodywork
Н9	Super Hailstorms	75- 100	>800	Extensive structural damage. Risk of severe or even fatal injuries to persons caught in the open
H10	Super Hailstorms	>100	>800	Extensive structural damage. Risk of severe or even fatal injuries to persons caught in the open

Source: TORRO. (2013). Hail scale. Retrieved from http://www.torro.org.uk/site/hscale.php

A more common hail scale is defined by the NOAA's Storm Prediction Center and references hail size by object as noted in Table 5.7.1-2.

Table 5.7.1-2
Traditional Object-to-Size Conversion Chart
(with TORRO scale and impacts)

Hail Diameter (inches)	Hail Diameter (millimeter)	Object Size	TORRO Intensity Scale	TORRO Scale Typical Damage Impacts
.50	13	Marble, Moth Ball	H1	Slight general damage to plants, crops
.75	19	Penny	H2	Significant damage to fruit, crops, vegetation
.88	22	Nickel	НЗ	Severe damage to fruit and crops, damage to glass and plastic structures, paint and wood scored
1.00	25	Quarter	H4	Widespread glass damage, vehicle bodywork damage
1.25	32	Half Dollar	Н5	Wholesale destruction of glass,

Hail Diameter (inches)	Hail Diameter (millimeter)	Object Size	TORRO Intensity Scale	TORRO Scale Typical Damage Impacts
				damage to tiled roofs, significant risk of injuries
1.50	38	Walnut, Ping Pong Ball	Н5	Wholesale destruction of glass, damage to tiled roofs, significant risk of injuries
1.75	44	Golf Ball	H6	Bodywork of grounded aircraft dented, brick walls pitted
2.00	51	Hen Egg	H7	Severe roof damage, risk of serious injuries
2.50	64	Tennis Ball	H8	Severe damage to aircraft bodywork
2.75	70	Baseball	H8	Severe damage to aircraft bodywork
3.00	76	Teacup	Н9	Extensive structural damage. Risk of severe or even fatal injuries to persons caught in the open
4.00	102	Grapefruit		Extensive structural damage. Risk of severe or even fatal injuries to persons caught in the open
4.50	114	Softball		Extensive structural damage. Risk of severe or even fatal injuries to persons caught in the open

Source: NOAA Storm Prediction Center. http://www.spc.noaa.gov/misc/tables/hailsize.htm

Hailstorms usually lasts an average of 10 to 20 minutes, but may last much longer in some storms. Evidence indicates that maximum hailstone size is the most important parameter relating to structural damage, especially towards the more severe end of the scale. Hail rarely causes notable physical damage to people, buildings, or infrastructure when it is smaller than the diameter of a quarter, but even small hail can cause crop damage. Golf ball size and larger hail can damage vehicles windows and rooftops, and can cause injury or death to humans and animals.

5.7.2 Significant Past Occurrences

The largest recorded hail in San Miguel County was reported on June 26, 1982 as a 4.5" hail stone(s). No specific information is given for this event, but hail storms are common in New Mexico with recorded hail ranging from .75" to 4.5" with 171 recorded events since July, 1958. Of those events, 113 recorded hail of 1" or larger. There are no injury or death reports from any of these events, but an August 30, 1996 event recorded \$80,000 in property damage from hail and flash flooding in western San Miguel County and the City of Las Vegas.

On May 27, 2009, a hail storm moved into Las Vegas and dropped an estimated 4" of penny-sized hail on the city streets. No damages were reported in this event, but hail covered the ground and roads for nearly 45 minutes.⁴⁶

5.7.3 Location of Areas at Risk

The entire county, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos are at equal risk to hail storms and damage. There are no hazard boundaries or identified hazard zones associated with hail. Most frequently, hail is only reported in populated areas, so determining the distribution of hail storms across a mostly rural and agricultural county is not possible.

5.7.4 The Extent of Damage

According to The National Climatic Data Center, San Miguel County reported 100 hail events between January 1, 2003 and October 31, 2013, totaling \$80,000 in property and no crop damages.⁴⁷ Only two damage producing hail events occurred in San Miguel County over the last 6 decades. In 1995, one hail event caused \$10,000 in property damages, while another caused \$80,000 in property damages a year later.

Past occurrences of hailstorms have included 4.5" hailstones. The TORRO Index ranks this as a "Super Hailstorm" with an H10 intensity factor meaning that the entire planning area could expect to see extensive structural damage with a tisk of severe or even fatal injuries to persons caught in the open.

5.7.5 Probability of Future Events

According to the National Weather Service (NWS), oversized and severe hailstorms occur most frequently in May, followed by June, July, and April. The mid- and southwest portions of the U.S. are exposed to the highest average number of hail days. If the weather patterns over the past 10 years remain constant, San Miguel County can expect an annualized number of 10 hail events per year making the probability of occurrence highly likely.

5.8 Hazardous Materials Incidents

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the hazardous materials hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county.

⁴⁶ http://www.johnefarley.com/chase52709.htm

⁴⁷ http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/stormevents/choosedates.jsp?statefips=35%2CNEW+MEXICO

According to surveyed responses, the hazardous materials hazard was viewed as a varied threat across the jurisdictions with predominantly moderate to high expected impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure. The overall hazardous materials hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County Moderate
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos High

5.8.1 Description of the Hazard

Hazardous materials incidents are technological events that involve accidental or intentional releases of reportable quantities of chemical, biological, radiological, nuclear, and explosive materials as defined in 40 CFR 117.3 "Reportable Quantities of Hazardous Substances".

Hazardous materials come in the form of explosives, flammable and combustible substances, toxic releases and waste materials. These substances are most often released as a result of transportation accidents or because of accidents in industrial facilities. Hazardous materials in their various forms can cause death, serious injury, long-lasting health effects, and damage to buildings, homes, and other property. Many products containing hazardous chemicals are used and stored in small quantities in homes and businesses. These consumer products are also shipped daily on the nation's highways, railroads, waterways, airways, and pipelines.

5.8.2 Significant Past Occurrences

There are 17 National Response Center reports for hazardous materials releases between January 1, 1991 and January 1, 2014. Table 5.8.2-1 lists the release reports.

Date	Location	Type of Event	Incident/Material Released
May 02, 1991	Forest roads 121, 305, and 555 (to include sections 34 and 35) near Pecos	Fixed	Received lab data that there were high levels of lead (20-15,000 ppm) in mine waste that was used as road surfacing material back in 1975
July 12, 1991	727 Katherine St, Las Vegas	Pipeline	Natural Gas
January 22, 1994	Pecos	Responsible party is burning tires	Tires
June 18, 1996	75 miles NW of Canon AFB, Tucumcari	Aircraft crash	Naphthalene, Jet fuel JP-8

Table 5.8.2-1Hazardous Materials Release Records

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Hazard Profiles

Date	Location	Type of Event	Incident/Material Released
October 14, 1997 Milepost:11.59 Lisbon		Railroad	Tank car / a liquid cap came loose
February 18, 1999	Old Colonias Rd Pecos	Fixed	People burning cable (plastics)
May 18, 1999	Mile marker 323, I- 25 near Pecos	Mobile	Saddle tanks on tractor trailer released oil, fuel: no. 2-d after accident involving two vehicles
December 1, 1999	Intersection I-25 and US Hwy 84 north bound	Mobile	Box van / truck involved in single truck accident / truck rolled overdue to unknown causes / isopropanol release from cargo / truck is hazmat carrier
December 22, 1999	Highway 84 at I-25 Las Vegas	Mobile	A tractor trailer overturned in a single vehicle accident causing the release of an unlisted product
September 6, 2000	2006 Hot Springs Blvd, Las Vegas	Mobile	While installing a storm drain, a 1" service natural gas line was hit by a tractor operating a cutting torch; due to the mixture of the natural gas and the diesel fuel in the tractor's backhoe the backhoe exploded.
September 1, 2001	Behind Casa De Jerela restaurant on County Rd 63, Pecos	Fixed	The caller discovered oil in a puddle near the location
October 31, 2001	Las Vegas waste transfer point adjacent to Interstate 25	Mobile	An unknown piece of radioactive equipment containing barium-133 was discovered in a trash truck at a landfill. The origin of the equipment is unknown at this time.
March 4, 2003	1008 5th Street, Las Vegas	Fixed	Caller stated that oil is being released on her private property. She stated that oil is being dumped on her lawn as

Date	Location	Type of Event	Incident/Material Released
			well as thrown against her house. She does not know where this oil is coming from.
April 10, 2004	County Rd b41E, Ribera	Fixed	The material raw sewage is being illegally dumped into a hole on the property
February 9, 2011	1925 Church Street, Las Vegas	Fixed	Caller states that there was a fire at a private residence with a natural gas line due to unknown reasons.
April 6, 2013	Bradner Dam, Las Vegas	Fixed	A hydraulic cylinder had a release while boring a whole. 10 gallons of hydraulic oil released and impacted the water.

Source: National Response Center

5.8.3 Location of Areas at Risk

The threat from the hazardous materials is primarily along transportation routes through the county. Facilities in proximity and generally downwind from major thoroughfares and railways are also vulnerable to this hazard.

The severity of this hazard can be minor incidents that would likely cause no damage or disruption to major transportation infrastructure closure and localized evacuations. Major incidents could have fatal and disastrous consequences. The severity of a hazardous materials release relates primarily to its impact on human safety and welfare and on the threat to the environment.

Threats to human safety and welfare includes poisoning of water or food sources and/or supply, presence of toxic fumes or explosive conditions, damage to personal property, temporary or extended evacuation of people, and interference with transportation and business operations in the affected area.

Threats to the environment include injury or loss of animals or plants or habitats that are of economic or ecological importance such as commercial, recreation, or subsistence fisheries (marine plants, crustaceans, shellfish, aquaculture facilities) or livestock, and bird rookeries. Other environmental impacts include ecological reserves, forests, parks, archaeological, and cultural sites, all of which are part of the economic base of San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

5.8.4 The Extent of Damage

Hazardous materials incidents refer to uncontrolled releases of hazardous materials through a transportation-related incident or at a fixed-site facility which poses a risk to the health, safety, property, and the environment. The most well-known example of a large-scale hazardous materials incident is that which occurred at the Union Carbide plant in Bhopal, India in 1984. This incident caused 2,500 deaths and injuries to many others. Although incidences of this scale are rare, smaller scale incidents-those requiring a response and evacuation or other protective measures are relatively common.

Depending on the severity of the incident, the potential impact to life and property is great across San Miguel County. Major roads and rail lines are in close proximity to significant critical facilities including hospitals, schools, and senior centers. A single upwind incident with a hazardous materials release could cause immediate health concerns until the hazard is mitigated.

Hazardous materials incidents are often dependent on external factors. An incident can be caused intentionally or accidentally, and may or may not involve human action. Incidents can be caused by inundation of flood waters, from high winds that damage structures or infrastructure, or from weather related hazards that create road and railway risks for hazardous materials carriers. Hazardous materials incidents can also be caused at fixed facilities when filling/emptying transportation containers or through unlawful practices. Vehicle accidents and train derailments may also result in hazardous materials releases.

5.8.5 Probability of Future Events

Between 1991 and 2014, there were 17 NRC hazardous materials reports. The majority of the reported releases were related to transportation incidents and unlawful practices such as burning or dumping. Releases range from natural gas to sewage, and include one incident of mine tailing materials used for road surface that included high levels of lead. Incidents were generally determined to be accidental, some localized intentional releases were also reported. Considering that there were only 17 reported releases in 23 years and that quantities of materials released were generally small, the probability of a significant hazardous materials incident occurring on or near and affecting San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos is likely and each jurisdiction is equally vulnerable to this hazard.

5.9 High Wind

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the high wind hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the high wind hazard was viewed as a potentially high impact event in San Miguel County and Pecos. The City of Las Vegas viewed this hazard as a predominantly moderate threat. The overall high wind hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos High

5.9.1 Description of the Hazard

Wind is defined as the motion of air relative to the earth's surface. Severe high winds often result from thunderstorm inflow and outflow, downburst winds when storm clouds collapse, strong frontal systems, or high or low-pressure systems moving across a region. High winds are defined as winds with speeds reaching 50 miles per hour (mph) or greater that are either continuous or gusting. Dust storms are strong windstorms that fill the air with thick dust and that reduce visibility. Other common wind storms in San Miguel County include gap wind or canyon wind and mountain wave-induced winds. Gap wind or canyon wind occurs as the wind rushes over mountain passes in the ridgeline of a mountain chain with strongest speeds at narrow canyon openings. Mountain wave-induced winds occur when there is a change in atmospheric pressure, temperature, and height in a current of air caused by vertical displacement. For example, when wind blows over mountain ranges air masses are forced from low elevation to high elevation as it moves over the rising terrain. According to the 2010 New Mexico Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan, San Miguel County is located within Wind Zone II which denotes areas that can experience winds up to 160 mph. It also designates the central portion of San Miguel County as a Special Wind Region that should be examined for unusual wind conditions due to its mountainous terrain. Table 5.9.1-1 defines the winds zones.

Table 5.9.1-1
Wind Zones

Wind Zone	Wind Speed/Definition	
Zone I	130 mph	
Zone II	160 mph	
Zone III	200 mph	
Zone IV	250 mph	
Special Wind Region	Areas that should be examined for unusual wind conditions	
Hurricane Susceptible Region	Coastal areas that are susceptible to hurricane winds	

Source: FEMA. http://www.fema.gov/safe-rooms/wind-zones-united-states

Map 5.9.1-1 on the following page shows the winds zones for the State of New Mexico including San Miguel County.

Map 5.9.1-1 New Mexico Wind Zones



Source: 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan

5.9.2 Significant Past Occurrences

Most of the wind and dust storms do not result in any damages or injuries but do have the potential to severely impact the existing infrastructure and the natural environment. High winds and the related dry air pressure systems reduce the opportunities for rain by preventing evaporated moisture from reaching the upper, cooler airs that allow for cloud formation. Dry high winds also increase surface evaporation, creating drier land conditions, and can divert wet weather systems away from the area. A query of the NOAA Satellite and Information Service, National Climatic Data Center (NCDC) and the 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan only revealed high wind incidents related to thunderstorm winds.

The NCDC has no records of high wind events that were not related to thunderstorms in San Miguel County, but there have been 19 NCDC recorded thunderstorm wind-related events across the county since 1966. The data related to these events do not specify whether the occurrences were recorded within municipal boundaries or in the unincorporated county. The county, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos agree that these events can and do occur in all areas of the county. According to NCDC records, the strongest recorded thunderstorm wind event created 60mph winds in June 2001. No wind-related injuries or fatalities have been recorded anywhere in the planning area.

5.9.3 Location of Areas at Risk

The State Plan identifies the fact that all areas of the state, including all areas of San Miguel County, are susceptible to high winds. The participating jurisdictions will continue to monitor for and track high wind events and their related damages to improve the available local data for this hazard.

5.9.4 The Extent of Damage

While no damage has been reported due to a high wind event, the possibility of wind speeds up to 160 miles per hour poses a significant threat. Damage from winds at this velocity can range from large trees being blown down to structural failures of some buildings. Mobile homes are at a greater risk during high wind events. Communications infrastructure, such as telephone lines and power lines, may also fail as a result of this type of hazardous event.

5.9.5 Probability of Future Events

High winds occur throughout the county, particularly during the windy spring season, but limited local data available only allows us to annualize thunderstorm-related wind events. There have been 19 such recorded events in the past 47 years, or approximately one event every 2.5 years, making the probability of occurrence likely.

5.10 Landslide

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the landslide hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the landslide hazard was viewed as a low hazard in San Miguel County, the City of Las

Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. The overall landslide hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County Low
- Las Vegas Low
- Village of Pecos Low

5.10.1 Description of the Hazard

Landslides are the downward and outward movement of slopes. Landslides include a wide range of ground movement, such as rock falls, deep failure of slopes, and shallow debris flows. Although gravity acting on and over steepened slopes is the primary reason for a landslide, landslides are often prompted by the occurrence of other disasters. Other contributing factors include the following:

- Erosion by rivers, glaciers, or ocean waves creating over-steepened slopes
- Rock and soil slopes weakened through saturation by snowmelt or heavy rains
- Earthquakes creating stresses that make weak slopes fail
- Earthquakes of magnitude 4.0 and greater shaking the ground
- Volcanic eruptions producing loose ash deposits, heavy rain, and debris flows
- Excess weight from accumulation of rain or snow, stockpiling of rock or ore, from waste piles, or from manmade structures stressing weak slopes
- Floods or long duration precipitation events creating saturated, unstable soils that are more susceptible to failure.

Landslides may happen when slope material becomes saturated with water causes a debris or mudflow. Ground is saturation also weakens soil and rock cohesion and friction between soil particles. Cohesion and friction affect the strength of the material in the slope and contribute to a slope's ability to resist down slope movement. Saturation also increases the weight of the slope materials and increases the gravitational force on the slope.

Undercutting of a slope reduces the slope's resistance to the force of gravity by removing muchneeded support at the base of the slope. Alternating cycles of freeze and thaw can result in a slow, virtually imperceptible loosening of rock, thereby weakening the rock and making it susceptible to slope failure.

The resulting slurry of rock and mud can pick up trees, houses, and cars, and block bridges and tributaries, causing flooding along its path. Additionally, removal of vegetation can leave a slope much more susceptible to superficial landslides because of the loss of the stabilizing root systems.⁴⁸

According to the USGS, there are four basic types of landslides: falls, topples, flows, and lateral shifts. These types of landslides are defined below:

• Falls: Falls are abrupt movements of masses of geologic materials, such as rocks and boulders that become detached from steep slopes or cliffs. Separation occurs along discontinuities such as fractures, joints, and bedding planes, and movement occurs by free-

⁴⁸ 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan

fall, bouncing, and rolling. Falls are strongly influenced by gravity, mechanical weathering, and the presence of interstitial water.

- Topples: Toppling failures are distinguished by the forward rotation of a unit or units about some pivotal point, below or low in the unit, under the actions of gravity and forces exerted by adjacent units or by fluids in cracks
- Flows: There are five basic categories of flows that differ from one another in fundamental ways.
 - Debris flow: A debris flow is a form of rapid mass movement in which a combination of loose soil, rock, organic matter, air, and water mobilize as a slurry that flows downslope. Debris flows include <50 percent fines. Debris flows are commonly caused by intense surface-water flow, due to heavy precipitation or rapid snowmelt that erodes and mobilizes loose soil or rock on steep slopes. Debris flows also commonly mobilize from other types of landslides that occur on steep slopes, are nearly saturated, and consist of a large proportion of silt- and sand-sized material. Debris-flow source areas are often associated with steep gullies, and debris-flow deposits are usually indicated by the presence of debris fans at the mouths of gullies. Fires that denude slopes of vegetation intensify the susceptibility of slopes to debris flows.
 - Debris avalanche: This is a variety of very rapid to extremely rapid debris flow.
 - Earthflow: Earthflows have a characteristic "hourglass" shape. The slope material liquefies and runs out, forming a bowl or depression at the head. The flow itself is elongate and usually occurs in fine-grained materials or clay-bearing rocks on moderate slopes and under saturated conditions. However, dry flows of granular material are also possible.
 - Mudflow: A mudflow is an earthflow consisting of material that is wet enough to flow rapidly and that contains at least 50 percent sand-, silt-, and clay-sized particles. In some instances, for example in many newspaper reports, mudflows and debris flows are commonly referred to as "mudslides."
 - Creep: Creep is the imperceptibly slow, steady, downward movement of slopeforming soil or rock. Movement is caused by shear stress sufficient to produce permanent deformation, but too small to produce shear failure. There are generally three types of creep:
 - Seasonal where movement is within the depth of soil affected by seasonal changes in soil moisture and soil temperature;
 - Continuous where shear stress continuously exceeds the strength of the material;
 - Progressive where slopes are reaching the point of failure as other types of mass movements. Creep is indicated by curved tree trunks, bent fences or retaining walls, tilted poles or fences, and small soil ripples or ridges.
- Lateral Spreads: Lateral spreads are distinctive because they usually occur on very gentle slopes or flat terrain. The dominant mode of movement is lateral extension accompanied by shear or tensile fractures. The failure is caused by liquefaction, the process whereby saturated, loose, cohesionless sediments (usually sands and silts) are transformed from a solid into a liquefied state. Failure is usually triggered by rapid ground motion, such as that experienced during an earthquake, but can also be artificially induced. When coherent material, either bedrock or soil, rests on materials that liquefy, the upper units may undergo fracturing and extension and then may subside, translate, rotate, disintegrate, or liquefy and flow. Lateral spreading in fine-grained materials on shallow slopes is usually progressive. The failure starts suddenly in a small area and spreads rapidly. Often the initial failure is a slump, but in some materials movement occurs for no apparent reason.

A combination of two or more of the above types is known as a complex landslide.⁴⁹

Landslides can be classified by using the Alexander Scale shown in Table 5.10.1-1.

Level	Damage	Description
0	None.	Building is intact.
1	Negligible.	Hairline cracks in walls or structural members; no distortion of structure or detachment of external architectural details
2	Light.	Buildings continue to be habitable; repair not urgent. Settlement of foundations, distortion of structure, and inclination of walls are not sufficient to compromise overall stability.
3	Moderate.	Walls out of perpendicular by one or two degrees, or there has been substantial cracking in structural members, or the foundations have settled during differential subsidence of at least 15 cm; building requires evacuation and rapid attention to ensure its continued life.
4	Serious.	Walls out of perpendicular by several degrees; open cracks in walls; fracture of structural members; fragmentation of masonry; differential settlement of at least 25 cm compromising foundations; floors may be inclined by one or two degrees or ruined by heave. Internal partition walls will need to be replaced; door and window frames are too distorted to use; occupants must be evacuated and major repairs carried out.
5	Very Serious.	Walls out of plumb by five or six degrees; structure grossly distorted; differential settlement has seriously cracked floors and walls or caused major rotation or slewing of the building [wooden buildings are detached completely from their foundations]. Partition walls and brick infill will have at least partly collapsed; roofs may have partially collapsed; outhouses, porches, and patios may have been damaged more seriously than the principal structure itself. Occupants will need to be re- housed on a long-term basis, and rehabilitation of the building will probably not be feasible.
6	Partial Collapse.	Requires immediate evacuation of the occupants and cordoning of the site to prevent accidents with falling masonry.

Table 5.10.1-1 Alexander Scale

Source: http://www.es.mq.edu.au/NHRC/web/scales/scalespage14.htm

⁴⁹ USGS. http://pubs.usgs.gov/fs/2004/3072/fs-2004-3072.html

5.10.2 Significant Past Occurrences

There have been no recorded significant past occurrences for this hazard in San Miguel County. The County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos recognize that landslides are possible and take mitigation actions where possible to reduce the risk.

5.10.3 Location of Areas at Risk

The USGS defines areas of risk based on the following percentage of land area:

Risk Zone	Land Area
Low:	≤ 1.5% of land area
Moderate:	1.5% -15% of land area
High:	≥ 15% of land area.

Table 5.10.3-1 Landslide Risk Zones

The 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan recognizes that most of New Mexico is in a USGS National Landslide Hazard Program low risk zone (less than 1.5 percent of the land area is at risk), and San Miguel County is no exception. According to the USGS, areas of the County south and east of Las Vegas and Pecos are in a moderate risk zone, meaning 1.5 percent-15 percent of the land area is at risk of landslide. Map 5.10.3-1 outlines those areas in green for low risk, yellow for moderate risk, and red for high risk.



Map 5.10.3-1 Landslide Susceptible Areas in New Mexico

Source: 2010 New Mexico Hazard Mitigation Plan

5.10.4 The Extent of Damage

There have been no recorded incidents of damage to people, buildings, or infrastructure as a result of landslides in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, or the Village of Pecos.

5.10.5 Probability of Future Events

Since there is no recorded history of this hazard in San Miguel County and the participating jurisdictions, the probability of occurrence is unlikely.

5.11 Levee Failure

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the levee failure hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the levee failure hazard was viewed as a low hazard in San Miguel County, the City of Las

Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. The overall levee failure hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County Low
- Las Vegas Low
- Village of Pecos Low

5.11.1 Description of the Hazard

Levees and floodwalls are flood control barriers constructed of earth, concrete, or other materials. For the purposes of this plan, levees are distinguished from smaller flood barriers (such as berms) by their size and extent. Berms are barriers that only protect a small number of structures, or at times only a single structure. Levees and floodwalls are barriers that protect significant areas of residential, agricultural, commercial, or industrial development; at a minimum they protect a neighborhood or small community.

Levee failure involves the overtopping, breach, or collapse of the levee or floodwall. Such failure is especially destructive to nearby development during flood and tropical cyclone events. Levees can fail for any of the following three main reasons:

- Overtopping: When high river discharge leads to a river stage that is higher than the lowest point on a levee, the water will overtop the levee and start to flow onto the floodplain. Because the initial gradient from the river to flood plain is relatively high, the velocity of the water as it overtops the levee will also be high. High velocities can result in high rates of erosion. The levee that is initially overtopped may become scoured, creating a channel through the levee.
- Undercutting and Slumping: High river discharge causes increased velocities within the stream which in turn leads to higher rates of erosion along the inner walls of levees, undercutting and slumping the levee into the river. Heavy rainfall or seepage into the levee from the river can increase fluid pressure in the levee and lead to slumping on the inner or outer parts of the levee. If the slumps grow to the top of the levee, large sections of the levee may slump into the river or onto the floodplain and lower the elevation of the top of the levee, allowing it to be more easily overtopped.
- Seepage and Piping: Increasing water levels in the river will cause the water table in the levee to rise. This increases fluid pressure within the earth and may result in seepage (water being pushed through the levee to rise as springs on the surrounding flood plains). If a high flow rate develops due to increased fluid pressures, then a high velocity pathway to the flood plain may occur. This is known as piping. Piping erodes the material under the levee, undermining it and causing it to collapse and fail.

5.11.2 Significant Past Occurrences

There is no history of part occurrences for this hazard in San Miguel County.

5.11.3 Location of Areas at Risk

There are no identified areas of risk for this hazard at this time. The participating jurisdictions have considered levee protection from flood waters along rivers, arroyos, and acequias in the county. If

those levees are developed, the jurisdictions plan to develop risk assessments that address levee failure at that time.

5.11.4 The Extent of Damage

Extent of damage cannot be determined at this time as there are no significant levees in the county to manage waterways.

5.11.5 Probability of Future Events

The probability of future events is does not exist until such time as levees are built to protect developed lands from rising waters along the rivers, arroyos, and acequias, therefore this hazard is omitted from further assessment in the plan.

5.12 Pandemic/Epidemic

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the pandemic/epidemic hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the pandemic/epidemic hazard was viewed as a low hazard in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. The overall pandemic/epidemic hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos High

5.12.1 Description of the Hazard

Infectious pathologies, also called communicable diseases or transmissible diseases due to their potential of transmission from one person or species to another by a replicating agent, are the cause of pandemic and epidemic emergencies. An infectious disease is a clinically evident illness resulting from the presence of pathogenic microbial agents, including pathogenic viruses, pathogenic bacteria, fungi, protozoa, multi-cellular parasites, and aberrant proteins known as prions.

Transmissible diseases which occur through contact with an ill person or their secretions, or objects touched by them, are especially infective, and are the most common types of pandemic and epidemic events. Infectious (communicable) diseases which usually require a more specialized route of infection, such as vector transmission, or blood or needle transmission, are usually not regarded as risk for this hazard.

Examples of communicable or infectious diseases include plague, malaria, tuberculosis, rabies, hepatitis B, influenza, HIV, and measles.
5.12.2 Significant Past Occurrences

The 2009 H1N1 virus outbreak caused 1,007 hospitalizations and 52 deaths across the state.⁵⁰ According to state public health records, San Miguel County reported one hospitalization and ordered 970 vaccines.⁵¹

In August of 2010, the county initiated and managed a Level 3 Pertussis Activation through sponsorship of the NM Department of Health. Though the health concerns and emergency were localized, the activation assisted local health services to manage and monitor the outbreak.

During a 2010-2012 period, San Miguel County recorded a death rate of 17.1 per 100,000 population for influenza and pneumonia. The county had the 13th highest rank in the state, but higher than the state average of 14.3 and the national average of 15.1 for the same period.⁵²

San Miguel County and the State of New Mexico also have a history with the Hantavirus. Since this disease is not spread through human contact but through rodents, it will be addressed in the Pests hazard section (5.13).

5.12.3 Location of Areas at Risk

This hazard impacts people, rather than physical assets. Therefore, all populated areas of the county are at risk from the pandemic hazard. It is assumed that more densely populated areas such as the City of Las Vegas, the Village of Pecos, and unincorporated communities of the county are more likely to be exposed to this hazard. Conversely, more rural, isolated, and sparsely populated areas of the county are less likely to be at risk to the spread of communicable disease and pandemic.

There is not enough local data available to isolate the areas of risk by jurisdiction, so this hazard will be addressed for the entire county and its jurisdictions with the assumption that there is regular countywide human interaction.

5.12.4 The Extent of Damage

Communicable disease outbreaks and pandemic events will have the most immediate impact on life and health safety. The extent of the impact will be contingent on the type of infection or contagion, the severity of the outbreak, and the speed at which it is transmitted. Property and infrastructure could be affected if large portions of the population were affected and unable to perform maintenance and operations tasks. This would be particularly disruptive if those impacted were first responders, healthcare workers, educators, or other essential personnel.

The Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) categorizes various diseases in levels of biohazard. In this scale, Level 1 equates to a minimal risk, and Level 4 describes extreme risk. Table 5.12.4-1 describes these levels, and provides examples of communicable diseases that would

⁵⁰ http://www.kdbc.com/news/new-mexico-analyzes-swine-flu

 $^{^{51}} http://www.nmt.edu/nmt-golfcourse/332-office-of-emergency-planning/office-of-emergency-planning/3566-nm-department-of-health-latest-release$

 $^{^{52}\,}https://ibis.health.state.nm.us/community/highlight/profile/InfluenzaPneumoDeath.Cnty/GeoCnty/47.html$

typically fall in to these classifications, and the typical protections that would be necessary to prevent transmission of the disease.

Level	Examples	Typical Protection to Prevent Transmission
Biohazard Level I (BSL-I)	E. Coli Canine Hepatitis Chicken Pox	Precautions are minimal, most likely involving gloves and some sort of facial protection. Usually, contaminated materials are left in open (but separately indicated) waste receptacles. Decontamination procedures for this level are similar in most respects to modern precautions against everyday viruses (i.e.: washing one's hands with anti-bacterial soap, washing all exposed surfaces of the lab with disinfectants, etc.).
Biohazard Level II (BSL-2)	Hepatitis A, B, C Lyme disease Salmonella Mumps Measles Scrapie Dengue Fever HIV	These bacteria and viruses cause mild disease in humans, or are difficult to contract via aerosol. Routine diagnostic work with clinical specimens can be done safely at BSL-2, using BSL- 2 practices and procedures.
Biohazard Level III (BSL-3)	Anthrax West Nile Virus SARS Virus Smallpox Tuberculosis Typhus Yellow Fever Malaria	These bacteria and viruses cause severe to fatal disease in human, but vaccines or other treatments do exist to combat them. Laboratory personnel have specific training in handling pathogenic and potentially lethal agents, and are supervised by competent scientists who are experienced in working with these agents. This is considered a neutral or warm zone.

Table 5.12.4-1 Biohazard Classification Levels

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Hazard Profiles

Level	Examples	Typical Protection to Prevent Transmission
Biohazard Level IV (BSL-4)	H5N1 (Bird Flu) Dengue Hemorrhagic Fever Marburg Virus Ebola Virus Hantaviruses Lassa Fever Crimean-Congo Hemorrhagic Fever Other Hemorrhagic Diseases	These viruses and bacteria cause severe to fatal disease in humans, for which vaccines or other treatments are <i>not</i> available. When dealing with biological hazards at this level the use of a Hazmat suit and a self-contained oxygen supply is mandatory. The entrance and exit of a BSL-4 lab will contain multiple showers, a vacuum room, an ultraviolet light room, autonomous detection system, and other safety precautions designed to destroy all traces of the biohazard. Multiple airlocks are employed and are electronically secured to prevent both doors opening at the same time. All air and water service going to and coming from a BSL- 4 lab will undergo similar decontamination procedures to eliminate the possibility of an accidental release.

Source: Center for Disease Control and Prevention

5.12.5 Probability of Future Events

Based on the available data profiled in 5.12.2 *Significant Past Occurrences*, there have been many documented cases of the communicable disease hazard within San Miguel County and the probability of a future occurrence is likely.

5.13 Pests

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the pests hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the pests hazard was viewed as a low hazard in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. The overall pests hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County Low
- Las Vegas Low
- Village of Pecos Low

5.13.1 Description of the Hazard

Pests were defined by the MPG as pine beetles, feral hogs, mice, and mosquitos, but could include other pests that could plague the county, City of Las Vegas, and Village of Pecos and impact the people, buildings, and/or infrastructure of those jurisdictions. Pests may also impact the economy by damaging or destroying crops, livestock, or the growing eco-tourism sites in the planning area.

Pine Beetles

Pests such as pine beetles are known to damage and destroy pine trees in the planning area. The mountain pine beetle is native to the forests of western North America. Periodic outbreaks of the insect can result in losses of millions of trees. Outbreaks develop irrespective of property lines, being equally evident in wilderness areas, mountain subdivisions and back yards. Even windbreak or landscape pines many miles from the mountains can succumb to beetles imported in infested firewood.

Mountain pine beetles develop in Ponderosa, Lodgepole, Scotch, and Limber pines. Bristlecone and Piñon pines are less commonly attacked. During early stages of an outbreak, attacks are limited largely to trees under stress from injury, site conditions, fire damage, overcrowding, root disease or old age. However, as beetle populations increase, beetle attacks may involve most large trees in the outbreak area.⁵³

Feral Hogs

Feral hogs present a pest problem in the county because of their ability and propensity to destroy agriculture (cultivated crops), harm livestock, spread disease to cattle, and create riparian issues.⁵⁴ Feral hogs are known to spread diseases like Swine Brucellosis which can be transmitted to humans casing flu-like symptoms and to cattle, causing false positive tests for Bovine Brucellosis; Pseudorabies which is a herpes virus that can be transmitted to cattle, sheep, and dogs; Tularemia (Rabbit Fever) which can be spread to humans; Salmonellosis, foot rot, intestinal bacteria, viruses, and parasites may also be transmitted through fecal material.⁵⁵

Mice

The primary concern with mice in San Miguel County is the spread of the Hantavirus, but statewide, the Plague has also been a concern. Mice are primary carriers (vectors) of both diseases. When contracted, the Hantavirus can cause Hantavirus Pulmonary Syndrome (HPS) with flu-like symptoms, coughing, and shortness of breath. Cases of HPS occur sporadically, usually in rural areas where forests, fields, and farms offer suitable habitat for the virus's rodent hosts. The mortality rate of HPS is 38 percent.⁵⁶

The Plague is commonly transmitted through rodents and fleas. It is most often contracted through flea bites and handling infected animals. It can also be contracted by inhaling respiratory droplets after close contact with infected cats and humans. The Plague also presents flu-like symptoms and can spread throughout the body when left untreated. Between 1900 and 2010, there were 999 confirmed or probable human plague cases in the United States. There were 2 cases reported in the State of New Mexico in 2013. Since 1990, the mortality rate of the Plague has reduced to 11 percent.

Mosquitos

The County, City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos shared concerns about mosquitos as pests because of mosquito-borne illnesses including Arboviral Encephalitides (Eastern/Western Encephalitides, West Nile Virus, etc.) in the planning area. Mosquitos may also carry such diseases

⁵³ http://www.ext.colostate.edu/pubs/insect/05528.html

⁵⁴ Interviews with MPG, August 21, 2013.

⁵⁵ Texas A&M University. *Feral Hogs and Disease Concerns*. http://feralhogs.tamu.edu/files/2011/08/Feral-Hogs-and-Disease-Concerns.pdf

⁵⁶ Center for Disease Control. http://www.cdc.gov/hantavirus/hps/symptoms.html

⁵⁷ Center for Disease Control. http://www.cdc.gov/plague/faq/

as Malaria, Dengue Fever, and Yellow Fever. Between 1999 and 2012, there were 490 cases of West Nile Virus reported in New Mexico. 58

5.13.2 Significant Past Occurrences

Pine beetles and feral hogs have had ecological and agricultural impacts across San Miguel County, but there is not enough recorded data to provide specific loss information for this portion of the hazard.

There have been 624 confirmed cumulative cases of Hantavirus in the U.S., 92 of them in New Mexico which has the highest incidence of the disease in the country.⁵⁹ San Miguel County most recently reported two cases in 2007. New Mexico also had 2 cases of the Plague reported in 2013, but none in recent history in San Miguel County.

New Mexico has recorded 528 cases of West Nile Virus since 2003. Of them, only eight were recorded in San Miguel County.⁶⁰ At least one of those eight was fatal (2003).⁶¹

5.13.3 Location of Areas at Risk

All of San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos are considered equally vulnerable to the pests hazard as these pests have no threat boundaries.

Map 5.13.3-1on the following page shows the number of confirmed, cumulative cases of Hantavirus by state.

⁵⁸ Center for Disease Control. http://www.cdc.gov/westnile/statsMaps/cumMapsData.html http://www.cdc.gov/westnile/statsMaps/cumMapsData.html

⁵⁹ Center for Disease Control. http://www.cdc.gov/hantavirus/surveillance/reporting-state.html ⁶⁰ New Mexico Department of Health.

http://nmhealth.org/erd/healthdata/documents/WNV_Human_Cases_by_County_New_Mexico_2003_2013.pdf

⁶¹ http://amarillo.com/stories/2003/08/29/usn_sanmiguelwoman.shtml



Map 5.13.3-1 Hantavirus in the United States

Source: Center for Disease Control. http://www.cdc.gov/hantavirus/surveillance/reporting-state.html

Map 5.13.3-2on the following page shows the locations of recorded confirmed or probably cases of Plague in humans in the United States.⁶²

⁶² Center for Disease Control. http://www.cdc.gov/plague/faq/





Source: Center for Disease Control. http://www.cdc.gov/plague/maps/index.html

5.13.4 The Extent of Damage by Pests

There is not enough local data available to determine the extent of damages by pests across the planning area. The County, City of Las Vegas, and Village of Pecos will continue to monitor this hazard and track incidents at the local level should the hazards become a larger issue.

5.13.5 Probability of Future Events

There is not enough local statistical data to annualize the probability of future events with this hazard, but based national and state data, the entire planning area within San Miguel County can expect to see repeated occurrences of this hazard.

5.14 Severe Winter Storms

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the severe winter storms hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the severe winter storms hazard was viewed as a high hazard in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos for impacts to people and infrastructure. Impacts to buildings were ranked moderate to low. The overall severe winter storms hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos High

5.14.1 Description of the Hazard

Severe winter storm hazards include blizzards, heavy snow, ice storms, and extreme cold. Winter storms can also vary in size, strength, and duration. The National Weather Service (NWS) defines common winter storm hazards as follows:

- **Blizzard:** A blizzard means that the following conditions are expected to prevail for a period of 3 hours or longer:
 - Sustained wind or frequent gusts to 35 miles an hour or greater; and
 - Considerable falling and/or blowing snow (i.e., reducing visibility frequently to less than quarter mile)
- **Heavy Snow:** This generally means:
 - o snowfall accumulating to 4" or more in depth in 12 hours or less; or
 - snowfall accumulating to 6" or more in depth in 24 hours or less
- **Ice Storm:** An ice storm is used to describe occasions when damaging accumulations of ice are expected during freezing rain situations. Significant accumulations of ice pull down trees and utility lines resulting in loss of power and communication. These accumulations of ice make walking and driving extremely dangerous. Significant ice accumulations are usually accumulations of a quarter inch or greater.
- **Extreme Cold:** Dangerously low temperatures for a prolonged period of time that can cause frostbite and hypothermia.

Heavy snow can immobilize a region and paralyze a city, stranding commuters, stopping the flow of supplies, and disrupting emergency and medical services. Accumulations of snow can also collapse roofs, and down trees and power-lines. The cost of snow removal, structural and infrastructural damage repair, and economic losses can have a significant impact on community assets.

Heavy accumulations of ice can bring-down trees, electrical wires, telephone poles and lines, and communication towers. Communications and electrical power can be disrupted for days or weeks until utility service crews can repair the damages. Accumulations of snow and ice can also cause extreme hazards to motorists, especially in communities that are not accustomed to driving in winter storm conditions or in areas with naturally treacherous mountain road conditions.

Winter storms that produce strong winds, creating blizzards, can reduce driver visibility, produce severe snow drifts, and develop dangerous wind chills, which can result in injuries and deaths. Strong winds associated with blizzards can also knock down trees, utility poles, and power lines.

Extreme cold associated with severe winter storms can pose a significant risk to human life and livestock. According to the NWS Windchill Chart, frostbite can occur during low temperatures and high wind speeds (Figure 5.14,1-1). Frostbite is classified according to degree of severity:

- First degree frostbite affects the skin by making it appear yellow or white and may cause a burning sensation;
- Second degree frostbite develops after continued exposure, symptoms include the disappearance of pain, reddening, swelling, and blistering of the skin; and

• Third degree frostbite results in waxy, hard skin. It is during the third degree stage that the skin dies and edema may occur due to the lack of blood supply.

If not treated immediately, frostbite damage can become permanent, including nerve damage, discolored skin pigment, infection, and loss of extremities.

								NWS	Win	dchi	ll Cha	art							
			9	N	11	VS	5 V	Vi	no	lc	hi	II	C	ha	rt				
									Tem	pera	ture	(°F)							
	Calm	40	35	30	25	20	15	10	5	0	-5	-10	-15	-20	-25	-30	-35	-40	-45
	5	36	31	25	19	13	7	1	-5	-11	-16	-22	-28	-34	-40	-46	-52	-57	-63
	10	34	27	21	15	9	3	-4	-10	-16	-22	-28	-35	-41	-47	-53	-59	-66	-72
	15	32	25	19	13	6	0	-7	-13	-19	-26	-32	-39	-45	-51	-58	-64	-71	-77
	20	30	24	17	11	4	-2	-9	-15	-22	-29	-35	-42	-48	-55	-61	-68	-74	-81
(Y	25	29	23	16	9	3	-4	-11	-17	-24	-31	-37	-44	-51	-58	-64	-71	-78	-84
Ē	30	28	22	15	8	1	-5	-12	-19	-26	-33	-39	-46	-53	-60	-67	-73	-80	-87
P	35	28	21	14	7	0	-7	-14	-21	-27	-34	-41	-48	-55	-62	-69	-76	-82	-89
Ŵ	40	27	20	13	6	-1	-8	-15	-22	-29	-36	-43	-50	-57	-64	-71	-78	-84	-91
	45	26	19	12	5	-2	-9	-16	-23	-30	-37	-44	-51	-58	-65	-72	-79	-86	-93
	50	26	19	12	4	-3	-10	-17	-24	-31	-38	-45	-52	-60	-67	-74	-81	-88	-95
	55	25	18	11	4	-3	-11	-18	-25	-32	-39	-46	-54	-61	-68	-75	-82	-89	-97
	60	25	17	10	3	-4	-11	-19	-26	-33	-40	-48	-55	-62	-69	-76	-84	-91	-98
				1	Frostb	ite Tin	nes	3	0 minut	les	10) minut	es [5 m	inutes				
	Wind Chill (°F) = 35.74 + 0.6215T - 35.75(V ^{0.16}) + 0.4275T(V ^{0.16}) Where, T= Air Temperature (°F) V= Wind Speed (mph)																		

Figure 5.14.1-1 NWS Windchill Chart

Source: National Weather Service

5.14.2 Significant Past Occurrences

The county faces recurring winter storm events that can be a serious emergency for residents, visitors, and travelers. Though there have only been two Major Disaster Declarations in the state for severe winter storms (December 1997 and February 2011)⁶³, there have been four Disaster Relief Programs for snowstorms in San Miguel County. The limited amount of historical data for this hazard is not an indicator of events or impacts, but is an indicator of preparedness and effective local emergency management by all jurisdictions in the county.

Severe winter storms have many impacts across the county and its municipalities including causing residents and livestock to be stranded, hampering transportation service throughout the county, limiting propane deliveries, causing power outages, and affecting emergency response. Winter

⁶³ FEMA,

 $http://www.fema.gov/disasters?field_state_tid=62\&field_disaster_type_term_tid=6843\&field_disaster_declaration_type_value=DR\&items_per_page=10$

storm events also create secondary impacts such as structure fires and structural damage to buildings due to high winds and heavy snowpack.

Snow storms that affect county infrastructure every winter season. The county has made four emergency declarations within the last ten years for disaster assistance on public roads throughout the county. These disaster assistance grants reimburse a portion of the costs through the FEMA Disaster Relief Program. Severe winter storm disaster assistance is utilized for heavy equipment and contractor costs to remove snow from local and regional roadways. The type of emergency relief requests, the requesting jurisdictions, and the total grant amount awarded by FEMA for disaster assistance since 2000 include the following (see Table 5.14.2-1):

Executive Order	Date	Program	Location	Amount
01-10	December 2000	Snow Removal	San Miguel County	\$24,786.00
01-08	January 2001	Snow Removal	Las Vegas	\$68,800.00
04-08	January 2001	Snow Removal	San Miguel County	\$72,746.00
05-016	March 2005	Snow Removal	Las Vegas	\$38,498.00

Table 5.14.2-1FEMA Disaster Relief Program for Snowstorms

Source: San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas OEM

The type of expenses these emergency relief grants cover include employee expenses, contractor expenses such as for concrete and gravel, equipment/vehicle breakdown expenses such as rental costs for motor graders and salt spreaders, and salt material expenses. The total amount of emergency assistance received in the last 10 years at the county level for snow removal is \$138,643.00 and the total amount of assistance received at the city level for snow removal is \$107,298.00. This amounts to a total of \$245,941.00 received within the entire county for emergency disaster relief associated with severe winter storms.

One of the most recent and significant winter storm events within the county is the 100-year winter storm event in 2006/2007 for which Governor Richardson declared a State of Emergency for the State on December 29, 2006 covering Bernalillo, Colfax, Guadalupe, Harding, Los Alamos, Mora, Quay, Santa Fe, Sandoval, San Miguel, Taos, Torrance, and Union counties (NM Emergency Operations Center 2007). The Governor also requested the federal government declare an agricultural disaster in the State on January 3, 2007.

No casualties were reported within the county from this storm event, however; many livestock were stranded in rural areas for which New Mexico National Guard Blackhawks had to perform hay drop-missions. Stranded residents and pets on the Lower Colonias had to be extracted by the Bernalillo County Sheriff's helicopter and efforts to clear Rowe Mesa were undertaken. The Public Service Company of New Mexico (PNM) repaired all damages from the storm including electrical and gas outages from which many residents were left without gas and power for days.

The most recent storm event that occurred during the week of January 31, 2011 impacted the county due to utility vulnerabilities with the electricity grid and gas distribution, impacts to the water distribution system, sewer system, roadways and structures.⁶⁴

During the January 2011 event, the storm hindered propane delivery efforts to residents running low on propane. The Mora-San Miguel Electric Cooperative experienced power outages throughout the county due to poles getting knocked down and ice forming on the lines.

The Village of Pecos experiences annual somewhat mild and intermittent snow storms but has historically been hit with heavy winter storms. The Village of Pecos typically experiences 10-15 power outages per year that are related to winter storms since the ice on the power lines weights them down and causes outages and business closures. These power outages do impact Pecos resident's heating supply; however, the majority of residents depend upon propane for heating for which there are 4-5 local propane suppliers. Pecos residents also use firewood as a back-up heating source. The Pecos Independent School District had to call 8 snow days in the winter of 2009. During the winter of 2012, Pecos firefighters responded to service calls to remove snow from heat vents at several homes in the area.⁶⁵

5.14.3 Location of Areas at Risk for Severe Winter Storms

County officials have determined through historic accounts that areas primarily west of Interstate 25 (I-25) are at the greatest risk for a severe winter weather storm. The area that lies to the east of I-25 and north of State Route 104 is considered the next highest priority and the region to the east of I-25 and south of State Highway 104 is considered the least at risk. Other areas at risk include north of Storrie Lake to the county line at La Jolla, south of Bernal and due west, State Road 3, and the Glorieta Pass north to Monroe. All of San Miguel County is at some risk to severe winter weather.

All of the city limits of Las Vegas are at risk, but the most vulnerable areas consist primarily of the main interstate and highway routes including I-25 and State Highway 104. As well, local routes throughout the city are in need of maintenance during and after sever winter storm events.

Rural communities, including the Village of Pecos, are at equal risk but tend to have higher vulnerability and impacts during severe winter storms due to their isolation from emergency response services, basic amenities, and from main power and heat utility sources. These rural communities are often the first areas to be affected by rolling gas and electric power outages. They are also more susceptible to isolation due to closed transportation systems.

5.14.4 The Extent of Damage by Severe Winter Storms

The type of damage caused by severe winter storms includes displacement of residents and livestock, roadway closures, traffic accidents, power outages, and damage to building and infrastructure.

There hasn't been any record of injury or death directly related to severe winter weather in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas or the Village of Pecos. It is likely that weather-related

⁶⁴ Provide by San Miguel County OEM

 $^{^{\}rm 65}$ Information provided by the Village of Pecos Fire Chief and Council members.

transportation accidents have caused injuries and possibly loss of life, but the data is not available to support.

According to the City of Las Vegas, salt runoff is the only identified direct impact of severe winter storms. The City of Las Vegas has noted issues due to the salt runoff flowing into their storm drain system. In recent years, the City of Las Vegas has moved accumulated snow to the largest park to melt, whereas in the past the New Mexico Environment Department (NMED) required the City of Las Vegas to install berms that would filter the runoff for street pollutants before it eventually flowed into the Gallinas River.

According to the Western Region Climate Center, the average daily snowfall for San Miguel County is at or less than one inch. Extreme daily snowfall can exceed ten inches between November and May meaning that the entire planning area can expect blizzard and/or heavy snow events during the winter months.⁶⁶

5.14.5 Probability of Future Events

There have been four recorded events in the past 13 years causing some amount of severe winter weather in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. The probability of future winter storm events is likely with expected impacts to residents, livestock, and infrastructure (primarily regional and local roadways).

5.15 Terrorism

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the terrorism hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the terrorism hazard was viewed as a low hazard in San Miguel County and the Village of Pecos, while the City of Las Vegas viewed this hazard as a moderate threat. The overall terrorism hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County Low
- Las Vegas Moderate
- Village of Pecos Low

5.15.1 Description of the Hazard

Terrorism is defined as violence committed by groups in order to intimidate a population or government into granting their demands. 18 U.S.C. § 2331 defines "international terrorism" and "domestic terrorism" as follows:

"International terrorism" means activities with the following three characteristics:

• Involve violent acts or acts dangerous to human life that violate federal or state law;

⁶⁶ http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?nm4856

- Appear to be intended (i) to intimidate or coerce a civilian population; (ii) to influence the policy of a government by intimidation or coercion; or (iii) to affect the conduct of a government by mass destruction, assassination, or kidnapping; and
- Occur primarily outside the territorial jurisdiction of the U.S., or transcend national boundaries in terms of the means by which they are accomplished, the persons they appear intended to intimidate or coerce, or the locale in which their perpetrators operate or seek asylum.*

"Domestic terrorism" means activities with the following three characteristics:

- Involve acts dangerous to human life that violate federal or state law;
- Appear to be intended (i) to intimidate or coerce a civilian population; (ii) to influence the policy of a government by intimidation or coercion; or (iii) to affect the conduct of a government by mass destruction, assassination. or kidnapping; and
- Occur primarily within the territorial jurisdiction of the U.S.

18 U.S.C. § 2332b defines the term "federal crime of terrorism" as an offense that:

- Is calculated to influence or affect the conduct of government by intimidation or coercion, or to retaliate against government conduct; and
- Is a violation of one of several listed statutes, including § 930(c) (relating to killing or attempted killing during an attack on a federal facility with a dangerous weapon); and § 1114 (relating to killing or attempted killing of officers and employees of the U.S.).⁶⁷

Once thought the be a type of disaster event that did not happen on U.S. soil, the threat of terrorism has evolved into a main concern, with Americans now citing homeland security as a top priority. Whether setting off a nuclear attack, igniting a traditional or dirty bomb*, poisoning water/food supplies, or attacking the public transportation system, terrorists are familiar with our nation's vulnerabilities, and will manipulate them to inflict fear on the psyche of the American people.

*Note: A dirty bomb, or radiological dispersion device, is a bomb that combines conventional explosives, such as dynamite, with radioactive materials in the form of powder or pellets. The idea behind a dirty bomb is to blast radioactive material into the area around the explosion. This could possibly cause buildings and people to be exposed to radioactive material. The main purpose of a dirty bomb is to frighten people and make buildings or land unusable for a long period of time.

5.15.2 Significant Past Occurrences

There are no history of terrorism in San Miguel County or its jurisdictions.

5.15.3 Location of Areas at Risk for Terrorism

Areas in Miguel County that were identified as potential targets and risks are the three major higher education centers in the county. The City of Las Vegas is home to the New Mexico Highlands University with 2,416 students. The other identified areas of risk are the Armand Hammer United World College in Montezuma (unincorporated county) which brings students from all corners of

⁶⁷ Federal Bureau of Investigations. http://www.fbi.gov/about-us/investigate/terrorism/terrorism-definition

the world together for academic education and interaction and Luna Community College located in the lower slopes of the Sangre de Cristo Mountain Range overlooking the City of Las Vegas.

According to a Washington Post Investigation entitled "*Top Secret America*", New Mexico is one of 15 states and territories that the Department of Homeland Security and U.S. intelligence agencies assess as having no specific foreign or domestic terrorism threat; is one of 15 states that have had no terrorism convictions since 9/11, according to the Justice Department; and is one of 18 states that has no metropolitan area that has been designated by the federal government as "high-threat, high-density" with regard to acts of terrorism.⁶⁸

5.15.4 The Extent of Damage

Depending on the method chosen, the impact of a terrorist act on life and property in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, or the Village of Pecos could be devastating. People, property and infrastructure are all potentially at risk to devastating impacts. The entire planning area has become a popular area for tourism, outdoor adventures, and the film industry. The economic impacts to the jurisdictions could be catastrophic, depending on the severity of the attack, and the property and infrastructure that is damaged or destroyed.

5.15.5 Probability of Future Events

Given that there have been no recorded incidents of terrorism anywhere in the county, and that the Department of Homeland Security considers the entire state a relatively low risk for this hazard, the probability of experiencing a terrorist event in any of San Miguel County's jurisdictions is unlikely.

5.16 Thunderstorm

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the thunderstorm hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the thunderstorm hazard was viewed as a moderate to high hazard in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. The overall thunderstorm hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions are listed below:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos High

5.16.1 Description of the Hazard

Thunderstorms are caused by an atmospheric imbalance from warm unstable air rising rapidly into the atmosphere. Strong winds, rain, and hail can accompany large thunderstorm systems. Lightning, which occurs during all thunderstorms, can strike anywhere. Generated by the buildup of charged ions in a thundercloud, the discharge of a lightning bolt interacts with the best conducting object or surface on the ground. The air channel of a lightning strike can reach temperatures higher than 50,000°F. The National Weather Service defines a severe thunderstorm

⁶⁸ http://projects.washingtonpost.com/top-secret-america/states/new-mexico/

Thunderstorms are a unique threat because of their complex nature. Multiple hazards are present within a single system.

5.16.2 Significant Past Occurrences

There have been 20 NCDC recorded thunderstorm and thunderstorm wind-related events across the county since 1966. The data related to these events do not specify whether the occurrences were recorded within municipal boundaries or in the unincorporated county. The county, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos agree that these events can and do occur in all areas of the county. According to NCDC records, the strongest recorded thunderstorm wind event created 60mph winds in June 2001. No thunderstorm or thunderstorm wind-related injuries or fatalities have been recorded anywhere in the planning area.

In May 1993, a 58 year old male tourist was struck and killed by lightning while riding his bicycle at a resort 20 miles northwest of Las Vegas. This was the only NCDC recorded lightning event in all of San Miguel County.

5.16.3 Location of Areas at Risk

Along the front range of the Rocky Mountains, thunderstorms frequently form as heated air near the ground flows upward toward higher terrain and mixes with cooler moist air. San Miguel County, including Pecos and Las Vegas, are situated on the lower eastern fringe of the Rocky Mountains and are subject to the impacts of thunderstorms. Since thunderstorms are not constrained to defined hazard area boundaries, and since thunderstorms develop and move with weather systems, all of San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos are equally at risk.

5.16.4 The Extent of Damage

Thunderstorms can create a variety of hazards which can damage buildings, infrastructure, and agriculture, and can injure or kill people and animals. Those products of thunderstorms include wind, lightning, hail, tornados, and flash flooding. This hazard section focuses on thunderstorm wind and lightning. The other thunderstorm related hazards are addressed in the hail, tornado, and flood hazard sections. The extent of thunderstorm wind damage and lightning-related impacts is minimal in the planning area, but it is understood that lightning can cause loss of life to humans and livestock, destroy property, damage infrastructure, and start wildfires (addressed separately).

The products of thunderstorms include wind, rain, hail and lightning. This plan profiles hailstorms separately in Section 5.7. Due to the limited impact of lightning, the County determined to exclude it as a product of thunderstorms. The extent of thunderstorm-related wind and rainfall are considered equal across all jurisdiction in the plan. They are:

• The average monthly rainfall across San Miguel County ranges from 0.5" in February to 3.5" in August. The extreme thunderstorm-related rainfall could be as much as 3.5" in a 90 minute period as recorded in Las Vegas on September 4, 2003.

• The average wind speed in San Miguel County ranges from 10.2 mph to 26.5 mph with the strongest average wind speed occurring in May. Thunderstorms winds may reach 70 mph as recorded at the Conchas Dam on June 7, 2001.

Thunderstorm winds in San Miguel County have been recorded up to 70 mph ranking it a "10" on the Beaufort Wind Scale. Based on that scale, the extent of damages can include trees being broken off or uprooted and structural damage likely in any portion of the planning area.

5.16.5 Probability of Future Events

In all of San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos, there has only been one recorded incident of life loss and no recorded property or infrastructure damages due to this hazard. There have been 20 recorded events countywide since 1966 meaning that only one storm is recorded every 2.35 years. The data suggests that the probability of hazard occurrence is likely.

5.17 Tornado

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the tornado hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the tornado hazard was viewed as a moderate hazard in San Miguel County and the Village of Pecos. The City of Las Vegas ranked this hazard as a high impact event to people, buildings and infrastructure. The overall tornado hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions is listed below:

- San Miguel County Moderate
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos Moderate

5.17.1 Description of the Hazard

A tornado is a rapidly rotating vortex or funnel of air extending from a cumulonimbus cloud to the ground. It is usually spawned by a thunderstorm and produced when cool air overrides a layer of warm air, forcing the warm air to rise rapidly. Often, vortices remain suspended in the atmosphere as funnel clouds and never become tornados. However, when the lower tip of a vortex touches the ground, it becomes a tornado and can become a force of destruction. A visible condensation funnel does not need to reach to the ground for a tornado to be present; a debris cloud beneath a thunderstorm is all that is needed to confirm the presence of a tornado, even in the total absence of a condensation funnel (Refer to Figure 5.17.1-1)⁶⁹.

⁶⁹ Arkansas Department of Emergency Management, (2010). All Hazard Mitigation Plan, State of Arkansas



Figure 5.17.1-1 Precipitating Factors for Tornado Development

Source: Reproduced with permission from George Tuggle, 2010

Tornados have been known to lift and move objects weighing more than 300 tons a distance of 30 ft, toss homes more than 300 ft from their foundations, and siphon millions of tons of water from water bodies. However, less spectacular damage is much more common to occur during a lower intensity tornado event. Houses and other obstructions in the path of the tornado's wind can cause the wind to change direction. This change in wind direction increases pressure on parts of an impacted building. The combination of increased pressures and fluctuating wind speeds creates stress on buildings that frequently cause connections between building components to fail (e.g., roof, siding, windows, etc.). Tornados also generate a tremendous amount of flying debris or "missiles," which often become airborne shrapnel that cause additional damage. If wind speeds are high enough, debris missiles can hit buildings with enough force to penetrate windows, roofs, and walls⁷⁰.

Prior to 2007, tornado wind forces were measured and described according to the Fujita Scale, largely a residential structure damage scale (which tends to have much more standardized construction than commercial structures). The Fujita Scale was intended to describe the expected damage to well-built residential structures, but poorly built structures may suffer significant structural damage under lesser winds than the Fujita Scale would suggest.

In 2007, use of the Fujita Scale was discontinued and in its place, the Enhanced Fujita Scale is used. The Enhanced Fujita Scale retains the same basic design as its predecessor, but reflects a more refined assessment of tornado damage surveys, standardization, and damage consideration to a wider range of structure types. The Enhanced Fujita scale takes into account how most structures are designed, and is thought to be a much more accurate representation of the surface wind speeds for the most violent tornados. When referencing historic tornado events, it is important to note the date a tornado occurred as tornados which occurred prior to 2007 are classified by the old scale and will not be converted to the Enhanced Fujita Scale. Table 5.17.1-1 demonstrates the differences

⁷⁰ Arkansas Department of Emergency Management, (2010). All hazard mitigation plan state of Arkansas

of the Fujita Scale and Enhanced Fujita Scale. Figure 5.17.1-2 illustrates the Enhanced Fujita Scale's expected damage to occur given a specific intensity tornado.

Fujit	a Scale	Enhanced Fu *In use sin	ijita Scale .ce 2007
Intensity Scale	Wind Speed	Intensity Scale	Wind Speed
F-0	40-72 mph	EF-0	65-85 mph winds
F-1	73-112 mph	EF-1	86-110 mph
F-2	113-157 mph	EF-2	111-135 mph
F-3	158-157 mph	EF-3	136-165 mph
F-4	207-260 mph	EF-4	166-200 mph
F-5	261-318 mph	EF-5	>200 mph

Table 5.17.1-1Differences of Fujita Scale and Enhanced Fujita Scale

Figure 5.17.1-2 Enhanced Fujita Scale Expected Damage by Tornado Wind Speeds

EF Rating	Wind Speeds	Expected Damage	
EF-0	65-85 mph	'Minor' damage: shingles blown off or parts of a roof peeled off, damage to gutters/siding, branches broken off trees, shallow rooted trees toppled.	
EF-1	86-110 mph	'Moderate' damage: more significant roof damage, windows broken, exterior doors damaged or lost, mobile homes overturned or badly damaged,	
EF-2	111-135 mph	'Considerable' damage: roofs torn off well constructed homes, homes shifted off their foundation, mobile homes completely destroyed, large trees snapped or uprooted, cars can be tossed.	
EF-3	136-165 mph	'Severe' damage: entire stories of well constructed homes destroyed, significant damage done to large buildings, homes with weak foundations can be blown away, trees begin to lose their bark.	
EF-4	166-200 mph	*Extreme' damage: Well constructed homes are leveled, cars are thrown significant distances, top story exterior walls of masonry buildings would likely collapse.	
EF-5	> 200 mph	'Massive/incredible' damage: Well constructed homes are swept away, steel-reinforced concrete structures are critically damaged, high-rise buildings sustain severe structural damage, trees are usually completely debarked, stripped of branches and snapped.	

Source: NOAA. (2013). Explanation of EF-scale ratings. Retrieved on 6.19.13 from http://www.srh.noaa.gov/hun/?n=efscale_explanation

5.17.2 Significant Past Occurrences

The NCDC shows 13 recorded tornado events since 1957 in San Miguel County. The majority of those tornados had a Fajita scale of F0 which resulted in minor property damage. The strongest recorded tornado was an F2 on June 27, 2992 with a length of 0.8 miles and a width of 73 yards. This tornado caused an estimated \$25,000 in damages. The largest tornado recorded was an F0 on May 23, 1959. It was a 400 yard wide, one mile long track. Local officials and homefacts.com report a most recent (and 14th recorded) tornado on October 12, 2012 that touched down just north of Pecos.⁷¹ That event caused roof damage to one structure (Picture 5.17.2-1). No deaths or injuries have occurred as a result of and tornados in San Miguel County.



Picture 5.17.2-1 Pecos Valley Area Tornado. October 12, 2012

5.17.3 Location of Areas at Risk

Along the front range of the Rocky Mountains, thunderstorms frequently form as air near the ground flows upward toward higher terrain. New Mexico lies along the southwestern edge of the nation's maximum frequency belt for tornados which is referred to as the "tornado alley", extending from the Great Plains through the central portion of the United States. There have been 541 recorded tornadoes in New Mexico since 1950. Those storms caused five deaths and 155 injuries.

Given the available data and hazard history, all areas of San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos are equally at risk for tornados. While tornados typically form less frequently over mountainous or hilly terrain, even those areas are still at risk. Based on historic

⁷¹ http://www.homefacts.com/tornadoes/New-Mexico/San-Miguel-County/Las-Vegas.html

events, the risk to tornados is generally limited to EF0-EF2 storms, but F3 storms have been recorded in New Mexico and are possible in the planning area of San Miguel County.⁷²

Map 5.17.3-1on the following page shows the distribution of the 541 historical tornado events in New Mexico between 1950 and 2012.



Map 5.17.3-1 New Mexico Historic Tornados 1950-2012

 $Source:\ http://www.tornadohistoryproject.com/tornado/New-Mexico/map$

5.17.4 The Extent of Damage

While little damage has been reported due to a tornado event, the possibility of a tornado with speeds up to 165 (EF3) miles per hour poses a dangerous threat. Damage from winds at this speed can range from large trees being blown down to structural failures. Mobile homes are at a greater risk during tornado and other wind-related events. Communications and utility infrastructure, such as telephone lines, cell towers, and power lines, may fail as a result of this type of hazardous event. However, historical events have only caused \$77,000 in damages in the county since 1957.

5.17.5 Probability of Future Events

While tornados are not common events, it is inevitable that there will be a tornado event within San Miguel County. By annualizing the 14 recorded events since 1957, it can be assumed that the county will only experience a tornado every 4.3 years, giving this hazard a likely probability of occurrence during the 5 year planning cycle of this plan.

⁷² http://www.tornadohistoryproject.com/tornado/New-Mexico/map

5.18 Wildfire

Based on the MPG's collaborative assessment, evaluation, and ranking of each potential hazard within the county, the wildfire hazard was ranked in terms of impacts to people, buildings, and infrastructure in order to determine the hazard priorities within the county. According to surveyed responses, the wildfire hazard was viewed as a high hazard in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. The overall wildfire hazard rankings for the participating jurisdictions is listed below:

- San Miguel County High
- Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos High

5.18.1 Description of the Hazard

A wildfire is an uncontrolled fire spreading through vegetative fuels, exposing and possibly consuming structures. Wildfires often begin unnoticed and spread quickly and are usually signaled by dense smoke that fills the area for miles around. Naturally occurring and non-native species of brush, marshes, grasslands, forests, or field lands fuel wildfires. A wildland fire is a wildfire in an area in which development is essentially nonexistent, except for roads, railroads, power lines, and similar facilities. A wildland-Urban Interface (WUI) fire is a wildfire in a geographical area where structures and other human development meet or intermingle with wildland or vegetative fuels. Areas with a large amount of wooded, brush and grassy areas are at highest risk of wildfires.

There are three categories of WUI, including boundary, intermix, and island (Refer to Figures 5.18.1-1 to 5.18.1-3). Depending on the present conditions, any of these areas may be at risk from wildfire. A wildfire risk assessment can determine the level of risk for given area by measuring fuel sources in proximity to community assets⁷³.

Figure 5.18.1-1 Example of Wildland-Urban Intermix Zone



Source: Google. (Designer). (2013, June 18). Google Earth [Web Map].

⁷³ Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Forestry, (2010). Wildfire risk reduction in Florida

Figure 5.18.1-2 Example of Wildland-Urban Island Zone



Source: Google. (Designer). (2013, June 18). Google Earth [Web Map].





Source: Google. (Designer). (2013, June 18). Google Earth [Web Map].

Wildfire behavior is based on three primary factors: fuel, topography, and weather. The type, and amount of fuel, as well as its burning qualities and level of moisture affect wildfire potential and behavior. Table 5.18.1-1 shows the effect of different fuel characteristics on fire behavior. Topography also is important because it affects the movement of air (and thus the fire) over the ground surface. The slope and shape of terrain can change the rate of speed at which the fire travels. Weather affects the probability of wildfire and has a significant effect on its behavior.

Temperature, humidity and wind (both short and long term) affect the severity and duration of wildfires.⁷⁴

Fuel Characteristics	Relationship to Fire Behavior
Height of surface fuel (fuel depth) and total available fuel (fuel load)	If fuel depth and load are heavy, flames will be longer and more heat will be released. As fuel depth and load are reduced, the flame length and heat are reduced
Fuel loading by fuel size class (size classes range from fine to large fuels)	Fine fuels (e.g., pine needles) ignite more readily and burn more quickly. Larger fuels (e.g., branches) burn more slowly but generate more heat energy and can be difficult to extinguish
Compactness of fuels	Fuels that are tightly compacted will not burn as well. Fuels that are loosely compacted will burn better. Fuels that are very loose (e.g., sparse tree branches) may not be able to burn unless a nearby fire heats them
Vertical continuity of fuels (presence or absence of vertical fuels, called "ladder fuels")	Vertically continuous fuels, such as vines or understory trees, can carry fire into the canopy (crowns of trees). Breaks in vertical continuity can prevent wildfire from getting into the canopy
Dead-to-live fuels ratio	Although some of Arkansas's live fuels are very volatile, they generally only ignite and burn once they are heated by burning dead fuels. If the ratio of dead fuels to live fuels is high (as after a drought or killing frost), the fire behavior is more intense

Table 5.18.1-1 Characteristics of Fuels Related to Fire Behavior

Source: Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Forestry, (2010). Wildfire Risk Reduction in Florida

Fire hazards may be expressed in a variety of measurements as noted below:

Relative Humidity (RH): The ratio of the amount of moisture in the air to the amount of moisture necessary to saturate the air at the same temperature and pressure. Relative humidity is expressed in percent. RH is measured directly by automated weather stations or manually by wet and dry bulb readings taken with a psychrometer and applying the National Weather Service, psychrometric tables applicable to the elevations where the reading were taken.

Fuel Moisture: Fuel moistures are measured for live Herbaceous (annual and perennial), Woody (shrubs, branches and foliage) fuels, and Dry (dead) fuels. These are calculated values representing approximate moisture content of the fuel. Fuel moisture levels are measured in 1, 10, 100 and 100-hour increments.

The Lower Atmosphere Stability Index or Haines Index: Computed from the morning (12 Zulu) soundings from Radiosonde Observation (RAOB) stations across North America. The index is composed of a stability term and a moisture term. The stability term is derived from the temperature difference at two atmosphere levels. The moisture term is derived from the dew point

⁷⁴ Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Forestry, (2010). Wildfire Risk Reduction in Florida

depression at a single atmosphere level. This index has been shown to correlate with large fire growth on initiating and existing fires where surface winds do not dominate fire behavior. Haines Indexes range from 2 to 6 for indicating potential for large fire growth:

- 2 Very Low Potential (Moist Stable Lower Atmosphere)
- 3 Very Low Potential
- 4 Low Potential
- 5 Moderate Potential
- 6 High Potential (Dry Unstable Lower Atmosphere)

Keetch-Byram Drought Index (KBDI): Measures the effects of seasonal drought on fire potential. The actual numeric value of the index is an estimate of the amount of precipitation (in 100ths of inches) needed to bring soil back to saturation (a value of 0 being saturated). The index deals with the top 8 inches of soil profile so the maximum KBDI value is 800 (8 inches), the amount of precipitation needed to bring the soil back to saturation. The index's relationship to fire is that as the index values increase, the vegetation is subjected to greater stress because of moisture deficiency. At higher values, living plants die and become fuel, and the duff/litter layer becomes more susceptible to fire:

- **KBDI = 0-200:** Soil moisture and large class fuel moistures are high and do not contribute much to fire intensity. This is typical of spring dormant season following winter precipitation.
- **KBDI = 200–400:** Typical of late spring, early growing season. Lower litter and duff layers are drying and beginning to contribute to fire intensity.
- **KBDI = 400–600:** Typical of late summer, early fall. Lower litter and duff layers actively contribute to fire intensity and will burn actively.
- **KBDI = 600-800:** Often associated with more severe drought with increased wildfire occurrence. Intense, deep burning fires with significant downwind spotting can be expected. Live fuels can also be expected to burn actively at these levels.

The Energy Release Component (ERC): the estimated potential available energy released per unit area in the flaming front of a fire. The day-to-day variations of the ERC are caused by changes in the moisture contents of the various fuel classes, including the 1,000-hour time lag class. The ERC is derived from predictions of the rate of heat release per unit area during flaming combustion and the duration of flaming.

The Ignition Component: a number that relates the probability that a fire will result if a firebrand is introduced into a fine fuel complex. The ignition component can range from zero, when conditions are cool and damp, to 100 on days when the weather is dry and windy. Theoretically, on a day when the ignition component registers a 60 approximately 60 percent of all firebrands that encounter wildland fuels will require suppression action.

The Spread Component: a numerical value derived from a mathematical model that integrates the effects of wind and slope with fuel bed and fuel particle properties to compute the forward rate of spread at the head of the fire. Output is in units of feet per minute. A Spread Component of 31 indicates a worst-case, forward rate of spread of approximately 31 feet per minute. The inputs required in to calculate the SC are wind speed, slope, fine fuel moisture (including the effects of green herbaceous plants), and the moisture content of the foliage and twigs of living, woody plants.

Since the characteristics through which the fire is burning are so basic in determining the forward rate of spread of the fire front, a unique SC table is required for each fuel type.⁷⁵

The International Fire Code Institute susceptibility index combines slope and fuel levels:

FEMA/IFCI Wildfire Susceptibility Matrix										
	Critical Fire Weather Frequency									
Fuel	<1 day per year			2-7	days per y	year	8+ days per year			
Class	Slope %				Slope %		Slope %			
	<40	41-40	61+	<40	41-40	61+	<40	41-40	61+	
Light	М	М	М	М	М	М	М	М	Н	
Medium	М	М	Н	Н	Н	Н	Е	E	Е	
Heavy	Н	Н	Н	Н	Е	E	Е	Е	Е	
Note: M =	Note: M = Medium, H = High, E = Extreme.									

Table 5.18.1-2 Wildfire Susceptibility Matrix

Source: International Fire Code Institute, January 2000

These indicators are all taken into account when determining the fire danger for a specific area and they can change daily, which is why the Fire Danger Rating System was created. It is a method of conveying in a simple way the relative danger level to the public.

Rating	Basic Description	Detailed Description
CLASS 1: Low Danger (L) COLOR CODE: Green	Fires not easily started	Fuels do not ignite readily from small firebrands. Fires in open or cured grassland may burn freely a few hours after rain, but wood fires spread slowly by creeping or smoldering and burn in irregular fingers. There is little danger of spotting.
CLASS 2: Moderate Danger (M) COLOR CODE: Blue	Fires start easily and spread at a moderate rate	Fires can start from most accidental causes. Fires in open cured grassland will burn briskly and spread rapidly on windy days. Woods fires spread slowly to moderately fast. The average fire is of moderate intensity, although heavy concentrations of fuel – especially draped fuel may burn hot. Short-distance spotting may occur, but is not persistent. Fires are not likely to become serious and control is relatively easy.

Table 5.18.1-3 Fire Danger Rating System

 $^{^{75}}$ Source: http://www.nps.gov/nifc/public/pub_und_understandingfire.cfm

Rating	Basic Description	Detailed Description
CLASS 3: High Danger (H) COLOR CODE: Yellow	Fires start easily and spread at a rapid rate	All fine dead fuels ignite readily and fires start easily from most causes. Unattended brush and campfires are likely to escape. Fires spread rapidly and short-distance spotting is common. High intensity burning may develop on slopes or in concentrations of fine fuel. Fires may become serious and their control difficult, unless they are hit hard and fast while small.
CLASS 4: Very High Danger (VH) COLOR CODE: Orange	Fires start very easily and spread at a very fast rate	Fires start easily from all causes and immediately after ignition, spread rapidly and increase quickly in intensity. Spot fires are a constant danger. Fires burning in light fuels may quickly develop high- intensity characteristics - such as long- distance spotting - and fire whirlwinds, when they burn into heavier fuels. Direct attack at the head of such fires is rarely possible after they have been burning more than a few minutes.
CLASS 5: Extreme (E) COLOR CODE: Red	Fire situation is explosive and can result in extensive property damage	Fires under extreme conditions start quickly, spread furiously and burn intensely. All fires are potentially serious. Development into high-intensity burning will usually be faster and occur from smaller fires than in the Very High Danger class (4). Direct attack is rarely possible and may be dangerous, except immediately after ignition. Fires that develop headway in heavy slash or in conifer stands may be unmanageable while the extreme burning condition lasts. Under these conditions, the only effective and safe control action is on the flanks, until the weather changes or the fuel supply lessens.

Source: USFS via http://www.wfas.net/content/view/34/51/

5.18.2 Significant Past Occurrences

San Miguel County has experienced a large number of wildfires. San Miguel County Fire Departments respond to an average of 38 wildfire incidents per year, while the U.S. Forest Service (USFS) responds to approximately 12 per year within the Pecos/Las Vegas Ranger District. There were a total of 457 wildfires that burned 25,476 acres in New Mexico in 2012. Of them, human

causes were responsible for 263 fires that burned 20,403 acres. San Miguel County experienced 34 fires that burned 637.48 acres in the same year.⁷⁶

According to the Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) prepared for San Miguel County in 2008, during the ten year period of 1986-2006, the cause of fires within the county consisted of primarily lightning (77 percent), campfire (10 percent), arson (3 percent), and miscellaneous causes (10 percent). The CWPP also reported that for the period 1986-2006, the size class of wildfires consisted of 42 percent wildfires under 1/4 acre and 94 percent of wildfires less than 10 acres.

Specific notable historic events are described below:

Jaroso: The most recent notable wildfire in San Miguel County was the Jaroso fire that started on June 10, 2013 approximately 8 miles south of Truchas and burned 11,149 acres. Fuel loads consisted of mixed conifer, heavy dead and down fuels with pockets of bug-killed trees, and 1,300 acres of downed timber caused by a wind event six years ago.⁷⁷

Tres Lagunas: The Tres Lagunas fire burned 10,219 acres along the Pecos ridge (approximately 10 miles north of Pecos). The fire started on May 30, 2013 as a result of a downed power line. The fire loads were a dense mix of conifers and pine, mixed brush and Aspen, compounded by heavy downed fuels within the 2000 Viveash Fire scar (outlined below).⁷⁸

Tecolote: The Tecolote Fire of 2010 (was located approximately 15 miles west northwest of Las Vegas, NM at the specific location of Tecolote Creek approximately 5 miles northwest of Cabo Lucero in the Santa Fe National Forest. This fire burned a total of 820 acres encompassing lands from Pecos to Tecolote. In order to respond to the catastrophic wildfire, the City of Las Vegas issued Executive Order 2010-05 for the Tecolote Fire in 2010 which was the only emergency-related City Executive Order issued between 2008 and 2010. The Executive Order 2010-05 established that the city supports assisting San Miguel County and/or the USFS during wildfire emergencies. As well, this also gave the City of Las Vegas administration the authority to extend their resources in order to protect the city's watershed in the case of wildfire.

Trampas: The 2002 5,800 acre Las Trampas Fire impacted wilderness lands near Las Trampas and threatened the Pecos Watershed. The Las Trampas Fire ultimately caused vehicles to become trapped in the canyon due to the roads being washed out.⁷⁹

Viveash: The 2000 Viveash Fire was located primarily within the Cow Creek watershed in the Santa Fe National Forest north and west of the very high risk rated community of Bull Creek near Pecos. Other adjacent watersheds affected by the Viveash Fire included the following: Upper Cow, Elk, Upper Gallinas, Soldier, Middle Cow, Upper Bull, Oaha, Chaprito, Manzanares, Tijeras and Lower Cow (Figure 5-1). The El Valle Water Alliance reported that the 2000 Viveash Fire impacted Cow Creek east of Pecos in the Cow Creek/Bull Creek area. Of most significant concern were the water quality impacts of this 28,348 acre fire on the Gallinas Watershed that supplies the City of Las Vegas

⁷⁶ http://www.emnrd.state.nm.us/SFD/FireMgt/Historical.html

⁷⁷ http://inciweb.nwcg.gov/incident/3416/

⁷⁸ http://inciweb.nwcg.gov/incident/3401/

⁷⁹ Western Institute for Study of the Environment, 2010

municipal water supply. The Viveash Fire has also negatively impacted the fish and beaver habitat of Cow Creek and watersheds further downstream.

Other notable fires in San Miguel County include Hartman (2009) 475 acres, Soldier (2009) 100 acres, Ortiz (2009) 20 acres, Dalton Fire (2002) 804 acres, and Roybal (2002) 850 acres.

5.18.3 Location of Areas at Risk

The two primary watersheds located within the county are the Gallinas Municipal Watershed and the Pecos Watershed both located in the Pecos/Las Vegas Ranger District of the Santa Fe National Forest. The Gallinas Watershed is of high importance because the City of Las Vegas and the surrounding villages depend on Gallinas Creek for their main water supply and because the Gallinas Creek feeds the Peterson, Bradner, and Storrie Lake reservoirs. The Gallinas Watershed consists of 84-square miles and 20,600 acres of wilderness that includes a mix of national forest, private, and public lands. The different habitats represented within the Gallinas watershed include approximately 2,400 acres of ponderosa pine forest, 10,800 acres of mixed conifer forest, 5,700 acres of spruce-fir forest, and 1,700 acres of aspen and oak forest.

The major sub-watersheds located within the county include the Upper Gallinas River (18,529 acres), Upper Tecolote Creek (1,458 acres), Cow Creek-Pecos River (621 acres), Pecos River Headwaters (10 acres), and Manuelitas Creek (8 acres). The ponderosa pine and mixed conifer forests within these watersheds have changed drastically over the last century. The Forest Service's aggressive suppression of wildfires throughout the 1900s resulted in the elimination of beneficial low-intensity surface fires. These low-intensity surface fires play a key role in keeping the ponderosa pine and mixed conifer forests healthy. The forests within these watersheds have not experienced major fires for over a century except in 2000 when the Viveash Fire burned approximately 3,000 acres of the Gallinas Watershed. Of the total acreage burned, about 820 acres were considered high severity and the rest of the acreage was considered low severity or unburned.

Scientific research continues to show that ponderosa pine forests are more susceptible to highseverity crown fires due to past fire suppression and that these type of forests used to contain large ponderosa stands. Low-intensity surface fires thin out the smallest pine and fir trees and seldom kill the large and mature pine trees, the fires keep forest canopies open and encourage grass and shrub growth. Due to approximately a century of fire suppression within the Gallinas watershed the modified forest structure is more likely to result in high-intensity and high-severity wildfires. The majority of the ponderosa pine trees are small (less than 16 inches in diameter), the stands are dense averaging 700 to 1000 trees per acre, and many of the trees are so crowded that their growth is suppressed.

County and State		Developed sq_mi	Unceveloped sq mi	Percent Developed	Homes	% Second Homes
Otero County	New Mexico	28.5	37.2	43.0%	3,746	51.0%
Taos County	New Mexico	18.3	51.7	26.0%	3,374	46.0%
Lincoln County	New Mexico	14.7	22.7	39.0%	5,175	49.0%
Sar Miguel Courty	New Mexico	10.6	52.4	17.0%	1.452	35.0%
Sandoval County	New Mexico	10.0	37.0	21.0%	1,082	42.0%
Santa Fe County	New Maxico	62	10.5	37.0%	1,865	10.0%
Ric Arriba County	New Mexico	6.0	67.0	8.0%	1,483	15.0%
Bernalillo County	New Mexico	5.2	5.2	50.0%	1,836	6.0%
Catron County	New Maxico	4.1	28.6	13.0%	444	30.0%
Grant County	New Mexico	2.6	26.5	9.0%	577	14.0%

Figure 5.18.3-1 Top 10 Counties in New Mexico Ranked by Wildland Fire Risk

Source: http://headwaterseconomics.org/pubs/wildfire/nm.php

The San Miguel County Community Wildfire Protection Plan identifies the locations in the county that are at risk to wildfire. The relative hazard rankings for communities in the planning area are:

- San Miguel County West: High to Extreme
- San Miguel County Center: High to Very High
- San Miguel County East: Low to High
- City of Las Vegas: Moderate to High
- Village of Pecos: High to Extreme⁸⁰

Wildfires can occur anywhere that burnable vegetation exists. The US Forest Service has a new product available, called the Wildland Fire Potential assessment. This product provides an overview assessment of the areas within a defined area that have the potential to experience wildland fire. Maps 5.18.3-1 through 5.18.3-3 on the following pages depict the Wildfire potential risk areas for the county, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

Note that the areas designated as "non-burnable" in the figure below are predominantly either developed or agricultural land, and that they are subject to other types of fire. By definition of the US Forest Service, however, they are outside of the wildland fire potential area.

⁸⁰ San Miguel County Community Wildfire Protection Plan, Table 2. Relative Hazard Rankings for Communities in the Study area. Page 8. Print.



Map 5.18.3-1 San Miguel County Wildfire Potential

Map 5.18.3-2 Las Vegas Wildfire Potential





Map 5.18.3-3 Village of Pecos Wildfire Potential

To respond to the vulnerability of this hazard, the county prepared a Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) in 2008. The plan meets all of the criteria set forth by the Healthy Forest Reforestation Act, and was adopted by the New Mexico Fire Planning Task Force. The San Miguel County CWPP can be accessed on the EMNRD website at: http://www.emnrd.state.nm.us/FD/FireMgt/cwpps.htm.

The 2013 New Mexico Communities at Risk Assessment Plan lists the following San Miguel Communities fire ratings. Only the Sabinoso community was listed with a low rating.⁸¹

Table 5.18.3-1	
2013 Relative Hazard Rankings for Communities in San Miguel Cou	inty

Community at Risk	Rating
Bernal / Tecolote / Lagunita	Н
Bull Creek	Н
Colonias, Upper / Lower	Н
Conchas Lake	М
Cowles	Н
Dalton Canyon	Н
El Porvenir	Н
Gallinas	Н
Gonzales Ranch	Н
Grass Mountain	Н
Hidden Valley	Н

⁸¹ h4ttp://www.emnrd.state.nm.us/SFD/FireMgt/documents/2013_CAR_PlanRevisionfinal.pdf

Community at Risk	Rating
Highway 84	Н
Las Vegas, North and West	Н
Las Vegas, Southeast	М
Lower Pecos Canyon	Н
Mineral Hill	Н
Montezuma	Н
Pecos/East Pecos	Н
Pendaries	Н
Rociada Valleys	Н
Romeroville/ Ojitos Frios	Н
Sabinoso	L
San Ignacio/Las Tusas	Н
Sapella/Tierra Monte	Н
Ticolotito	Н
Terrero	Н
Trementina/Variadero	М
Tres Lagunas	Н
Trujillo	Н
Upper Gallinas	Н
Villanueva/Pecos River Valley	Н
Windsor Creek/Holy Ghost	Н

Source: 2013 New Mexico Communities at Risk Assessment Plan

Table 5.18.3-22008 CWPP Hazard Ratings for San Miguel County Communities

Number	Community	Rank	Score
1	Dalton Canyon	Extreme	12
2	Grass Mountain	Extreme	14
3	Windsor Creek/Holy Ghost	Very High	17
4	Montezuma	Very High	17
5	Cowles	Very High	18
6	Terrero/Tres Lagunas	Very High	18
7	Bull Creek	Very High	18
8	Upper/Lower Colonias	Very High	18
9	Pendaries	Very High	19
10	Hidden Valley	High	21
11	Pecos/East Pecos	High	21
12	Upper Gallinas	High	21
13	Mineral Hill	High	21
14	San Ignacio/Las Tusas	High	21
15	Highway 84	High	22
16	Romeroville/Ojitos Frios	High	22
17	Rociada Valleys	High	23
18	El Porvenir	High	23
19	Lower Pecos Canyon	High	24

Number	Community	Rank	Score
20	Sapello/Tierra Monte	High	24
21	Bernal/Tecolote/Lagunita	High	26
22	North and West Las Vegas	High	26
23	Gallinas	High	26
24	Trujillo	High	28
25	Gonzales Ranch	High	28
26	Pecos River Valley	High	28
27	Tecolotito	High	28
28	Southeast Las Vegas	Moderate	31
29	Conchas Lake	Moderate	32
30	Trementina/Variadero	Moderate	35
31	Sabinoso	Low	40

Source: San Miguel County, New Mexico, Wildland Urban Interface Community Wildfire Protection Plan, 2008.

Note: Communities in the San Miguel Community Wildfire Protection Plan with a ranking of extreme, very high or high should be considered as ranking high for the purpose of conforming to the reporting requirements for the New Mexico Fire Planning Task Force.

5.18.4 The Extent of Damage

State expenditures on wildfires within San Miguel County were approximately \$254,000 per year for the last 10 years. The NMEMNRD provides the county with \$5,000 per year for their operating budget. That money is used for equipment, maintenance, and training to all volunteer county fire departments. Within the region's watersheds, there have been ten fires that within the last 10 years that have threatened critical infrastructure. Those fires are listed in Table 5.18.4-1:

Fire	Date	Acres Burned
Tres Lagunas Fire	2013	10,210
Jaroso Fire	2013	11,120
Tecolote Fire	2010	820
Hartman Fire	2009	475
Soldier Fire	2009	100
Ortiz Fire	2009	20
Las Trampas Fire	2002	5,800
Dalton Fire	2002	15,400
Roybal Fire	2002	850
Viveash Fire	2000	28,348

Table 5.18.4-1San Miguel County Wildfire History

The Viveash Fire of May 29, 2000 is an example of what can happen in the watershed after a large, high-severity wildfire. After burning for four months (fire out September 30, 2000), it had burned 28,348 acres in the Cow Creek drainage and was located west of the Gallinas watershed. Despite the small amount of acreage burned within the Gallinas watershed (820 acres), the effects were

significant in terms of the City of Las Vegas' drinking water supply. It also negatively affected the fish and beaver habitat of Cow Creek. The Viveash Fire resulted in sediment and ash being carried approximately 22 miles downstream to the City's municipal water treatment facility. This led to a public health and safety impact on water quality of the Las Vegas municipal water supply. USFS response to this fire cost approximately \$12 million.

The Dalton Fire ignited on May 6, 2002 and burned until May 31, 2002, impacting 804 total acres with a total cost of \$2,904,220. This fire threatened the Santa Fe Watershed.

The Tecolote Fire ignited on June 11, 2010 due to lightening and impacted a total of 820 acres. This fire threatened the Gallinas watershed, the City of Las Vegas drinking water supply, and caused health implications for the elderly and respiratory patients due to the smoke. The fire cost a total of \$5.5 million.

No lives were lost in these fires and no significant property damage was reported.

5.18.5 Probability of Future Events

There have been 10 major wildfires in the past 13 years, or 0.77 major fires per year, and 34 wildfires in 2012 in San Miguel County. The frequency of fire and the related impacts to vital resources such as water supply contamination and flooding make this hazard a highly likely probability of occurrence and impact to all of San Miguel County, including the incorporated jurisdictions of the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos.

6. VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT

6.1 Interim Final Rule for Assessing Vulnerability

Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(ii)(A): The plan **should** describe vulnerability in terms of the types and numbers of existing and future buildings, infrastructure, and critical facilities located in the identified hazard area.

Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(ii)(B): [The plan **should** describe vulnerability in terms of an] estimate of the potential dollar losses to vulnerable structures identified in paragraph (c)(2)(ii)(A) of this section and a description of the methodology used to prepare the estimate.

Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(ii)(C): [The plan **should** describe vulnerability in terms of] providing a general description of land uses and development trends within the community so that mitigation options can be considered in future land use decisions.

Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(iii): For multi-jurisdictional plans, the risk assessment **must** assess each jurisdiction's risks where they vary from the risks facing the entire planning area.

6.2 Introduction and Methodology

This chapter reviews the county's assets at risk, as well as vulnerability to each hazard where data is available. For each assessed hazard, the county addressed the impact that each hazard could potentially have on the jurisdiction. Effort was made to evaluate current structures, infrastructure, and critical facilities at risk, as well as future projects that are planned. Where data was available, the county evaluated potential dollar losses to vulnerable structures. Within this chapter is a vulnerability assessment for each participating jurisdiction identified in this Plan. The Plan evaluates risk and assets for the San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

Where data was available, the hazards profiled in Chapter 5, *Hazard Profiles* were quantitatively ranked by the severity and likelihood of occurrence. All hazards also received a qualitative analysis as provided in Chapter 5. Where quantitative data is not available, qualitative responses were used to identify the vulnerability to the hazards.

The MPG utilized Risk Analysis Worksheets to determine the frequency, severity, risk class, seasonal patterns, probable duration, speed of onset, and noted risks identified with each hazard. The methodologies are provided below:

Frequency	Description
Highly Likely	Nearly 100% probability in the next year
Likely	10% - 100% probability in the next year or at least 1 chance over the next 10 years
Possible	1% - 10% probability or at least one chance in the next 100 years
Unlikely	Less than 1% chance in the next 100 years.

FREQUENCY: How often is this hazard likely to develop in your jurisdiction?

Severity	Description
Catastrophic	More than 50% of the jurisdiction affected
Critical	25% - 50% of the jurisdiction affected
Limited	10% - 25% of the jurisdiction affected
Negligible	Less than 10% of the jurisdiction affected

SEVERITY: What is the expected extent of damage caused by this type of hazard?

RISK CLASS: What is the classification of the overall risk posed to the jurisdiction?

	Negligible	Limited	Critical	Catastrophic
Highly Likely	С	В	Α	Α
Likely	С	С	В	Α
Possible	D	С	В	В
Unlikely	D	D	С	С

SEASONAL PATTERN: When will hazard most likely occur?

PROBABLE DURATION: How long would this type of event typically impact the jurisdiction?

SPEED OF ONSET: How much advance warning does the jurisdiction typically have prior to onset of this type of event?

RISKS: What types of impacts does this hazard typically cause to the jurisdiction?

The following table provides a summary of the risk assessment findings. Hazards ranked in Class A and B, and where data is available, are included in this Vulnerability Assessment.

Hazard	Ranking	Disposition in the 2014 Vulnerability Assessment	
Dem Feilung	Frequency: Possible	Frederidad	
Dam Fallure	Risk Class: C	Excluded	
	Frequency: Highly Likely		
Drought	Severity: Critical Risk Class: A	Included	
	Frequency: Possible		
Earthquake	Severity: Negligible	Excluded	
	Frequency: Likely		
Expansive Soils	Severity: Limited	Excluded	

Table 6.2-1Summary of Hazard Mitigation Plan Risk Assessment Data
Hazard	Ranking	Disposition in the 2014 Vulnerability Assessment	
	Risk Class: C		
Extreme Heat	Frequency: Likely Severity: Critical Risk Class: B	Included	
Flood	Frequency: Likely Severity: Critical Risk Class: B	Included	
Hailstorm	Frequency: Highly Likely Severity: Critical Risk Class: A	Included	
Hazardous Materials Incidents	Frequency: Likely Severity: Limited Risk Class: C	Excluded	
High Wind	Frequency: Highly Likely Severity: Catastrophic Risk Class: A	Included	
Landslide	Frequency: Possible Severity: Limited Risk Class: C	Excluded	
Levee Failure	Frequency: Possible Severity: Negligible Risk Class: D	Excluded	
Pests	Frequency: Possible Severity: Negligible Risk Class: D	Excluded	
Severe Winter Weather	Frequency: Likely Severity: Catastrophic Risk Class: A	Included	
Terrorism	Frequency: Unlikely Severity: Negligible Risk Class: D	Excluded	
Thunderstorm	Frequency: Highly Likely Severity: catastrophic Risk Class: A	Included	
Tornado	Frequency: Likely Severity: Limited Risk Class: C	Excluded	
Wildfire	Frequency: Highly Likely Severity: Critical Risk Class: A	Included	

6.3 San Miguel County Vulnerability

San Miguel County is 4,715.82 square miles of land, 19.84 square miles of water, and averages 6.2 persons per square mile. The 2012 Census population estimate was 28,891. The average home value for San Miguel County is \$115,400, which is lower than the state average of \$161,500 and the national average of \$181,400⁸². Single family housing units account for 57 percent of all housing units. Mobile homes make up another 34 percent and multi-family units account for the remaining 9 percent.⁸³

For essential facilities, there are 2 hospitals facilities in the county, the Alta Vista Regional Hospital in Las Vegas and the Pecos Valley Medical Center in Pecos. The Alta Vista Regional Hospital has 54 beds and 25 healthcare professionals on staff⁸⁴. The Pecos Valley Medical Center is a clinic that provides ALS emergency care, medical, dental, and behavioral health services. There are 25 schools, 14 fire stations, 2 police stations and no dedicated emergency operation centers.

6.3.1 County Building Stock Vulnerability

There and estimated 15,154 buildings in the county, with a total replacement value for the structures of \$1.65 billion. Approximately 95.8 percent of the buildings, and 83.5 percent of the building value, are associated with residential housing. The remainder consists of commercial, industrial, agricultural, religious, government, and education building uses. The total residential building value for the county is estimated to be \$1.38 billion, and the non-residential building value is approximately \$272. million.

Building Type	Total Building Value	Percentage of Building Stock
Residential	\$1,376,710,000	83%
Commercial	\$187,980,000	11%
Industrial	\$15,377,000	>1%
Agricultural	\$2,962,000	>1%
Religious/Non-profit	\$15,248,000	>1%
Government	\$25,112,000	2%
Education	\$30,349,000	2%
TOTAL	\$1,653,738,000	100.0%

Table 6.3.1-1Building Exposure by Occupancy Type for San Miguel County

Critical assets in San Miguel County include are listed in Table 6.3.1-2.

⁸² http://www.usa.com/san-miguel-county-nm.htm

⁸³ Bureau of Business and Economic Research. An Assessment of the San Miguel County Economy. 2010. Print

⁸⁴ Alta Vista Regional Hospital. http://www.altavistaregionalhospital.com/alta-vista-regional-hospital/aboutus.aspx

Table 6.3.1-2San Miguel County Critical Assets

Asset Name	Asset Use /Function	Address	Insured Or Estimated Value
San Miguel County Administration	San Miguel County Administration Building	500 W. National Avenue	\$3,715,000
4 th Judicial District	District Attorney's Building	1800 New Mexico Avenue	\$1,693,000
4 th Judicial District Court	District Courthouse	496 W. National Avenue	\$4,255,000
San Miguel Detention Center	Adult Detention Center Building	20 Mineral Hill Route	\$5,421,000
San Miguel Detention Center	Adult Detention Center Annex	20 Mineral Hill Route	\$155,000
San Miguel Detention Center	Maintenance Trailer	20 Mineral Hill Route	\$32,000
San Miguel Detention Center	Storage Shed	20 Mineral Hill Route	\$3,000
San Miguel Road Shop	Road Shop Building	1224 Railroad Avenue	\$149,000
San Miguel Road Shop	Public Works Office Building	1224 Railroad Avenue	\$188,000
San Miguel Fairgrounds	Indoor Exhibits Building	Rodeo Grounds Road	\$107,000
San Miguel Fairgrounds	Pole Barn Building	Rodeo Grounds Road	\$114,000
San Miguel Fairgrounds	Show Building	Rodeo Grounds Road	\$15,000
San Miguel Fairgrounds	Show Building 2	Rodeo Grounds Road	\$27,000
San Miguel Fairgrounds	Animal Pens 1	Rodeo Grounds Road	\$85,000
San Miguel Fairgrounds	Clay Mobile Home	Rodeo Grounds Road	\$86,000
San Miguel Fairgrounds	Show Building 4	Rodeo Grounds Road	\$45,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 1	County Road 3	\$97,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 2	County Road 3	\$97,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 3	County Road 3	\$105,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 4	County Road 3	\$105,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 5	County Road 3	\$105,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 6	County Road 3	\$105,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 7	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 8	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 9	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 10	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 11	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 12	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 13	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 14	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 15	County Road 3	\$158,000

Asset Name	Asset Use /Function	Address	Insured Or Estimated Value
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 16	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 17	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 18	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 19	County Road 3	\$158,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Housing Unit 20	County Road 3	\$87,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Pump House	County Road 3	\$17,000
Ribera Housing Complex	Water Tank	County Road 3	\$105,000
Cabo Lucero Fire Station	Cabo Lucero Fire Station	900 Ridgecrest Road	\$272,000
Conchas Dam Southside Substation	Office Trailer	101 Mica Road	\$79,000
Conchas Dam Southside Substation	Conchas Dam Southside Substation	101 Mica Road	\$301,000
El Pueblo Fire Station	El Pueblo Fire Station	77 Gonzales Ranch Road	\$157,000
Gallinas Fire Station	Gallinas Fire Station	3195 Hot Springs	\$320,000
Ilfeld Volunteer Fire/Rescue	Ilfeld Volunteer Fire/Rescue	87 Entrada De San Ysidro	\$234,000
Pecos Canyon Volunteer Fire	Volunteer Fire/Rescue Building	1076 Nm 63	\$249,000
Rowe Volunteer Fire Department	Rowe Volunteer Fire Department	75 Hwy 63	\$69,000
Sapello-Rociada Volunteer Fire Dept	Sapello-Rociada Substation	349 Rociada Highway	\$117,000
Sapello-Rociada Volunteer Fire Dept	Water Tank 1	400 Rociada Highway	\$29,000
Sapello-Rociada Volunteer Fire Dept	Water Tank 2	400 Rociada Highway	\$29,000
Sapello-Rociada Volunteer Fire Dept	Water Tank 3	400 Rociada Highway	\$29,000
Sapello-Rociada Volunteer Fire Dept	Water Tank	349 Rociada Highway	\$110,000
Sheridan Volunteer Fire Station	Sheridan Volunteer Fire Dept	15 Ositos Frios Road	\$205,000
Tecolote Volunteer Fire Dept	Tecolote Volunteer Fire Dept	2 Tecolote Plaza	\$157,000
Tecolote Volunteer Fire Dept	Water Tank 1	2 Tecolote Plaza	\$70,000
Tecolote Volunteer Fire Dept	Water Tank 2	2 Tecolote Plaza	\$46,000
Trementina Volunteer Fire Dept	Trementina Volunteer Fire Dept	Nm 419	\$235,000

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Vulnerability Assessment

Asset Name	Asset Use /Function	Address	Insured Or Estimated Value
Trementina Volunteer Fire Dept	Storage Shed	Nm 419	\$2,000
Trementina Volunteer Fire Dept	Water Tank	Nm 419	\$45,000
Public Health Building	Public Health Building	18 Gallegos Road	\$1,128,000
Public Health Building	Extension Building	18 Gallegos Road	\$161,000
Conchas Dam South Main Station	Conchas Dam South Main Station	Big Mesa Avenue	\$521,000
New Rowe Volunteer Fire Station	New Rowe Volunteer Fire Station	Ilfeld Frontage Road	\$242,000
Pecos Ambulance Service Building	Pecos Ambulance Service Building	State Highway 50	\$208,000
Apache Tower	Apache Tower Equipment Storage	129 Apache Mesa Road	\$47,000
Trujillo Tower	Trujillo Tower Equipment Storage	3182 Nm Highway 104	\$47,000
La Placita Volunteer Fire Dept.	Las Placitas Fire Station	HC Box 43	\$192,000
La Placita Volunteer Fire Dept.	Water Tank 1	HC Box 43	\$47,000
La Placita Volunteer Fire Dept.	Storage Container	HC Box 43	\$3,000
La Placita Volunteer Fire Dept.	Water Tank 2	HC Box 43	\$27,000
La Placita Volunteer Fire Dept.	Water Tank 3	HC Box 43	\$27,000
Ribera/San Miguel Del Vado	El Centro Family Health Building	San Miguel Del Vado	\$292,000
Ribera/San Miguel Del Vado	Old Health Building	San Miguel Del Vado	\$263,000
San Jose Community Center	San Jose Community Center Building	San Jose	\$185,000
Camp Luna Solid Waste Convenience Center	Camp Luna Convenience Center	711 Maximillano Drive	\$4,000
Kearny Solid Waste Convenience Center	Kearny Convenience Center	38 Nm Highway 283	\$4,000
Sapello Solid Waste Convenience Center	Sapello Convenience Center	26 County Road A1	\$4,000
Rociada Solid Waste Convenience Center	Rociada Convenience Center	356 Nm Highway 105	\$4,000

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Vulnerability Assessment

Asset Name	Asset Use /Function	Address	Insured Or Estimated Value
Bernal Solid Waste Convenience Center	Bernal Convenience Center	447 County Road B26a	\$4,000
Pecos Solid Waste Convenience Center	Pecos Convenience Center	38 County Road B52	\$5,000
Ilfeld Solid Waste Convenience Center	Ilfeld Convenience Center	4 Big Chief Road	\$4,000
San Miguel Solid Waste Convenience Center	San Miguel Convenience Center	280 Nm Highway 3	\$4,000
Villanueva Solid Waste Convenience Center	Villanueva Convenience Center	15 Dodge Drive	\$4,000
San Miguel County Annex Building	Office Building	518 Valencia Street	\$311,000
Public Works	Public Works Office	Airport Road 250 NW Highway	\$470,000
Public Works	Solid Waste Building	Airport Road 250 NW Highway	\$818,000
Public Works	Shop Building	Airport Road 250 NW Highway	\$827,000
Public Works	Pump Building	Airport Road 250 NW Highway	\$65,000
Public Works	Water Tank	Airport Road 250 NW Highway	\$225,000
Public Works	Portable Office Rm 103	Airport Road 250 NW Highway	\$76,000
Public Works	Portable Office Rm	Airport Road 250 NW Highway	\$76,000
Villanueva Substation Building	Villanueva Substation Building	61 Valley Loop	\$289,000
Manuelitas Fire Department	Manuelitas Fire Department	400 Sapello Hwy	\$228,000
		Total:	\$25,112,000

6.3.2 City of Las Vegas Building Stock Vulnerability

The total residential building value for the City of Las Vegas is \$174,836,000. This accounts for 72 percent of the total building value within the city. Commercial buildings account for approximately 20 percent of building value, and educational structures account for 5 percent of total building value. Industrial buildings are two percent, and agricultural, religions/nonprofit, and governmental buildings each account for less than one percent.

Building Type	Total Building Value	Percentage of Building Stock
Residential	\$174,836,000	65%
Commercial	\$49,365,000	18%
Industrial	\$3,999,000	1%
Agricultural	\$458,000	>1%
Religious/Non-profit	\$610,000	>1%
Government	\$32,900,000	12%
Education	\$11,280,000	4%
TOTAL	\$273,448,000	100.0%

Table 6.3.2-1Building Exposure by Occupancy Type for the City of Las Vegas

Critical Assets in the City of Las Vegas include are listed in Table 6.3.2-2.

Table 6.3.2-2City of Las Vegas Critical Assets

Asset Name	Asset Use /Function	Address	Insured or Estimated Value
George Arellanes Municipal Offices	1700 N. Grand Ave	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$1,200,000
City of Las Vegas Municipal Court	727 Grand Ave.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$800,000
City of Las Vegas Police Department	318 Moreno St.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$1,400,000
City of Las Vegas Water Treatment Plant	381 NM Hwy 65	Montezuma NM 87731	\$5,200,000
City of Las Vegas Public Works Department	905 12th St.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$1,600,000
City of Las Vegas Waste Water Treatment Plant	272 Frontage Rd.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$5,800,000
City of Las Vegas Solid Waste Transfer Station	32 Airport Rd.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$1,400,000
E Romero Fire Department	1901 New Mexico Ave.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$1,800,000
Harold Ledoux Fire Station	604 Legion Dr.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$1,400,000
City of Las Vegas Municipal Airport	910 Airport Rd.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$2,300,000
City of Las Vegas Housing Authority	2400 Sagebrush Dr.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$400,000
Meadow City Transportation	500 Railroad Ave.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$1,100,000
City of Las Vegas Abe Montoya Recreation Department	1751 N. Grand Ave.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$2,100,000
Carnegie Public Library	500 National Ave.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$1,500,000
Rough Rider Museum	727 Grand Ave.	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$900,000

Asset Name	Asset Use /Function	Address	Insured or Estimated Value
Pecos Senior Citizens Center	76 Camino Real	Pecos NM 87552	\$1,600,000
Ribera Senior Citizen Center	State Hwy 3	Ribera NM 87560	\$400,000
Las Vegas Senior Citizen Center	500 Sabino Street	Las Vegas, NM 87701	\$2,000,000
		Total:	\$32,900,000

6.3.3 Village of Pecos Building Stock Vulnerability

The total residential building value for the Village of Pecos is \$96,723,000. This accounts for 98 percent of the total building value within the area. Commercial buildings account for approximately one percent of building value. Industrial, agricultural, religions/non-profit, governmental, and educational buildings each account for less than one percent of the total building value for the region.

	1 0 01	U
Building Type	Total Building Value	Percentage of Building Stock
Residential	\$96,723,000	84%
Commercial	\$950,000	>1%
Industrial	\$10,560,000	9%
Agricultural	\$0	0%
Religious/Non-profit	\$0	0%
Government	\$5,500,000	5%
Education	\$741,000	>1%
TOTAL	\$114,500,000	100.0%

Table 6.3.3-1Building Exposure by Occupancy Type for the Village of Pecos

Critical Assets in the Village of Pecos include are listed in Table 6.3.3-2.

Asset Name	Asset Use /Function	Address	Insured or Estimated Value
Wastewater Treatment Plant	Sanitary Sewer Services	Camino Laguna	\$7,500,000
Drinking Water Distribution System	Drinking Water Services	Various streets	\$3,000,000
Village of Pecos Office Complex and Fire Station	Village Administrative Offices and Fire Department	92 South Main Street	\$1,500,000
Miscellaneous Assets and Equipment	Land, Buildings, Machinery, Equipment, Furniture, etc.	Various locations	\$4,000,000
		Total:	\$16,000,000

Table 6.3.3-2Village of Pecos Critical Assets

6.4 Drought

6.4.1 Summary of Vulnerability

Though there are obvious vulnerabilities for people and animals that will result from a prolonged drought, the most common impacts are generally felt in the area's economy. This is particularly true in areas whose economies are connected to agriculture, such as San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos. Agricultural losses from drought can be staggering, and can be in the billions of dollars. Shortages as a result of drought can have far-reaching consequences, given the centralized food system that currently exists in modern society.

As water becomes more and more precious, the value of that water will increase, resulting in issues of supply and demand. The decrease in availability of this necessary resource can result in significant societal disruption, which can worsen as the resource becomes more and more precious.

San Miguel's economy is heavily reliant on agriculture – the vast majority of privately-owned land is ranch/farmland. The participating municipalities rely on the agricultural economy and eco-tourism. Areas in and around the Village of Pecos are also becoming bedroom communities for commuters to Santa Fe. Drought impacts on drinking water have reduced growth in areas where agriculture is not the primary source of income or water use.

Because of this, San Miguel County and the participating jurisdictions have seen a reduction in population as people move to areas where water resources are more readily and consistently available. The county and municipalities have identified mitigation actions that can improve and protect the precious water sources within the county just to meet normal demands.

6.4.2 Estimate of Potential Losses – Qualitative Analysis

In the course of updating this Plan, the MPG completed a qualitative risk assessment exercise. This exercise asked the representatives from each participating jurisdiction to rank the hazards in the Plan according to their potential to impact to their particular jurisdiction and specifically addressed in Chapter 5. Those impacts for this hazard were ranked high by San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

6.4.3 Estimate of Potential Losses - Quantitative Analysis

Drought is a non-spatial hazard that can and does affect the entire county, including the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos. Hazards associated with extreme heat can result in losses throughout the planning area.

Given that the entire state of New Mexico is experiencing a significant dry cycle, and that this cycle has been evolving for decades, and that scientists do not anticipate that this cycle will end in the near future, the MPG showed significant concern for this hazard. It was the decision of the Steering Committee that this hazard presents a significant threat to the planning area, and is likely to be a significant threat for the foreseeable future.

Quantifiable data is not currently available for this hazard to determine vulnerability to the people, critical assets, and infrastructure in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

6.4.4 Identified Data Limitations

Data that could be collected prior to the next update in order to develop a quantitative risk assessment includes:

- Data regarding the volume of water required to maintain and support municipal and agricultural operations;
- Data regarding expected/planned changes in development;
- Data regarding projected population changes; and
- Estimates of potential increases in operating costs that would result from a lack of water.

6.5 Extreme Heat

6.5.1 Summary of Vulnerability

People, animals, and vegetation are the primary countywide assets that are vulnerable to the impacts associated with extreme heat, though buildings and infrastructure can be subject to damage from this hazard. Attempts to counteract the effects of extreme heat on the population can draw unexpected use of power and water infrastructure that could result in service interruptions and outages. People and livestock can be injured, crops can be damaged, and all are at risk of death by prolonged exposure to extreme heat.

6.5.2 Estimate of Potential Losses – Qualitative Analysis

In the course of updating this Plan, the MPG completed a qualitative risk assessment exercise. This exercise asked the representatives from each participating jurisdiction to rank the hazards in the Plan according to their potential to impact to their particular jurisdiction and specifically addressed in Chapter 5. Those impacts for this hazard were ranked moderate by San Miguel County, and low by the City of Las Vegas and Village of Pecos.

6.5.3 Estimate of Potential Losses - Quantitative Analysis

Extreme heat is a non-spatial hazard that can affect the entire county, including the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos. Hazards associated with extreme heat can result in losses throughout the planning area.

Quantifiable data is not currently available for this hazard to determine vulnerability to the people, critical assets, and infrastructure in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos, but given the 28,891 population (2012 Census), we can determine that if one percent of the population suffered injury or death as a result of this hazard, 288 people would be impacted. If one percent of the vulnerable populations (people under the age of 5 or over the age of 65) suffered injury of death as a result of extreme heat, 64 people would be impacted.

6.5.4 Identified Data Limitations

Data that could be collected prior to the next update in order to develop a more detailed quantitative risk assessment includes:

- Data regarding building construction (materials, roof types, wind ratings, etc.);
- Building valuations for all assets within San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos;
- Data regarding expected/projected changes in development;
- Data regarding projected population changes; and
- Data regarding the location of vulnerable populations that may require services or special attention during thunderstorm events.

6.6 Flood

6.6.1 Summary of Vulnerability

Flooding affects people and property in a variety of ways – from forced evacuations to property damage to transportation interruptions to service disruptions, there is almost no facet of modern society that cannot be impacted by flooding.

Along riverbeds and arroyos, areas of the County lie within an identified floodplains and critical infrastructure has seen damage primarily in the county and the City of Las Vegas. The state of New Mexico reports 6 flood-related losses for a total of \$14,962 in San Miguel County, and 9

flood-related NFIP losses for a total of \$7,454 in the City of Las Vegas since 1978⁸⁵, but records show that there have been no reported NFIP repetitive loss flood claims in any jurisdiction within the county. The flood risk is significant throughout the county due to monsoons, flash flooding, snow melt, and related floodwater runoff sure to wildfire scarring. The vulnerability to this hazard must be considered when any future development is planned.

San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos are members in good standing with the NFIP program and hold a Community Rating System class 10 rating.

6.6.2 Estimate of Potential Losses - Qualitative Analysis

In the course of updating this Plan, the MPG completed a qualitative risk assessment exercise. This exercise asked the representatives from each participating jurisdiction to rank the hazards in the Plan according to their potential to impact to their particular jurisdiction and specifically addressed in Chapter 5. Those impacts for this hazard were ranked high by San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

6.6.3 Estimate of Potential Losses - Quantitative Analysis

All jurisdictions in the county have floodplains. Maps 6.6.3-1 through 6.6.3-2 illustrate the locations and boundaries of the one percent annual chance floodplain. Critical assets for the city have been overlaid onto the hazard boundary maps.

⁸⁵ FEMA NFIP Statistics, 11.30.13. http://bsa.nfipstat.fema.gov/reports/1040.htm#35



Map 6.6.3-1 Special Flood Hazard Areas and San Miguel Critical Assets

Map 6.6.3-2 Special Flood Hazard Areas and Las Vegas Critical Assets





Map 6.6.3-3 Special Flood Hazard Areas and Pecos Critical Assets

There are 19 critical assets within the SFHA in San Miguel County and the City of Las Vegas. Of those, 15 are education facilities, two of which are also designated shelters. No Pecos assets lie within the floodplain.

Most of the county and municipal critical facilities identified by each jurisdiction are outside the SFHA, but may still be at risk to flooding due to changing weather conditions, changing water flow patterns due to wildfire scarring and seasonal snow melt.

Residential structures, and the people that live in them, are also at significant risk from flooding in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. Local records show that 682 structures lie within an identified flood hazard area. Using the census median home value of \$115,400, this indicates an impact with a ten percent loss of homes in the SHFA would cost property owners and insurance companies at least \$7.8 million.

6.6.4 Identified Data Limitations

Data that could be collected through local planning, assessor, and floodplain manager's offices prior to the next update in order to develop a more detailed quantitative risk assessment includes:

- Data regarding building construction (materials, location of utilities and connections);
- Building valuations for all assets within the county and municipal boundaries;
- Data regarding expected/projected changes in development;
- Data regarding projected population changes; and
- Data regarding the first floor elevation of all buildings within the county and municipalities, as well as the elevation of all critical assets and infrastructure.

6.7 Hailstorm

6.7.1 Summary of Vulnerability

People, structures, agriculture, and assets are all vulnerable to the impacts associated with hailstorms. Infrastructure can be damaged or destroyed by hail, which can result in service interruptions and outages. Structures can be damaged hail and thus be useless to humans for protection from the elements. People can also be injured or killed if exposed to hailstorms.

Those who reside in mobile homes, RVs, or other lightweight housing are more vulnerable than those who reside in traditional construction, as these lightweight types of structures generally fail in the face of significant hailstorm events much sooner than their heavier counterparts.

6.7.2 Estimate of Potential Losses – Qualitative Analysis

In the course of updating this Plan, the MPG completed a qualitative risk assessment exercise. This exercise asked the representatives from each participating jurisdiction to rank the hazards in the Plan according to their potential to impact to their particular jurisdiction and specifically addressed in Chapter 5. Those impacts for this hazard were ranked high by San Miguel County and the City of Las Vegas. The Village of Pecos ranked this hazard as a low risk event.

6.7.3 Estimate of Potential Losses - Quantitative Analysis

Hailstorms are a non-spatial hazard that can and do affect the entire county, including the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos. Hazards associated with hailstorms can result in losses throughout the planning area.

All structures within the county and participating jurisdictions are at risk from hailstorms. According to the 2012 Census estimate, there are 15,592 housing units in the county. The median value of these structures is \$115,400, according to the Census. This equates to residential assets of approximately \$1.79 billion. If ten percent of these residential assets received ten percent damage by a hailstorm, this would result in losses of \$17.9 million.

In addition, all identified critical assets within the planning area have the potential to be damaged or destroyed by hailstorms. These assets have a combined estimated value of at least \$63,512,000 and a ten percent loss to ten percent of the assets across the planning area would represent a \$630,000 impact to local governments.

6.7.4 Identified Data Limitations

Data that could be collected prior to the next update in order to develop a more detailed quantitative risk assessment includes:

- Data regarding building construction (materials, roof types, wind ratings, etc.);
- Building valuations for all assets within San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos;
- Data regarding expected/projected changes in development;
- Data regarding projected population changes; and

• Data regarding the location of vulnerable populations that may require services or special attention during thunderstorm events.

6.8 High Wind

6.8.1 Summary of Vulnerability

People, structures, and assets are all vulnerable to the impacts associated with high winds. Infrastructure can be damaged or destroyed resulting in service interruptions and outages. Structures can be damaged or destroyed by wind, which can then lead to injuries and death of those within failing structures or who are exposed to flying debris. .High winds can also cause significant trouble for motorists.

Those who reside in mobile homes, RVs, or other lightweight housing are more vulnerable than those who reside in traditional construction, as these lightweight types of structures generally fail in the face of high wind events much sooner than their heavier counterparts.

6.8.2 Estimate of Potential Losses - Qualitative Analysis

In the course of updating this Plan, the MPG completed a qualitative risk assessment exercise. This exercise asked the representatives from each participating jurisdiction to rank the hazards in the Plan according to their potential to impact to their particular jurisdiction and specifically addressed in Chapter 5. Those impacts for this hazard were ranked high by San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

6.8.3 Estimate of Potential Losses - Quantitative Analysis

High winds are a non-spatial hazard that can and do affect the entire county, including the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos. Hazards associated with high winds can result in losses throughout the planning area.

All structures within the county and participating jurisdictions are at risk from exposure to high winds. According to the 2012 Census estimate, there are 15,592 housing units in the county. The median value of these structures is \$115,400, according to the Census. This equates to residential assets of approximately \$1.79 billion. If ten percent of these residential assets were destroyed by high wind events, this would result in losses of \$179 million.

In addition, all identified critical assets within the planning area have the potential to be damaged or destroyed by high winds. These assets have a combined estimated value of at least \$63,512,000 and a ten percent loss across the planning area would represent a \$6.3 million impact to local governments.

6.8.4 Identified Data Limitations

Data that could be collected prior to the next update in order to develop a more detailed quantitative risk assessment includes:

• Data regarding building construction (materials, roof types, wind ratings, etc.);

- Building valuations for all assets within San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos;
- Data regarding expected/projected changes in development;
- Data regarding projected population changes; and
- Data regarding the location of vulnerable populations that may require services or special attention during thunderstorm events.

6.9 Severe Winter Storm

6.9.1 Summary of Vulnerability

People, structures, and critical infrastructure are all vulnerable to the impacts associated with severe winter storms. Infrastructure can be damaged or destroyed by wind or ice, which can result in service interruptions and outages. Structures can be damaged or destroyed by wind, ice, or snow weight, and thus be useless to humans for protection from the elements. People can be injured or killed by transportation accidents (resulting from icy roadways) or extreme cold.

The majority of the vulnerability related to severe winter storms is related to either transportation accidents or to utility failures. Utility failure results in disruption to electrical service, water, and natural gas, which results in loss of heat to structures. Limited transportation access can limit residential propane service deliveries and ability of police, fire, and emergency medical services to render aid when needed.

Transportation-related accidents can occur when roadways and bridges become impacted and ice over, which results in loss of vehicular control and subsequent accidents. In addition, some portions of the population are more at risk to the effects of extreme cold. The very young and the elderly are generally more vulnerable to the effects of extreme cold, and are more likely to suffer illness or death as a result. This is especially true if exposure is extended for a period of time.

6.9.2 Estimate of Potential Losses - Qualitative Analysis

In the course of updating this Plan, the MPG completed a qualitative risk assessment exercise. This exercise asked the representatives from each participating jurisdiction to rank the hazards in the Plan according to their potential to impact to their particular jurisdiction and specifically addressed in Chapter 5. Those impacts for this hazard were ranked high by San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

6.9.3 Estimate of Potential Losses - Quantitative Analysis

Severe winter storms are a non-spatial hazard that can and do affect the entire county, including the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos. Each of the hazards associated with severe winter storms can result in losses throughout the planning area.

All structures within the county and participating jurisdictions are at risk from severe winter storms. According to the 2012 Census estimate, there are 15,592 housing units in the county. The median value of these structures is \$115,400, according to the Census. This equates to

residential assets of approximately \$1.79 billion. If ten percent of these residential assets received ten percent damage by a severe winter storms, this would result in losses of \$17.9 million.

In addition, all identified critical assets within the planning area have the potential to be damaged or destroyed by severe winter storms. These assets have a combined estimated value of at least \$63,512,000 and a ten percent loss to ten percent of the assets across the planning area would represent a \$630,000 impact to local governments.

Finally, the 28,891residents of San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos are all at risk from the severe winter storm hazard. As previously stated, those most at risk from the extreme heat hazard are the very young and the elderly. These two groups account for 5.3 percent (children under 5) and almost 16.7percent (those over 65) of the total county population. Combined, these two groups account for more than 22 percent of the population, a total of 6,356 people. If one percent of the vulnerable population suffered injury or death as a result of this hazard, 64 people would be impacted.

6.9.4 Identified Data Limitations

Data that could be collected prior to the next update in order to develop a more detailed quantitative risk assessment includes:

- Data regarding building construction (materials, roof types, wind ratings, etc.);
- Building valuations for all assets within the planning area;
- Data regarding expected/projected changes in development;
- Data regarding projected population changes; and
- Data regarding the location of vulnerable populations that may require services or special attention during severe winter storm events.

6.10 Thunderstorm

6.10.1 Summary of Vulnerability

People, structures, and assets are all vulnerable to the impacts associated with thunderstorms. Infrastructure can be damaged or destroyed by hail, wind, lightning, or tornadoes, which can result in service interruptions and outages. Structures can be damaged or destroyed by wind, lightning, or tornadoes, and thus be useless to humans for protection from the elements. People can be injured or killed by wind, tornadoes, lightning, and hail.

Those who reside in mobile homes, RVs, or other lightweight housing are more vulnerable than those who reside in traditional construction, as these lightweight types of structures generally fail in the face of thunderstorm events much sooner than their heavier counterparts.

6.10.2 Estimate of Potential Losses - Qualitative Analysis

In the course of updating this Plan, the MPG completed a qualitative risk assessment exercise. This exercise asked the representatives from each participating jurisdiction to rank the hazards in the Plan according to their potential to impact to their particular jurisdiction and specifically

addressed in Chapter 5. Those impacts for this hazard were ranked high by San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

6.10.3 Estimate of Potential Losses - Quantitative Analysis

Thunderstorms are a non-spatial hazard that can and do affect the entire county, including the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos. Hazards associated with thunderstorms can result in losses throughout the planning area.

All structures within the county and participating jurisdictions are at risk from thunderstorms. According to the 2012 Census estimate, there are 15,592 housing units in the county. The median value of these structures is \$115,400, according to the Census. This equates to residential assets of approximately \$1.79 billion. If ten percent of these residential assets were damaged by a severe summer storm, this would result in losses of \$179 million.

In addition, all identified critical assets within the planning area have the potential to be damaged or destroyed by thunderstorms. These assets have a combined estimated value of at least \$63,512,000 and a ten percent loss across the planning area would represent a \$6.3 million impact to local governments.

6.10.4 Identified Data Limitations

Data that could be collected prior to the next update in order to develop a more detailed quantitative risk assessment includes:

- Data regarding building construction (materials, roof types, wind ratings, etc.);
- Building valuations for all assets within San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos;
- Data regarding expected/projected changes in development;
- Data regarding projected population changes; and
- Data regarding the location of vulnerable populations that may require services or special attention during thunderstorm events.

6.11 Wildfire

6.11.1 Summary of Vulnerability

Wildfire has the potential to devastate communities in the planning area. All people and assets within the county are vulnerable to the direct and indirect impacts of wildfire.

Wildfires can result in fatalities and injuries, property damage or destruction, the interruption of services, transportation disruptions, environmental damage, and economic losses.

The ability to suppress and fight a wildfire is contingent on having the necessary training, personnel, and equipment to bring the fire under control and to extinguish it. If one of these areas is lacking or is unavailable, the community can suffer extensive losses as a result of wildfire.

San Miguel County has experienced significant losses as a result of wildfire. Forested lands in the county provide protection from flood, land and mudslides, snow drift and shift, high winds, as well as provide for the economic draw of eco-tourism. The impacts of wildfire in the county have historically created problems beyond the loss of forest land and improved properties, often requiring significant state and federal support to manage both the wildfires and subsequent problems that arise including significant flooding.

San Miguel County was rated as "High Risk" in the 2009 New Mexico Communities at Risk Assessment Plan, EMNRD. To respond to this hazard, the county prepared a Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) in 2008. The plan meets all of the criteria set forth by the Healthy Forest Reforestation Act, and was adopted by the New Mexico Fire Planning Task Force.

Critical existing fire facilities within the county include twelve active fire stations, four active substations with ten more currently being planned throughout the county. There are also two active fire stations in the City of Las Vegas. The County's Fire Division Fire Chief oversees all of the volunteer fire districts. Wildfires consist of approximately 90 percent of fire responses at the county fire districts with infrequent occurrence of structure fires responses.

6.11.2 Estimate of Potential Losses - Qualitative Analysis

In the course of updating this Plan, the MPG completed a qualitative risk assessment exercise. This exercise asked the representatives from each participating jurisdiction to rank the hazards in the Plan according to their potential to impact to their particular jurisdiction and specifically addressed in Chapter 5. Those impacts for this hazard were ranked high by San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos.

6.11.3 Estimate of Potential Losses - Quantitative Analysis

Identified critical assets within the US Forest Service's Wildland Fire Potential areas have the potential to be lost to wildfire. Those assets have been mapped onto the latest available wildfire risk maps according to jurisdiction. Maps and Tables 6.11.3-1 through 6.11.3.-3 show the locations and types of vulnerably assets.



Map 6.11.3-1 San Miguel County Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability

Table 6.11.3-1
San Miguel County Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability

Asset	Vulnerability				
Trementina Volunteer Fire Dept	High				
Storage Shed	High				
Water Tank	High				
Sapello Convenience Center	High				
Manuelitas Fire Department	High				
Volunteer Fire/Rescue Building	Very High				
Sapello-Rociada Substation	Very High				
Water Tank 1	Very High				
Water Tank 2	Very High				
Water Tank 3	Very High				
Water Tank	Very High				

Given the total asset value of the county, a wildfire impacting one percent of the total identified total building stock would result in as estimated \$16,537,380 loss.



Map 6.11.3-2 Las Vegas Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability

Table 6.11.3-2
Las Vegas Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability

Asset	Vulnerability						
Medical Facility House #317	High						
Medical Facility House #318	High						
Medical Facility House # 319	High						
Medical Facility House #320	High						
Medical Facility House # 322	High						
Industrial Trades Workshop	High						
Memorial Middle School	High						

Given the total asset value of the City of Las Vegas, a wildfire impacting one percent of the total identified properties would result in as estimated \$2,734,480 loss.



Map 6.11.3-3 Village of Pecos Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability

Table 6.11.3-3Village of Pecos Critical Asset Wildfire Vulnerability

Asset	Vulnerability
Pecos Valley Medical Center	High

Given the total asset value of the Village of Pecos, a wildfire impacting one percent of the total identified properties would result in as estimated \$1,145,000 loss.

6.11.4 Identified Data Limitations

Data that could be collected prior to the next update in order to develop a more detailed quantitative risk assessment includes:

- Data regarding building construction types and age;
- Building valuations for all assets within the county and municipal limits;
- Data regarding expected/project changes in development in all jurisdictions;
- Data regarding projected population changes.

This page is intentionally blank.

7. CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

7.1 Interim Final Rule for Assessing Capability

Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(ii)(C): [The plan **should** describe vulnerability in terms of] providing a general description of land uses and development trends within the community so that mitigation options can be considered in future land use decisions.

Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(ii): A section that identifies and analyzes a comprehensive range of specific mitigation actions and projects being considered to reduce the effects of each hazard, with particular emphasis on new and existing buildings and infrastructure. All plans approved by FEMA after October 1, 2008 **must** also address the jurisdiction's participation in the NFIP, and continued compliance with NFIP requirements, as appropriate.

7.2 Overview and Purpose of Capability Assessment

The purpose of conducting a capability assessment is to determine the ability of San Miguel County and its municipalities to implement a mitigation strategy.⁸⁶ As with any planning process, it is important to determine what actions are feasible based on an understanding of those departments tasked with their implementation. More specifically, the capability assessment helps to determine what mitigation actions are practical and likely to be implemented over time given the fiscal, technical, administrative and political framework of the community. It also provides an opportunity to assess existing plans, policies and processes in place. A careful analysis was conducted to detect any existing gaps, shortfalls or weaknesses within existing government activities that could exacerbate community vulnerability. The assessment also highlights positive measures already in place, which should continue to be supported and through future mitigation efforts.

7.3 Methodology

The Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 requires that local governments review and incorporate, if appropriate, existing plans, studies, reports and technical information into their hazard mitigation plans. Witt O'Brien's worked closely with the MPG to distribute a detailed *Local Capability Assessment Survey* to participating jurisdictions. A copy of the surveys can be found in Appendix H. The survey asked several detailed questions about existing local plans, policies, programs, and ordinances that contribute to and/or hinder that community's ability to implement hazard mitigation actions. In addition, the *Local Capability Assessment Survey* addressed each jurisdiction's administrative, technical, financial, education and outreach, and political capabilities, and included a jurisdictional self-assessment. The survey results provided an inventory of existing local plans, policies, programs and ordinances.

An inventory and analysis of previously implemented mitigation actions is also included as part of the capability assessment. This information provides a county-wide perspective of the efforts taken to reduce the effect of natural, technological and human-caused hazards on the planning area and

⁸⁶ While the Interim Final Rule for implementing the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 does not require a local capability assessment to be completed for local hazard mitigation plans, we believe that it is it a critical step to develop a mitigation strategy that meets the needs of each jurisdiction while taking into account their own unique abilities. However, the Rule does state that a community's mitigation strategy should be "based on existing authorities, policies, programs and resources, and its ability to expand on and improve these existing tools" (44 CFR, Part 201.6(c)(3)).

provides insight into the effectiveness of those efforts. Documenting past mitigation measures can also serve to help assess the degree to which local governments are willing to adopt future mitigation actions.

7.4 Federal and State Regulations, Plans, and Funding Sources

7.4.1 Summary of Regulations, Plans and Funding Sources

This section, including Table 7.4.1-1, provides summary information regarding selected federal and state regulations, plans, and sources of funding that are relevant to mitigation projects and activities.

	Program		Eligible I	Recipient		
Title	Туре	Administered By	County	Municipalities		
FEMA Public Assistance (PA)	Funding (Federal)	NMDHSEM, FEMA	Х	Х		
FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP)	Funding (Federal)	NMDHSEM, FEMA	Х	х		
FEMA Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM)	Funding (Federal)	NMDHSEM, FEMA	X	X		
FEMA/National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) Repetitive Flood Claims (RFC)	Funding (Federal)	NMDHSEM, FEMA	Х	Х		
FEMA/NFIP Severe Repetitive Loss (SRL)	Funding (Federal)	NMDHSEM, FEMA	Х	Х		
FEMA/NFIP Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA)	Funding (Federal)	NMDHSEM, FEMA	Х	Х		
Housing and Urban Development Community Development Block Grants (CDBG)	Funding (Federal)	NMDHSEM, FEMA	Х	Х		

Table 7.4.1-1 Summary of Selected State and Federal Regulations, Programs, and Funding Sources Relevant to Natural Hazard Mitigation

For many federal grants, the non-federal share can be borne by the state as *grantee*, the recipient community as *sub-grantee* or in some cases, the property owner who benefits from the project. In the case of property acquisitions intended to remove properties that experience repetitive flood losses, the non-federal share is typically covered by the property owner, who accepts the federal share of 75 percent and documents the lost equity as the non-federal share. This can serve as a disincentive to participation.

7.4.2 Implications of NMDHSEM Capabilities on Local Hazard Mitigation Efforts

State capabilities for hazard mitigation have an impact on the efficacy of local planning and implementation. The NMDHSEM Mitigation Unit provides plan development assistance to local jurisdictions upon request. Providing planning assistance is a daily affair as much of it is done via telephone calls and emails. The Mitigation Unit offers planning and project support, and coordinates and administers statewide floodplain management. The Mitigation Unit assists local governments with the identification and promotion of structural and non-structural mitigation practices. Unit personnel provide technical assistance from assisting with the identification of viable projects that will alleviate future damages, through providing oversight of the development of a project application ensuring compliance with program policy and professional design standards, to conducting site visits during construction to ensure all approved project plans are being followed through a final project inspection.⁸⁷ NMDHSEM also manages, supports, and provides training in floodplain management with the support of the New Mexico Floodplain Managers Association and the Silver Jackets New Mexico, a collaboration between the US Army Corps of Engineers, FEMA Region VI, and NMDHSEM to raise awareness of flood risks in NM Tribal communities.

NMDHSEM coordinates with FEMA on two earthquake assistance programs. In 2009, the Earthquake Hazards Reduction State Assistance Program awarded funds to develop EQ awareness through workshops in Spanish Language. Terramotos-NM has been initiated by following the lead of seismic experts at New Mexico Seismology Observation Center who suggested DHSEM provide outreach to a vulnerable population. In 2010, the *Earthquake Hazards Reduction State Assistance Program (EHRSAP)* awarded funding in order to support students at New Mexico Tech who developed an earthquake model. The students worked with county emergency managers along the Rio Grande Rift to GPS essential facilities – the Civil Engineering/Geology/Architecture students completed FEMA's Rapid Visual Screening of Buildings for Potential Seismic Hazards and provided an evaluation of seismic risk. The results were visually represented on a digital and hard-copy maps for county use.⁸⁸ The resulting documents, *Evaluating the Seismic Preparedness of New Mexico⁸⁹* and *Assessing the Seismic Preparedness of New Mexico⁹⁰* included San Miguel County and were used as part of the earthquake hazard assessment. Both documents can be accessed through the NMDHSEM website.

7.5 Capability Assessment for the Planning Area

The County and each municipality was asked to self-assess their capabilities, which are described in this section. Conclusions are presented, including a discussion of the approach used to develop meaningful mitigation strategies based on the capability and risk assessment findings.

⁸⁷ http://www.nmdhsem.org/Mitigation.aspx

⁸⁸ http://www.nmdhsem.org/Mitigation.aspx

⁸⁹ http://www.nmdhsem.org/uploads/files/Brochure.pdf

⁹⁰ http://www.nmdhsem.org/uploads/files/Preparedness/Mitigation/2010%20Earthquake%20State%20Assistance%20Grant%20-

^{%20}Entire%20report.pdf

7.5.1 Planning and Regulatory Capabilities

Hazard mitigation is widely recognized as one of the four primary pillars of emergency management. Other pillars include preparedness, response and recovery. In reality, each pillar is interconnected with hazard mitigation as Figure 7.5.1-1 suggests.



Figure 7.5.1-1 Hazard Mitigation and the Phases of Emergency Management

Planning for each phase is a critical part of a comprehensive emergency management program and a key to the successful implementation of hazard mitigation actions. As a result, the *Local Capability* Assessment Survey asks several questions across a range of emergency management plans in order to assess the jurisdiction's administrative, technical, and financial capabilities. The types of plans and regulatory capabilities are described below.

Comprehensive Plan: A comprehensive plan establishes the overall vision for a community and helps to guide municipal decision-making. Comprehensive planning is a continuous process to guide the development, redevelopment and investment of resources into a neighborhood, community, or county to promote an enhanced quality of life, infrastructure, and land use. Planning also helps economic development by facilitating a coordinated approach to needed investments and policies.91

In New Mexico, local comprehensive planning is supported by the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, Community Development Bureau, and offers funding, training, and technical assistance in community planning and development. The Community Development Bureau also administers the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program for the state.

⁹¹ New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration. Retrieved 10.30.13 from http://nmdfa.state.nm.us/Community_Planning_Home.aspx

Open Space Management Plan: An open space management plan establishes the process, standards, guidelines, and conditions for long-term open space conservation and management of the sensitive species and habitats within the planning area. It provides concepts and procedures to maintain and natural and archeological resources, opportunities for outdoor education, places for recreation. The open space management plan also defines the edges of the urban environment.

Natural Resources Protection Plan: Natural resources protection plans may be tied to local ordinances and larger comprehensive plans. They are generally designed to protect mature and young woodlands, steep slopes, natural water bodies (ponds and lakes), streams, rivers, shoreline buffers, and may elaborate on floodplain protection in concert with a floodplain management plan.

Capital Improvements Plan: A capital improvements plan guides the scheduling of spending on public improvements. A capital improvements plan can serve as an important mechanism to guide future development away from identified hazard areas. Limiting public spending in hazardous areas is one of the most effective long-term mitigation actions available to local governments.

Economic Development Plan: The purpose of the economic development plan is to allow public support of economic projects to foster, promote and enhance local economic development efforts while continuing to protect against the unauthorized use of public money and other public resources. Furthermore, the plan may allow contingencies, protocol, or procedures for local governments to enter into one or more joint powers agreements with other local governments to plan and support regional economic development projects.⁹²

Historic Preservation Plan: A historic preservation plan is intended to preserve historic structures or districts within a community. An often overlooked aspect of the historic preservation plan is the assessment of buildings and sites located in areas subject to natural hazards to include the identification of the most effective way to reduce future damages.⁹³ This may involve retrofitting or relocation techniques that account for the need to protect buildings that do not meet current building standards or are within a historic district that cannot easily be relocated out of harm's way.

Farmland Preservation Plan: A key response to farmland loss has been the use of agricultural conservation easements. Efforts have been advanced by the federal Farm and Ranch Lands Protection Program (FRPP), which provides matching funds to state and local Purchase of Agricultural Conservation Easement (PACE) programs, land trusts and tribal governments to buy conservation easements on farm and ranch land. Farmland preservation plans help keep land use designated for agriculture, improve agricultural viability, encourage on-farm conservation, and help farmers gain access to land.⁹⁴⁹⁵

Emergency Operations Plan: An emergency operations plan outlines the responsibilities of those responding to an emergency or disaster and the means by which resources are deployed. It focuses on the measures that are essential for protecting the public including warning, emergency public information, evacuation, and sheltering. The emergency operations plan established lines of authority and organizational relationships, shows how all actions will be coordinated, describes how people and property will be protected in emergencies and disasters, identifies personnel,

⁹² City of Las Vegas Economic Development Plan, §33-3

⁹³ See Protecting the Past from Natural Disasters. 1989. Nelson, Carl. National Trust for Historic Preservation: Washington, D.C.

⁹⁴ Retrieved 10.30.13. http://www.farmland.org/programs/protection/default.asp

⁹⁵ American Farmland Trust, Impacts of the Federal Farm and Ranch Lands Protection Programs: An Assessment Based on Interviews with Participating Landowners. June 2013. Print

equipment, facilities, supplies, and other resources available for use during response and recovery operations, and identifies steps to address mitigation concerns during response and recovery activities.

Disaster Recovery Plan: A disaster recovery plan serves to guide the physical, social, environmental and economic recovery of a community, including the physical reconstruction process following a disaster.

Evacuation Plan: Evacuation plans are designed procedures for quick and rapid movement of people away from a given threat (i.e. floods, tornados, fire). Evacuation plans may include voluntary and mandatory community evacuation considerations for large, community-wide hazards, or planning for smaller evacuation procedures to address localized incidents for an identified building or facility. Evacuation plans may include registration, transportation, sheltering, and/or feeding elements.

Floodplain Management Plan: Floodplain management is the operation of a community program of corrective and preventative measures for reducing flood damage. These measures take a variety of forms and generally include requirements for zoning, subdivision or building, and special-purpose floodplain ordinances. The general purpose of a floodplain management plan is to protect people and property from potential flood damages while maintaining good standing with FEMA's NFIP and CRS programs. Plans are also used to educate residents about the hazards of flooding, to suggest loss reduction measures, and to raise awareness of the beneficial functions of the floodplain.

Continuity of Operation Plan: A continuity of operations plan establishes a clear chain of command, line of succession, and plans for backup or alternate emergency facilities in case of an extreme emergency or disaster where normal operations or authorities are compromised. Continuity of operations plans help to maintain emergency and/or expedite normal government operations.

Transportation Plan: A transportation plan identifies the means to gauge transportation demands and the options to meet those needs, while considering the social, economic and environmental characteristics of the area. The development of transportation networks can significantly impact the amount, type and location of future growth. As a result, transportation planning can have a dramatic impact on future hazard vulnerability.

Stormwater Management Plan: A stormwater management plan is designed to address flooding associated with storm water runoff. The stormwater management plan is typically focused on design and construction measures that are intended to reduce the impact of more frequently occurring minor urban flooding.

Community Wildfire Protection Plan: The community wildfire protection plans are developed in concert and under guidelines of the federal Healthy Forest Restoration Act of 2003. The purpose of the plan generally includes promoting firefighter and public safety, identifying community risk, reducing fuel hazards, fire prevention programs and activities, and improving fire department response capacity.

Zoning Ordinances: Zoning represents the means by which land use is controlled by local governments. As part of a community's police power, zoning is used to protect the public health,

safety and welfare. A zoning ordinance is the mechanism through which zoning is typically implemented. Since zoning regulations enable municipal governments to limit the type and density of development, it can serve as a powerful tool when applied in identified hazard areas.

Subdivision Ordinances: A subdivision ordinance is intended to regulate the development of housing, commercial, industrial or other uses, including associated public infrastructure, as land is subdivided into buildable lots for sale or future development. Subdivision design that accounts for natural hazards can dramatically reduce the exposure of future development.⁹⁶

Fire and Building Codes, Permitting and Inspections: Building codes regulate construction standards. Decisions regarding the adoption of building codes, the type of permitting process required both before and after a disaster, and the enforcement of inspection protocols all affect the level of hazard risk faced by a community.

Floodplain ordinance/NFIP participation: Local floodplain regulations are tools used by counties and municipalities to regulate the type of construction that occurs in the floodplain. If a community is an NFIP participant, a Flood Ordinance or Court Order is in place.

Tables 7.5.1-1 and 7.5.1-2 provide a jurisdictional overview of the plans and codes/ordinances in place, followed by summary statistics of the *Local Capability Assessment Surveys*.

Jurisdiction	Comprehensive/Master Plan	Open Space Management Plan	Natural Resources Protection Plan	Capital Improvements Plan	Economic Development Plan	Historic Preservation Plan	Farmland Preservation Plan	Local Emergency Operations Plan	Disaster Recovery Plan	Evacuation Plan	Floodplain Management Plan	Continuity of Operations Plan	Transportation Plan	Stormwater Management Plan	Community Wildfire Protection Plan	Other plans
San Miguel County	Х			Х	Х			Х			Х	Х		Х	Х	
City of Las Vegas	Х			Х	Х			Х			Х	Х	Х			
Village of Pecos				Х				Х	Х	Х		Х				

Table 7.5.1-1Capability Assessment Findings - Plans

⁹⁶ For additional information regarding the use of subdivision regulations in reducing flood hazard risk, see *Subdivision Design in Flood Hazard Areas*. 1997. Morris, Marya. Planning Advisory Service Report Number 473. American Planning Association: Washington, D.C.

Jurisdiction	Fire Codes	Fire Department ISO Rating	Building Code	Bldg Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Site Plan Review Requirements	Zoning Regulations/Ordinance	Subdivision Regulations/Ordinance	Floodplain Regulations/Ordinance	Stormwater Regulations/Ordinance	Steep Slope Regulations/Ordinance	Wildfire Regulations/Ordinance	Other Regulations/Ordinance	NFIP/CRS/FIRMS	Land Acquisition Programs	FireWise Community	Storm Ready Community	Other
San Miguel County	Х	10/6	Х			Х	Х	Х			Х		Х				
City of Las Vegas	Х	5	Х		Х			Х					Х				
Village of Pecos	Х	6/9	Х		Х										Х		

Table 7.5.1-2Capability Assessment Findings – Codes and Ordinances

Self-assessments planning and regulatory capability for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos showed the following degrees of capability:

- San Miguel County Moderate
 - Funding sources need to be identified to develop and enhance these plans and ordinances
- City of Las Vegas High
 - The City needs to work on implementation of the designated plans
- Village of Pecos Moderate
 - The Village of Pecos needs to implement plans that address hazards that pose the greatest risk. Plans should be updated periodically to ensure applicable risks are addressed in terms of reduced risk.

Recommendations: Ongoing and continued involvement at all levels of the mitigation planning effort and increased outreach to municipalities in the future will enhance the participants' ability to successfully integrate the mitigation plan in their community's other planning efforts to reduce or eliminate losses to life and property by natural disasters.

7.5.2 Administrative and Technical Capability

Administrative and technical capability can be defined as possessing the skills and tools needed to improve decision-making, including the development of sound mitigation actions. Technical capability can be measured across three primary elements: 1) geographic information systems (GIS) and database management; 2) grants management; 3) hazard mitigation planning, 4) and warning systems and services. Measuring the degree to which each element is found in the planning area was conducted using the *Local Capability Assessment Survey* and through discussions with county and municipal staff.

Table 7.5.2-1 on the following page provides a jurisdictional overview of the administrative and technical capabilities in place, followed by summary statistics of the *Local Capability Assessment Surveys*.

				-								
Jurisdiction	Planning Commission	Mitigation Planning Committee	Risk Reduction Maintenance Programs	Mutual Aid Agreements	Chief Building Official	Floodplain Administrator/Manager	Emergency Manager	Community Planner	Civil Engineer	GIS Analyst/Tech/Coordinator	Land Surveyors	Grants writers/Managers
San Miguel County	Х	Х	X	Х		Х	Х	Х		Х		Х
City of Las Vegas		Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х				
Village of Pecos				Х								

Table 7.5.2-1Capability Assessment Findings – Administrative and Technical

Self-assessments for administrative and technical capability for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos showed the following degrees of capability:

- San Miguel County Limited
 - There is a need to identify a county wide emergency operation center and alert notification system. Staffing increase is needed to allow for data collection & processing of hazards and to be able to research for additional funding sources toward better grant writing applications for funding.

- City of Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos Limited
 - All architectural, engineering, and other technical capabilities are contracted out as the Village of Pecos staff does not have the capability to address technical issues.

Recommendations: The original results of the technical capability assessment highlighted a belief among those who filled out the survey that the existing capability could be improved. Continued focus on technical capabilities should be maintained and improved. Continued sharing of resources could significantly increase the level of technical capability to analyze natural hazards and continue develop meaningful actions to reduce their impact.

7.5.3 Financial Capability

The ability to take action is often closely associated with the amount of money available to implement policies and projects.⁹⁷ This may take the form of grants received or state and locally based revenue. The costs associated with policy and project implementation vary widely. In some cases, policies are tied primarily to staff costs associated with the creation and monitoring of a given program. In other cases, money is linked to an actual project, like the acquisition of flood-prone homes, which can require a substantial commitment from local, state and federal funding sources.

Table 7.5.3-1 provides a jurisdictional overview of the administrative and technical capabilities in place, followed by summary statistics of the *Local Capability Assessment Surveys*.

⁹⁷ Gaining access to federal, state or other sources of funding is often an overriding factor driving the development of hazard mitigation plans. However, an important objective of local governments seeking a more sustainable future is the concept of self-reliance. Over time, counties and municipalities should seek the means to become less dependent on federal assistance, developing a more diversified approach that assesses the availability of federal, state and locally generated funding to implement mitigation actions. Additional assistance may be available from the business and corporate sector as well as certain non-profit groups. This should be coupled with an attempt to identify mitigation measures that cost little or no money, yet may compliment the larger array of actions identified in the Plan.

Jurisdiction	Capital improvement programming/ project funding	Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes	Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services	Impact fees for new development	Stormwater utility fees	Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or special tax bonds	Incur debt through private activities	Community Development Block Grant (CDBG	Special purpose taxes	Other federal funding programs	State funding programs
San Miguel County	Х	Х						Х		Х	х
City of Las Vegas	Х		Х					Х		Х	
Village of Pecos	Х	Х	Х			Х		Х		Х	

Table 7.5.3-1Capability Assessment Findings – Financial Capability

Self-assessments for fiscal capability for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos showed the following degrees of capability:

- San Miguel County Limited
 - There is more need toward awareness for specific projects and their purpose to obtain funding sources available in an attempt to focus on mitigation.
- City of Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos Limited
 - The Village of Pecos is availing itself to future funding opportunities

Recommendations: The factors used in the self-assessment of local capability should be used as a general guide to help craft mitigation actions that are achievable. When considering the effect of financial capability on the implementation of policies and projects, jurisdictions should ask several questions:

- Does the action require a monetary commitment or staff resources;
- Can jurisdictions combine resources with other counties or municipalities to address identified problems; and
- Is the jurisdiction willing to commit local revenue on a sustained or one time basis?

7.5.4 Community Resiliency Capability

Community resiliency is often identified, defined, and improved through community education and outreach programs. Resiliency may include school programs, community special interest groups, ongoing public service announcements, public-private partnerships, and government led community safety certification programs. Community education and outreach programs are often some of the least expensive mitigation activities providing the greatest reach to the community.

Table 7.5.4-1 on the following page provides a jurisdictional overview of the administrative and technical capabilities in place, followed by summary statistics of the *Local Capability Assessment Surveys*.

Jurisdiction	Local citizen groups or non-profit organizations focused on environmental protection, emergency preparedness, access and functional needs populations, etc.	Ongoing public education or information program	Natural disaster or safety related school programs	StormReady certification	FireWise Communities certification	Public-private partnership initiatives addressing disaster-related issues	Other
San Miguel County	Х	Х				Х	
City of Las Vegas	Х	Х				Х	
Village of Pecos	Х						

Table 7.5.4-1Capability Assessment Findings – Community Resiliency Capability

Self-assessments for community political capability for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos showed the following degrees of capability:

- San Miguel County Moderate
 - The County would like to see a staff position be dedicated to community out-reach to be able to improve in these areas.
- City of Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos Limited
2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Capability Assessment

• The Village would consider implementing specific programs that are applicable to the geographic and demographic characteristics of the local environment.

Recommendations: Typically, larger municipalities and more urban areas/counties wield more political capital than municipalities and rural areas/counties. Continued awareness and promotion through education efforts regarding the importance and cost effectiveness of mitigation may be beneficial in creating a political atmosphere where regulations and ordinance designed to protect life and the loss of property is more accepted.

7.5.5 Community Political Capability

One of the most difficult and sensitive capabilities to evaluate involves the political will of a jurisdiction to enact meaningful policies and projects designed to reduce the impact of future events. Despite this, the ability of a jurisdiction to enact policies to mitigate against hazards is essential in reducing risks from those hazards, however often the climate is not conducive, the fiscal capability is absent, and the expertise to create the policy is not present, or a combination of those factors and others prevent enactment.

Local political capabilities were assessed for willingness to adopt programs or policies. The assessment used a sliding scale from zero (0) to five (5), zero being unwilling and five being very willing. Table 7.5.5-1 provides a jurisdictional overview of the local political capabilities in place, followed by summary statistics of the *Local Capability Assessment Surveys*.

Jurisdiction	Unwilling	Somewhat unwilling	Very willing
San Miguel County		3	
City of Las Vegas			5
Village of Pecos		3	

Table 7.5.5-1Capability Assessment Findings – Local Political Capability

Self-assessments for community political capability for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos showed the following degrees of capability:

- San Miguel County Limited
- City of Las Vegas High
- Village of Pecos Limited

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Capability Assessment

Recommendations: Typically, larger municipalities and more urban areas/counties wield more political capital than municipalities and rural areas/counties. Continued awareness and promotion through education efforts regarding the importance and cost effectiveness of mitigation may be beneficial in creating a political atmosphere where regulations and ordinance designed to protect life and the loss of property is more accepted.

7.6 Hazard Mitigation Programs and Projects

The success of future mitigation efforts in a community can be gauged by past efforts. Previously implemented mitigation measures indicate that there is, or has been in the past, some political desire to reduce the effects of natural, technological, or human-caused hazards on the community. Past success of these projects can also be influential in building support for new mitigation efforts. For the Plan, all identified hazards are addressed in the document, but it remains understood that only natural hazards are eligible for FEMA mitigation program funding.

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Projects

The Federal Emergency Management Agency's Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) provides competitive funding to states and local governments for the implementation of long-term hazard mitigation measures following a presidential disaster declaration. Grants are awarded to permanently reduce or eliminate future damages and losses from natural hazards. Each jurisdiction completing the capability assessment survey was asked for information regarding their HMGP projects. The information was collected, and the results are listed in Table 7.6-1.

Jurisdiction	HMGP Project Description	Status
San Miguel County	LPDM-PL-06-NM-2010-001 for the San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan in the amount of \$130,718.22 (Feds-\$98,038.22/County-\$32,680.00). There is \$336,663.60 remaining in the fund and projects for that funding will be identified through the mitigation planning process.	Currently under development

Table 7.6-1HMGP Projects in San Miguel County

The following tables provide information on local building and fire codes within the County. Where available, the date and type of codes in use has been listed.

Table 7.6-2Fire Codes and ISO Ratings in the Planning Area

Jurisdiction	Locally Adopted Fire Codes	Current State Fire Code	ISO Rating
San Miguel County	None	10.25.10 NMAC	6/10
City of Las Vegas	None	10.25.10 NMAC	5
Village of Pecos	None	10.25.10 NMAC	6/9

Jurisdiction	Adopted Building Codes	Current Building Code (Type and Date)				
San Miguel County	None	N/A				
City of Las Vegas	Yes	2009				
Village of Pecos	State Code	14.7 MNAC – Building Codes, 2103				

Table 7.6-3Building Codes in the Planning Area

Floodplain Management Programs in San Miguel County

Sound floodplain management involves a series of programs designed to reduce flood-related damages. Programs such as the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), the Community Rating System (CRS), and the Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) program provide the framework needed to implement a successful floodplain management program. The NFIP contains specific regulatory measures that enable government officials to determine where and how growth occurs relative to flood hazards. Each county or municipality in the NFIP has adopted a Local Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, which requires jurisdictions to follow established minimum building standards in the floodplain. Another key service provided by the NFIP is the mapping of identified flood hazard areas. Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) and Digital Flood Insurance Rate Maps (DFIRMs) are used to assess flood hazard risk and set flood insurance rates. The maps also provide an important tool to educate residents, government officials, and the business community about the likelihood of flooding in their community. Table 7.6-4 shows a summary of flood insured properties by jurisdiction. According to local and state records, there have be no recorded NFIP insurance claims in San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, or the Village of Pecos.

Table 7.6-4Summary of NFIP Policies by County and Municipality in the Planning Area(As June 30, 2013)

Community Name	Policies In-force	Insurance In-force	Written Premium In-force
San Miguel County	36	\$7,061,200	\$71,621
City of Las Vegas	100	\$13,458,300	\$90,714
Village of Pecos	0	N/A	N/A

Source: FEMA Community Information Service (CIS)

Table 7.6-5 provides details of each participating jurisdiction's FIRM effective dates and date of entry into the National Flood Insurance Program. Unless listed below, all participating jurisdictions are members of the NFIP in good standing, as of the development of this Plan. This means that they currently meet all requirements of membership in the NFIP, including adoption and enforcement of a flood damage prevention ordinance.

As of May 2012, 99 communities in the State of New Mexico participate in the NFIP. All jurisdictions in San Miguel County are part of that program. Of the top 50 communities (in terms of total flood insurance policies held by residents, only 11 in the state participate in the Community Rating

System. Currently, none of the jurisdictions in this plan are participating members of the Community Rating Service (CRS).⁹⁸

Jurisdiction	Initial FHBM* Identified	Initial FIRM** Identified	Current Effective Map Date	Program Entry Date	
San Miguel County	08/16/1977	10/01/1995	12/03/2010	10/01/1995	
City of Las Vegas	06/28/1974	04/19/1983	12/03/2010	09/18/1986	
Village of Pecos	06/27/1975	12/03/2010	12/03/2010	06/27/1976	

Table 7.6-5 Floodplain Management Program Participation Information for the Planning Area

Source: FEMA Community Status Book Report <u>http://www.fema.gov/cis/NM.pdf</u>

*Flood Hazard Boundary Map

**Flood Insurance Rate Map

Community Assistance Visits

State and federal floodplain management officials occasionally perform Community Assistance Visits (CAVs). A CAV is performed to review the local floodplain management program and note any deficiencies. San Miguel County officials sent a letter to FEMA requesting information on CAVs conducted over the past 15 years for the participating jurisdictions. FEMA responded that they could not provide this information because of limited manpower and because community files are purged on a regular basis.

San Miguel County had their first scheduled CAV visit for November 2013. The results of the visit were not available during the planning period of this hazard mitigation plan.

7.7 Summary and Conclusions

The capability of the County and local governments varies greatly, but a goals toward overall higher capability are evident. One of the most significant survey findings is the existence of several planning programs and tools already in use across the planning area. However, many of the processes and tools do not incorporate hazard mitigation practices. Combining the findings in this Plan with local community development plans and ordinances will improve mitigation practices throughout the planning area. The maintained use of the following Mitigation Action Plan will also provide the vehicle to continued and improved mitigation capabilities. This will include a continued educational effort to clearly articulate the benefits of participating in and sustaining the mitigation planning process through the Plan Implementation and Maintenance program.

⁹⁸ Flood Insurance Policies and Community Rating System Participation, State of New Mexico. Print.

8. MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

8.1 Interim Final Rule for Mitigation Action Plans

Requirement §201.6(c)(3): [The plan **shall** include the following] a mitigation strategy that provides the jurisdiction's blueprint for reducing the potential losses identified in the risk assessment, based on existing authorities, policies, programs, and resources, and its ability to expand on and improve these existing tools. This section **shall** include:

Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(i): A description of mitigation goals to reduce or avoid long-term vulnerabilities to the identified hazards.

Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(ii): A section that identifies and analyzes a comprehensive range of specific mitigation actions and projects being considered to reduce the effects of each hazard, with particular emphasis on new and existing buildings and infrastructure. All plans approved by FEMA after October 1, 2008 **must** also address the jurisdiction's participation in the NFIP, and continued compliance with NFIP requirements, as appropriate.

Requirement: §201.6(c)(3)(iii): An action plan describing how the actions identified in section (c)(3)(ii) will be prioritized, implemented, and administered by the local jurisdiction. Prioritization **shall** include a special emphasis on the extent to which benefits are maximized according to a cost benefit review of the proposed projects and their associated costs.

Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(iv): For multi-jurisdictional plans, there **must** be identifiable action items specific to the jurisdiction requesting FEMA approval or credit of the plan.

The purpose of this section is to describe San Miguel County mitigation program goals and objectives.

8.2 Mitigation Action Planning Methodology

The MPG has identified and prioritized goals, objectives, and actions based on hazard-specific information provided in this Plan. The methodology to determine priorities was based upon a consensus of the MPG. Factors considered included benefit-cost effectiveness, and technical feasibility.

In order to evaluate potential actions, the participating jurisdiction representatives utilized the FEMA recommended mitigation planning criteria, which provides a systematic approach weighing the pros and cons of potential mitigation actions. The criteria encompasses evaluation of the following:

- Life Safety How effectively will the action protect lives and prevent injuries?
- **Property Protection** How significant will the action be at eliminating or reducing damage to structures and infrastructure?
- **Technical** Is the mitigation action technically feasible? Is it a long-term solution? Eliminate actions that, from a technical standpoint, will not meet the goals.
- **Political** Does the public support the mitigation action? Is there the political will to support it?
- Legal Does the community have the authority to implement the action?

- **Environmental** What are the potential environmental impacts of the action? Will it comply with environmental regulations?
- **Social** Will the proposed action adversely affect one segment of the population? Will the action disrupt established neighborhoods, break up voting districts, or cause the relocation of lower income people?
- **Administrative** Does the community have the personnel and administrative capabilities to implement the action and maintain it, or will outside help be necessary?
- **Local Champion** Is there a strong advocate for the action or project among local departments and agencies who will support the action's implementation?
- **Other Community Objectives** Does the action advance other community objectives, such as capital improvements, economic development, environmental quality, or open space preservation? Does it support the policies of the comprehensive plan?

Each of the mitigation actions was evaluated on the above-listed criteria and rated as follows:

- 0 = Not likely 1 = Neutral
- 2 = Likely

The overall score across all metrics was tallied and given a priority based on the following scoring matrix:

<8 = Low 8-12 = Moderate >13 = High

The complete methodology and prioritization worksheets are provided in Appendix G.

8.3 Mitigation Goals and Objectives

The San Miguel County Comprehensive Plan vision was reviewed to understand the county's priorities. The vision, listed below, emphasizes cultural and environmental preservation while utilizing those assets to enhance economic development efforts.

San Miguel County Comprehensive Plan Community Vision:

- To create a better quality of life for citizens.
- Better jobs to retain children in the community.
- Planned, focused "Smart" growth principles.
- Include all of the stakeholders in the decision-making process.
- Create an integrated plan for the future.
- Cultural heritage preservation.

Based on that vision, the MPG decided on the following mitigation action goals and objectives:

1. Reduce vulnerability of the entire range of populations of citizens including vulnerable populations.

- Objective 1.1—Promote partnerships between jurisdictions to encourage and facilitate coordination of planning and development initiatives, particularly on developments of multi-jurisdictional impact
- Objective 1.2—Create, implement and improve systems that provide warning and inter-jurisdictional emergency communications
- Objective 1.3—Enhance the local governments' ability to notify the public at risk and provide emergency instruction during a disaster
- 2. Reduce vulnerability of property damage, public and private, including all educational institutions & facilities.
 - Objective 2.1—Increase the county and municipal control over development, especially in high hazard areas
 - Objective 2.2—Implement programs that seek to remove residential structures from high hazard areas
 - Objective 2.3—Implement projects that involve the construction of structures designed to reduce the impact of a hazard, such as dams, floodwalls, retaining walls, safe rooms, etc., or such structural modifications as the elevation or relocation of bridges, the anchoring of manufactured housing, or a retrofit of an existing building
- 3. Reduce vulnerability of major infrastructure.
 - Objective 3.1—Ensure that infrastructure, equipment and support systems are maintained and/or upgraded to support emergency services response and recovery operations
 - *Objective 3.2* Promotion of partnerships between jurisdictions is an excellent idea as potential funding opportunities could be enhanced. The private non-profit SPWUA is limited in capital improvement project funds and would not be able to finance the improvements to the headgates within their budget.
 - Objective 3.3—Improve overhead utility line networks to reduce vulnerability to direct and indirect impacts by hazard events
- 4. Improve emergency response capabilities through process and communication efficiencies.
 - Objective 4.1—Ensure that emergency services organizations are prepared and have the capability to detect and promptly respond to emergency situations.
 - Objective 4.2—Maximize intergovernmental coordination on the effective use of emergency response resources during response, including vital communications between multiple agencies in emergency situations
 - Objective 4.3—Increase emergency capacities to properly equip emergency shelters in order to improve emergency response and large-scale evacuations
- 5. Protect historic building stock.
 - *Objective 5.1—Reduce the vulnerability of historic facilities that are important to the community*
 - Objective 5.2—Strive to involve the private sector, local historians, and local and state historic preservation entities in participating in mitigation planning efforts
- 6. Educate the populace about potential hazards and how to prepare for a hazardous event.
 - Objective 6.1—Develop outreach programs focused on increasing public education to increase awareness of hazards and their associated risks
 - Objective 6.2—Develop outreach programs focused on increasing participation in mitigation programs by business, industry, institutions and community groups

1 8.4 Mitigation Actions

- 2 Tables 8.4-1 through 8.4-3 on the following pages list the mitigation actions for San Miguel County,
- 3 the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. In compliance with recognized mitigation planning
- 4 standards, each community has identified and prioritized at least 2 mitigation actions per identified
- 5 hazard. Actions are listed in order High, Moderate, and Low priority
- 6 Each mitigation actions identifies the hazard it addresses, status of the project, responsibly party,
- target completion date, estimated cost, potential funding sources, action priority, benefit-cost, and
 technical feasibility
- 8 technical feasibility.

Table 8.4-1San Miguel County Mitigation Actions

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Conduct fie	ld testing & sampling	of surface and s	sub-surface v	vater source	es				
1.1.1	Drought	San Miguel County	N/A	New	San Miguel County	24 months	\$500,000	HMGP, USGA, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost.	Regional & County-wic	le mitigation pro	oject that bene	efits all jurisc	lictions in the identif	fying of location	s for additiona	al water sources	
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: This project requires the collaboration of multi-jurisdictions and needs to be identified within the regional water plans								
Well explor	ation to identify potal	ble water supp	ies						
1.1.2	Drought	San Miguel County	N/A	New	San Miguel County	36 months	\$1,000,000	HMGP, USGA, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost.	: This is a need to impro	ve on identifyin	g additional w	ater sources	for the health, safet	y and well-being	g of the citizen	s county-wide	
Technical Fe	asibility: This will depe	end on identified	site locations	and water u	sers rights				
Develop wa	iter storage/hydrant s	ystems in for r	aw, drinking	and effluen	t water.				
1.1.5	Drought, Flood, Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	New	SMC/CLV/Pecos Fire & Public Works	36 months	\$900,000	HMP, Fire Funds,	Н
Benefit-Cost.	: Increase the water sto	rage capabilities	toward fire s	uppression, i	rrigation and drinki	ng water for citi	zens		
Technical Fe environmen	<i>asibility:</i> Cost will need tal studies required	to be a collabora	ative effort wi	th local juris	dictions and private	non-profit orga	nizations poss	ible hydrologic &	
Construct a	tower and transpond	er to have the a	bility to rece	eive NOAA w	eather alert notific	cation and pure	hase NOAA r	adios for public fa	cilities
and vulnera	able populations to re	ceive these me	ssages			-		-	
	High Wind,								
122	Thunderstorm,	San Miguel	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM &	24 months	\$300.000	HMGP, NOAA,	Н
1.2.2	Severe Winter Weather Tornado	County	11/11	ive w	NOAA	2 1 11011113	\$500,000	LOCAL	11
Benefit-Cost.	Project is to obtain an	early warning w	eather system	n countv-wid	e				
Technical Fe	asibility: Costs should l	be through NOA	A but budget r	estraints rec	uire local jurisdictio	ons support			
Implement	a county-wide mass n	otification/em	ergency mess	saging syste	m to provide a cent	tralized notific	ation system		

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
1.2.3	Dam Failure, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM	12 months	\$36,000	HMP, SHSGP, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost. messages to	Benefit-Cost: This system is a county-wide benefit. This project will allow immediate notice to citizens as well as regional contacts toward early warning messages toward all hazard events								
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The initial cos	t is minimal but	will require lo	ocal jurisdicti	ons to support on-go	oing maintenand	ce		
Design & de	evelop an OEM web-sit	te that provide	s drop down	links toward	l mitigation/prepa	redness/respo	onse/recovery	y and identify fun	ding
sources tov	vard hailstorm mitiga	tion programs	1	1	Γ	•	1	•	r
	Dam Failure, Drought, Extreme								
1.3.1	Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	New and Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$5,000	HMGP,LOCAL	Н
1.3.1 Benefit-Cost.	Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire : This will be an accessil	San Miguel County ble web-site to a	New and Existing nyone that wi	New Ill want to ob	SMC/LV OEM tain information tow	24 months vard this hazard	\$5,000 , and additiona	HMGP,LOCAL	H
1.3.1 Benefit-Cost Technical Fe	Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire : This will be an accessil casibility: Cost and outre	San Miguel County ble web-site to a each will need to	New and Existing inyone that wi be supported	New Ill want to ob	SMC/LV OEM tain information tow sdictions toward the	24 months 24 months vard this hazard e set-up of the in	\$5,000 , and addition itial web-site	HMGP,LOCAL al outreach informa design and will req	H ation uire
1.3.1 Benefit-Cost Technical Fe minimal ma	Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire : This will be an accessil casibility: Cost and outre	San Miguel County ble web-site to a each will need to	New and Existing nyone that wi	New Il want to ob	SMC/LV OEM tain information tow sdictions toward the	24 months vard this hazard e set-up of the in	\$5,000 , and additiona itial web-site	HMGP,LOCAL al outreach informa design and will req	H ation uire
1.3.1 Benefit-Cost. Technical Fe minimal ma Create a ce	Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire This will be an accessil casibility: Cost and outre intenance and cost	San Miguel County ble web-site to a each will need to stem to be able	New and Existing myone that wi be supported to obtain/co	New Il want to ob by local juri mpile/disse	SMC/LV OEM tain information tow sdictions toward the minate information	24 months vard this hazard e set-up of the in n for all hazard	\$5,000 , and additiona itial web-site	HMGP,LOCAL al outreach informa design and will req pping, assessment	H ation uire s, cost

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
1.3.2	Dam Failure, Drought, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	New	SMC Internet Technology Division	18 months	\$60,000	HMP, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost: The ability to obtain data in a centralized location for the prevention, protection, response, mitigation, and recovery toward all hazard events									
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require th	ie enhancement	of an existing	system with	hardware and softw	vare that needs	support by lo	cal jurisdictions	
Identify flo	od prone areas in the	county and des	ign effective	water drain	age systems to min	imize flooding		1	1
2.2.1	Flood	San Miguel County	New and Existing	New	SMC Public Works	36 months	\$2,000,000	HMGP, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Minimize disaster reco	overy assistance	request, prop	erty damage,	, reoccurring damage	es, and minimize	e manpower u	sage	
Technical Fe	asibility: This will requi	ire, engineer des	igning, possib	le permitting	g requirements by su	ipporting jurisd	ictions		
Re-design a	nd construction of the	e diversion gate	es to handle i	ncrease wat	er flows during flo	ods or heavy ra	ains		1
2.3.1	Dam Failure, Flood	San Miguel County	N/A	New	Storrie Water users association	36 months	\$9000,000	HMGP, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost:	minimizes the flood wa	aters that effect	the public infr	astructure, r	esidences and busin	ess districts of t	he City of Las	Vegas	
Technical Fe	asibility: The installatio	on of remotely m	anageable, au	tomated Lan	gemann (or compara	able) headgates	would elimina	te the safety conce	rns
associated w	vith the current antiqua	ted, original hea	dgates.						
Identify, de	sign, & construct a lev	ee control syst	em within th	e county riv	er basins to lower	the water flows	s during a dai	n failure	T
2.3.2	Dam Failure, Flood	San Miguel County	N/A	New	San Miguel County	36 months	\$3,000,000	HMGP, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Mitigation project to a	ttempt to slow fl	ash flooding v	vaters towar	d the safety of life ar	nd property to th	he City of Las V	/egas	
Technical Fe	asibility: As long as the	re is identified C	ounty propert	y along the r	iver channel or ease	ment rights are	available		
Improve an	d protect existing cul	verts, arroyos, a	and acequias	, and install	new culverts withi	n the county as	s needed to re	educe flooding co	unty-wide

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority	
2.3.7	Flooding	San Miguel County	Existing	Not started	Public Works, PNP Community Ditches & Acequias	2014-2019	\$250,000	Mitigation grant funding from DR 1435 and external sources	Н	
Benefit-Cost:	Conduct inspection on	existing areas a	nd improve w	ith maintena	nce and hardening o	of existing system	ns county-wie	le		
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: Cost will need to be a collaborative effort with local jurisdictions and private non-profit organizations possible hydrologic & environmental studies required									
Install a ger	nerator at each of the	Fire and Police	Stations to r	educe vulne	rability to power-o	utages during	hazard event	s.		
3.1.5	Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, High Wind, Landslide,, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos Fire	24-36 months	\$1,350,000	HMGP, Fire Funds,	Н	
Benefit-Cost:	Mitigation project to a	llow for Continu	ity of operatic	ons during all	hazard events					
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost of ele	ctrical installation	on and equipn	nent would n	eed to be supported	by local jurisdie	ctions and firs	t responders		
Research vu	ulnerable infrastructu	re and harden	/improve wa	ter/sewer s	anitation services i	n identified ar	eas	1		
3.1.7	Pandemic/ Epidemic	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	Alta Vista Regional Hospital	24-36 months	\$1,000.000	DOH/HMPG/ SHSGP/LOCAL	Н	
Benefit-Cost:	Mitigation project to b	e able to continu	e services for	patients in n	eed of medical servi	ces and continu	ity of business	5		
Technical Fe	asibility: The local juris	diction will be re	equired to wo	rk with priva	te sector on this pro	ject				
Research fu	Inding opportunities a	and garner sup	port for repa	ir to the res	ervoir seepage area	a.		1		
3.2.3	Flooding, Dam failure	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	SMC & CLV	6-12 months	N/A	N/A	Н	
Benefit-Cost:	Minimal to no cost pro	ject and county	& city wide be	enefit to obta	in assistance					
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Local jurisdict	ions will need to	support this	program						
Gallinas Fu	els Reduction project		[[
4.1.1	Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	Ongoing	Forestry	2014-2019	\$1,000,000	US Forest, USDA,HMP ,Local	Н	

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Benefit-Cost: Mitigation project to conduct fuel treatment toward wildfire safety and water conservation									
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Costs will be a	ssociated with s	upport from f	ederal, state,	and local agencies t	o include the pri	ivate sector		
Develop en	ergency evacuation a	nd sheltering p	lans			•	-		
4.1.3	Terrorism	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$50,000	HMPG/SHSGP/ LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost.	Allow first responders	the ability to as	sist communit	ties during al	l hazard events				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require re	esearching and i	dentifying are	as within a 4	700 square mile are	a with 514 mile:	s of roads.		
Identify cri	tical infrastructure fac	cilities to instal	l generator h	ook-ups and	d purchase mobile	generators to u	use in power	outages	
4.2.2	Severe Winter Weather	San Miguel County	Existing	New	All jurisdictions	24 months	\$600,000	HMGP, EMPG	Н
Benefit-Cost.	: The need to provide se	ervices through t	the Continuity	of operation	s/ Continuity of Gov	vernment			
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require el	ectrical designin	ng of facilities'	and purchas	e of equipment sup	ported by local j	urisdictions		
Identify ser	nior centers, communi	ity centers, and	schools thro	ughout the o	county that can be	used for heatin	g/cooling sta	tions and install g	enerator
hook ups, t	owable generators and	d electric A/C 8	k heating com	bination sy	stems			<u>.</u>	
4.3.1	Extreme Heat, Severe Winter Weather	San Miguel County	Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$500,000	HMGP, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost.	: This is a county-wide p	project that bene	efits toward ci	tizens safety,	, health and well-bei	ng. This will ens	sure citizens ha	ave a location to re	nain
either warm	or cool in extreme even	nts							
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost of ele	ctrical installati	on and equipn	nent would n	eed to be supported	l by local jurisdi	ctions		
Research a	nd implement localize	d drainage pro	jects in the r	epetitive los	s areas to reduce f	lood potential	and impacts.		
5.2.1	Flood	San Miguel County	Existing	Not started	SMC,CLV, PECOS	12-36 MONTHS	\$200,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	Н
Benefit-Cost.	Reduce the risk to com	munities living	in the area: R	educe the cos	st of repetitive loss t	o structures in S	SFHA		
Technical Fe	asibility: Identify and p	rioritize special	projects for re	egional draina	age projects for legis	slative funding			
Increase pu	blic awareness of haz	ards and hazar	dous areas. I	Distribute pu	ublic awareness in	formation rega	rding potenti	al mitigation mea	sures
using the lo	cal newspaper, utility	bill inserts, ins	serts in the p	hone book, o	county websites, a	nd educational	programs for	school age childr	en or
"how to" cla	asses in retrofitting by	v local merchan	ts. Integrate	"Disaster Re	esistance Education	n" into the pub	lic school cur	riculum.	

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
6.1.4	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Pandemic/Epidemic , Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	On-going	SMC/LV OEM	12-24 months	\$30,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	Н
Benefit-Cost.	: Obtain educational ma	terials and deve	lop outreach j	programs tov	vard all hazard even	ts			
Technical Fe	easibility: The cost and easibility: The cost and easibility	outreach will ne	ed to be suppo	orted by local	ljurisdictions				
Develop, de	eliver, and maintain Fi	reWise progra	ms in the cou	nty.	1	1	1		
6.2.1	Wildfire	San Miguel County	New and Existing	Ongoing	Forestry	6 months/on going	\$10,000	US Forest, State Fire, Local Fire	Н
Benefit-Cost.	: Help communities cou	nty-wide benefit	t toward orga	nizing and fir	nding direction for th	neir wildfire safe	ety efforts and	fuel mitigation	
Technical Fe	<i>easibility:</i> The cost and c	outreach is cover	ed by US Fore	stry and loca	al first responders de	epending on con	nmunity partic	cipation	
Conduct a n	nore in depth hazard a	analysis for wil	dfires and th	eir effects o	n residences, infras	structure, wate	r supplies, ar	d the economy.	
1.1.6	Wildfire, Drought	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos Fire	12-24 months	\$25,000	HMGP, Fire Funds,	М
Benefit-Cost.	: Up-date the current CV	WPP to include t	he infrastruct	tures, water s	supplies and econom	nic impact towar	d wildfires		
Technical Fe	<i>easibility:</i> cost and outre	ach is covered b	y fire funds a	nd supported	by local jurisdiction	15			
Join the Co	mmunity Rating Syste	m (CRS) and pu	rsue opportu	inities to im	prove CRS ratings	1	1	I	
1.1.7	Flood	San Miguel County	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/LV/Pecos Planning & zoning, Community Development	12-24 months	NONE	HMPG/LOCAL	М

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Benefit-Cost:	County-wide project w	hich benefits pr	operty owner	s in lowering	insurance rates				
Technical Fe	asibility: Local jurisdict	tions need to sup	oport the prog	gram and con	tinue to participate				
Install flash	ing roadside emerger	ncy notification	signs to advi	ise of an emo	ergency, web anno	uncement, & Al	M Radio Broa	dcast with addition	onal
instruction	S	ſ	ſ	1	1	1	1	1	1
1.2.1	Hazardous Materials	San Miguel County	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$200,000	HMGP,HMEP, LOCAL	М
Benefit-Cost:	This is a county-wide p	project which wi	ll allow for an	early warnir	ng system toward lif	e safety issues in	n all-hazard ev	vents	
Technical Fe	asibility: Will need to in	nstall signs along	g major state a	and public ro	adways, that integra	ted with existin	g Highway adv	visory system and s	supported
by local juris	sdictions								
Research a	nd identify public war	ning systems tl	nat use redur	ndant means	of contact to reacl	n stakeholders	and the com	nunity to deliver a	and
receive info	prmation regarding ha	zards, threats,	impacts, and	damage. Pu	rchase, install, and	l implement th	e warning sys	stem.	
1.2.4	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Pandemic/Epidemic , Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	SMCLV OEM	12-18 months	NONE	HMPG. LOCAL	М
Benefit-Cost:	This system is a county	y-wide benefit. T	'his project wi	ill allow imm	ediate notice to citiz	ens as well as re	egional contac	ts toward early wa	rning
messages to	ward all hazard events								
Technical Fe	asibility: Minimal to no	cost to local juri	sdictions tow	ard researchi	ing and identifying	potential solutio	ns		
Research th	e feasibility and bene	fits of becomin	g a NOAA Sto	rmReady Co	ommunity	1	1	1	1
1.2.5	Flood, Hailstorm, High Winds, Thunderstorm, Tornado,	San Miguel County	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	6-12 months	NONE	NOAA/LOCAL	М

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
Benefit-Cost.	Assist communities an	d NOAA with up	-date weather	related data	ı toward all hazard e	vents.					
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost and outr	each is covered	by NOAA and	minimal cos	ts to local jurisdictio	ns, but support	is needed				
Install outd	oor early warning sys	tems at local p	arks, athletic	fields, and	on educational inst	itution campus	ses				
1.3.3	Dam Failure, Flood, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	36 months	\$200,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	М		
Benefit-Cost	This project is an early	y warning system	n that benefit	s the commu	nities county-wide t	o ensure an earl	y warning sys	tem toward all haz	ard events		
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: The cost and outreach will need to be conducted by local jurisdictions and first responders										
Work with	the state and USDA NE	RCS to install ad	lditional high	-elevation S	NOTEL stations in	the Sangre de (Christo Moun	tains and Glorieta	Mesa		
1.3.4	Drought	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	SMCLV OEM	24-36 months	\$50,000	HMPG/USDA/ NRCS/USGS	М		
Benefit-Cost	: Installation SNOTEL st er resource managemen	ations will assis t in drought con	t in flood cont ditions.	rol, and rete	ntion measures in th	e county. It will	help to reduc	e flood impacts and	l improve		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Installation of	SNOTEL station	s will require	coordination	, maintenance, and 1	nanagement agi	reements with	the state and USD	A NRCS.		
Work with Pecos River	USGS to install continu ;, and the Gallinas Rive	uous monitorin er 1000' south (g stream gag of the diversi	es on Tecolo on gate.	ote Creek, the Conc	has River (abo	ve the lake), t	he Canadian Rive	r, the		
1.3.5	Drought	San Miguel County	N/A	Not Started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos, watershed associations	24 months	\$50,000	USGS, Local	М		
Benefit-Cost impacts and	Installation of stream improve overall water	gauges will assis resource manag	t in water ma gement in drou	nagement, flo 1ght conditio	ood control, and rete ns.	ntion measures	in the county.	It will help to redu	ice flood		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Installation of	stream gauges v	vill require co	ordination, n	naintenance, and ma	nagement agree	ements with U	SGS.			
Develop loc	Develop local building ordinances that require 1'-2' of freeboard in designated flood zones.										
2.1.4	2.1.4FloodSan Miguel CountyNewNot StartedSMC,CLV, PECOS12-24 MONTHS\$5000County, City FundsM										
Benefit-Cost.	Reduce the cost of rep	etitive loss to str	ructures in SF	HA: Reduce t	he risk to communit	ies living in the	area				
Technical Fe	echnical Feasibility: Local jurisdictions will need to support this program to adopt and modify the Floodplain Ordinance that exceeds current local										
requiremen	equirements.										

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
Improve on	state building codes	through local m	odifications	that meet o	r exceed state and	national model	s by ordinand	ce, which would re	esult in		
2.1.5	Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, High Wind, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	New	Not started	SMC Planning & Zoning Division	24-36 months	\$75,000.00	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	М		
Benefit-Cost:	To develop a county-w	vide enforceable	building code	that enhanc	e structural safety co	ounty-wide in or	der to minimi	ze property damag	e		
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: No cost for jurisdictions to have an ordinance developed in the county toward exceeding current building code requirements										
Improve sta	te fire codes through echniques to harden	local modificat	ions that me	et or exceed	state and national	models by ord	linance, which	h would result in			
2.1.6	Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flood, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	New	Not started	SMC Fire Division	12-24 months	none	HMGP, Fire Funds,	М		
Benefit-Cost:	Minimal cost and coun	ty wide benefit.	This project v	vill conform v	with the current CW	PP recommenda	itions				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost, outre	each, and implen	nentation will	come from t	he county Fire Divis	ion with suppor	t of local first ı	responders			
Pursue elev	vation/acquisition/flo	od proofing pro	ojects and str	uctural solu	itions to flooding u	sing available g	grant funding	for the repetitive	e loss		
2.2.2	Flood	San Miguel County	Existing	Not started	SMC,CLV, PECOS	12-24 MONTHS	\$100,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	M		
Benefit-Cost: residents.	<i>Benefit-Cost:</i> Reduce the risk to communities living in the area: Establish beneficial living environment for improved health, safety and general welfare of the esidents.										
<i>Technical Fe</i> Divisions to	echnical Feasibility: Maintain development review and regulate all development in San Miguel County through Local, State and Federal Government ivisions to meet NFIP policies.										
Require the	use of hail resistant i	material in futu	re county-fu	nded constr	uction projects						

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority	
2.3.3	Hailstorm	San Miguel County	New and Existing	New	SMC Planning & Zoning	12 months	NONE	LOCAL, NMCID	М	
Benefit-Cost:	To develop a county-w	ride enforceable	building code	that enhance	e structural safety co	ounty-wide in or	der to minimi	ze property damag	e	
Technical Fe	asibility: No cost for cou	inty to have a pr	oper ordinan	ce, regulatior	n developed in the co	ounty building co	ode requireme	ents		
Identify crit	tical infrastructure wl	nere safe rooms	s can be cons	tructed for p	protection/safety o	f building occu	pants within	the facility		
2.3.4	High Wind, Thunderstorm, Tornado	San Miguel County	New and Existing	New	Local jurisdictions, hospitals ,schools, higher education	24 months	\$600,000	HMGP, EMPG	М	
Benefit-Cost:	Provide a safe and seco	ure environment	t for identified	l critical infra	astructures and for t	those that are oc	cupying the st	tructures		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Federal regula	tions requireme	ents are involv	ed, Wind, de	bris impact ,designs,	, permitting & Co	ode complianc	e by local jurisdicti	ons	
Conduct a s	tudy to identify lands	ide areas with	in the county	and install	rock netting towar	d protection m	easures at the	e identified sites		
2.3.5	Landslide	San Miguel County	N/A	New	SMC/Pecos Public Works & NMDOT	24 months	\$500,000	HMGP,DOT,LOC AL	М	
Benefit-Cost:	Quantitatively estimat	e the risk from p	otential lands	lides along ti	ransportation corrid	ors.	•	·		
Technical Fe	asibility: Reduce the ris	k to communitie	es living in the	area, or to th	ne population passin	g the area along	transportatio	n lines of local juri:	sdictions	
Harden the	bay doors of the fire s	tations to redu	ce vulnerabi	lity to wind-	related events.					
3.1.4	High Wind, Thunderstorm, Tornado	San Miguel County	Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Fire Agencies	24-36 months	\$500,000	HMGP, Fire Funds,	М	
Benefit-Cost:	Mitigation project that	would assist in	minimizing in	frastructure	damage and provide	e more safety				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This project w	ill have to be su	pported by loc	al departme	nts county-wide					
Conduct a s	eismic study of all crit	ical infrastruct	ture within th	ne county to	identify the effects	s of an earthqua	ake on existir	ng facilities		
3.2.1	Earthquake	San Miguel County	Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$75,000	HMGP, LOCAL,	М	
Benefit-Cost:	Benefit-Cost: obtain data that identifies, inventories and prioritizes structures that could be seismically hazardous and ability for continuity of government									
<i>Technical Fe</i> required.	<i>Technical Feasibility:</i> Seismic studies will identify the risk areas and vulnerable assets within the hazard areas where further mitigation actions may be required.									
Identify fun	ding streams and res	ources for tech	nical assistar	ice to scope	bridge repair or re	inforcement p	rojects on ide	ntified vulnerable	e bridges	

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
3.2.4	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Public Works	12-24 months	none	HMPG/DOT/ LOCAL	М		
Benefit-Cost.	Project is a county-wice	le benefit towar	d identifying r	eduction of p	property losses						
Technical Fe	<i>easibility:</i> the cost and o	utreach is cover	ed by the cour	nty but will n	eed local jurisdictior	n support					
Conduct en	gineering studies on h	ardening, retro	ofitting, or re	building vu	Inerable bridges.	-		•			
3.2.5	3.2.5 Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire										
Benefit-Cost.	: Project will assist com	munities with id	entifying brid	ges within tr	ansportation routes	toward address	sing safety&r	educe property los	S		
Technical Fe	Fechnical Feasibility: jurisdictions maybe required to have water flow and environmental studies conducted										
Harden, ret landslide, a	trofit, or replace vulne and flooding.	erable, unsafe b	ridges that a	re used by h	eavy equipment to	access areas v	ulnerable to	wildfire, snowfall	,		

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
3.2.6	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Public Works	24-36 months	\$3,000,000	HMPG/DOT/LO CAL	М		
Benefit-Cost.	Conduct inspection on	existing areas a	nd improve w	rith maintena	nce and hardening o	of existing system	ns county-wi	de			
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost will need	to be a collabor	ative effort wi	th local juris	dictions and private	non-profit orga	nizations poss	ible hydrologic &			
environmen	tal studies required										
Install and	maintain ITAC channe	els in public saf	ety radios to	improve int	er-operability with	n Santa Fe Coun	ity				
4.2.1	Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	Existing	NMDHSOEM, SMC, Santa Fe County	12-24 months	\$30,000	SHSGP, HMGP, State, Local	М		
Benefit-Cost.	Minimal cost to the first	st responder age	encies with be	nefits of mult	ti-jurisdictional com	munication duri	ing large event	s like wildfire.			
Technical Fe	asibility: As long as exis	ting radios supp	port the freque	encies and th	ere is radio channel	space available,	this action is	easily attainable.			
Encourage	churches and commu	nity groups to a	ssist vulnera	ble persons	in the event of pov	ver loss and to	develop an e	mergency plan.			
4.3.2	Encourage churches and community groups to assist vulnerable persons in the event of power loss and to develop an emergency plan.Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado WildfireSan Miguel ON/AN/ANot startedSMC/LV OEM6-12 months\$10,000SHSGP,HMPGM										
Benefit-Cost.	enefit-Cost: Assist vulnerable population county-wide during all hazard events										
Technical Fe	echnical Feasibility: The cost and outreach is covered by Emergency Management and local churches										
Respect the use of sites	e Rio: a public education near streams	on campaign w	here rangers	visit campg	rounds to teach vis	itors about wa	ter quality ha	zards, and appro	priate		

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority	
6.1.2	Wildfire, Drought	San Miguel County	N/A	Ongoing	US Forestry	2014	\$20,000	EPA, US Forest	М	
Benefit-Cost. the risk of ca	Annual mitigation proj ausing (or being vulnera	ject with minima able to) natural l	al cost and cou hazard events	inty-wide be	nefit. This project wi	ill help ensure ca	ampers utilize	approved areas an	d reduce	
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost and c	outreach is cover	ed by US Fore	stry and sup	ported by local juris	dictions.				
Develop an	d distribute public aw	areness inform	nation regard	ling potentia	al mitigation measu	ires using vario	ous means to	reach adults, chil	dren,	
visitors, and	d vulnerable populati	ons.	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
6.1.5	Pandemic/ Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm,	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Hospitals, clinics & OEM	12-24 months	\$40,000	DOH/HMPG/ SHSGP/LOCAL	М	
Benefit-Cost.	Citizens county-wide w	vill benefit with	outreach on p	rotection, an	d mitigation toward	all hazard even	ts	•		
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost and outre	each will need to	be supported	by local juri	sdictions toward the	e implementing a	a public aware	eness campaign		
Promote th Program (N	e purchase of flood in (FIP).	surance. Adver	tise the avail	ability, cost	, and coverage of fl	ood insurance	through the N	lational Flood Ins	urance	
6.2.2	Flood	San Miguel County	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Flood Plain Managers	6-12 months	\$10,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	М	
Benefit-Cost.	Develop educational re	esources and ma	terials toward	d public awaı	reness and benefits t	oward obtaining	g flood insurai	nce		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Cost will be to	develop public	outreach coun	ty-wide and	needs to be support	ed by local juris	dictions.			
Review and	develop the current l	building codes	<u>to include mi</u>	tigation for	seismic shaking in	future constru	ction	•		
2.1.1	Earthquake	San Miguel County	New and Existing	New	SMC Planning & Zoning	18 month	\$50,000	HMGP, LOCAL	L	
Benefit-Cost.	Renefit-Cost: To develop a county-wide enforceable building code that enhance structural safety county-wide									
Technical Fe	asibility: Will require a	code enforceme	ent personnel	to identify , p	process and enforce	adopted regulat	ions			
Identify fun	ding sources to devel	op zoning regu	lations and o	rdinances to	o reduce loss from :	identified haza	rds.			

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
2.1.7	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	New	Not started	SMC Planning & zoning office	6-12 months	none	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L
Benefit-Cost.	: Project is a county-wic	le benefit towar	d identifying r	eduction of p	property losses	n cupport			
Develop ap	d implement zoning r	agulations and	ordinances t	o reduce los	s from identified h	azarde			
2.1.8	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	New	Not started	SMC Planning & zoning office	6-12 months	\$75,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L
Benefit-Cost.	: Develop a county-wide	e zoning regulati	on to minimiz	e property lo	oss county-wide				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Local jurisdict	ions will need to	obtain speci	alized assista	ance toward zoning a	requirements as	it relates to al	l hazard events	
Research a	nd study the feasibilit	y of developing	and implem	enting an en	vironmental prote	ction ordinanc	e	1	1
2.1.9	Flood	San Miguel County	New and existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos P &Z or OEM	12-24 months	none	EPA/HMGP/ LOCAL/Higher Education institutes	L

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Benefit-Cost.	: Evaluate the communi	ty's capacity for	additional de	velopment gi	iven environmental	protection prior	ities.		
Technical Fe	<i>easibility:</i> Will require ci	tizen support ac	l participation	i as well as te	echnical support fror	n a professional	environmenta	al consultant	
Construct s	now fences along maj	or utilized high	ways in the c	ounty to mi	nimize snow drifts	and build up o	n roadways	<u>.</u>	
2.3.6	Severe Winter Weather	San Miguel County	N/A	New	State and SMC transportation departments	36 months	\$2,000,000	HMGP,DOT,LOC AL	L
Benefit-Cost.	: Snow fences reduce th	e impacts to roa	dways and th	e related effo	ort to maintain thoro	ughfares during	and immedia	tely after significan	t snowfall
events.									
Technical Fe	asibility: Snow fences w	vill reduce the a	nount of time	, labor, and e	quipment required t	o open and main	ntain major ro	adways during and	after
significant s	nowfall events. It may a	also reduce risks	s of traffic acci	dents caused	d by snow drifts and	blowing snow o	n roadways.		
The Upper	Pecos Watershed Asso	ciation is com	pleting a NEP	A analysis f	or "roadside thinni	ng" within the	Pecos Canyon	l	
3.1.1	Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	Ongoing	Upper Pecos Watershed Association	2014-2019	\$360,000	US Forest, HMP, LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost.	: Tree thinning reduces	the impact of do	wned trees of	n local infras	tructure that provid	e access and pov	ver to the com	munity. It also red	uces the
risk of wildf	ire caused by trees falli	ng on overhead	power lines in	the canyon.					
Technical Fe	easibility: Tree thinning	improves the ov	erall health of	f trees and fo	rested areas and red	luces the risk of	wildfire cause	d by trees falling o	n
overhead po	ower lines.								
Research a	nd meet with State Pla	nt Pest and Dis	sease Agencie	es such as US	SDA/APHIS to iden	tify mitigation	projects in th	is area	
3.2.2	Pandemic/Epidemic Pests	San Miguel County	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM & USDA/APHIS	12 months	None	LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost.	: Minimal cost and coun	ty-wide benefits	s. This project	will help citi	zens with potential t	threats to agricu	lture and plan	t disease events	
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Outreach is co	vered by local a	nd state organ	izations					
Encourage	new development are	as to install un	derground ut	tilities, whic	h would help redu	ce the chances	of power outa	iges.	
3.3.1	Hailstorm, High Wind, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	New	Not started	SMC/ CLV/Pecos/ Electrical Coops	6-12 months	none	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L
Benefit-Cost.	: Minimal cost and is a c	ounty-wide ben	efit that would	d assist citize	ens during all hazard	related events t	oward health	& safety	
Technical Fe	asibility: This project w	ill need support	from local jur	isdictions, p	rivate sector and coo	ops county wide			
Travel Man	agement Plan was apj	proved in 2013	. A map that	depicts whe	ere camping is pern	nitted will be is	sued annuall	y.	
6.1.1	Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	Ongoing	US Forestry	2013-on going	\$50,000	US Forest	L

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
Benefit-Cost:	Annual mitigation proj	ject with minima	al cost and cou	inty-wide be	nefit. This project wi	ill help ensure ca	ampers utilize	approved areas an	d reduce		
the risk of ca	using (or being vulnera	able to) wildfire.									
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost and o	outreach is cover	ed by US Fore	stry and sup	ported by local juris	dictions.					
Create a pu	blic awareness progra	am to promote	"See Somethi	ng, Say Som	ething" in conjunct	tion with New N	Aexico Depar	tment of Homelar	ıd		
Security			I	Γ		1					
6.1.3	Terrorism	San Miguel County	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM & NMDHSEM	12 months	\$30,000	HMGP, LETPG, LOCAL	L		
Benefit-Cost:	enefit-Cost: This program allows citizens to report suspicious activities quickly to the proper authorizes in order to investigate suspicious activities										
Technical Fe	cchnical Feasibility: The cost and outreach is to implement an on-going federal program with a local public awareness campaign supported by local risdictions										
Identify fun	ding sources to create	e a staff commu	inity outreac	h position to	o enhance mitigatio	on and emerger	icy prepared	ness in the comm	unity		
6.2.3	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Pandemic/Epidemic , Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	San Miguel County	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	24-36 months	\$45,000	General revenue/ EMPG,HMPG	L		
Benefit-Cost:	Benefit-Cost: Position would assist in conducting mitigation and public outreach on a consistent bases										
Technical Fe	asibility: Funding suppo	ort would need t	o be assisted t	through fede	ral grants						

Table 8.4-2City of Las Vegas Mitigation Actions

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Conduct fie	ld testing & sampling	of surface and	sub-surface v	water source	es			1	
1.1.1	Drought	Las Vegas	N/A	New	San Miguel County	24 months	\$500,000	HMGP, USGA, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost.	Regional & County-wid	de mitigation pro	oject that bene	efits all jurisc	lictions in the identi	fying of location	s for additiona	l water sources	
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This project re	equires the colla	boration of m	ulti-jurisdicti	ions and needs to be	identified withi	n the regional	water plans	
Well exploration to identify potable water supplies									
1.1.2	Drought	Las Vegas	N/A	New	San Miguel County	36 months	\$1,000,000	HMGP, USGA, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost.	This is a need to impro	ove on identifyin	g additional w	vater sources	for the health, safet	y and well-being	g of the citizen	s county-wide	
Technical Fe	asibility: This will depe	end on identified	site locations	and water u	sers rights				
Increase aq	uifer storage and reco	overy	I	1	1	1	1	ſ	
1.1.3	Drought	Las Vegas	N/A	New	City of Las Vegas, San Miguel County	60 months	\$1,500,000	HMGP, USGA, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost.	This is a need to impro	ove water resour	ces for the he	alth, safety a	nd well-being of the	citizens, and to	retain econom	ic drivers, such as	
residences, l	ousiness, and higher ed	ucation.							
Technical Fe	asibility: Water retentio	on and conserva	tions studies r	nay determii	ne the feasibility of t	his action.			
Enlarge res	ervoir								
1.1.4	Drought	Las Vegas	Existing	New	City of Las Vegas, San Miguel County	60 months	\$2,000,000	HMGP, USGA, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost. and local bu	Significant drought and siness. Increasing water	d municipal wat r resource capał	er resources a pilities will hel	re causing po p maintain a	opulations to move on nd improve the pop	out of the county ulation and ecor	<i>r</i> , reducing the nomic bases.	tax base, economi	c drivers,
Technical Fe	asibility: This project re	equires the colla	boration of m	ulti-jurisdicti	ions and needs to be	identified withi	n the regional	water plans.	
Develop wa	ter storage/hydrant s	systems in for r	aw, drinking	and effluen	t water.				
1.1.5	Drought, Flood, Wildfire	Las Vegas	N/A	New	SMC/LAS VEGAS/Pecos Fire & Public Works	36 months	\$900,000	HMP, Fire Funds,	Н
Benefit-Cost	Increase the water sto	rage capabilities	toward fire s	uppression, i	rrigation and drinki	ng water for citi	zens		

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Cost will need tal studies required	to be a collabor	ative effort wi	th local juris	dictions and private	non-profit orga	nizations poss	ible hydrologic &			
Install flash	ning roadside emerger	ncy notification	signs to adv	ise of an em	ergency, web anno	uncement, & A	M Radio Broa	dcast with addition	onal		
instruction	S	1	r	1	1	1	1	I	ſ		
1.2.1	Hazardous Materials	Las Vegas	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$200,000	HMGP,HMEP, LOCAL	Н		
Benefit-Cost	: This is a county-wide	project which wi	ll allow for an	early warnin	ng system toward lif	e safety issues in	n all-hazard ev	vents			
<i>Technical Feasibility:</i> Will need to install signs along major state and public roadways, that integrated with existing Highway advisory system and supported											
by local jurisdictions Construct a tower and transponder to have the ability to receive NOAA weather alert notification and purchase NOAA radios for public facilities											
Construct a tower and transponder to have the ability to receive NOAA weather alert notification and purchase NOAA radios for public facilities and vulnerable populations to receive these messages											
	High Wind	cerve these me.	sages								
1.2.2	Thunderstorm, Severe Winter	Las Vegas	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM & NOAA	24 months	\$300,000	HMGP, NOAA, LOCAL	Н		
	Weather, Tornado	ļ , .									
Benefit-Cost	: Project is to obtain an	early warning w	veather systen	1 county-wid	<u>e</u> wiro local iuricdictic	nc cupport					
Implement	a county-wide mass n	otification /om	argancy mas	estiants rec	m to provide a con	tralized notific	ation system				
Implement	Dam Failure		ergency mes	saging syste			ation system				
	Extreme Heat,										
	Hailstorm,										
	Hazardous										
	Materials, High										
100	Wind, Flood,		37.74			10	*2 < 2 2	HMP, SHSGP,			
1.2.3	Landslide,	Las Vegas	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM	12 months	\$36,000	LOCAL	Н		
	Fandemic /										
	Winter Weather										
	Terrorism										
	Thunderstorm.										
	Tornado, Wildfire										
Benefit-Cost	Benefit-Cost: This system is a county-wide benefit. This project will allow immediate notice to citizens as well as regional contacts toward early warning										
messages to	ward all hazard events										
Technical Fe	<i>easibility:</i> The initial cos	t is minimal but	will require lo	ocal jurisdicti	ons to support on-g	oing maintenan	ce				

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Research a	nd identify public war	ning systems t	hat use redur	idant means	s of contact to reach	n stakeholders	and the comr	nunity to deliver a	and
receive info	ormation regarding ha	izards, threats,	impacts, and	damage. Pu	irchase, install, and	i implement the	e warning sys	stem.	
	Dam Failure,								
	Farthquake Flood								
	Extreme Heat.								
	Hailstorm.								
	Hazardous								
	Materials Incidents,			Nat		12.10			
1.2.4	High Wind,	Las Vegas	N/A	NOT	SMLAS VEGAS	12-18	NONE	HMPG. LOCAL	Н
	Landslide,	_	-	starteu	UEM	monuis			
	Pandemic/Epidemic								
	, Pests, Severe								
	Winter Weather,								
	Terrorism,								
	Thunderstorm,								
	Tornado, Wildfire				<u> </u>				
Benefit-Cost	This system is a county	y-wide benefit. T	this project wi	II allow imm	ediate notice to citiz	ens as well as re	egional contact	ts toward early wai	rning
Technical Fe	walu all liazalu events	cost to local juri	sdictions tow	ard research	ing and identifying	notential solutio	nc		
Design & de	wolon an OFM wob-si	te that provide	s dron down	links towar	d mitigation /propa	redness /respo	nse/recover	y and identify fund	dina
sources toy	vard hailstorm mitiga	tion programs	s ur op uown		a mitigation/prepa	reuness/respo	inse/recovery		ung
5041005 001	Dam Failure								
	Drought, Extreme								
	Heat, Hailstorm,								
	Hazardous								
	Materials, High								
	Wind, Flood,		Nowand						
1.3.1	Landslide,	Las Vegas	Fristing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$5,000	HMGP,LOCAL	Н
	Pandemic /		LAISting						
	Epidemic, Pests,								
	Severe Winter								
	Weather, Terrorism,								
	Tornada Wildfire								
	Tornado, Wildfire								

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
Benefit-Cost:	This will be an accessi	ble web-site to a	nyone that wi	ll want to ob	tain information tov	vard this hazard	, and additiona	al outreach informa	ation		
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost and outre	each will need to	be supported	by local juri	sdictions toward the	e set-up of the in	itial web-site	design and will req	uire		
minimal ma	ninimal maintenance and cost										
Create a cei	Create a centralized GIS/Data System to be able to obtain/compile/disseminate information for all hazard events (mapping, assessments, cost										
analysis, et	c.)	I	T	I	Γ	T	T	Γ			
1.3.2	Dam Failure, Drought, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	N/A	New	SMC Internet Technology Division	18 months	\$60,000	HMP, LOCAL	Н		
Benefit-Cost:	The ability to obtain d	ata in a centraliz	ed location fo	r the prevent	resp., ion, protection	oonse, mitigatior	n, and recovery	y toward all hazard	events		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require th	ne enhancement	of an existing	system with	hardware and softw	ware that needs	support by lo	cal jurisdictions			
Work with	USGS to install contin	uous monitorin	ig stream gau	ges on Teco	lote Creek, the Con	chas River (ab	ove the lake),	, the Canadian Riv	er, the		
Pecos River	; and the Gallinas Riv	er 1000' south	of the diversi	on gate.	1			1			
1.3.5	Drought	Las Vegas	N/A	Not Started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos, watershed associations	24 months	\$50,000	USGS, Local	Н		
Benefit-Cost: impacts and	Installation of stream improve overall water	gauges will assis resource manag	t in water mai gement in drou	nagement, flo 1ght conditio	ood control, and rete ns.	ention measures	in the county.	It will help to redu	ice flood		
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: Installation of stream gauges will require coordination, maintenance, and management agreements with USGS.										
Research a	Research and study the feasibility of developing and implementing an environmental protection ordinance										
2.1.9	Flood	Las Vegas	New and existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos P &Z or OEM	12-24 months	none	EPA/HMGP/ LOCAL/Higher Education institutes	Н		
Benefit-Cost:	Evaluate the communi	ty's capacity for	additional dev	velopment gi	ven environmental	protection prior	ities.				

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require ci	itizen support ac	l participation	as well as te	echnical support fror	n a professional	environmenta	al consultant	
Identify flo	od prone areas in the	county and des	ign effective	water drain	age systems to min	imize flooding	-		
2.2.1	Flood	Las Vegas	New and Existing	New	SMC Public Works	36 months	\$2,000,000	HMGP, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Minimize disaster reco	overy assistance	request, prop	erty damage,	, reoccurring damag	es, and minimize	e manpower u	sage	
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This will requ	ire, engineer des	signing, possib	ole permitting	g requirements by sı	ipporting jurisd	ictions		
Pursue elev	vation/acquisition/flo	od proofing pr	ojects and sti	ructural solu	utions to flooding u	sing available	grant funding	for the repetitive	loss
structures i	in the county and mur	nicipalities. An	nually review	and correc	t the Repetitive Lo	ss List by subm	itting correct	ion worksheets to) FEMA.
2.2.2	Flood	Las Vegas	Existing	Not started	SMC,LAS VEGAS, PECOS	12-24 MONTHS	\$100,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	Н
Benefit-Cost: residents.	Reduce the risk to com	nmunities living	in the area: Es	tablish bene	ficial living environr	nent for improv	ed health, safe	ty and general wel	fare of the
<i>Technical Fe</i> Divisions to	<i>asibility:</i> Maintain deve meet NFIP policies.	lopment review	and regulate	all developm	ent in San Miguel Co	ounty through Lo	ocal, State and	Federal Governme	nt
Improve an	d protect existing cul	verts, arroyos,	and acequias	, and install	new culverts withi	in the county as	s needed to re	educe flooding co	ınty-wide
2.3.7	Flooding	Las Vegas	Existing	Not started	Public Works, PNP Community Ditches & Acequias	2014-2019	\$250,000	Mitigation grant funding from DR 1435 and external sources	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Conduct inspection on	existing areas a	nd improve w	rith maintena	nce and hardening o	of existing system	ns county-wie	de	
Technical Fe environmen	<i>asibility:</i> Cost will need tal studies required	l to be a collabor	rative effort w	ith local juris	sdictions and private	e non-profit orga	inizations pos	sible hydrologic &	
Rehabilitat	e old wells								
3.1.2	Drought	Las Vegas	N/A	Existing	Las Vegas Public Works	48 months	\$500,000	HMGP, Local	Н
Benefit-Cost: locating and	Rehabilitation of exist drilling new well sites.	ing wells will he	lp manage wa	ter resources	s and distribution wh	nile reducing en	vironmental a	nd economic impac	ts of
<i>Technical Fe</i> availability i	<i>asibility:</i> Feasibility stu in the county.	dies will determ	ine whether o	ld, existing v	vells can be rehabilit	ated, and the po	tential positiv	e impact to water i	esource
Install a ger	nerator at each of the	Fire and Police	Stations to r	educe vulne	rability to power-c	outages during	hazard event	s.	

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
3.1.5	Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	Existing	Not started	SMC/LAS VEGAS/ Pecos Fire	24-36 months	\$1,350,000	HMGP, Fire Funds,	Н
Benefit-Cost.	Mitigation project to a	llow for Continu	ity of operatio	ons during all	hazard events				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost of ele	ectrical installati	on and equipn	nent would n	leed to be supported	by local jurisdi	ctions and firs	t responders	
Research vi	ulnerable infrastructu	ire and harden	/improve wa	ter/sewer s	anitation services i	in identified ar	eas	1	J
3.1.7	Pandemic/ Epidemic	Las Vegas	N/A	Not started	Alta Vista Regional Hospital	24-36 months	\$1,000.000	DOH/HMPG/ SHSGP/LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost.	: Mitigation project to b	e able to continu	ie services for	patients in n	eed of medical servi	ices and continu	ity of business	5	
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The local juris	diction will be r	equired to wo	rk with priva	te sector on this pro	oject			
Conduct a s	eismic study of all cri	tical infrastruc	ture within th	<u>ie county to</u>	identify the effects	s of an earthqua	ake on existir	ng facilities	
3.2.1	Earthquake	Las Vegas	Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$75,000	HMGP, LOCAL,	H
Benefit-Cost.	obtain data that identi	fies, inventories	and prioritize	s structures	that could be seismi	cally hazardous	and ability for	continuity of gove	rnment
<i>Technical Fe</i> required.	<i>casibility:</i> Seismic studie	es will identify th	ie risk areas ai	nd vulnerabl	e assets within the h	azard areas whe	ere further mit	tigation actions ma	y be
Research fu	inding opportunities a	and garner sup	port for repa	ir to the res	ervoir seepage area	a.	I	1	1
3.2.3	Flooding, Dam failure	Las Vegas	N/A	Not started	SMC & LAS VEGAS	6-12 months	N/A	N/A	Н
Benefit-Cost	: Minimal to no cost pro	ject and county	& city wide be	enefit to obta	in assistance				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Local jurisdict	ions will need to	o support this	program					
Historical t	ree thinning project o	n City of Las Ve	gas land that	produced 2	200 to 300 cords of	free firewood f	for residents.	T	
4.1.2	Severe Winter Weather	Las Vegas	N/A	Ongoing	City of Las Vegas	Ongoing	\$25,000	Local	Н
Benefit-Cost.	: Tree thinning reduces t	the impact of dov	vned trees on l	local infrastru	ucture that provide a	ccess and power	to the commu	nity.	
Technical Fe	easibility: The city has co	nducted this act	ion previously.	Recurring, ir	ntermittent tree thini	ning will keep tro	ees healthy and	d manageable durir	ig severe
winter weat	her events.		_						
Develop em	nergency evacuation a	nd sheltering p	lans						

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority	
4.1.3	Terrorism	Las Vegas	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$50,000	HMPG/SHSGP/ LOCAL	Н	
Benefit-Cost.	Allow first responders	the ability to as	sist communit	ties during al	l hazard events					
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require re	esearching and i	dentifying are	as within a 4	700 square mile are	a with 514 miles	s of roads.			
Identify cri	Identify critical infrastructure facilities to install generator hook-ups and purchase mobile generators to use in power outages									
4.2.2	Severe Winter Weather	Las Vegas	Existing	New	All jurisdictions	24 months	\$600,000	HMGP, EMPG	Н	
Benefit-Cost.	: The need to provide se	ervices through t	he Continuity	of operation	s/ Continuity of Gov	rernment				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require el	lectrical designir	ng of facilities'	and purchas	e of equipment supp	ported by local ju	urisdictions			
Identify ser	nior centers, communi	ity centers, and	schools thro	ughout the	county that can be	used for heatin	g/cooling sta	tions and install g	enerator	
hook ups, t	owable generators and	d electric A/C 8	heating com	ibination sy	stems		1			
4.3.1	Extreme Heat, Severe Winter Weather	Las Vegas	Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$500,000	HMGP, LOCAL	Н	
Benefit-Cost	: This is a county-wide p	project that bene	efits toward ci	tizens safety,	, health and well-bei	ng. This will ens	ure citizens h	ave a location to rea	main	
either warm	or cool in extreme eve	nts								
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost of ele	ectrical installation	on and equipn	nent would n	eed to be supported	by local jurisdie	ctions			
Conduct a g	eological study on loc	al structures; s	trengthen his	storic struct	ures/chimneys in t	the Cat D seism	ic zone.	1		
5.1.1	Earthquake	Las Vegas	Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM/Higher Education Institute	24 months	\$75,000	HMPG, NPS, USDA,LOCAL	Н	
Benefit-Cost.	: Identify essential facili	ities and evaluat	e structural pe	erformance i	n a seismic event					
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This project w	rill require a stru	ctural special	ist that can p	roperly analyze and	process data &	follow historio	preservation requ	irements	
Research a	nd implement localize	d drainage pro	jects in the r	epetitive los	s areas to reduce f	lood potential a	and impacts.			
5.2.1	Flood	Las Vegas	Existing	Not started	SMC,LAS VEGAS, PECOS	12-36 MONTHS	\$200,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	Н	
Benefit-Cost.	Benefit-Cost: Reduce the risk to communities living in the area: Reduce the cost of repetitive loss to structures in SFHA									
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: Identify and prioritize special projects for regional drainage projects for legislative funding									
Create a pu Security	blic awareness progra	am to promote	"See Somethi	ing, Say Som	ething" in conjunct	tion with New N	Mexico Depar	tment of Homelar	ld	

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
6.1.3	Terrorism	Las Vegas	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM & NMDHSEM	12 months	\$30,000	HMGP, LETPG, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost:	This program allows c	itizens to report	suspicious ac	tivities quick	ly to the proper auth	norizes in order	to investigate	suspicious activitie	es
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost and c ;	outreach is to imp	plement an or	i-going feder	al program with a lo	cal public aware	eness campaig	n supported by loc	al
Develop an visitors, and	d distribute public aw d vulnerable populati	vareness inform ons.	nation regard	ling potentia	al mitigation measu	ires using vario	ous means to	reach adults, chil	dren,
6.1.5	Pandemic/ Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm,	Las Vegas	N/A	Not started	SMC/LAS VEGAS/Pecos Hospitals, clinics & OEM	12-24 months	\$40,000	DOH/HMPG/ SHSGP/LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Citizens county-wide w	vill benefit with	outreach on p	rotection, an	d mitigation toward	all hazard even	ts		
Technical Feasibility: Cost and outreach will need to be supported by local jurisdictions toward the implementing a public awareness campaign									
Conduct a n	nore in depth hazard a	analysis for wil	dfires and th	eir effects o	n residences, infras	structure, wate	r supplies, an	d the economy.	
1.1.6	Wildfire, Drought	Las Vegas	N/A	Not started	SMC/LAS VEGAS/ Pecos Fire	12-24 months	\$25,000	HMGP, Fire Funds,	М
Benefit-Cost:	Up-date the current CV	WPP to include t	he infrastruct	tures, water s	supplies and econom	nic impact towar	d wildfires		
Technical Fe	asibility: cost and outre	ach is covered b	y fire funds ar	nd supported	by local jurisdiction	15			
Join the Cor	nmunity Rating Syste	m (CRS) and pu	rsue opporti	inities to im	prove CRS ratings			1	
1.1.7	Flood	Las Vegas	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/LV/Pecos Planning & zoning, Community Development	12-24 months	NONE	HMPG/LOCAL	М
Benefit-Cost:	County-wide project w	hich benefits pr	operty owner	s in lowering	insurance rates				
Technical Fe	asibility: Local jurisdic	tions need to sup	oport the prog	gram and con	tinue to participate				
Research th	e feasibility and bene	fits of becomin	g a NOAA Sto	rmReady Co	ommunity			1	
1.2.5	Flood, Hailstorm, High Winds, Thunderstorm, Tornado,	Las Vegas	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	6-12 months	NONE	NOAA/LOCAL	М
Benefit-Cost:	Assist communities an	d NOAA with up	-date weather	related data	toward all hazard e	vents.			

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost and outro	each is covered	by NOAA and	minimal cost	ts to local jurisdictio	ns, but support i	is needed		
Install outd	oor early warning sys	tems at local p	arks, athletic	fields, and	on educational inst	itution campus	ses	1	
1.3.3	Dam Failure, Flood, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	36 months	\$200,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	М
Benefit-Cost:	This project is an early	y warning syster	n that benefits	s the commu	nities county-wide t	o ensure an earl	y warning syst	tem toward all haz	ard events
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: The cost and outreach will need to be conducted by local jurisdictions and first responders								
Review and	develop the current l	building codes	to include mi	tigation for	seismic shaking in	future constru	ction		
2.1.1	Earthquake	Las Vegas	New and Existing	New	SMC Planning & Zoning	18 month	\$50,000	HMGP, LOCAL	М
Benefit-Cost:	To develop a county-w	vide enforceable	building code	that enhance	e structural safety co	ounty-wide			
Technical Fe	asibility: Will require a	code enforceme	ent personnel	to identify , p	process and enforce	adopted regulat	ions		
Improve on	state building codes t	through local n	nodifications	that meet of	r exceed state and	national model	s by ordinand	e, which would re	esult in
additional t	echniques to harden s	structures.	T	I	Γ	T	I	Γ	
2.1.5	Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, High Wind, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	New	Not started	SMC Planning & Zoning Division	24-36 months	\$75,000.00	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	М
Benefit-Cost:	To develop a county-w	vide enforceable	building code	that enhanc	e structural safety co	ounty-wide in or	der to minimi	ze property damag	e
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> No cost for jur	isdictions to hav	ve an ordinan	ce developed	in the county towar	d exceeding cur	rent building o	code requirements	
Identify fun	ding sources to devel	op zoning regu	lations and o	rdinances to	o reduce loss from	identified haza	rds.		

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority	
2.1.7	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	New	Not started	SMC Planning & zoning office	6-12 months	none	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	М	
Benefit-Cost	Project is a county-wid	le benefit towar	d identifying r	eduction of p	property losses					
Technical Fe	<i>d implement goning r</i>	outreach is cover	red by the cour	nty but will n	leed local jurisdictio	n support				
2.1.8	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	New	Not started	SMC Planning & zoning office	6-12 months	\$75,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	М	
Benefit-Cost	Benefit-Cost: Develop a county-wide zoning regulation to minimize property loss county-wide									
Technical Fe	asibility: Local jurisdict	ions will need to	obtain speci	alized assista	ince toward zoning r	requirements as	it relates to al	l hazard events		
Identify cri	tical infrastructure w	here safe room	s can be cons	tructed for p	protection/safety o	t building occu	pants within	the facility		

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
2.3.4	High Wind, Thunderstorm, Tornado	Las Vegas	New and Existing	New	Local jurisdictions, hospitals ,schools, higher education	24 months	\$600,000	HMGP, EMPG	М		
Benefit-Cost.	Provide a safe and secu	ure environmen	t for identified	l critical infra	structures and for t	those that are oc	cupying the st	ructures			
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: Federal regulations requirements are involved, Wind, debris impact ,designs, permitting & Code compliance by local jurisdictions										
Harden the	bay doors of the fire s	stations to redu	ice vulnerabi	lity to wind	-related events.						
3.1.4	High Wind, Thunderstorm, Tornado	Las Vegas	Existing	Not started	SMC/LAS VEGAS/Pecos Fire Agencies	24-36 months	\$500,000	HMGP, Fire Funds,	М		
Benefit-Cost.	: Mitigation project that	would assist in	minimizing in	frastructure	damage and provide	e more safety					
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: This project will have to be supported by local departments county-wide										
Research a	nd meet with State Pla	nt Pest and Dis	ease Agencie	es such as US	SDA/APHIS to ident	tify mitigation	projects in th	is area			
3.2.2	Pandemic/Epidemic Pests	Las Vegas	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM & USDA/APHIS	12 months	None	LOCAL	М		
Benefit-Cost.	: Minimal cost and coun	ty-wide benefits	s. This project	will help citi	zens with potential t	hreats to agricu	lture and plan	t disease events			
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Outreach is co	vered by local a	nd state organ	lizations							
Identify fun	ding streams and res	ources for tech	nical assistar	ice to scope	bridge repair or re	einforcement p	rojects on ide	ntified vulnerable	e bridges		
3.2.4	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	Existing	Not started	SMC/LAS VEGAS/Pecos Public Works	12-24 months	none	HMPG/DOT/ LOCAL	М		
Benefit-Cost.	Project is a county-wid	le benefit towar	d identifying r	reduction of p	property losses						
Technical Fe	asibility: the cost and o	utreach is cover	ed by the cour	nty but will n	eed local jurisdictior	n support					
Conduct en	gineering studies on h	ardening, retro	ofitting, or re	building vu	Inerable bridges.						

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
3.2.5	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	Existing	Not started	SMC/LAS VEGAS/Pecos Public Works	24-36 months	\$200,000	HMPG/DOT/ LOCAL	М		
Benefit-Cost.	Project will assist com	munities with id	lentifying brid	ges within tr	ansportation routes	toward address	sing safety & r	educe property los	S		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> jurisdictions n	naybe required t	to have water	flow and env	ironmental studies o	conducted					
Harden, ret landslide, a	rofit, or replace vulne nd flooding.	erable, unsafe b	oridges that a	re used by h	eavy equipment to	access areas v	ulnerable to	wildfire, snowfall,	,		
3.2.6	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	Existing	Not started	SMC/LAS VEGAS/Pecos Public Works	24-36 months	\$3,000,000	HMPG/DOT/LO CAL	М		
Benefit-Cost.	Conduct inspection on	existing areas a	nd improve w	rith maintena	nce and hardening o	of existing system	ns county-wie	de			
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Cost will need tal studies required	to be a collabor	ative effort wi	th local juris	dictions and private	non-profit orga	nizations poss	ible hydrologic &			
Encourage	new development are	as to install un	derground ut	ilities, whic	h would help reduc	ce the chances	of power outa	iges.			
3.3.1	Hailstorm, High Wind, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	New	Not started	SMC/ LAS VEGAS/Pecos/ Electrical Coops	6-12 months	none	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	М		
Benefit-Cost	: Minimal cost and is a c	ounty-wide ben	efit that would	d assist citize	ens during all hazard	related events t	toward health	& safety			
Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
---	--	-------------------	---	----------------------	---	------------------------------	-------------------	-----------------------------------	----------	--	--
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This project w	ill need support	from local jur	isdictions, pr	rivate sector and coo	ops county wide					
Encourage	churches and commu	nity groups to a	ssist vulnera	ble persons	in the event of pov	ver loss and to	develop an e	mergency plan.	r		
4.3.2	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	6-12 months	\$10,000	SHSGP,HMPG	М		
Benefit-Cost	Assist vulnerable popu	ilation county-w	ride during all	hazard even	ts						
Technical Fe	<i>easibility:</i> The cost and c	utreach is cover	ed by Emerge	ncy Manager	nent and local churc	ches					
Increase pu using the lo "how to" cla	ncrease public awareness of hazards and hazardous areas. Distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using the local newspaper, utility bill inserts, inserts in the phone book, county websites, and educational programs for school age children or how to" classes in retrofitting by local merchants. Integrate "Disaster Resistance Education" into the public school curriculum.										
6.1.4	'how to" classes in retrofitting by local merchants. Integrate "Disaster Resistance Education" into the public school curriculum. Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous N/A On-going SMC/LV OEM 12-24 months \$30,000 General revenue / External sources, HMGP 5.1.4 High Wind, Landslide, Pandemic/Epidemic , Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tormode Wildfüre Las Vegas N/A On-going SMC/LV OEM 12-24 months \$30,000 General revenue / External sources, HMGP										
Benefit-Cost	Obtain educational ma	terials and deve	lop outreach j	programs tov	vard all hazard even	ts					
Technical Fe	asibility: The cost and o	outreach will nee	ed to be suppo	orted by local	jurisdictions			1			
Identify fur	iding sources to creat	e a staff commu	inity outreac	h position to	enhance mitigatio	on and emerger	icy prepared	ness in the comm	unity		

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
6.2.3	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Pandemic/Epidemic , Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Las Vegas	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	24-36 months	\$45,000	General revenue/ EMPG,HMPG	М
Benefit-Cost.	Position would assist i	n conducting mi	tigation and p	ublic outread	ch on a consistent ba	ises			
Technical Fe	asibility: Funding suppo	ort would need t	to be assisted t	through fede	ral grants				
Promote th	e purchase of flood in	surance. Adver	tise the avail	ability, cost	and coverage of flo	ood insurance	through the N	lational Flood Ins	urance
6.2.2	Flood	Las Vegas	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/LAS VEGAS/Pecos Flood Plain Managers	6-12 months	\$10,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L
Benefit-Cost.	Develop educational re	esources and ma	terials toward	d public awar	eness and benefits t	oward obtaining	g flood insurar	nce	
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost will be to	develop public	outreach coun	ty-wide and	needs to be support	ed by local juris	dictions.		

Table 8.4-3Village of Pecos Mitigation Actions

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Conduct a n	nore in depth hazard a	analysis for wil	dfires and th	eir effects o	n residences, infras	structure, wate	r supplies, an	d the economy.	
1.1.6	Wildfire, Drought	Pecos	N/A	Not started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos Fire	12-24 months	\$25,000	HMGP, Fire Funds,	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Up-date the current CV	VPP to include t	he infrastruct	tures, water s	supplies and econom	nic impact towar	d wildfires		
Technical Fe	asibility: cost and outre	ach is covered b	y fire funds ar	nd supported	by local jurisdiction	IS			
Identify flo	od prone areas in the	county and des	ign effective	water drain	age systems to min	imize flooding			
2.2.1	Flood	Pecos	New and Existing	New	SMC Public Works	36 months	\$2,000,000	HMGP, LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Minimize disaster reco	overy assistance	request, prop	erty damage,	, reoccurring damage	es, and minimize	e manpower u	sage	
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This will requi	re, engineer des	igning, possib	le permitting	g requirements by su	ipporting jurisdi	ictions		
Improve an	d protect existing culv	verts, arroyos, a	and acequias	<u>, and install</u>	new culverts withi	n the county as	needed to re	educe flooding cou	inty-wide
2.3.7	Flooding	Pecos	Existing	Not started	Public Works, PNP Community Ditches & Acequias	2014-2019	\$250,000	Mitigation grant funding from DR 1435 and external sources	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Conduct inspection on	existing areas a	nd improve w	ith maintena	nce and hardening o	of existing syster	ns county-wid	le	
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost will need	to be a collabor	ative effort w	ith local juris	dictions and private	non-profit orga	nizations poss	sible hydrologic &	
environmen	tal studies required								
Identify fun	ding streams and res	ources for tech	nical assistan	ice to scope	bridge repair or re	inforcement p	rojects on ide	ntified vulnerable	e bridges
3.2.4	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Public Works	12-24 months	none	HMPG/DOT/ LOCAL	Н
Benefit-Cost:	Project is a county-wid	le benefit toward	d identifying r	eduction of p	property losses				

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority	
Technical Fe	<i>casibility:</i> the cost and o	utreach is cover	ed by the cour	nty but will n	eed local jurisdictior	n support				
Conduct en	gineering studies on h	ardening, retro	ofitting, or re	building vu	nerable bridges.	1	1	T		
3.2.5	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Public Works	24-36 months	\$200,000	HMPG/DOT/ LOCAL	Н	
Benefit-Cost	: Project will assist com	munities with id	lentifying brid	ges within tr	ansportation routes	toward address	sing safety&r	educe property los	S	
Technical Fe	Technical Feasibility: jurisdictions maybe required to have water flow and environmental studies conducted									
Research a	nd implement localize	d drainage pro	jects in the r	epetitive los	s areas to reduce f	lood potential	and impacts.			
5.2.1	Flood	Pecos	Existing	Not started	SMC,CLV, PECOS	12-36 MONTHS	\$200,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	Н	
Benefit-Cost.	Reduce the risk to com	munities living	in the area: R	educe the co	st of repetitive loss t	o structures in S	SFHA			
Technical Fe	asibility: Identify and p	rioritize special	projects for re	egional drain	age projects for legis	slative funding				
Well explor	ation to identify potal	ble water supp	lies		1		•	1		
1.1.2	Drought	Pecos	N/A	New	San Miguel County	36 months	\$1,000,000	HMGP, USGA, LOCAL	М	
Benefit-Cost	: This is a need to impro	ve on identifyin	g additional w	vater sources	for the health, safet	y and well-being	g of the citizen	s county-wide		
Technical Fe	asibility: This will depe	nd on identified	l site locations	and water u	sers rights					
Identify cri	tical infrastructure fac	cilities to instal	l generator h	ook-ups an	d purchase mobile	generators to u	ise in power	outages		
4.2.2	Severe Winter Weather	Pecos	Existing	New	All jurisdictions	24 months	\$600,000	HMGP, EMPG	М	
Benefit-Cost	The need to provide se	ervices through t	the Continuity	of operation	s/ Continuity of Gov	vernment				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require el	ectrical designir	ng of facilities'	and purchas	e of equipment supp	ported by local j	urisdictions			
Conduct fie	ld testing & sampling	of surface and	sub-surface v	vater source	es	•	•			
1.1.1	Drought	Pecos	N/A	New	San Miguel County	24 months	\$500,000	HMGP, USGA, LOCAL	L	

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Benefit-Cost.	Regional & County-wic	le mitigation pro	oject that bene	efits all jurisd	lictions in the identi	fying of location	s for additiona	al water sources	
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This project re	quires the colla	boration of m	ulti-jurisdicti	ions and needs to be	identified withi	n the regional	water plans	
Develop wa	iter storage/hydrant s	ystems in for r	aw, drinking	and effluen	t water.		•	•	
1.1.5	Drought, Flood, Wildfire	Pecos	N/A	New	SMC/CLV/Pecos Fire & Public Works	36 months	\$900,000	HMP, Fire Funds,	L
Benefit-Cost.	Increase the water stor	rage capabilities	toward fire s	uppression, i	rrigation and drinki	ng water for citi	zens		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Cost will need	to be a collabor	ative effort wi	th local juris	dictions and private	non-profit orga	nizations poss	ible hydrologic &	
environmen	environmental studies required								
Join the Cor	nmunity Rating Syste	m (CRS) and pu	rsue opportu	inities to im	prove CRS ratings		1	1	
1.1.7	Flood	Pecos	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/LV/Pecos Planning & zoning, Community Development	12-24 months	NONE	HMPG/LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost.	: County-wide project w	hich benefits pr	operty owner	s in lowering	g insurance rates				
Technical Fe	asibility: Local jurisdic	tions need to su	pport the prog	gram and con	tinue to participate				
Install flash instruction	ning roadside emerger s	ncy notification	signs to advi	ise of an em	ergency, web anno	uncement, & Al	M Radio Broa	dcast with addition	onal
1.2.1	Hazardous Materials	Pecos	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$200,000	HMGP,HMEP, LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost.	: This is a county-wide p	project which wi	ll allow for an	early warnin	ng system toward lif	e safety issues in	n all-hazard ev	rents	
Technical Fe by local juris	<i>casibility:</i> Will need to in sdictions	nstall signs alon	g major state a	and public ro	adways, that integra	ated with existin	g Highway adv	visory system and s	supported
Construct a	tower and transpond	er to have the a	ability to rece	eive NOAA w	eather alert notifie	cation and pure	chase NOAA r	adios for public fa	cilities
and vulnera	able populations to re	ceive these me	ssages					-	
1.2.2	High Wind, Thunderstorm, Severe Winter Weather, Tornado	Pecos	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM & NOAA	24 months	\$300,000	HMGP, NOAA, LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost.	Project is to obtain an	early warning w	eather systen	n county-wid	e				
Technical Fe	chnical Feasibility: Costs should be through NOAA but budget restraints require local jurisdictions support								
Implement	a county-wide mass n	otification/em	ergency mes	saging syste	m to provide a cen	tralized notific	ation system		

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
1.2.3	Dam Failure, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM	12 months	\$36,000	HMP, SHSGP, LOCAL	L		
Benefit-Cost.	: This system is a county	y-wide benefit. T	'his project wi	ill allow imm	ediate notice to citiz	ens as well as re	egional contac	ts toward early wa	rning		
messages to	nessages toward all hazard events										
Research a	<i>asibility:</i> The initial cos	t is minimal but	will require ic	dant means	ons to support on-ge	oing maintenand h stakeholders	and the comr	nunity to dolivor	and		
receive info	ormation regarding ha	izards, threats,	impacts, and	damage. Pu	irchase, install, and	l implement th	e warning sys	stem.	unu		
1.2.4	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents,PecosN/ANot startedSMCLV OEM12-18 monthsNONEHMPG. LOCALL1.2.4High Wind, Landslide, Pandemic/Epidemic , Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado. WildfirePecosN/ANot startedSMCLV OEM12-18 monthsNONEHMPG. LOCALL										
Benefit-Cost	nefit-Cost: This system is a county-wide benefit. This project will allow immediate notice to citizens as well as regional contacts toward early warning										
Technical Fe	easibility: Minimal to no	cost to local juri	sdictions tow	ard research	ing and identifying	potential solutio	ons				

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Research th	e feasibility and bene	fits of becomin	g a NOAA Sto	rmReady Co	ommunity				
1.2.5	Flood, Hailstorm, High Winds, Thunderstorm, Tornado,	Pecos	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	6-12 months	NONE	NOAA/LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost.	Assist communities an	d NOAA with up	-date weather	related data	toward all hazard e	vents.			
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost and outr	each is covered	by NOAA and	minimal cost	ts to local jurisdictio	ns, but support i	is needed		
Design & de	evelop an OEM web-sit	te that provide:	s drop down	links toward	d mitigation/prepa	redness/respo	onse/recovery	y and identify fund	ding
sources tow	vard hailstorm mitigat	tion programs	I	1		1	1	1	
1.3.1	Dam Failure, Drought, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials, High Wind, Flood, Landslide, Pandemic / Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	New and Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$5,000	HMGP,LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost.	This will be an accessi	ble web-site to a	nyone that wi	ll want to ob	tain information tov	vard this hazard	, and additiona	al outreach informa	ation
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Cost and outre	each will need to	be supported	by local juri	sdictions toward the	e set-up of the in	itial web-site	design and will req	uire
minimal ma	intenance and cost								
Install outd	oor early warning sys	tems at local p	arks, athletic	fields, and	on educational inst	itution campus	ses		1
1.3.3	Dam Failure, Flood, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	36 months	\$200,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Benefit-Cost.	This project is an early	y warning syster	n that benefit	s the commu	nities county-wide t	o ensure an earl	y warning sys	tem toward all haz	ard events
Technical Fe	asibility: The cost and o	outreach will ne	ed to be condu	icted by local	l jurisdictions and fi	rst responders			
Work with	the state and USDA NR	RCS to install ad	lditional high	-elevation S	NOTEL stations in	the Sangre de (Christo Moun	tains and Glorieta	Mesa
1.3.4	Drought	Pecos	N/A	Not started	SMCLV OEM	24-36 months	\$50,000	HMPG/USDA/ NRCS/USGS	L
Benefit-Cost.	Installation SNOTEL st	ations will assis	t in flood cont	rol, and reter	ntion measures in th	e county. It will	help to reduc	e flood impacts and	d improve
overall wate	r resource managemen	t in drought con	ditions.						
Technical Fe	asibility: Installation of	SNOTEL station	s will require	coordination	i, maintenance, and i	management agi	reements with	the state and USD	A NRCS.
Work with	USGS to install continu	lous monitorin	g stream gag	es on Tecolo	ote Creek, the Conc	has River (abo ^v	ve the lake), t	he Canadian Rive	r, the
Pecos River	; and the Gallinas Rive	er 1000' south	of the diversi	on gate.		1			1
1.3.5	Drought	Pecos	N/A	Not Started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos, watershed associations	24 months	\$50,000	USGS, Local	L
Benefit-Cost.	Installation of stream g	gauges will assis	t in water ma	nagement, flo	ood control, and rete	ention measures	in the county.	It will help to redu	uce flood
impacts and	improve overall water	resource manag	gement in drou	ight conditio	ns.				
Technical Fe	asibility: Installation of	stream gauges v	vill require co	ordination, n	naintenance, and ma	inagement agree	ements with U	SGS.	
Review and	develop the current l	ouilding codes	<u>to include mi</u>	tigation for	seismic shaking in	future constru	ction		
2.1.1	Earthquake	Pecos	New and Existing	New	SMC Planning & Zoning	18 month	\$50,000	HMGP, LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost.	To develop a county-w	vide enforceable	building code	that enhance	e structural safety co	ounty-wide			
Technical Fe	asibility: Will require a	code enforceme	ent personnel	to identify , p	process and enforce	adopted regulat	ions		
Improve on additional t	state building codes t echniques to harden s	through local n structures.	nodifications	that meet o	r exceed state and	national model	s by ordinand	ce, which would re	esult in
2.1.5	Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, High Wind, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	New	Not started	SMC Planning & Zoning Division	24-36 months	\$75,000.00	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L
Benefit-Cost.	To develop a county-w	vide enforceable	building code	that enhance	e structural safety co	ounty-wide in or	der to minimi	ze property damag	je
Technical Fe	asibility: No cost for jur	isdictions to hav	ve an ordinan	ce developed	in the county towar	d exceeding cur	rent building	code requirements	
Identify fur	ding sources to devel	op zoning regu	lations and o	rdinances to	o reduce loss from	identified haza	rds.	-	

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
2.1.7	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, , Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	New	Not started	SMC Planning & zoning office	6-12 months	none	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L
Benefit-Cost	: Project is a county-wid	le benefit towar	d identifying r	eduction of p	property losses				
Develop op	d implement zoning n	ogulations and	ed by the cou		e from identified h	agarda			
2.1.8	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	New	Not started	SMC Planning & zoning office	6-12 months	\$75,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L
Benefit-Cost.	: Develop a county-wide	e zoning regulati	on to minimiz	e property lo	oss county-wide				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Local jurisdict	ions will need to	obtain speci	alized assista	ance toward zoning a	requirements as	it relates to al	l hazard events	
Research a	nd study the feasibilit	y of developing	and implem	enting an er	vironmental prote	ction ordinanc	e		
2.1.9	Flood	Pecos	New and existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/ Pecos P &Z or OEM	12-24 months	none	EPA/HMGP/ LOCAL/Higher Education institutes	L

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
Benefit-Cost:	Evaluate the communi	ty's capacity for	additional dev	velopment gi	ven environmental	protection prior	ities.		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Will require ci	tizen support ac	l participation	as well as te	echnical support fror	n a professional	environmenta	l consultant	
Pursue elev structures i	vation/acquisition/flo in the county and mun	od proofing pro icipalities. An	ojects and str nually review	ructural solu and correc	itions to flooding u t the Repetitive Los	sing available រូ ss List by subm	grant funding itting correct	for the repetitive ion worksheets to	e loss o FEMA.
2.2.2	Flood	Pecos	Existing	Not started	SMC,CLV, PECOS	12-24 MONTHS	\$100,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L
Benefit-Cost: residents.	Reduce the risk to com	munities living	in the area: Es	tablish bene	ficial living environr	nent for improve	ed health, safe	ty and general welf	fare of the
Technical Fe Divisions to	<i>asibility:</i> Maintain deve meet NFIP policies.	lopment review	and regulate a	all developm	ent in San Miguel Co	ounty through Lo	ocal, State and	Federal Governme	nt
Re-design a	nd construction of the	e diversion gate	es to handle i	ncrease wat	er flows during flo	ods or heavy ra	ins		
2.3.1	Dam Failure, Flood	Pecos	N/A	New	Storrie Water users association	36 months	\$3,000,000	HMGP, LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost:	minimizes the flood wa	aters that effect	the public infr	astructure, r	esidences and busin	ess districts of t	he City of Las	Vegas	
Technical Fe	asibility: Cost is covered	d by private non	-profit organiz	zation with s	upport by local juris	dictions			
Require the	e use of hail resistant i	naterial in futu	re county-fu	nded constr	uction projects				
2.3.3	Hailstorm	Pecos	New and Existing	New	SMC Planning & Zoning	12 months	NONE	LOCAL, NMCID	L
Benefit-Cost:	To develop a county-w	vide enforceable	building code	that enhance	e structural safety co	ounty-wide in or	der to minimi	ze property damag	e
Technical Fe	asibility: No cost for cou	unty to have a pr	oper ordinan	ce, regulatior	n developed in the co	ounty building co	ode requireme	ents	
Identify crit	tical infrastructure wl	nere safe room	s can be cons	tructed for p	protection/safety o	f building occu	pants within	the facility	
2.3.4	High Wind, Thunderstorm, Tornado	Pecos	New and Existing	New	Local jurisdictions, hospitals ,schools, higher education	24 months	\$600,000	HMGP, EMPG	L
Benefit-Cost:	Provide a safe and secu	ure environmen	t for identified	l critical infra	astructures and for t	those that are oc	cupying the st	ructures	
Technical Fe	asibility: Federal regula	tions requireme	ents are involv	ed, Wind, de	bris impact ,designs	, permitting & Co	ode complianc	e by local jurisdicti	ons
Conduct a s	tudy to identify lands	lide areas with	in the county	and install	rock netting towar	d protection m	easures at th	e identified sites	
2.3.5	Landslide	Pecos	N/A	New	SMC/Pecos Public Works & NMDOT	24 months	\$500,000	HMGP,DOT,LOC AL	L

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority	
Benefit-Cost.	: Quantitatively estimat	e the risk from p	otential lands	lides along t	ransportation corrid	lors.				
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Reduce the ris	k to communitie	es living in the	area, or to th	ne population passin	ig the area along	; transportatio	n lines of local juri	sdictions	
The Upper	Pecos Watershed Asso	ciation is comp	pleting a NEP	A analysis fo	or "roadside thinni	ng" within the	Pecos Canyon	1		
3.1.1	Wildfire	Pecos	N/A	Ongoing	Upper Pecos Watershed Association	2014-2019	\$360,000	US Forest, HMP, LOCAL	L	
Benefit-Cost.	Tree thinning reduces	the impact of do	wned trees or	n local infrast	tructure that provid	e access and pov	wer to the com	munity. It also red	uces the	
risk of wildf	ire caused by trees fallin	ng on overhead j	power lines in	the canyon.						
Technical Fe	chnical Feasibility: Tree thinning improves the overall health of trees and forested areas and reduces the risk of wildfire caused by trees falling on									
overhead po	ower lines.									
Harden the	bay doors of the fire s	tations to redu	ice vulnerabi	lity to wind	related events.	•	•	<u>.</u>		
3.1.4	High Wind, Thunderstorm, Tornado	Pecos	Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Fire Agencies	24-36 months	\$500,000	HMGP, Fire Funds,	L	
Benefit-Cost.	Mitigation project that	would assist in	minimizing in	frastructure	damage and provide	e more safety		•		
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This project w	ill have to be su	pported by loc	al departme	nts county-wide					
Install a gei	nerator at each of the	Fire and Police	Stations to r	educe vulne	rability to power-o	outages during	hazard event	s.		
3.1.5	Install a generator at each of the Fire and Police Stations to reduce vulnerability to power-outages during hazard events. Dam Failure, Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flood, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, High Not Wind, Landslide, Pecos Severe Winter Pecos Weather, Terrorism, Fire Thunderstorm, Towneda Wildfine									
Benefit-Cost.	: Mitigation project to a	llow for Continu	ity of operatio	ons during all	hazard events					
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost of ele	ctrical installation	on and equipn	nent would n	eed to be supported	by local jurisdi	ctions and firs	t responders		
Harden Pec	cos Village Complex Bu	uilding to reduc	e vulnerabili	ities to vario	ous natural hazards	S.				

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority
3.1.6	Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	Existing	Not started	Village of Pecos	36 months	\$150,000	HMGP, Local	L
Benefit-Cost: community	The Pecos Village Com for management and ad	plex houses the ministration of	village admin emergencies a	istration, fire and disasters	department, and po in Pecos.	lice department	t. It is the sing	le most critical asso	et in the
Technical Fe	asibility: The Pecos Vill	age Complex nee	eds to be hard	ened for high	winds, rising water	s, and other nat	ural hazards t	hat could comprom	ise the
envelope of	the structure.								
Conduct a s	eismic study of all crit	tical infrastruct	ure within th	ne county to	identify the effects	of an earthqua	ake on existir	g facilities	
3.2.1	Earthquake	Pecos	Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$75,000	HMGP, LOCAL,	L
Benefit-Cost:	obtain data that identi	fies, inventories	and prioritize	s structures	that could be seismi	cally hazardous	and ability for	continuity of gove	rnment
<i>Technical Fe</i> required.	<i>asibility:</i> Seismic studie	s will identify th	e risk areas a	nd vulnerable	e assets within the h	azard areas whe	ere further mit	igation actions mag	y be
Research an	nd meet with State Pla	nt Pest and Dis	ease Agencie	es such as US	DA/APHIS to ident	tify mitigation	projects in th	is area	
3.2.2	Pandemic/Epidemic Pests	Pecos	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM & USDA/APHIS	12 months	None	LOCAL	L
Benefit-Cost:	Minimal cost and coun	ty-wide benefits	. This project	will help citi	zens with potential t	hreats to agricu	lture and plan	t disease events	
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> Outreach is co	vered by local a	nd state organ	izations					
Harden, ret landslide, a	rofit, or replace vulne nd flooding.	erable, unsafe b	ridges that a	re used by h	eavy equipment to	access areas v	ulnerable to	wildfire, snowfall,	,

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
3.2.6	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Hazardous Materials Incidents, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Public Works	24-36 months	\$3,000,000	HMPG/DOT/LO CAL	L		
Benefit-Cost: Conduct inspection on existing areas and improve with maintenance and hardening of existing systems county-wide											
Technical Fe environmen	environmental studies required										
Encourage	new development are	as to install un	derground ut	tilities, whic	h would help redu	ce the chances	of power outa	ages.			
3.3.1 Hailstorm, High Wind, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire Pecos New Not started SMC/ CLV/Pecos/ Electrical Coops 6-12 months none General revenue / External sources, HMGP											
Benefit-Cost.	: Minimal cost and is a c	ounty-wide ben	efit that woul	d assist citize	ens during all hazard	related events	toward health	& safety			
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> This project w	rill need support	from local jui	risdictions, p	rivate sector and coo	ops county wide					
Develop en	ergency evacuation a	nd sheltering p	lans	NT .		1			1		
4.1.3	Terrorism	Pecos	N/A	Not started	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$50,000	HMPG/SHSGP/ LOCAL	L		
Benefit-Cost.	: Allow first responders	the ability to as	sist communi	ties during al	l hazard events						
Technical Feasibility: Will require researching and identifying areas within a 4700 square mile area with 514 miles of roads.											
Install and maintain ITAC channels in public safety radios to improve inter-operability with Santa Fe County											
4.2.1 Wildfire Pecos N/A Existing L											
Benefit-Cost: Minimal cost to the first responder agencies with benefits of multi-jurisdictional communication during large events like wildfire.											
<i>Technical Feasibility:</i> As long as existing radios support the frequencies and there is radio channel space available, this action is easily attainable.											
Identify ser	nor centers, communi	ity centers, and	schools thro	ughout the option	county that can be	used for heatin	ig/cooling sta	itions and install §	generator		
I nook ups, to	owable generators an	u electric A/C 8	e neating con	idination sy	stems						

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority	
4.3.1	Extreme Heat, Severe Winter Weather	Pecos	Existing	New	SMC/LV OEM	24 months	\$500,000	HMGP, LOCAL	L	
Benefit-Cost: This is a county-wide project that benefits toward citizens safety, health and well-being. This will ensure citizens have a location to remain either warm or cool in extreme events										
<i>Technical Feasibility:</i> The cost of electrical installation and equipment would need to be supported by local jurisdictions										
Encourage	Dam Dations	hty groups to a	ssist vuinera	ble persons	in the event of pov	ver loss and to	develop an e	mergency plan.	,P	
4.3.2 Dam Fallure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, High Vind, Landslide, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire									L	
Benefit-Cost.	: Assist vulnerable popu	llation county-w	ide during all	hazard even	ts					
Technical Fe	<i>asibility:</i> The cost and o	utreach is cover	ed by Emerge	ncy Manager	nent and local churc	ches				
Create a pu Security	blic awareness progra	am to promote	"See Somethi	ng, Say Som	ething" in conjunct	tion with New N	Mexico Depar	tment of Homelar	ıd	
6.1.3	Terrorism	Pecos	N/A	New	SMC/LV OEM & NMDHSEM	12 months	\$30,000	HMGP, LETPG, LOCAL	L	
Benefit-Cost.	: This program allows ci	itizens to report	suspicious ac	tivities quick	ly to the proper auth	norizes in order	to investigate	suspicious activitie	es	
<i>Technical Feasibility:</i> The cost and outreach is to implement an on-going federal program with a local public awareness campaign supported by local jurisdictions										
Increase public awareness of hazards and hazardous areas. Distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using the local newspaper, utility bill inserts, inserts in the phone book, county websites, and educational programs for school age children or "how to" classes in retrofitting by local merchants. Integrate "Disaster Resistance Education" into the public school curriculum.										

Goal/ Objective / Action ID	Hazard(s) Addressed	Jurisdiction	Applies to New or Existing Structure	Status of Project	Responsible Party/Agency / Department	Target Completion Date	Estimated Cost	Potential Funding Source(s)	Priority		
6.1.4	Dam Failure, Drought, Earthquake, Flood, Extreme Heat, Hailstorm, Hazardous Materials Incidents, High Wind, Landslide, Pandemic/Epidemic , Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Terrorism, Thunderstorm, Tornado, Wildfire	Pecos	N/A	On-going	SMC/LV OEM	12-24 months	\$30,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L		
Benefit-Cost	: Obtain educational ma	terials and deve	lop outreach p	programs tov	vard all hazard even	ts					
Technical Fe	easibility: The cost and o	outreach will ne	ed to be suppo	orted by local	ljurisdictions						
Develop an visitors, an	d distribute public aw d vulnerable populati	vareness inform ons.	ation regard	ling potentia	al mitigation measu	ires using vario	ous means to	reach adults, chil	dren,		
6.1.5	6.1.5 Pandemic/ Epidemic, Pests, Severe Winter Weather, Thunderstorm. Pecos N/A Not started SMC/CLV/Pecos Hospitals, clinics & OEM \$40,000 DOH/HMPG/ SHSGP/LOCAL L										
Benefit-Cost.	: Citizens county-wide v	vill benefit with	outreach on p	rotection, an	d mitigation toward	all hazard even	ts				
Technical Fe	<i>easibility:</i> Cost and outre	each will need to	be supported	by local juri	sdictions toward the	e implementing a	a public aware	eness campaign			
Promote th Program (N	e purchase of flood in NFIP).	surance. Adver	tise the avail	ability, cost,	and coverage of flo	ood insurance	through the N	lational Flood Ins	urance		
6.2.2	Flood	Pecos	New and Existing	Not started	SMC/CLV/Pecos Flood Plain Managers	6-12 months	\$10,000	General revenue / External sources, HMGP	L		
Benefit-Cost	: Develop educational re	esources and ma	terials toward	l public awar	eness and benefits t	oward obtaining	g flood insurar	nce			
Technical Fe	easibility: Cost will be to	develop public of	outreach coun	ty-wide and	needs to be support	ed by local juris	dictions.				

8.5 Current Wildfire Mitigation Programs

San Miguel County has developed several programs to reduce the danger associated with wildland fires. The FireWise Program emphasizes awareness of fire risk and wildfire prevention strategies. The Fuel Reduction Program identifies areas of high fuel loading that are near the Urban Wildland Interface that are in need of excess fuel removal. The County Fire Division and Office of Emergency Management (OEM) take the lead in monitoring the progress of all proposed projects.

The county has been able to treat approximately 500 acres per year since the decision was signed in 2006. The goal has been to treat 800 acres a year. The county anticipates completing 300-500 acres 2010. Overall, the county would like to thin 800 acres per year over the next 5 years. At this schedule thinning would be completed by 2016. Annually, the county has been able to secure approximately \$250,000 to implement thinning projects.

These sources have been in the form of appropriated funds and grant partnerships. The county is considering potential projects which would include additional training for structural and wildland fires, construction of water storage facilities, improved communications, post-fire mitigation, and obtaining state insurance for structural fires. The following list includes projects currently managed by the county:

- Limiting the number of vehicular camping spaces near streams;
- Respect the Rio: a public education campaign where rangers visit campgrounds to teach visitors about water quality hazards, and appropriate use of sites near streams;
- Upper Pecos Watershed Project;
- FireWise programs;
- Gallinas Fuels Reduction project;
- Travel Management, 2005 project to define the roads in USFS and Wilderness lands;
- USFS Fire Prevention Officer provides outreach about fire prevention strategies;
- USFS Public Information Officer provides informational wildfire flyers;
- NM State Parks: Conchas Lake State Park has a Wildfire Evacuation Plan; and
- Historical tree thinning project on City of Las Vegas land that produced 200 to 300 cords of free firewood for residents.

8.5.1 FireWise Program

The national FireWise Communities program is a multi-agency effort designed to increase awareness of individual wildfire awareness and responsibility. The FireWise Communities approach emphasizes community responsibility for planning in the design of a safe community as well as effective emergency response, and individual responsibility for safer home construction and design, landscaping, and maintenance. San Miguel County is not currently listed as a recognized national FireWise Community but is currently working toward recognition through the implementation and maintenance of its Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP).

8.5.2 Fuel Reduction Program

Treating vegetation is one of the most viable ways the county can reduce the risk of catastrophic wildland fire. Vegetation should be treated around homes, along evacuation and travel routes in

creation of landscape fuel breaks, in the Gallinas Municipal Watershed, around critical infrastructure, and throughout the county to improve watershed health and reduce fire hazards.

There are twenty-nine recommended treatment corridors primarily located within the northwest quadrant of the county and nineteen proposed evacuation fuel breaks within the northwest quadrant. The three highest priority forested areas for evacuation/travel route treatments include Highway 63 (Pecos Canyon), Forest Road (FR) 223, and FR 123. Hazardous fuels reduction efforts along Highway 63 extend from Monastery Lake to the northern end of Cowles. FR 223 efforts extend along FR 223 from highway 63 to the Iron Gate campground that includes FR 223A. The extent of efforts on FR 123 extends from Highway 63 to the extreme rated Dalton Canyon community. All three of these fuels mitigation projects consist of limbing and thinning to a recommended minimum of 200 feet wide.

8.5.3 Wildfire Response Capabilities

The San Miguel County fire districts provide emergency response services to all of the unincorporated areas of the county. The county has a Fire Division with a full-time fire chief that oversees the volunteer fire districts. Services provided include wildland fire and structural fire prevention and suppression, emergency medical services, hazardous materials mitigation and rural search and rescue. Structure fires are infrequent and wildland fires make up approximately 90 percent of the fire responses. There are currently 12 active county fire districts including the following: Cabo Lucero, Conchas, El Pueblo, Gallinas, Ilfeld, La Placitas, Pecos Canyon, Rowe, Sapello Rociada, Sheridan, Tecolote, and Trementina. County proposed sub-stations in the planning stages include the following: San Geronimo, Conchas, South Station, San Jose, Storrie Lake, San Ignacio, Los Montoyas, Tecolotito, Trujillo, and East Pecos.

The county fire districts are staffed by 300 volunteer firefighters and there are approximately 60 fire trucks within the county with varying capabilities. Volunteer county fire departments include the following: Cabo Lucero, Conchas, East Pecos, El Pueblo, Gallinas, Ilfeld, La Placitas, Pecos Canyon, Sapello, Rociada, Rowe, Sheridan, Tecolote, Tecolotito, and Trementina. The Village of Pecos has a well-staffed fire department since the Village heavily invests in this service with 18 volunteer firefighters and one paid fire chief.

Station	Location	Address
1	Bernal*	20 El Cerrito Road
2	Tecolote	10 Tecolote Plaza
3	Cabo Lucero	900 Ridgecrest Drive
4	San Geronimo*	2200 Tecolote Canyon Drive
5	Conchas Main Station	100 Conchas Dam Road
6	Conchas North Side	500 Conchas Dam Road
7	Conchas Bell Ranch	800 South Bell Ranch Road
8	Conchas South Station*	111 Hoover Ville Road
9	El Pueblo	1000 Gonzales Ranch Road
10	Villanueva	503 Villanueva St. Park Rd.

Table 8.5.3-1County Active Fire Stations and Proposed Sub-Stations

Station	Location	Address
11	San Jose*	303 San Jose Road
12	Gallinas	3695 Hot Springs Road
13	Storrie Lake*	353 Mora Route Road
14	La Placita*	1065 NM Highway 65
15	Ilfeld	1000 San Ysidro Road
16	Rowe*	4009 Old Las Vegas Highway
17	Pecos Canyon	607 South State Road 63
18	Sapello	416 High Country
19	Rociada	1200 High Country Road
20	San Ignacio*	500 Hermits Peak Road
21	Sheridan	3327 Ojitos Frios Road
22	Los Montoyas*	801 Anton Chico Road
23	Tecolotito*	407 Tecolotito Road
24	Trementina	100 Sabinoso Road
25	Trujillo*	4300 Trujillo Route Road
26	East Pecos*	SMC-B51 And SR 223

Source: San Miguel County Fire Chief website. Available at <http://www.smcounty.net/fire_marshal.htm>. *Designates proposed county sub-stations

County fire districts also work with municipal fire departments in the City of Las Vegas and the Village of Pecos that provide mutual aid and have developed water systems and fire hydrants for fire suppression. New Mexico State Forestry's Las Vegas District, located at Storrie Lake State Park in Las Vegas, also provides fire suppression response for Wildland fires on state and private lands in the county.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Forest Service, Santa Fe National Forest Pecos/Las Vegas Ranger District administers a large portion of the forested lands in the county. They provide initial attack fire suppression resources and they can mobilize a significant number of resources for extended attack wildfire suppression through their local, regional and national interagency dispatch centers. Other federal agencies such as the Bureau of Land Management and the National Park Service, Pecos National Historical Park have limited initial attack resources in the county but participate in the interagency dispatch and mobilization. San Miguel County fire districts provide primary fire suppression response for the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service at McAllister Lake Wildlife Refuge. The Pecos National Historical Park has an agreement with the Village of Pecos stating that the Village will provide structural fire protection to Park buildings. The County Road Department can respond to wildfires with road graders. The State of New Mexico Department of Transportation can also respond to wildfires when life or property is threatened.

8.6 Current Communications Mitigation Programs

In January 2010, the City of Las Vegas Community Development Division received funding from the Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management to upgrade all radios in the Transportation Department.

This page is intentionally blank.

9. PLAN IMPLEMENTATION, MONITORING AND UPDATES

9.1 Interim Final Rule for Plan Monitoring and Maintenance

Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(i): [The plan maintenance process **shall** include a] section describing the method and schedule of monitoring, evaluating, and updating the mitigation plan within a five-year cycle

Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(ii): [The plan **shall** include a] process by which local governments incorporate the requirements of the mitigation plan into other planning mechanisms such as comprehensive or capital improvement plans, when appropriate.

Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(iii): [The plan maintenance process **shall** include a] discussion on how the community will continue public participation in the plan maintenance process.

The san Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan will be monitored, maintained, and updated by the San Miguel County and City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management (OEM) Director, with the assistance and participation of all participating jurisdictions included in the Plan.

The contact information for the San Miguel County OEM is:

Dennis English Emergency Manager SMC/LV Office of Emergency Management denglish@smcounty.net 505.425.6190

9.2 Method for Monitoring the Plan

The County's maintenance strategy for implementation, monitoring, and evaluation provides a structure that encourages collaboration, information sharing, and innovation. Through a multi-tiered implementation method, the County will work with partners and residents to implement a highly localized approach to loss reduction while serving communal needs through coordinated policies and programs. Through this strategy, San Miguel County will work to break the disaster cycle and achieve more disaster resistant communities.

This Plan will be monitored by the Emergency Manager. The Emergency Manager will monitor the plan at least annually for several related purposes:

- To maintain the currency of hazard and risk information;
- To ensure that the mitigation strategies reflect the priorities of participating communities and stakeholders;
- To comply with Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and State of New Mexico requirements for plan maintenance;
- To maintain eligibility for state and federal disaster assistance and mitigation grants for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos; and
- To ensure this Plan is in harmony with other planning efforts throughout the planning area.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Plan Implementation, Monitoring, and Updates

The Emergency Manager will continuously monitor the Plan with respect to the purposes noted above, and with respect to the update triggers noted below.

9.2.1 Implementation

In order to ensure efficient and effective implementation, the County will make use of its existing capabilities and infrastructure. When funding and opportunities arise, the County and all participating jurisdictions will work to implement the mitigation strategies described in this Plan over the next five years. In many cases, it is intended that these strategies will be implemented as collaborative efforts, as partnerships between the County and the respective jurisdiction(s).

The Emergency Manager will work in conjunction with those departments identified in both the capability identification and the mitigation strategy section to initiate the strategy outlined in the Mitigation Action Plan for each participating jurisdiction. For example, all measures involving public information and outreach will be coordinated with the City/Village Council or County Commission, which serve as the elected representatives of the jurisdiction.

9.2.2 Public Education Programs

At the individual resident level, public education and outreach programs provide the planning area with localized mechanisms for implementation. This approach to mitigation can adapt to the varying vulnerabilities and needs throughout the planning area. Public education programs are also a means for involving the public in mitigation policy development. Departments conducting mitigation-related programs will provide information regarding proposed mitigation measures to individuals, to aid individuals in choosing methods those that would be most effective in their communities.

The public education programs level will also include NFIP recommended aspects that will help establish the planning area's participating in the CRS, should the jurisdictions opt to join the program.

9.2.3 Hazard Mitigation Plan Mitigation Planning Group

The San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan MPG, who oversaw the development of this Plan, will be the body responsible for determining the direction of mitigation policy recommendations, for reviewing the performance measures, and for Plan implementation. The MPG, which also includes the County's LEPC, represents a County-wide group of hazard and vulnerability experts and government employees whose departments will be responsible for many of the implementation activities. The MPG will be responsible for collaborating on County-wide policies and programs on the city/village level.

When required, but at least annually, the MPG will be responsible for monitoring, evaluating, and updating the Plan (discussed below). The MPG will ultimately provide a mechanism for coordination among those departments engaged in mitigation to ensure that a comprehensive and efficient approach be undertaken in the planning area's efforts at all-hazards mitigation. The Emergency Manager will initiate and coordinate these efforts.

9.3 Schedule for Monitoring the Plan

This is the first hazard mitigation plan for San Miguel County, the City of Las Vegas, and the Village of Pecos. Through the first five-year cycle, plan monitoring activities will be ongoing. In addition to the FEMA-mandated five year update cycle, the OEM will perform a review of the current Plan at least annually, or more often as circumstances require. At least annually, a progress report will be prepared by each participating jurisdiction, noting any updates to information in the Plan or progress that has been made towards the goals, objectives or actions identified in the Plan.

In addition to the scheduled reports, the Mitigation Planning Group will convene meetings after damage-causing natural hazard events to review the impacts of such events. Based on those impacts, adjustments to the mitigation priorities identified in the mitigation strategies may be made or additional event-specific actions may be identified.

9.4 Method and Schedule for Evaluating and Updating the Plan

The San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan will be updated within five years, and will be submitted to NMDHSEM and FEMA for review and approval.

Comprehensive review of and revisions to this Plan will be undertaken on a five-year cycle. This Plan was adopted in November 12, 2014, and thus must undergo a formal FEMA-compliant update process by November 12, 2019. Approximately 18-24 months prior to the five year anniversary of Plan adoption, the OEM will initiate a comprehensive review of the Plan with particular attention to FEMA guidance, and will likely seek funding to perform this update.

The OEM will prepare a report (1) describing the update requirements; (2) summarizing the staff analysis of the Plan, highlighting areas that require modification and explaining the reasons why the modification is needed, and; (3) providing detailed recommendations about how the Plan should be updated, noting any technical work that may be required. The report will be provided to the MPG for consideration; the Committee will review the report and provide recommendations for updates. The report will also be posted on the County's website for public review and comment, with notifications provided to all participating jurisdictions for dissemination within their community.

The OEM will be responsible for the completion of any updates determined necessary by the MPG.

When the draft updates are completed, the MPG will conduct a comprehensive evaluation and revision. The OEM will produce a final draft of the updated Plan for consideration by the MPG, who will review the updated Plan, indicate any desired changes, and recommend approval and adoption of the Plan in sufficient time to meet FEMA requirements.

9.5 Incorporation into Existing Planning Mechanisms

A wide array of planning authority and action capability exists within the planning area. Participating jurisdictions will take the opportunity to incorporate information from the 2014 Plan into their existing programs and decision-making processes, and use the Plan data to focus on the risks and vulnerabilities they face. This data and information will be used, to the extent possible and practicable, to create more sustainable, disaster-resilient communities. The existing efforts

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Plan Implementation, Monitoring, and Updates

effort will continue with the adoption and approval of this Plan, which contains a higher degree of detailed information by jurisdiction than previously collected information.

A variety of existing plans were reviewed and considered during the development of this Plan update, including but not limited to:

- After Action Reports
- Comprehensive Plans
- Land Use Plans
- Master Plans
- Water Management Plans/Policies
- Wildfire Plans
- Zoning Codes/Ordinances
- State Hazard Mitigation Plan
- State Fire and Building Codes

Going forward, this Plan will be considered in the development and updating of new and existing plans and planning efforts. All participating jurisdictions in this Plan are responsible for creating and maintaining a process by which this Plan will be considered and incorporated into their other planning mechanisms. This work will be accomplished with the assistance of the San Miguel County OEM.

Upon approval of this Plan, each participating jurisdiction will be provided with a copy of the approved Plan. The identified point of contact for each participating jurisdiction will be responsible for ensuring that the approved Plan is available to the appropriate staff within the jurisdiction, to ensure that the Plan can be incorporated into all applicable planning mechanisms. In addition, the Plan will be posted to the County's website, where it will be available to and accessible by the general public as well as all participating jurisdictions.

9.6 Circumstances that will Initiate Plan Review and Updates

This section identifies the circumstances or conditions under which the OEM will initiate Plan reviews and/or updates:

- On the recommendation of the MPG or on its own initiative, any City Council or County Commission may initiate a Plan review at any time
- At the close of each calendar year
- After natural hazard events that appear to significantly change the apparent risk to the planning area's assets, operations and/or constituents

The Plan will guide the planning area's mitigation efforts for the foreseeable future. The MPG has developed a method to ensure that regular review and update of the Plan occurs within a five-year cycle. The OEM will coordinate all reviews.

The OEM will collaborate with members of the Steering Committee to monitor and evaluate the mitigation strategy implementation. This will be done through project implementation tracking. Findings will be presented and discussed at LEPC and MPG meetings.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Plan Implementation, Monitoring, and Updates

At the close of each calendar year, the OEM will provide each participating jurisdiction with a project implementation questionnaire. This questionnaire will provide the mechanism by which project implementation information can be collected and tracked, and will allow for an assessment of the overall implementation of the Plan, at both the County and the municipal levels.

The OEM will provide a report of the entire implementation strategy to the Steering Committee during meetings. This report will drive will include the following:

- Updates on implementation at the public education and community planning levels
- Updates on mitigation activities undertaken
- Updates on hazard occurrences in the County, City of Las Vegas, and Village of Pecos
- Changes or anticipated changes in hazard risk and vulnerability at the county, regional, State, FEMA, and US Department of Homeland Security levels
- Any implementation activities undertaken, by participating jurisdiction
- Problems encountered or success stories
- Any technical or scientific advances that may alter, make easier, or create new measures

Finally, the MPG will determine updates to the strategy based on the above information and a discussion of:

- The various resources available through budgetary means as well as any relevant grants
- The current and expected political environment and public opinion
- Meeting the mitigation goals with regards to changing conditions.

9.7 Continued Public Involvement

As noted above, this Plan will be evaluated and updated periodically and when certain triggering events occur. The County and participating jurisdictions will utilize public notices in an effort to include the public in the update process. The OEM, in conjunction with the participating jurisdictions, will undertake public outreach and awareness activities as outlined in the Mitigation Action Plan.

San Miguel County and its participating jurisdictions are dedicated to continued public involvement and education in review and updates of the Plan. This dedication is reflected in many of the mitigation measures described in the Mitigation Action Plan. The MPG will seek comment at such time the plan undergoes a formal update. In addition, the MPG is committed to public education and will include information regarding hazard mitigation and community disaster resistance in educational materials and presentations as appropriate.

The public will also have the opportunity to provide ongoing feedback about the Plan. The County will maintain a copy of the Plan on its website, which will be accessible to the general public for the entire approval period.

The tiered implementation structure provides an opportunity for continuous public involvement. Public education campaigns and community planning groups are a means of informing the public on updates and implementation activities. Each participating jurisdiction will provide a public meeting prior to the adoption of the Plan; public comments will be requested during this meeting. The meeting will provide the public a forum for expressing concerns, opinions, or ideas about the Plan as well as other plans. These meetings will be advertised in advance through a variety of media.

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS

Annualized Earthquake Loss (AEL): The estimated long-term value of earthquake losses in any given single year in a specified geographic area.

Annualized Earthquake Loss Ratio (AELR): The ratio of the average annualized earthquake loss to the replacement value of the building inventory. This ratio is used as a measure of relative risk, since it considers replacement value, and can be directly compared across different geopolitical units including census tracts, counties, and states.

Blizzard Warning: Issued for sustained or gusty winds of 35 mph or more, and falling or blowing snow creating visibilities at or below ¼ mile; these conditions should persist for at least three hours.

Blowing Snow: Wind-driven snow that reduces visibility and causes significant drifting. Blowing snow may be snow that is falling and/or loose snow on the ground picked up by the wind.

Dense Fog Advisory: Issued when fog will reduce visibility to ¹/₄ mile or less over a widespread area.

Freezing Rain: Rain that falls onto a surface with a temperature below freezing. This causes it to freeze to surfaces, such as trees, cars, and roads, forming a coating or glaze of ice. Even small accumulations of ice can cause a significant hazard.

Hazard: A source of potential danger or an adverse condition. For example, a hurricane occurrence is the source of high winds, rain, and coastal flooding, all of which can cause fatalities, injuries, property damage, infrastructure damage, interruption of business, or other types of harm or loss.

Hazard Identification: Hazard identification involves determining the physical characteristics of a particular hazard - magnitude, duration, frequency, probability, and extent – for a site or a community.

Risk: The likelihood of sustaining a loss from a hazard event defined in terms of expected probability and frequency, exposure, and consequences, such as, death and injury, financial costs of repair and rebuilding, and loss of use.

Risk Analysis: The process of measuring or quantifying risk. Risk analysis combines hazard identification and vulnerability assessment and answers three basic questions:

- What hazard events can occur in the community?
- What is the likelihood of these hazard events occurring?
- What are the consequences if the hazard event occurs?

Risk Assessment: The overall significance of the consequences of a risk analysis for a given planning area.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix A: Definitions

Sleet: Rain drops that freeze into ice pellets before reaching the ground. Sleet usually bounces when hitting a surface and does not stick to objects. However, it can accumulate like snow and cause a hazard to motorists.

Snow Flurries: Light snow falling for short durations. No accumulation or light dusting is all that is expected.

Snow Showers: Snow falling at varying intensities for brief periods of time. Some accumulation is possible.

Snow Squalls: Brief, intense snow showers accompanied by strong, gusty winds. Accumulation may be significant. Snow squalls are best known in the Great Lakes region of the U.S.

Vulnerability Assessment: The process of assessing the vulnerability of people and the built environment to a given level of hazard. The quantification of impacts (i.e., loss estimation) for a hazard event is part of the vulnerability assessment.

Wind Chill Advisory: Issued when wind chill temperatures are expected to be a significant inconvenience to life with prolonged exposure, and, if caution is not exercised, could lead to hazardous exposure.

Wind Chill Warning: Issued when wind chill temperatures are expected to be hazardous to life within several minutes of exposure.

Winter Storm Outlook: Issued prior to a Winter Storm Watch. The Outlook is given when forecasters believe winter storm conditions are possible and are usually issued 3 to 5 days in advance of a winter storm.

Winter Storm Warning: Issued when hazardous winter weather in the form of heavy snow, heavy freezing rain, or heavy sleet is imminent or occurring. Winter Storm Warnings are usually issued 12 to 24 hours before the event is expected to begin.

Winter Storm Watch: Alerts the public to the possibility of a blizzard, heavy snow, heavy freezing rain, or heavy sleet. Winter Storm Watches are usually issued 12 to 48 hours before the beginning of a Winter Storm.

Winter Weather Advisories: Issued for accumulations of snow, freezing rain, freezing drizzle, and sleet which will cause significant inconveniences and, if caution is not exercised, could lead to life-threatening situations.

APPENDIX B: NATIONAL CLIMATIC DATA CENTER HAZARD HISTORY FOR SAN MIGUEL COUNTY

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
20-0ct-57	TORNADO	0	33	0	0	0	0	0.03K	
11-Jul-58	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
11-Jul-58	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
23-May-59	TORNADO	1	400	0	0	0	0	0.03K	
11-Jul-59	HAIL	0	0		3	0	0	0	
12-Jul-61	HAIL	0	0		2.5	0	0	0	
26-Apr-62	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
31-Aug-62	TORNADO	0	33		0	0	0	0	
31-Aug-62	TORNADO	0	33		0	0	0	0	
16-Jun-65	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
14-Aug-65	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
25-May-66	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
18-Jun-66	TORNADO	0.8	33	1	0	0	0	25K	
18-Jun-66	HAIL	0	0		2.75	0	0	0	
05-Aug-66	TSTM WIND	0	0		52	0	0	0	
09-Aug-66	TSTM WIND	0	0		50	0	0	0	
01-Jun-67	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
02-Jun-67	TSTM WIND	0	0		52	0	0	0	
12-May-68	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
16-Jun-68	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
01-Jul-68	TSTM WIND	0	0		50	0	0	0	
14-0ct-68	TSTM WIND	0	0		50	0	0	0	
15-0ct-68	TSTM WIND	0	0		52	0	0	0	
17-Apr-70	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
14-May-70	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
29-Jul-71	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
09-Jul-72	TSTM WIND	0	0		55	0	0	0	
16-Jul-72	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
23-Mar-73	HAIL	0	0		1.5	0	0	0	
21-May-73	TSTM WIND	0	0		0	0	0	0	
10-Aug-73	HAIL	0	0		2	0	0	0	
02-Jun-74	TSTM WIND	0	0		52	0	0	0	
03-Jun-74	TORNADO	0	33	1	0	0	0	25K	
09-Jun-75	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
20-Sep-75	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
03-Jul-76	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
07-Aug-76	TSTM WIND	0	0		57	0	0	0	
24-May-77	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
01-Apr-78	TSTM WIND	0	0		52	0	0	0	
08-May-80	TSTM WIND	0	0		50	0	0	0	
23-Jun-81	TORNADO	0	33	1	0	0	0	2.5K	
13-Jun-82	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
13-Jun-82	TORNADO	0.1	3	1	0	0	0	0.03K	
13-Jun-82	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
13-Jun-82	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
20-Jun-82	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
26-Jun-82	HAIL	0	0		4.5	0	0	0	
06-Sep-82	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
08-Jun-83	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
30-Jun-87	HAIL	0	0		3	0	0	0	
08-Aug-87	TSTM WIND	0	0		0	0	0	0	
04-Jun-89	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
09-Jun-89	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
20-Jul-89	HAIL	0	0		2	0	0	0	
20-Jul-89	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
28-Jun-90	TSTM WIND	0	0		52	0	0	0	
13-Jul-90	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
14-Aug-90	TORNADO	0.2	10	0	0	0	0	0	
27-Jun-92	TORNADO	0.8	73	2	0	0	0	25K	
17-Jul-92	TSTM WIND	0	0		0	0	0	0	
13-May-92	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
									A 58 year-old male tourist was struck and killed by lightning at a resort 20 miles northwest of Las Vegas. The victim was riding bicycles with his granddaughter, and sought
16-May-93	LIGHTNING	0	0		0	1	0	0	shelter under a tall pine tree during the storm.
05- <u>Aug</u> -93	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	ъĸ	Heavy rains flooded several roads and culverts in Las Vegas this afternoon. Several homes and trailers also received some flood damage
28-May-94	НАЦ	0	0		1 75	0	0	0	and trailers also received some nood damage.
17-Jul-94	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	State police reported Ping-Pong ball-size hail and heavy rain which forced cars off the road along Interstate 25.
05-May-95	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Conchas Lake officials reported nickel- to golf ball-size hail at times covering the ground over two inches deep.
05-May-95	HAIL	0	0		1.25	0	0	0	Conchas Lake officials reported nickel- to golf ball-size hail at times covering the ground over two inches deep.
05-May-95	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	Conchas Lake officials reported nickel- to golf ball-size hail at times covering the ground over two inches deep.
25-Jun-95	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									Hail ranging from quarter to golf ball-size
26-Iun-95	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	10K	Vegas and also five miles south of the city.
29-Jun-95	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	14	0.3M	
30-May-96	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
02-Jun-96	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
									Hail to 1 inch covered the ground like snow
03-Jun-96	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	both sides of Interstate 25.
10-Jul-96	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
24-Jul-96	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
30-Aug-96	HAIL	0	0		2.25	0	0	0	
30-Aug-96	HAIL	0	0		1.5	0	0	0	
									A large severe storm moved over western San Miguel county producing heavy rain and considerable hail damage. Brief flash flooding
30-Aug-96	HAIL	0	0		1.5	0	0	80K	was also reported in Las Vegas.
30-Aug-96	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
02-Apr-97	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
02-Apr-97	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
20.14 07					1	0	0		Several supercells developed near the Colorado border and moved rapidly southward through the highlands of northeast New Mexico. One cell formed west of Raton and moved south with hail over Cimarron, then continued southward over open range
30-May-97	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	west of Wagon The Decog Diver already sweller by late
07-Jun-97	FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	80K	season snowmelt, rose quickly during 12 to 18 hours of steady rain which totaled nearly 3

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									inches in the watershed above Pecos. The combined heavy runoff caused damage to several private bridges and filled low cross
03-Jul-97	HAIL	0	0		1.5	0	0	0	
									Heavy rain in central San Miguel county produced rock and mud slides which closed Highway 104 about 15 miles west of Trujillo and washed away much of the road material along a 2.6 miles stretch of County Road C-51-
01-Aug-97	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	150K	A near Trujillo.
20-Aug-97	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
10-Sep-97	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
30-Jul-98	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	2К	brief flash flooding from near Gallinas southeast into Las Vegas. Damage was limited to rural road washouts. Two separate lines of thunderstorms formed over eastern New Mexico and then merged into a complex.
03-Aug-98	TORNADO	0.1	30	0	0	0	0	0	Several funnel clouds were reported during a five minute period near McAlister Lake. A brief tornado touchdown overturned a cattle feeder.
0									Three and one-half inches of rain in several
									hours caused large areas of standing water
19-Aug-98	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	0	and closed roads around Conchas.
29-Sep-98	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
25-May-99	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
29-May-99	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
28-Jun-99	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
08-Jul-99	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	

12-Sep-99HAIL000.88000Image: Sep-99HAIL000.880000Image: Sep-99Image: Sep-99Image: Sep-99The Viveash Mesa Fire in northwest San Miguel County began May 30 from unknown causes and quickly spread in hot and dry conditions to consume nearly 30,000 acres o wildland forest. Several ranch buildings were or wildland forest. Several ranch buildings were buildings were consume nearly 30,000 acres o wildland forest. Several ranch buildings were or wildland forest. Several ranch buildings were surge of ash and debris down Cow Creek. A large fish kill was reported at the confluence with the Pecos River.02-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD00000005-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD00000006-Jun-00HAIL00100006-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD00000007MAIL000000008-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD00000009000000 <th>BGN_DATE</th> <th>EVTYPE</th> <th>LENGTH</th> <th>WIDTH</th> <th>F</th> <th>MAG</th> <th>FAT</th> <th>INJ</th> <th>PROPDMG</th> <th>REMARKS</th>	BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
MillorMillo	12-Sep-99	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	
2Heavy rain of near 1 inch over the Viveash Burn area northeast of Pecos sent a 5 foot surge of ash and debris down Cow Creek. A large fish kill was reported at the confluence with the Pecos River.02-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD00000005-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD000000006-Jun-00HAIL001000028-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD000000023-Oct-00FLASH FLOOD000000023-Oct-00FLASH FLOOD000000023-Oct-00FLASH FLOOD0000000000000000010000000000100000000010000000001000000001000000001000000001000000001000000001000000001000 <t< td=""><td>30-Mav-00</td><td>WILD/FOREST FIRE</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>1.2M</td><td>The Viveash Mesa Fire in northwest San Miguel County began May 30 from unknown causes and quickly spread in hot and dry conditions to consume nearly 30,000 acres of wildland forest. Several ranch buildings were lost to this fire.</td></t<>	30-Mav-00	WILD/FOREST FIRE	0	0		0	0	0	1.2M	The Viveash Mesa Fire in northwest San Miguel County began May 30 from unknown causes and quickly spread in hot and dry conditions to consume nearly 30,000 acres of wildland forest. Several ranch buildings were lost to this fire.
Image: space of the systemImage: space of the systemImage: space of the systemImage: space of the systemObserver reported flooded ranch roads and fence damage following heavy rain of 1-205-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD0000010Kinches in less than an hour.06-Jun-00HAIL0010000006-Jun-00HAIL0010000028-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD0000000028-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD0000000023-Oct-00FLASH FLOOD000000000000000000010000000000010000000000010000000000010000000000001000000000000100000000000010000000000001000 </td <td>02-Jun-00</td> <td>FLASH FLOOD</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>Heavy rain of near 1 inch over the Viveash Burn area northeast of Pecos sent a 5 foot surge of ash and debris down Cow Creek. A large fish kill was reported at the confluence with the Pecos River.</td>	02-Jun-00	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	0	Heavy rain of near 1 inch over the Viveash Burn area northeast of Pecos sent a 5 foot surge of ash and debris down Cow Creek. A large fish kill was reported at the confluence with the Pecos River.
06-Jun-00HAIL00100001100000000028-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD000000000028-Jun-00FLASH FLOOD00000000000023-Oct-00FLASH FLOOD00000000000023-Oct-00FLASH FLOOD000000000000	05-Jun-00	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	10K	Observer reported flooded ranch roads and fence damage following heavy rain of 1-2 inches in less than an hour.
And the second	06-Jun-00	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
23-Oct-00FLASH FLOOD00<	28-Jun-00	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	0	Heavy road flooding was reported near Romeroville during a storm that produced about 2 inches of rain in less than an hour.
	23-0ct-00	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	0	Heavy rain or more than 2 inches produced flooding of numerous low water crossings southwest of Las Vegas.
29-Apr-01 HAIL 0 0 0 0.75 0 0 0	29-Apr-01	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
11-May-01HAIL0000.75000Hail 3 to 5 inches deep covered Interstate 25	11-May-01	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	Hail 3 to 5 inches deep covered Interstate 25 north of Las Vegas.
11-May-01 HAIL 0 0 0.75 0 0 0	11-May-01	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
07-Jun-01 HAIL 0 0 0.75 0 0 0	07-Jun-01	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
07-Jun-01 TSTM WIND 0 0 60 0 0 0	07-Jun-01	TSTM WIND	0	0		60	0	0	0	
OB-Jun-01 HAIL O O 1 O O O Hail accumulated 3-5 inches deep or 0 20-Jun-01 HAIL 0	08-Jun-01	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	One inch hail accumulated 3-5 inches deep on Highway 84.

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
21-Jun-01	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
13-Jul-01	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	Hail and heavy rain of 1.5 inch in 30 minutes was reported at Conchas Dam.
11 1-1 02	TSTM	0	0		0	0	0	0	Marble sized hail covered Interstate 25 up to eight inches deep at mile marker 350-352
04 Jun 02		0	0		175	0	0	0	north of Las vegas.
16 Jun 02		0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
16-Jun-02	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	Hail to nickel size covered the ground at
16-Jun-02	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	Conchas Lake.
									Thunderstorms which produced large hail over central New Mexico between Las Vegas and Clines Corners moved east with a strong out flow boundary to trigger additional
12 Jun 02	IIAII	0	0		2	0	0	0	intense storms over east central sections of
13-Juli-03		0	0		Z	0	0	0	A small thunderstorm that formed over south central San Miguel County at midafternoon moved eastward into northwest Quay County where it intensified. Near Tucumcari the storm developed strong mesocylcone radar
04-Jun-03	FUNNEL CLOUD	0	0		0	0	0	0	signatures.
									Storms that formed over central Colfax County intensified and move south-southeast as a storm complex that produced large 2 to 3 inch diameter hail and high winds from just east of Springer then southward between Wagon
04-Jun-03	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	Mound and Roy.
04-Jun-03	HAIL	0	0		2.5	0	0	0	Storms that formed over central Colfax County intensified and move south-southeast as a storm complex that produced large 2 to 3 inch diameter hail and high winds from just east of

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									Springer then southward between Wagon Mound and Roy.
13-Jun-03	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Thunderstorms which produced large hail over central New Mexico between Las Vegas and Clines Corners moved east with a strong out flow boundary to trigger additional intense storms over east central sections of the state.
13-Jun-03	HAII.	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	Thunderstorms which produced large hail over central New Mexico between Las Vegas and Clines Corners moved east with a strong out flow boundary to trigger additional intense storms over east central sections of the state.
07.1.1.02					1.5				An intense thunderstorm which began during late afternoon over San Miguel County west of Las Vegas moved south into eastern Torrance County producing a near continuous swath of 1 to 3 inch hail before collapsing north of
07-Jul-03	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	An intense thunderstorm which began during late afternoon over San Miguel County west of Las Vegas moved south into eastern Torrance County producing a near continuous swath of 1 to 3 inch hail before collapsing north of Encino.
04-Sen-03	HEAVY DAIN	0	0		0	0	0	0	Heavy rain of 3 inches in 90 minutes caused Tecolote Creek to overflow onto Road 283
19-Jun-04	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	Accumulation of hail on Interstate 25 caused several accidents.
19-Jun-04	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
19-Jun-04	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
-----------	--------	--------	-------	---	------	-----	-----	---------	---
19-Jun-04	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
19-Jun-04	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
20-Jun-04	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
06-Jul-04	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
12-Aug-04	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
12-Aug-04	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
13-Aug-04	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
29-Aug-04	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	
30-May-05	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	Intense storms with extended periods of large hail formed during early afternoon between Raton and Santa Rosa then moved southeast staying over the open rangelands mainly west and northwest of Tucumcari but reaching Clovis before dissipating during early
30-May-05	HAIL	0	0		1.25	0	0	0	Several intense storms that formed north and northwest of Tucumcari during early evening moved southeast across east central New Mexico to reach Clovis and eastern Roosevelt by late evening.
30-May-05	HAIL	0	0		1.25	0	0	0	Several intense storms that formed north and northwest of Tucumcari during early evening moved southeast across east central New Mexico to reach Clovis and eastern Roosevelt by late evening.
25-May-05	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	Storms with bursts of large hail formed near Las Vegas propagated southeast into east central New Mexico and finally diminished over Chaves County.
25-May-05	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Storms with bursts of large hail formed near Las Vegas propagated southeast into east central New Mexico and finally diminished over Chaves County.

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
27-May-05	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Storms with large hail developed south of Las Vegas into northwest Guadalupe County to Interstate 40 at mile marker 240.
27-May-05	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	Storms with large hail developed south of Las Vegas into northwest Guadalupe County to Interstate 40 at mile marker 240.
27-May-05	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	Storms with large hail developed south of Las Vegas into northwest Guadalupe County to Interstate 40 at mile marker 240.
27-May-05	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	Storms with large hail developed south of Las Vegas into northwest Guadalupe County to Interstate 40 at mile marker 240.
06-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	Storm thunderstorms moved slowly east across east central and southeast New Mexico with periods of large hail and gusty winds.
06-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	Storm thunderstorms moved slowly east across east central and southeast New Mexico with periods of large hail and gusty winds.
06-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Storm thunderstorms moved slowly east across east central and southeast New Mexico with periods of large hail and gusty winds.
10-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	An intense storm formed south of Pecos and moved southeast along Interstate 25 before dissipating south of Las Vegas.
10-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	An intense storm formed south of Pecos and moved southeast along Interstate 25 before dissipating south of Las Vegas.
10-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	An intense storm formed south of Pecos and moved southeast along Interstate 25 before dissipating south of Las Vegas.
10-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	An intense storm formed south of Pecos and moved southeast along Interstate 25 before dissipating south of Las Vegas.

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									An intense storm formed south of Pecos and moved southeast along Interstate 25 before
10-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	dissipating south of Las Vegas.
26-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
26-Jun-05	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	Several intense storms yielded large hail and heavy rain over the New Mexico central highlands north and south of Las Vegas. Heavy rain of 3 to 4 inches in less than an hour flooded small arroyos and ranch roads southwest of Encino.
04-Jul-05	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Several intense storms produce high winds and small hail across east central New Mexico. The storm that moved into Tucumcari knocked down a number of power lines and cancelled 4th of July community fireworks displays.
05-Jul-05	HAIL	0	0		1.5	0	0	0	Several intense storms formed near Wagon Mound and then moved southeast into eastern San Miguel County. A storm southwest of Conchas Dam displayed particularly strong hail and brief rotational signatures over the open rangelands.
05-Jul-05	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	Several intense storms formed near Wagon Mound and then moved southeast into eastern San Miguel County. A storm southwest of Conchas Dam displayed particularly strong hail and brief rotational signatures over the open rangelands.
05-Jul-05	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	Several intense storms formed near Wagon Mound and then moved southeast into eastern San Miguel County. A storm southwest of Conchas Dam displayed particularly strong

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									hail and brief rotational signatures over the open rangelands.
05-Jul-05	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Several intense storms formed near Wagon Mound and then moved southeast into eastern San Miguel County. A storm southwest of Conchas Dam displayed particularly strong hail and brief rotational signatures over the open rangelands.
05-Jul-05	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Several intense storms formed near Wagon Mound and then moved southeast into eastern San Miguel County. A storm southwest of Conchas Dam displayed particularly strong hail and brief rotational signatures over the open rangelands.
01-Sep-05	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	Intense thunderstorms with hail and heavy rain moved east across west central San Miguel County. A storm north of Las Vegas pelted the Interstate 25 corridor south of Watrous with about 20 minutes of golf ball size hail.
01-Sep-05	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	Intense thunderstorms with hail and heavy rain moved east across west central San Miguel County. A storm north of Las Vegas pelted the Interstate 25 corridor south of Watrous with about 20 minutes of golf ball size hail.
01-Sep-05	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	0	Intense thunderstorms with hail and heavy rain moved east across west central San Miguel County. A storm north of Las Vegas pelted the Interstate 25 corridor south of Watrous with about 20 minutes of golf ball size hail.

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									Heavy rain and strong runoff into Canon Blanco forced the closure of State Road 3 near Aurora. County officials also reported heavy
27-Iul-06	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	0	southwest San Miguel County.
14-Jun-06	TSTM WIND	0	0		50	0	0	0	
14-Jun-06	TSTM WIND	0	0		50	0	0	0	
22-Jun-06	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
22-Jun-06	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	
22-Jun-06	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
24-Jun-06	TSTM WIND	0	0		51	0	0	0	Heavy rain and pea size hail also reported.
24-Jun-06	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	
11-Sep-06	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
11-Jul-07	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Deep moisture and strong instability led to an isolated report of large hail in San Miguel county on the 11th.
25-Aug-07	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A mid-level short wave trough and upper level jet maximum acted on very unstable air to enhance severe thunderstorms that produced large hail across northeast New Mexico.
10-Son-07	НАЦ	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A back door cold front slid into northeast New Mexico early on the 10th and acted as a focus for thunderstorms during the afternoon hours
10-3ep-07		0	0		0.00	0	0	0	EVENT NARRATIVE: The general public
10-Sep-07	THUNDERSTORM	Ο	0		56	0	0	ΔK	reported that a barn roof was blown off. EPISODE NARRATIVE: A back door cold front slid into northeast New Mexico early on the 10th and acted as a focus for thunderstorms during the afternoon hours

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
10 Sap 07		0	0		1 75	0	0	0	EVENT NARRATIVE: Hail was observed at Mile Marker 32. EPISODE NARRATIVE: A back door cold front slid into northeast New Mexico early on the 10th and acted as a focus for thunderstorms during the afternoon hours
<u>10-Sep-07</u>	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	EVENT NARRATIVE: The hail accumulated to a depth of one to two inches. EPISODE NARRATIVE: A back door cold front slid into northeast New Mexico early on the 10th and acted as a focus for thunderstorms during the
10-Sep-07	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	afternoon hours.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: A deepening trough of low pressure along the west coast began to draw moisture north into New Mexico early on the 28th. This helped destabilize the
28-Sep-07	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	atmosphere.
28-May-08	TORNADO	1	100	0	0	0	0	0	EVENT NARRATIVE: A long-lived supercell spawned at least one tornado on its eastward trek across San Miguel County. A confirmed touchdown was reported and photographed north of Anton Chico.
28-May-08	НАЦ	0	0		2 75	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A warm unstable air mass and a strongly sheared environment resulted in supercell thunderstorms across parts of New Mexico. Severe storms began near the central mountain chain during the afternoon and spread across the plains
20-May-00	ΠΑΙL	0	0		2.75	0	0	0	FPISODE NARRATIVE: The first outbreak of
									severe weather occurred across eastern New
									Mexico on the afternoon and evening of the
05-May-08	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	5th.
28-May-08	HAIL	0	0		2.1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A warm unstable air mass and a strongly sheared environment

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									resulted in supercell thunderstorms across
									parts of New Mexico. Severe storms began
									near the central mountain chain during the
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: A warm unstable air
									mass and a strongly sheared environment
									resulted in supercell thunderstorms across
									parts of New Mexico. Severe storms began
									near the central mountain chain during the
28-May-08	HAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	afternoon and spread across the plains.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: A warm unstable air
									mass and a strongly sheared environment
									resulted in supercell thunderstorms across
									parts of New Mexico. Severe storms began
20 Mars 00	11 4 11	0	0		1	0	0	0	near the central mountain chain during the
28-May-08	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	afternoon and spread across the plains.
									EVENT NARRATIVE: A tornado brieny
									EDISODE NARRATIVE: A warm unstable air
									mass and a strongly sheared environment
									resulted in supercell thunderstorms across
28-May-08	TORNADO	0	25	0	0	0	0	0	parts of New Mexico.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: An upper level
									disturbance combined with a dry line to
									trigger thunderstorms across eastern New
19-Jun-08	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	Mexico, some of which produced large hail.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: Deep moisture from
									the remnants of Dolly and strong instability
	** * **							2	resulted in a report of large hail in San Miguel
27-Jul-08	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	county.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: Large hail was
12 Aug 00	TTAT	0	0		1	0	0	0	observed over San Miguel county while flash
12-Aug-08	HAIL	0	0			0	U	0	nooding occurred in Union county.

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: An upper low over Colorado provided adequate wind shear and instability to produce a severe weather outbreak across central and eastern sections of New Mexico. Several of the storms became tornadic while others produced large hail.
17-Aug-08	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	damaging winds.
28-Apr-09	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Isolated severe thunderstorms developed along a dry line extending from near Las Vegas to southeast of Clines Corners. Other storms developed along the east slopes of the Sacramento Mountains.
29 Apr 00	HAII	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Isolated severe thunderstorms developed along a dry line extending from near Las Vegas to southeast of Clines Corners. Other storms developed along the east clones of the Sagramente Mountains
28-Apr-09 27-May-09	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A weak upper level disturbance moving southeast out of southern Colorado provided a focus for scattered to numerous showers and thunderstorms over central and eastern New Mexico on the afternoon of the 26th. Several storms produced heavy rain and hail.
27-May-09	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A weak upper level disturbance moving southeast out of southern Colorado provided a focus for scattered to numerous showers and thunderstorms over central and eastern New Mexico on the afternoon of the 26th. Several storms produced heavy rain and hail.
03-Jun-09	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Northwest flow developed over New Mexico on the 3rd as a

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									shortwave ridge tightened over the southwest. Isolated severe thunderstorms developed over the east slopes of the Sangre de Cristo Mountains and moved southeast.
06-Jul-09	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Continued deep moisture and good shear over the eastern half of New Mexico resulted in another round of severe thunderstorms over primarily the eastern plains.
18-Aug-09	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Severe weather erupted across portions of the eastern plains during the afternoon hours as a strong shortwave moved across northern New Mexico. Dew points in the mid-50s to low 60s, abundant instability, and 40 to 50 knots of 0 to 6 km.
18-Aug-09	HAIL	0	0		2	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Severe weather erupted across portions of the eastern plains during the afternoon hours as a strong shortwave moved across northern New Mexico. Dew points in the mid-50s to low 60s, abundant instability, and 40 to 50 knots of 0 to 6 km.
27-Aug-09	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A frontal boundary surging southwest through the eastern plains combined with a mid-level short wave trough pushing south through the northern mountains to spark isolated strong to severe thunderstorms over the east central high plains.
13-Apr-10	HAIL	0	0		2	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: An upper level trough of low pressure and surface cold front increased instability and lift across northeast

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									New Mexico, with plenty of low level moisture
									over San Miguel and Union Counties.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: An upper level trough
									of low pressure and surface cold front
									Increased instability and lift across northeast
									available. This led to a few reports of large hail
13-Apr-10	HAIL	0	0		2	0	0	0	over San Miguel and Union Counties.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: Low level moisture
									retreated west to the east slopes of the central
									mountain chain on the 26th. Moderate
									instability along the east slopes combined
26-May-10	HAII.	0	0		1	0	0	0	severe thunderstorms
20 May 10		0	0		1	0	U	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Low level moisture
									retreated west to the east slopes of the central
									mountain chain on the 26th. Moderate
									instability along the east slopes combined
DC M. 10	TT A TT	0	0		1	0	0	0	with weak upper level forcing created isolated
26-May-10	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	severe thunderstorms.
									retreated west to the east slopes of the central
									mountain chain on the 26th. Moderate
									instability along the east slopes combined
									with weak upper level forcing created isolated
26-May-10	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	severe thunderstorms.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: Low level moisture
									retreated west to the east slopes of the central
									mountain chain on the 26th. Moderate
									with weak upper level forcing created isolated
26-May-10	HAIL	0	0		2	0	0	0	severe thunderstorms.

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
27-May-10	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Abundant low level moisture combined with weak instability along the east slopes of the Sangre de Cristo Mountains allowed for locally strong thunderstorms to develop during the afternoon of the 27th.
27-May-10	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Abundant low level moisture combined with weak instability along the east slopes of the Sangre de Cristo Mountains allowed for locally strong thunderstorms to develop during the afternoon of the 27th.
02-Jun-10	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A weak surface frontal boundary combined with a weak upper level disturbance moving southeast across the Northeast Plains provided enough lift for isolated thunderstorms to develop Wednesday afternoon.
24-Jun-10	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Plenty of moisture remained across eastern New Mexico behind the previous day's back door cold front. Thunderstorms with heavy rain pounded western San Miguel County, resulting in a flash flood in Bernal, knocking out bridges on county roads.
06-Jun-10	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	EPISODE NARRATIVE: A back door cold front brought a fresh supply of low level moisture to eastern New Mexico on the 6th. The added moisture and instability produced scattered showers and thunderstorms over the east, with a few of the storms turning severe.
24-Jun-10	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	750K	EPISODE NARRATIVE: Plenty of moisture remained across eastern New Mexico behind

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									the previous day's back door cold front.
									Thunderstorms with heavy rain pounded
									flood in Bernal knocking out bridges on
									county roads.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: Very efficient rain-
									producing thunderstorms slowly moved
									eastward from near Santa Fe across the
									southern Sangre de Cristo Mountains over the
04 1 1 4 0			0		0	0	0	411	Tecolote Fire burn scar. Over two inches of
01-Jul-10	FLASH FLOOD	0	0		0	0	0	1K	rain fell across a relatively large area.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: Thunderstorms formed
									along the Central Mountain Chain before
									moving eastward onto the plains. The better
									moisture and instability at the lower
01 11	TTATT	0	0		0.00	0	0	0	elevations allowed for storms to become
01-Jun-11	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	Severe with damaging hall and winds.
									EPISODE NARRATIVE: Inunderstorms formed
									along the Central Mountain Chain before
									moving eastward onto the plains. The better
									alouations allowed for storms to become
01 Jun 11	цли	0	0		1 75	0	0	0	covere with demoging bail and winds
01-juli-11	ITAIL	0	0		1.75	0	0	0	EDISODE NADDATIVE, Thunderstorms formed
									along the Control Mountain Chain before
									moving eastward onto the plains. The better
									moving eastward onto the plants. The better
									alouations allowed for storms to become
$01_{\rm Jun}11$	нли	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	severe with damaging hail and winds
01-juli-11		0	0		0.00	0	0	0	FDISODE NADDATIVE: Thunderstorms formed
									along the Central Mountain Chain before
									moving eastward onto the plains. The better
01-Jun-11	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	moisture and instability at the lower

BGN_DATE	EVTYPE	LENGTH	WIDTH	F	MAG	FAT	INJ	PROPDMG	REMARKS
									elevations allowed for storms to become severe with damaging hail and winds.
21-May-12	HAIL	0	0		0.75	0	0	0	
21-May-12	FUNNEL CLOUD	0	0		0	0	0	0	
5-Jun-12	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	
15-Jun-12	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	
19-Aug-12	HAIL	0	0		0.88	0	0	0	
19-Aug-12	HAIL	0	0		1	0	0	0	

This page is intentionally blank.

APPENDIX C: PRESIDENTIAL DECLARATIONS FOR SAN MIGUEL COUNTY

Date	FEMA Disaster No.	Event	Location	Remarks
13-0ct 1954	DR-27	New Mexico Flood		No further information provided
15-0ct-1955	DR-38	New Mexico Flood	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
1-Jul-1965	DR-202	Severe Storms/Flood	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
11-May-1973	DR-380	Severe Storms/Snow	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
		Melt/Flood		
21-May-1974	FM-2015	NM Guadalupita Fire		No further information provided
18-Jun-1977	FM-2025	NM Barker Fire		No further information provided
23-Jun-1979	DR-589	Severe Storms/Snow	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
		Melt/Flood		
5-May1996	FM-2177	NM Hondo Fire		No further information provided
24-Jun-1998	FM-2213	NM Osha Canyon		No further information provided
		Complex		
2-July-1998	EM-3128	NM Extreme Fire		No further information provided
		Hazard		
13-May-2000	DR-1329	NM Wildfire	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
30-May-2000	FM-2304	NM Viveash Fire	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
7-May-2002	FM-2404	NM Dalton Fire	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
13-Jun-2002	FM-2424	NM Roybal Fire	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
		Complex		
10-May-2003	FM-2467	NM Walker Fire		No further information provided
29-Apr-2004	DR-1514	Severe Storms and	San Miguel County	Public Assistance
		Flood		

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix C: Presidential Disaster Declarations

APPENDIX D: MEETING NOTES AND ATTENDANCE ROSTERS

D.1 Kick-off Meeting

San Miguel County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Kick-off Meeting Wednesday May 29, 2013 9:00 AM

AGENDA

- I. Introductions
- II. Benefits of Participation
 - A. Addressing Municipalities and Communities
 - 1. Unincorporated San Miguel County
 - 2. Las Vegas
 - 3. Pecos
 - 4. Other communities
 - B. Defining the Mitigation Planning Group and Key Stakeholders

III. Hazard Mitigation Planning Overview

- A. What is Hazard Mitigation
- B. Planning Steps/Process
- C. Plan Organization
- D. Required Elements
- E. HMP Committee Role
- IV. Hazard Overview
 - A. Previously Recognized Hazards
 - B. Hazard Identification Exercise
- V. Homework
 - a. Asset Identification
 - b. Capability Assessment
- VI. Questions and Comments
- VII. Adjourn

San Miguel County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Meeting Notes Wednesday May 29, 2013

- A. Welcome and Introductions
- B. Project Goals
 - Get federal funding eligibility
 - Mitigate future hazard risk
- C. Recent Disasters
 - 2010 Wildfire
 - Lost 5 river crossings from flooding event
 - Prolonged significant drought
- D. Other Participating Communities
 - Land Grants; Dennis English will look-up if they need to be included in the HMP
 - School Districts are governed under the County or school's jurisdiction
- E. Hazard Identification Exercise
 - Drought (significant water supply issues)
 - Earthquake
 - Flood
 - Severe Winter Weather
 - Tornado
 - Thunderstorm
 - Wildfire
 - Dam Failure (high hazard dams are within the county)
 - Pests (Pine Tree Beatles and Feral Hogs kill livestock and agriculture)
 - Landslide
 - High Wind
 - Hailstorm
 - Expansive Soils (patchy areas with clay can expand with moisture)
 - Extreme Heat
 - Levee Failure
 - Hazardous Materials Incidents (hazardous materials are shipped on railways, roadways, and the interstate throughout the County)
 - Terrorism (United World College has international students)
 - Bridge Failure from Natural Hazards
- F. Community Profile
 - Participates in National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and Community Rating System (CRS)
 - Need to get CRS Class Rating from Michael Garcia, Land Development Specialist

- County has a floodplain ordinance
- Large agriculture economy
- G. Additional Comments
 - State of New Mexico Drought Task Force (Meets Quarterly)
 - Developed a report on drought impacts to tourism and agriculture assets
 - Need to reach out to the New Mexico Department of Agriculture for drought issues and potential funding opportunities
 - SHMO will check with task force issues and potentially expanding water haul capabilities
 - Emergency water hauls have been provided by the National Guard in the past
 - Emergency water bladders are provided from San Miguel County OEM
 - No commercial water haulers within the State of New Mexico
 - No water sharing agreements with other counties or municipalities in the State of New Mexico
- H. Next Steps
 - Community Asset Profile (Dennis will be the lead to get forms filled out by all participating communities)
 - Capability Assessment (Dennis will be the lead to get forms filled out by all participating communities)
 - Next Meeting will be in Mid-July (After the 4th of July and before 7/27/13)

San Miguel County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Attendance Roster Wednesday May 29, 2013 9:00 AM

Name	Organization
Sally Flores	LEPC
Vanita Menapace	Harding County
Mack Crow	C of C
Joe Julian	US Forest Service
Benito Armijo	NMBH 1
Robert Sanchez	NMBH 1
Joe Aragon	NMBH 1
Eugene Garcia	Las Vegas Police Department
Comelita Austin	NM Forestry Division
Les Montoya	San Miguel County
Ramon M. Lucero	El Valle Water Alliance
Carlos Ortiz, Jr	City of Las Vegas
Christian Montano	Las Vegas Police Department
David Trujillo	NMDOT District 4
Ken Bentson	NMHU
Melinda Gonzales	San Miguel County
Don Cole	CLV
William Gonzales	

David Martinez	LVCS
Russell Pacheco	San Miguel County
Patrick Snedeker	SMC Detention Center
Christopher Blake	New Mexico State Police
David Watson	AVRH
Martin Salazar	Optic
Moreos Gonzales	NMDHSEM - Intern
Lauren Hall	NMDHSEM - Intern
Wendy Blackwell	NMDHSEM - SHMO
Arthur Herrera	Las Vegas Fire Department
Connie Abila	OEM
Alex Tofoya	San Miguel County
Michael Garcia	P & Z
Harold Garcia	Public Works
Dennis English	OEM/City of Las Vegas
Kurt Parkinson	OEM/City of Las Vegas

D.2 Meeting Two

San Miguel County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan HIRA Meeting Wednesday August 21, 2013 10:00 AM

MEETING AGENDA

- I. Welcome and Opening Remarks
- II. Plan Development Status
- III. Plan Purpose
- IV. Mitigation Goals
- V. Asset Ranking Methodology
- VI. Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment
 - a. Review List of Hazards
 - b. Hazard History Discussion
- VII. Qualitative Risk Assessment Exercise
- VIII. Public Surveys
 - IX. Homework
 - a. Risk Analysis Worksheet
 - b. NFIP Worksheet
 - c. Safe Growth Audit Worksheet
 - X. Q&A and Next Steps
 - XI. Adjourn

San Miguel County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan HIRA Meeting Notes Wednesday August 21, 2013

Purpose -

• No changes

Goals -

- Add "all educational institutions & facilities" to goal 2 or 3
- Add "vulnerable populations" to goal 1

Asset Ranking Methodology -

Make 3 categories

- Move public works and schools to level 1
- Move level 3 and 4 into level 2
- Move level 5 to level 3

Hazards Review -

- Add Pandemic/Epidemic hazard
 - OEM provided POD support to NMDOH
 - 800 H1N1 vaccinations in SMC

Hazard History -

- Dam Failure
 - Significant Seepage (get numbers or POC from Dennis)
 - SMC has aging high-risk dams
 - Peterson, Bradner, and Storrie Dams
 - o Highlight Peterson
- Drought
 - o 60 wells in one community (get name from Dennis)
 - State has 3 outstanding executive orders
 - Property taxes lowered due to drought (State or local?, how much?)
 - Check with the Assessor's office
 - U-Haul operator stated that 100's of people have said they were moving away because of the drought
- Earthquake
 - Our Lady of Sorrow Church on National Ave suffered cracked due to the 2005 earthquake
- Flood
 - o 2013, 2 state declaration requests for SMC.
 - For month of July flooding, est. \$700K damage to roadways and infrastructure
 - o Potential Statewide declarations
 - o 1 bridge lost
 - 1 private structure damaged
 - Commercial building with no flood insurance
 - o 682 buildings in the 1% zone
 - 36 claims for \$7M in SMC
 - 100 claims for \$13M in LV
- Expansive Soils

- Water Treatment Plan suffered cracks from expansive soils (get more info from Dennis)
- Extreme Heat
 - Tie to drought
 - SMC has plans for cooling stations but has not activated the plan
- Hailstorm
 - Villa Nueva area experiences large hail nearly every year (Spring-Summer)
 State park may have record
 - East side of the county (Conchas) is vulnerable to hail and experiences a lot of events
- Hazardous Materials
 - MVA 5 miles south of town
 - Semi truck accident in 1999-2000
 - Multi-jurisdictional response
 - 5 days of soil remediation
- High Wind
 - April/May is the most vulnerable time
 - Roofs ripped on in LV (get info from Dennis)
 - Transformer poles snap and cause wildfires (cause of Tres Lagunas fire)
 - Window damage at Highlands University
 - Power outages
 - Winds in excess of 60-70 mph
- Landslide
 - o Burn scars allow wash into roadways during monsoon seasons
- Levee Failure
 - o None
- Pests
 - Pine beetles
 - Contact extension agent
 - o Feral hogs
 - Destroying Agriculture
 - Harming livestock
 - Disease on cattle
 - Riparian issues in river banks (erosion and silting of waters)
 - Field mice carry disease (find out what kinds from Dennis)
 - o Mosquitos
 - H1N1
 - LV treats for mosquitos
- Severe Winter Weather
 - o -27 degrees in LV. The city couldn't provide gas for heat
 - Terrorism
 - o None
- Thunderstorms
 - Check with utility for historic records/damage
- Tornado
 - 2012 incident (Dennis to provide details and pictures)

- Wildfire
 - o None

Qualitative Assessment Methodology (Infrastructure) -

- Low 12-24 hours
- Moderate 24-72 hours
- High greater than 72 hours

San Miguel County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan HIRA Meeting Attendance Roster Wednesday August 21, 2013

Name (PLEASE PRINT)	Office/Department/Ag ency	Phone	Email
Connie Abila	OEM	425-2855	cabila@smcounty.net
Sally Flores	LEPC	425-3930	sallypflores@gmail.com
Kurt Parkinson	OEM	426-3018	kparkinson@smcounty.net
Dennis English	OEM	425-6910	denglish@smcounty.net
Daniel Encinias	PW	425-3664	
Alice Sena	LEPC/Tecolote	426-4289	sena770ak@yahoo.com
Matt Stanley	Witt O'Brien's	912-655-4809	mstanley@wittobriens.com
Arthur Herrera	LVFD	505-425-6321	aherrera@ci.las-vegas.nm.us
Tim Nia	Cabo Luceno	505-429-2053	
Daniel Garcia, Jr	EPVFD	575-421-2925	
Russell Pacheco	SMC Fire	505-425-2855	
Andres Martinez	Gallinas Fire	505-425-6171	gallinasfire@smcounty.net
Melinda Gonzales	SMC Finance	505-425-6516	
	SMC HR	425-1557	
Ken Bentson	NMHU	454-3080	kbentson@nmhu.edu
Connie Chevez	Red Cross	425-6224	conniec@desertgate.com
Antone Padillo	SMCOC	429-7779	apadillo@smcounty.net
Alex Tafoya	SMC	425-7805	
Christian Montano	LVPD	425-7504	blue1@ci.las-vegas.nm.us

Name (PLEASE PRINT)	Office/Department/Ag ency	Phone	Email
Jean Montano	LVPD	425-7504	Juan_montano@ci.las- vegas.nm.us
Michael Garcia	P&Z SMC	426-3040	mgarcia@smcounty.net

Village of Pecos Mitigation Planning Meeting August 22, 2013

Attendees:

Ralph Lopez, Fire Chief Ramona Quintana, Village of Pecos Clerk Tony Roybal, Village of Pecos Mayor Arthur Varela, Village of Pecos Treasurer Brian Ambrogi, Wilson and Company Dennis English, SMC/LV OEM Matthew Stanley, Witt O'Brien's

Pecos Assets and Infrastructure -

Village of Pecos is very concerned about protecting the Pecos River and views is as critical infrastructure for the Village, County, and State.

- Possible mitigation actions include:
 - Diking around the wastewater treatment plant
 - Storm drainage improvements to reduce silting in the Pecos River

The municipal building is the village's central critical asset. Pecos does have a COOP and an identified back-up facility. That information is forthcoming.

- Possible mitigation actions include:
 - Generators at the municipal building
 - o Generators at the back-up village municipal building

Asset Ranking Methodology -

Make 3 categories (instead of the proposed 5)

- Move public works and schools to level 1
- Move level 3 and 4 assets into level 2
- Move level 5 assets to level 3
- Delete/remove levels 4 and 5

Hazards Review -

- Added Pandemic/Epidemic hazard
 - OEM provided POD support to NMDOH

- 800 H1N1 vaccinations in SMC
- Pecos agreed with all of the identified hazards for the plan

Pecos Hazard History -

- Dam Failure
- Drought
 - o Always a concern
 - Protection of the Pecos River is a priority as this is the major critical infrastructure waterway through the village (as well as a major water source for the state)
- Earthquake
 - Dennis English will provide the seismic survey study documents regarding the Taos fault line
- Flood
 - Storm water drainage issues cause localized street flooding, washouts, and erosion
- Expansive Soils
- Extreme Heat
- Hailstorm
- Hazardous Materials
 - Potential exists for hazardous materials transportation incidents from traffic traveling through Pecos, on Interstate-25, or on occasional detours if I-25 detours through Pecos.
- High Wind
 - Frequent brown-outs in the Village of Pecos
 - All power lines, both transfer and distribution lines are above ground
 - Power is provided by a local co-op
 - "How do we get trees cut in federal lands to create and maintain a safe buffer?"
 - Currently the buffer is only 10' on either side of the power lines (total of 20' buffer)
 - Trees falling on power lines cause wildfires such as the Tres Lagunas fire
- Landslide
- Levee Failure
- Pests
- Severe Winter Weather
 - Snow has caused clogging of heating vents in houses and requiring fire department response to assist homeowners with clearing the vents.
- Terrorism
- Thunderstorms
- Tornado
 - The east side of the county also has history with dangerous dust devils
 - o 2012 Tornado impacted the Village of Pecos and caused property damage
- Wildfire
 - Always a risk and a threat with grave concerns about trees falling on power lines and causing fires (Tres Lagunas Fire)

Qualitative Assessment Methodology -

Make changes in concordance with the County and Las Vegas meeting decisions for Infrastructure:

- Low 12-24 hours
- Moderate 24-72 hours
- High greater than 72 hours

Village of Pecos Mitigation Planning Meeting Attendance Roster August 22, 2013

Name (PLEASE PRINT)	Office/Department/ Agency	Title	Email
Ralph Lopez	Village of Pecos	Fire Chief	pvfdchief38@yahoo.com
Ramona Quintana	Village of Pecos	Village Clerk	mona@villageofpecos.com
Tony Roybal	Village of Pecos	Village Mayor	troybal@hotmail.com
Arthur Varela	Village of Pecos	Village Treasurer	art@villageofpecos.com
Brian Ambrogi	Wilson and Company	Project Manager (Water provider)	bjambrogi@wilsonco.com
Dennis English	SMC/LV OEM	Emergency Manager	denglish@smcounty.net
Matt Stanley	Witt O'Brien's	Consultant	mstanley@wittobriens.com

D.3 Meeting 3

San Miguel County Multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Mitigation Strategies Meeting Thursday November 14, 2013 10:00 AM City of Las Vegas 2:00 PM Village of Pecos

MEETING AGENDA

- I. Plan Development Status and Timeline
- II. Capability Assessment Results
- III. Community Survey Results
- IV. Goals, Objectives, and Actions
- V. Next Steps

San Miguel HMP Mitigation Actions Meetings San Miguel County, City of Las Vegas, Village of Pecos November 14, 2013 10:00 AM and 2:00 PM

MEETING NOTES

The meeting opened with a review of the project's status and timeline. Results of the Capability Assessment and Community Survey were reviewed in advance of working on the Mitigation Action Plan.

Results of the review of the Capability Assessment revealed the following amendments:

- The City of Las Vegas has a Class 5 ISO rating
- The County has full time GIS capabilities
- The County does not have full time Land Surveyors
- The County does not have water/sewer/gas fees, but Las Vegas does.
- Communications capabilities need to address both inter-operability and alert/notifications for the community
- The County and Village of Pecos have installed ITAC channels in public safety radios to improve inter-operability with Santa Fe County
- San Miguel County and Santa Fe County have established Joint Command Operations in previous disaster events.

• The County and both municipalities have adopted the state fire and building codes

The Mitigation Action Plan activities included:

Recommendation that San Miguel County include a local freeboard (1'-2') ordinance as a flood mitigation measure.

Mitigation Actions the address diversion gates refer to Storrie Lake

Goals –

• In Meeting 2 we added "all educational institutions & facilities" to Goal 2 or 3 and "vulnerable populations" to goal 1. These amendments were vetted and approved at this meeting.

Objectives –

- Objectives for each goal were reviewed and approved:
 - Objective 1.1—Promote partnerships between jurisdictions to encourage and facilitate coordination of planning and development initiatives, particularly on developments of multi-jurisdictional impact.
 - Objective 1.2—Create, implement and improve systems that provide warning and inter-jurisdictional emergency communications
 - Objective 1.3—Enhance the local governments' ability to notify the public at risk and provide emergency instruction during a disaster.
 - Objective 2.1—Increase the county and municipal control over development, especially in high hazard areas.
 - Objective 2.2—Implement programs that seek to remove residential structures from high hazard areas.
 - Objective 2.3—Implement projects that involve the construction of structures designed to reduce the impact of a hazard, such as dams, levees, floodwalls, retaining walls, safe rooms, etc., or such structural modifications as the elevation or relocation of bridges, the anchoring of manufactured housing, or a retrofit of an existing building.
 - Objective 3.1—Ensure that infrastructure, equipment and support systems are maintained and/or upgraded to support emergency services response and recovery operations.
 - Objective 3.2—Promote partnerships between jurisdictions to continue to develop a county-wide approach to identifying and implementing infrastructure mitigation actions.
 - Objective 3.3—Improve overhead utility line networks to reduce vulnerability to direct and indirect impacts by hazard events.
 - Objective 4.1—Ensure that emergency services organizations are prepared and have the capability to detect and promptly respond to emergency situations.
 - Objective 4.2—Maximize intergovernmental coordination on the effective use of emergency response resources during response, including vital communications between multiple agencies in emergency situations.

- Objective 4.4—Increase emergency capacities to properly equip emergency shelters in order to improve emergency response and large-scale evacuations.
- Objective 5.1—Reduce the vulnerability of historic facilities that are important to the community.
- Objective 5.2—Strive to involve the private sector, local historians, and local and state historic preservation entities in participating in mitigation planning efforts.
- Objective 6.1—Develop outreach programs focused on increasing public education to increase awareness of hazards and their associated risks.
- Objective 6.2—Develop outreach programs focused on increasing participation in mitigation programs by business, industry, institutions and community groups.

Mitigation Actions -

- Natural springs located under critical infrastructure and historic structures have caused basement and foundation level flooding
- New Enlarge and armor canals to reduce seepage and overtopping (flood, dam, drought hazards)
- Diversion gates Add Pecos
- Construct a levee control system County only
- Field testing for surface and subsurface water Add Las Vegas and Pecos
- Well exploration Las Vegas is working on wellfield sustainability. Dennis English may be able to collect more information in this.
- Well exploration Las Vegas is also rehabilitating old wells.
- Well exploration Las Vegas wants to add aquifer storage and recovery, enlarge reservoir, and repair seepage in the reservoir.
- Well exploration Add Pecos and El Valle Mutual Domestic Water Association
- Seismic Study Add Las Vegas and Pecos. Add CLV actions for a geological study on local structures, strengthen historic structures/chimneys in the Cat D seismic zone.
- Building Codes Add CLV and Pecos
- Expansive Soils are not a hazard in CLV or Pecos but are in the county.
- Heating and cooling centers should include CLV (add schools to the facilities designated as heating/cooling shelters). Add Pecos
- Effective water draining systems Add CLV and Pecos
- OEM website Add CLV and Pecos
- Build with hail resistant materials Add CLV. Change the action to read "hazard" instead of "hailstorm"
- Hailstorm roof mitigation Add Pecos
- Flashing road signage Add CLV and Pecos
- Safe rooms Add CLV and Pecos
- Landslide Add Pecos
- Storrie Lake Levee Add CLV
- USDA/APHIS include pandemic hazard Add CLV and Pecos
- Generators Add CLV and Pecos
- Snow fences County only
- See something, say something Add CLV and Pecos
- NOAA transponder Add CLV and Pecos

- GIS capabilities Add CLV
- Notification systems Add CLV and Pecos
- Develop water storage drop CWPP language and add "raw, drinking, and effluent water" Add CLV and Pecos
- Acequia protection –Add CLV and Pecos, add mutual water associations
- Dam Inundation Data Study EAPs have inundation data (remove action)
- Reservoir seepage Add CLV
- Expansive soil Add county, CLV, and Pecos. Send MS soil study to Dennis.
- Outdoor warning Add county, CLV and Pecos.
- NFIP Add county, CLV, and Pecos.
- Prevention Activities Add county, CLV and Pecos
- Repetitive Loss (elevation and acquisitions) Make this an existing action item, add freeboard ordinance, and include CLV, Pecos and the county.
- Drainage projects Add county, CLV and Pecos.
- Adopt current building codes rework wording to say "improve state building codes through local modifications that meet or exceed state and national models. Add county, CLV and Pecos.
- Fire Code The county is currently modifying codes Add county
- Underground utilities Add county, CLV and Pecos
- Fire stations Add county, CLV and Pecos
- Generators Add county, CLV and Pecos
- Add Harden CLV Town Hall, rename it to "Village Complex Building"
- Wildfire Add county, CLV and Pecos
- Churches Add county, CLV and Pecos
- Zoning ordinances Add county, CLV and Pecos.
- Community outreach Add county and CLV.
- Bridge Add county, CLV and Pecos
- Engineering study Add county, CLV and Pecos.
- Bridge repair Add county, CLV and Pecos.
- Public warning systems Add county, CLV and Pecos.
- SNOTEL Add county and Pecos
- Storm gage Add Gallinas River 1000' south of the diversion gate, add Pecos River, and all county rivers – Add county, CLV, and Pecos
- Expansive soils remove action
- Expansive soils remove action
- Flood prevention change this action to environmental protection, Add county, CLV and Pecos
- Delete next 5 actions
- Sewer and sanitation Add CLV and county
- Delete stockpiles
- Evacuation plans Add CLV and county
- Delete water conservation action

Martin Lo C: Las-Lugas NM.	Jun-l- M	0 20 h-101		
Calk 205 @Ci. 45 Vogt NM		505-400 1.20.0	LVPD	They alow they u
Caugoos @ci. Lo-Vigatina	KJENHA	2915-121-245	La years P.D.	Kennett Clarkins
	84 88	505-429 of:	CLV	Chris Cavales
waser a sortendy wet	Sment	402.407-4462	SMC.	Les madina
12000 msn com	donco	505-429-6326	OLV	Don Cole
alle a sacandy mit	mapa	595-426-3010	42 Flow/ Hkin	The hard logoe
indemcountynet	hapara	505-429-3235	SHC/P.W.	theyd Cares
		585 429-985	Smc/pw	DANIEL ENCINIAS
which & fs. feder	4.	505-757-6121	USFS	JOE JULIAN
Wagener & Shite non. 45	dale.	503 425.4771	NWSP	Dah P. Myoner
siegulal & state	damo	705 454 505	Norst Lackers	Esquelad, Dermis
Kintesnands C.	Sinc	55-42-USD	Suc / Rora	Kussell Hackers
KINSOND SMORALZ MOT	KPa	505-425-619	Smc/20 Der	hart lotenson
upisto succonty, net	de	505-425-6190	SNGW OGH	Dervis Englist
	EMAIL	PHONE	AGENCY	IAME
		regies Meeting	Mitigation Strat	
DATE 11/14/13	MENT	City of Las		LOCATION Ity Council Chambers
C		C		C
C)		

 σ^{μ}

In the ore encoured was not the providence of the organization strategies Meeting AGENCY PHONE EMAIL ASU agas City Schools UDG-D319 ChrunsArcholeta 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Scarta ta balanty 998 - 3072 USG i lassafa 60 cyber cas Las Ubar cas balanty 1997 - 140 Saluator 20 ci lassafa 60 cyber cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci lassafa con Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci lassafa con Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Ubar cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Cas balanty 439 - 100 Saluator 20 ci las - 100 par cas Las Cas balanty 40 ci las - 100 par cas Las Cas balanty 40 ci las - 100 par cas Las Cas balanty 40 ci las - 100 par cas Las Cas balanty 40 ci las - 100 par cas Las Cas balanty	Part Martin Montin	Sally Flores Carlos A. Oatiz Jr.	Jose 2. Villeges, S.R. Eugene Concher	MARTIN A. VILIC	NAME	LOCATION City Council Chambers	0
DATE DATE	1. S Veras Pelia	Lap C-Search and Rown (LV/Pin)	Santa Fe Canty	LASUEDAS CITY Scher	AGENCY	RIGE OF ECHINERAL Mitigation Strate	
DATE MENT 11/14/13 EMAL EMAL ChrisArcholeta 60 cyber Can mavigi / e. Scata fectoring ChrisArcholeta 60 cyber Can mavigi / e. Scata fectoring Christa Ochos - Scan fectoring Christa Ochos - Scan fectoring Sallyadores Ochos - Japas an Sallyadores Ochos - Japas an Sulla 2 O ai fas - Japas an Sulla 2 O ai fas - Japas an	1041-156h	485-3930 454-1401	992-3072 415-7604	5 02-2072	PHONE	CY MANAGE	C
	blue 2 O ai las - vers in	Salhaflores @ cmail. com carlosochiz @ Ci. (43 - Voyal an	contrin Ocistos-Vagar wants	christicholeta Baybacon mavigilescatatecounty	EMAIL	DATE MENT 11/14/13	0

SFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 11/14/13 INCREMENT VOLVINGE MEETING AGENCY PHONE EMAIL MMS.P. 583 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 583 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 583 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST. TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST. TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST. TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST. TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST. TO J. M.A.E.C. STATE. WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST. COM WMS.P. 593 - 660: 845 Y CHAST. COM WMS.P. 594 - 595 - 60:		LOCATION CIV Council Chambers NAME CIMAJES WARE CIMAJES WARE Arthur CURAJE Arthur CURAJE	0
DATE CY MANAGEMENT 11/14/13 CON MEED UN: BIGS Meeting PHONE EMAIL SIS - 660: 846 Y CHIAS 5 TV P. HES. WARE C. STATE SIS - 757-1511 Or-feld/lings df@TPSCatt SIS - 155-1551 Or-feld/lings df@TPSCatt SIS - 660 - 315 5 Francod Julcero ld Q yahoa. Catt SIS - 157-1511 Or-feld/lings df@TPSCatt SIS - 660 - 315 5 Francod Julcero ld Q yahoa. Catt SIS - 660 - 315 5 Francod Julcero ld Q yahoa. Catt SIS - 157-1511 Or-feld/lings df@TPSCatt SIS - 660 - 315 5 Francod Julcero ld Q yahoa. Catt SIS - 660 - 315 5 Francod Julcero ld Q yahoa. Catt SIS - 157-1511 Or-feld/lings df@TPSCatt SIS - 157-1511 Or-feld/lings df@T		SEFFICE OF EXERCISES MELANY REFORMENT Mitigation Strat AGENCY MAS P MAS P	
EMAIL CHAIST 11/14/13 CHAIST DIALE, WARE C. STATE, Orfeldlings defers. Cam Formand Julcers ld C yahan Cam		PHONE S03 - 660 - 846 Y S05 - 660 - 846 Y S05 - 660 - 846 Y S05 - 660 - 31 F 6	0
		DATE MENT 11/14/13 EMAIL CHASETOPHER, WARE C. STATE, NA Orfeldllage defters. Com Tarron Julcero Id O yahon. Com	0

APPENDIX E: INVITATIONS AND ADVERTISEMENTS

May 1, 2013

[Insert Name] [Insert Title] [Insert Organization/Department] [Insert Address]

Dear Community Stakeholder:

I am pleased to inform you that San Miguel County is beginning the process of developing its federally required Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP). The purpose of the HMP is to identify and assess the hazards (both natural and human-caused) that threaten San Miguel County and its communities, and to chart specific courses of action that the County may take in order to lessen their effects. Furthermore, having a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (NMDHSEM)-approved HMP will ensure that San Miguel County is eligible for certain types of federal disaster relief when the need arises. It will also afford the County opportunities to apply for future federal hazard mitigation grant opportunities. The HMP process will be executed by the Las Vegas/San Miguel Office of Emergency Management, with the assistance of Witt | O'Brien's, a reputable emergency management planning firm.

You have been identified as a key stakeholder and would be a valuable resource to San Miguel County and its municipalities during the HMP process. As such, we ask that you consider participating as a member of the HMP Steering Committee. The duties of the Steering Committee members will include:

- Attend a minimum of three (3) HMP project meetings over the course of one year;
- Provide input regarding San Miguel County, its population, critical facilities, assets, and infrastructure;
- Assist in identifying hazards and assessing their potential impacts on the County;
- Assist in identifying the related capabilities of San Miguel County and the participating municipalities;
- Assist in identifying past, present, and potential hazard mitigation projects for San Miguel County and the participating municipalities; and
- Review project deliverables before they are submitted to NMDHSEM and FEMA for approval.

The first planning meeting has been tentatively scheduled for the last week in May. Please let us know your availability and willingness to join the HMP Steering Committee for the project kick-off meeting on [insert date and time]. We appreciate your time and consideration, and look forward to hearing from you.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix E: Invitations and Advertisements

Sincerely,

Dennis English Las Vegas/San Miguel County Emergency Manager

August 2, 2013

[Insert Name] [Insert Title] [Insert Organization/Department] [Insert Address]

Dear Community Stakeholder:

As you are aware, San Miguel County is currently in the process of developing its Multi-Jurisdictional All Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP). The purpose of the HMP is to identify and assess the hazards (both natural and human-caused) that threaten San Miguel and its communities, and to chart specific courses of action that the county may take in order to lessen their effects. The project kickoff meeting was held at the San Miguel County Commissioner's Office on May 30, 2013, and marked the beginning of what promises to be a fruitful planning process.

At the project kickoff meeting, members of the MPG identified and reviewed a number of hazards which threaten life and property in San Miguel County and discussed elements of the community profile. Meeting #2 will be conducted on **Wednesday, August 21, 2013** at (insert time) at (insert location/address). At this meeting, the team will begin the process of conducting the hazard and risk assessment.

Please let us know if you will be willing to assist us in the critical task of preparing San Miguel County for the next disaster by attending Meeting #2. It is important that we obtain as much input as possible during this phase of the planning process, and you have been identified as a valuable resource to the planning process.

We appreciate your time and consideration, and look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,

Dennis English Las Vegas/San Miguel County Emergency Manager
October 10, 2013

Dear Community Stakeholder:

As part of the continued Hazard Mitigation Plan development process, the County and City of Las Vegas, and Village of Pecos will host planning meetings to develop and discuss mitigation strategies for the next five years. The purpose of this meeting is to identify mitigation actions/projects for each hazard and each jurisdiction identified in the plan. Each jurisdiction must identify at least two (2) actions/projects per hazard. Some projects may overlap jurisdictions (or be county-wide) but must be recognized and accepted by all participating jurisdictions. The mitigation strategy must also include each jurisdiction's continued participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). The hazards identified for the plan are:

Drought	Landslide
Earthquake	High Wind
Flood	Hailstorm
Severe Winter Weather	Expansive Soils
Tornado	Extreme Heat
Thunderstorm	Levee Failure
Wildfire	Bridge Failure from Natural Hazards
Dam Failure	Hazardous Materials Incidents
Pests	Terrorism

We ask that you begin to consider mitigation action items that could address each of these hazard in your respective jurisdiction. Action items may include community education and outreach, flood/wind/snow/tornado hardening of structures, drainage improvements, generators for critical facilities, etc. Mitigation actions should include specifics regarding the asset/structure/infrastructure needing mitigation. It is important to consider any mitigation projects/actions you may want to address during the next five (5) years. Only mitigation projects identified in the plan will be eligible for federal funding, should it come available.

The Mitigation Strategies meetings will be held on Thursday, November 14 at the following locations and times:

Jurisdiction	Location	Time

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix E: Invitations and Advertisements

Las Vegas/SMC	City Council 1700 North Grand Ave, Las Vegas, NM 87701	10:00am-12:00pm
Village of Pecos	Pecos Village 92 S Main Street, Pecos, NM 87552	2:00pm-4:00pm

Please make plans to participate in this critical element of the Hazard Mitigation Plan development. We appreciate your time and consideration, and look forward to seeing from you at the meeting.

Sincerely,

Dennis English Las Vegas/San Miguel County Emergency Manager

Participation invitation locations:





READY BEFORE YOU NEED US. Dennis English, Emergency Manager

The San Miguel County/City of Las Vegas Office of Emergency Management has completed a final draft of the San Miguel County, City of Las Vegas, and Village of Pecos, NM "All Hazards Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation Plan" for public review and comments.

The San Miguel County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is designed to protect people and property from the effects of natural and human-caused hazards. By taking action today, we can reduce the likelihood of injuries, loss of life and damage to our communities. That is what hazard mitigation planning is all about - taking action based on a solid understanding of our vulnerabilities to reduce the impacts of hazards that may strike sometime in the future. In addition to developing a framework for action, the Plan enables participating counties and municipalities to apply for pre and post-disaster mitigation funding that would not otherwise be available. This funding can help local jurisdictions implement identified projects that meet the goals and objectives outlined in the plan.

We prefer that stakeholders not make changes to the original word document so we have provided a comment form to be filled out in order to keep changes from being missed and prevent accidental deletions of any portion of the plan.

The plan and comment form in electronic form can be found on the following web-sites for review and comments:

- www.smcounty.net
- www.lasvegasnm.gov
- www.facebook.com/SMCLVOEM

There is also a hard copy of the plan for review and comments located at the following libraries:

- Carnegie Library 500 National Ave. Las Vegas NM 87701
- NMHU Donnelly Library 800 W National Ave. Las Vegas NM 87701
- Luna Community College, Samuel F. Vigil Library 366 Luna Drive Las Vegas NM 87701

You may also drop off any comments or comment form directly to the San Miguel County Office of Emergency Management, 518 Valencia Street Suite 102, Las Vegas NM 87701 or email your comments to **oem@smcounty.net**. Thank you for your participation.

518 Valencia Street Ste 102 Las Vegas, NM 87701 Phone: (505) 425-6190 Fax: (505) 426-3034





Participation invitation locations:

















4/21/2014 10 IS AM

The Sat Miguel County Multi

http://www.succusty.act/mitigationPlan.htm

The San Miguel County Multi-Jurisdictional IIarari Mitigation Plan is designed to protect people and property from the effects of natural and human-caused hazards. By taking action today, we can reduce the likelihood of injuries, loss of life and damage to our communities. That is what hazard mitigation planning is all about - taking action based on a solid understanding of our vulnerabilities to reduce the impacts of hazards that may strike sometime in the future. In addition to developing a finanework for action, the Plan mables participating counties and municipalities to apply for pre-and post-disaster mitigation funding that would not otherwise be available. This funding can help local jurisdictions implement identified projects that meet the goals and objectives outlined in the plan.

We prefer that stakeholders not make changes to the original word document so we have provided a comment form to be filled out in order to keep changes from being missed and prevent accidental deletions of any portion of the plan.

The plan and comment form in electronic format can be found at the following link for review and comments: https://jitew.secureserver.et

There is also a hard copy of the plan for review and comments located at the following libraries: Carnegie Library 500 National Ave. Las Vegas NM 87701 NMIIU Donnelly Library 800 W National Ave. Las Vegas NM 87701 Luna Community College, Samuel F. Vigil Library 300 Luna Drive Las Vegas NM 87701

You may also drop off any continents or comment form directly to the San Miguel County Office of Emergency Management, 518 Valencia Street State 102, Las Vegas NM 87701 or email your comments to <u>open/concounty.itet</u>.

Thank you for your participation.

Office of Emergency Management - San Miguel County & City of Las Vagas-

https://www.facebook.com/SMCLVOEM?ref=ld



4/21/2014 9:72 AM

http://www.facebook.com/SMCR/0EM/hef~1





2 of 9

1/21/30119:22 AM

Office of Emergency Management - San Miguel County & City of Las Vegas

https://www.facebook.com/SMCLNOEM/hef~1



1/21/30119:22 AM

City of Can Vegas

http://www.low-gauren.gov/



lef2

ану облак Мерак

http://www.lawogoom.gov/

123/2014 (0:05 AM



4/23/2014 10:05 AM

Zof 2

Sand McKelly Driving Directions and Maps

http://mage.com/monelly.com/print.de

i an Virgan, Kild									
Finantina			Las Megas, KM. Trad Distance: 26.5 stat Trad Distance: 26.5						
E presenterra		Wilcoge	Tatal Mileage						
Turnight of Mr. St. Sonia I	Fo TrANII S 18 ANY 55	200 Tavi	290 hot.						
2. Turn ton NM-04	Commission (1997)	12.6 (1905	12.8 mite						
h Bear left um NSI-505 .hM-2	70	17 año	21.0 miles						
6. Road fanka, hosy right to N	W 105 JrM 270	2,0ntduo	21.1 mhn						
E. Rood forsz, kasp right to 4	IV 108	£.9 m¥25	25 0 m ito						
6. Aniis at prot devicator N	BR-132	19 180	26 9 m len						
Prevand and frend up NM Amus at your deamator is	505 105	34.7 mása	14.1 milee						
Sing Directions and Maps		Missge	Total Mensar	1973) Comps and sources 197 Taul Costones 1 Taul Time: 38 ed					
Pressed settion NM IM									
2. Turn right or Sasta Fe Til	an 8.860 516	200 foet	220 the						
Concession of the second	SIDura Celes e Di	N.A crêze	10 4 m bas						
 Turnight or Dura Cenada 		10.00 (10.00)	11.7 miles						
 Turnighter Das Geesta Turnighter Sth Sch V 71 		5.8/1925	1.2.5150						
 Turn right of Dura Censula Turn right on Bith Sulk V 71 Turn full on Gallergue RJ 		1.5 miles	1º 7 miles						
 Turnight er Duns Geresla Turnight er ätt Sul-M 71 Turnielt er Gelleger Sul Turnight er Gelleger Sul 	RJ	6.5 miles 200 June	T. Techno T. Sterlag						
 Termityl er Dus Cevela Termityl er das SuN 71 Termityl er da SuN 71 Termityl er Old kalase Termityl er Old kalase Bebrief de Billiche Bill 	R.1.	100 Test	T: T mins T: T mins 1: 3 mins 12 0 mins						

36.	Turringt.or. N1-203308-00	1;03 lawl	13 Umbe	
18,	Currinus un 181-05	1.7 or ites	14.7 miles	
49	Amuri ni your devinantari NASHIN	100 100	the of soliton	
C	Montzzeno NM	Wisepe	Total Minoge	That Districts 4 D at Intel Date: 71 apr 4
	Fatraeri earl or IIM-85			
z :	Continue on Re-address	200 ivei	87, West	
1	Turn agen our Mide Avec 406-129	4.4 máns	4 S rates	
4	luminght on Secolute St.	10 (164)	b 6 miles	

1/720141124 PM

2 of a

	And a science administration Transition St.	2 a refere	il Carlos				
	renes at your destination - coorder of	3/10828	0.7.00.00				
E.	WestLas Vigas, NM			Tital Distance, 3			
	- Total Time						
	Envertions	Winnge	Cotel Newage				
t.	Practed nerthbaccien Tecephie St						
2.	Turnighter S Pacific SI	44 m 0.3	0.Catha				
\mathbf{a}_{i}	Tum toft on Independence Ave	200 Tost	0.6 esibe				
4	Turn left on Openic AverBanta Far Triff-25-BL 1984-018	0.5 milas	= f ealles				
5	Terringhine E. Linnandiz Ace/NM-01E	(5 nho	* One has				
۴.	Turn Action HM 410	96.2 mitos	47.5.milter				
	Amine ar, pour devianator INM-19 Teomordina, MM	7.0 milas	254 miles	(val) interver 1			
e.	Antine at your devination NUL419 Teemstrotau, NM	7.0 milas	274 eriks	(coal) ostencie 1 Tigail Tarva, 25 or			
	Antine et. ptur devination 10:04-19 Teener Jaa, MK Directions Proceed et.dt tet NM-419	7.0 miles Miliologe	224 miles Total Micage	real Lodenser Tural Tares, 28 m			
2	Antine at your development MAR419 Teemsninke, MM Eliterophons Proceed wordh on MAR419 Literolet on MAR419	7.0 miles Wilcoge	754 miles Total Mileage	ional Ludonase 1 Tical Tana, 28 m			
2	Amins at your development NAU-119 Themperdina, MM Directions Proceed variables (NAU-10) Lines for NAU-104 Lines for NAU-104 Lines for NAU-104	7.0 miles Militage / 8.miles 1.0 miles	754 miles Total Milloage 7.6 miles 13.4 miles	ional) informere * Total Timo, 29 m			
2 1 2 2 4	Amins at your development NAU-419 Themperdina, HM Effections Proceed would up NAU-104 Furnishing NAU-104 Fur	7.0 miles Militage / B.miles 1.0 miles (00 mel	Total Millionge 7 film land 13 k million 13 k million	ional Listensee (Total Terra, 25 a			
1 2 1 4	Amine al. plus developmins (NUL-11) Tremporting, HM Directions Proceed applitude (NUL-11) Upper Amine al. plus (NUL-11) Upper Amine al. plus - 104 Control AMI	7.0 miles Milooge 7.6 miles 2.8 miles 3.0 miles 3.0 miles 3.0 miles	754 ordes Total Micoage 76 ordes 134 ordes 135 ordes	ional Lindrome - Topal Terra: 22 m			
2. 1. 7. 2. 4.	Amina at ptur developmin (NUL-11) Tremperdina, MM Directions Procued atruit in NAS-110 Internation NAS-110	7.0 miles Millooge / B.m.644 1.8 miles (00 may)	754 online Total Millonge 7 filmition 1936 online	Total Distance 1 Total Tarin, 25 o			
	Amina at plut deviandio: NACH19 Tremstrdina, HM Etimotions Proceed etrait in NACH19 Licenterian	7.0 miles Militage / B.m.646 1.28 miles (00 her) Militage	754 on los Total Millongo 76 on los 133 o estes 133 o estes 133 o estes	Total Distance 1 Total Time 25 m Total Disconce 2 (ctal Disconce 2)			

Sof 1

2/7/2014 1/24 PM

Sand McKolly Driving Directions and Maps

http://mgs.maducau/ly.com/prist.de

2	Turn left on MM 101	200 fbet.	600 foe:	
1	Benzleft im Vinislands Science Bywyddd 104	17 / mil/m	17.7 eillet.	
٢.	Turn right on Mosolands-Secrit: Bywyr 4W 101	8.8 m925	23 0 m lbs	
5	Antiko at your destination Merapanes Sconic Bywy/HM 104	£/rmites	21 i nike	
	Concluse Deel, NV			Tural Dislamese 75 Tural Terro, 2 Ion 1
	Concluse Deni, NM			Total Dislamese 75.1 Total Terre, 2 Inc 11
	Concluse Date, NV Develops Pressed must on Menutence Science Strendbl-124	Missge	Satel Niverge	Total Dislams: 751 Total Terrs, 21m 11
1	Concluse Data, NV Detections Process: multicritience Science Bywythild=124 Teacher Inn Menderals Science Bywythild=124	Winge	S⇒tel Missage	Turat Dalarsan 75 Turat Teres, 2 Ins 1
1	Constant Denis, NM Demotricion Processo mast on Manufantis Science, Byrey, MM-104 Turn felt on Manufantik Science, Byrey, MM-104 Constant on University / Wisheld 45	Мільда С.А. 11 дая 72.2 11 дая	>=tsi Minaya 0 4 m ka 78 € m ka	Turad Distances (75) Turad Terres 2 line (

Las Vegas, NM

1464

2/720141124 PM

<page-header>

\$cfit

1/72014 1:24 PM

Sand McNally Driving Directions and Maps

÷.

http://mags.condminus/ly.com/print.de

Promi: Thr:Sum T27,20 Billey 2	Las Vopas, NM Viegos, NM Minis 9 milio			
A	Lan Weger, KM			Thtal Classical 35 5 I clair Janual 1 fear 2 a
	Elimentions	Milooge	Tatal Mileage	
٩.	Bita rano faloadira dia agin'i 25.8	6.1 nite	0 + so hou	
2	Exit right following the sign V flanks val 4W 3 S (EXIT 223)	22.7 m6cs	23.) mito	
3, :	All tamp's emit, take a left to Ban Wigoul	700 Teel	23.2 m he	
4_{11}^{-1}	Taurilu'i ser HM-B	11.8-milus	85.0 milus	
\$.	Turn right socilituitig on HW 3	160 foet	at i mito	
8.	Anime at your designation MM-3	200 fawl	35 † es les	
Э	Villanusva, NM			local Listence: 24.1 Tutal Terro, 1 Ion 1 a
4	Directions Precession frances on NM-1	Miloogo	Tatal Mileage	
2	Jum Mit continuing on 1943	a00 heat	255 Mer.	

2/7/2014 1:05 PM

sand McKally Origing Directions and Maps

http://mgs.conducturily.com/print.de

4	President and a second se	240 Perch	1000 aug.	
d	um npr. er nvi s	2001000	995,8001	
4	Trenstyre art Lar Vagawit 36 N	16.7 miles	 Similare, 	
5.	East right following the eign Tecelore (EAIT 336)	12.0 (1926	23 % milto	
6.	At tomps one, take a left to GR B17	6.3 miles	21 milos	
7.	Turn feit un Seinle Feitigs S	300 feet	24.2 mbs	
۴.	Antive as your doothodon Sansa Fo Trill 21 SAUS AH MUS AH N	1.9 m\$cs	29 i mito	
Ģ	Gecellos: NVI			Total Cialances 23.0 Total Tenet: 15 mil 1
	Demotions Pressed authors of Solar Pe Tris 25 S/US 84 M/US 84 M	Minge	Terel Winage	
2	Eartrightfollowing the argn (NM-30) Parent Peace/NM-33 (EXIT SCT)	22.5 oilus	22.1 crites	
3,	Eint namp (Seast fait) as Banda Pe 7 (1901-83) M	200 feet	22.5 m.hes	
1 .)	Turo lei ton Las Vegas	63:the	Z2 × m ke	
5	Anime at your devination 1425 MUS-84 Selfastari, Rouse 60	1000 Servi.	25 0 colles	
n	Fiswe, NW			inter Linnanner 5-5 Inter Linner 14 mm
	Directions	Wilcogo	Total Miloage	
11	Pagewei sozhwari en E-35 W125-84 Si adhoo 3tule itt			
7	lum left on MM-RM takens Ro in thillands K = 14	T:DESsel	TOT: New	
2	Table optition Section for 100/00/425	6.3 miles	0.2 miles	
4	Amore anyour destandors Statem United as 110005401	\$17.mäss	5.1 miles	
		A contract of the second		

2/7/2014 1:03 PM

2011

Sand Mehodly Orizing Directions and Maps

http://mage.com/monelly.com/print.de

B	Pecus NN Tus Tos				
1	Exections Precose auto on E Ruin Sc Earls: For Tri NM 45	Missge	Total Minege		
2	Turn right er 1 25 W/J5 81 SiHistorio Route 69/Scrite Fo Til	£.6 m826	8 ¢ mito		
3.	Turn feit continuing von -25 %	550 fuel	57 miles		
4,1	Exit (ghttp://why though (120 BL/NM 05/90/ 101 (EXIT 215)	27.7 m¥cs	s3 (niko		
5	Turn Witten E.U. investig Auw MM-104 WOM-65 W	£5 17 840	43.9 miles		
6.	Continue on the way Aye hildes	15.120	44 I to bes		
7	Anti-clar visur declinicitat	700 foet	013 miles		

Las. Singan, MM

2/7/2014 1:05 PM

Sand McKolly Driving Directions and Mapshttp://mgs.conducturily.com/print.de 100 Colditor Santa Fe A.A.SAN Coont SARTS. (iii) (1) (Jane) 00 6. HERE MELLERY STATES Cib 1.1 An electron dentre has the produced by a single of hard a florid in while dente do the solet be usefue assessed as solet a dented for family blocks of the solet for the solet beam of the solet by the

1/7/2014 1:05 PM

1:11

This page is intentionally blank.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix F: Public Surveys

1 APPENDIX F: PUBLIC SURVEY RESULTS

San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Survey

	Response	Response
	Percent	Count
18 to 30	17.6%	23
31 to 40	16.0%	21
41 to 50	34.4%	45
51 to 60	18.3%	24
60 to over	13.7%	18
	answered question	131
	skipped question	1

A SurveyMonkey

2. Gender:		
	Response Percent	Response Count
Male	59.5%	7
Female	40.5%	5
	answered question	12
	skipped question	9

1

	Response Percent	Response Count
Less than 1 year	1.5%	3
1 to 5 year	5.4%	- a
6 to 9 years	8.5%	1
10 to 19 years	17.7%	23
20 years or more	66.9%	87
	answered question	130
	skipped question	3
I. In which jurisdiction do y	skipped question	3
I. In which jurisdiction do y	skipped question you reside? Response Percent	Response Count
4. In which jurisdiction do y	skipped question you reside? Response Percent 44.2%	2 Response Count 57
I. In which jurisdiction do y Unincorporated San Miguel County City of Las vegas	skipped question you reside? Response Percent 44.2%	Response Count 57 66
I. In which jurisdiction do y Unincorporated San Miguel County City of Las vegas Village of Pecos	skipped question you reside? Response Percent 44.2% 51.2% 4.7%	Response Count 57 66
4. In which jurisdiction do y Unincorporated San Miguel County City of Las vegas Village of Pecos	skipped question you reside? Response Percent 44.2% 51.2% 4.7% answered question	Response Count 57 66 129

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix F: Public Surveys

	Response	Response
	recent	Count
Own	81.7%	10
Rent	18.3%	2
	Other (please specify)	
	answered question	126
	skipped question	•
. Have you ever received atural disasters?	skipped question Information about how to make your family and home sat Response Percent	fer from Response Count
Have you ever received atural disasters?	skipped question Information about how to make your family and home sat Response Percent 41.2%	fer from Response Count
Have you ever received atural disasters? Yes No	skipped question Information about how to make your family and home sat Response Percent 41.2% 58.8%	fer from Response Count 54

skipped question

1

3 of 11

	Response Percent	Response Count
Within the last 6 months	42.6%	23
Between 7 and 12 months	18.59	10
Between 1 and 2 years	22.2%	12
Between 2 and 5 years	9.39	5
5 years or more	7.49	. 4
	answered question	54
	skipped question	78

8. From whom did you last receive information about how to make your family and home safer from natural disasters?

	Response Percent	Response Count
News Media (newspaper, radio, television, internet)	38.9%	28
American Red Cross	6.9%	5
Government agency	38.9%	28
Other non-profit organization	6.9%	5
Insurance agent or company	12.5%	9
Utility company	15.3%	11
Unsure	22.2%	16
	Other (please specify)	14
	answered question	72
	skipped question	60

9. On a scale of 1-5 with 1 b rank how prepared you are	eing the for the in	least prep	ared and natural or	5 being ti human-c	the most prepared, plea caused disasters.		
	1	2	3	4	5	Rating Average	Rating Count
•	16.3% (21)	20.2% (26)	39.5% (51)	17.8% (23)	6.2% (8)	2.78	129
					answered	question	129
					skipped	question	3

10. Which of the following steps has your household taken to prepare for a natural hazard event? (Check all that apply.)

	Response Percent	Response Count
Received first aid/CPR training	71.5%	93
Maintain flashlights and batteries	78.5%	102
Maintain emergency food and water supplies	46.2%	60
Own a battery-powered radio	49.2%	64
Designated a meeting place	28.5%	37
Maintain emergency medical supplies	43.1%	56
Identified utility shutoff locations	58.5%	76
Prepared a disaster supply kit	23.1%	30
	answered question	130
	skipped question	2

5 of 11

11. Which of the following types of hazard events have you or someone in your household experienced within San Miguel County and how concerned are you about the hazards listed? (Please check any that you have experienced and the level of concern for all of the hazards).

	Have Experienced	Not Concerned	Somewhat Concerned	Very Concerned	Extremely Concerned	I'm not familiar with this hazard
Dam Failure	5.2% (5)	32.0% (31)	18,6% (18)	10.3% (10)	17.5% (17)	22.7% (22)
Drought	47.2% (58)	1.6% (2)	11.4% (14)	20.3% (25)	44.7% (55)	0.8% (1)
Earthquake	9.7% (9)	58.1% (54)	20.4% (19)	4.3% (4)	2.2% (2)	15.1% (14)
Flood	38.5% (40)	11.5% (12)	30.8% (32)	20.2% (21)	17.3% (18)	1.9% (2)
Expansive Soits	5.3% (5)	45.3% (43)	14.7% (14)	8.4% (8)	6.3% (6)	28.4% (27)
Extreme Heat	31.1% (33)	17.9% (19)	35.8% (38)	16.0% (17)	17.0% (18)	2.8% (3)
Hailstorm	50.4% (62)	10.6% (13)	26.8% (33)	19.5% (24)	17.1% (21)	1.6% (2)
Hazardous Materials Incident	11.1% (11)	17.2% (17)	36.4% (36)	12.1% (12)	22.2% (22)	9.1% (9)
High Wind	44.9% (53)	5.9% (7)	26.3% (31)	28.8% (34)	15.3% (18)	2.5% (3)
Landslide	7.2% (7)	44.3% (43)	28.9% (28)	8.2% (8)	4.1% (4)	11.3% (11)
Levee Failure	6.1% (6)	54.1% (53)	16.3% (16)	4.1% (4)	8.2% (8)	14.3% (14)
Destructive Pests	16.5% (16)	24.7% (24)	40.2% (39)	15.5% (15)	9.3% (9)	5.2% (5)
Severe Winter Weather	46.1% (47)	7.8% (8)	29.4% (30)	24.5% (25)	21.6% (22)	2.0% (2)

6 of 11

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix F: Public Surveys

					answered	question
Wildfi	e 33.0% (37)	2.7% (3)	17.9% (20)	17.9% (20)	41.1% (46)	4.5% (5)
Tornac	o 9.6% (9)	37.2% (35)	30.9% (29)	8.5% (8)	10.6% (10)	10.6% (10)
Thunderstor	m 46.5% (53)	13.2% (15)	30.7% (35)	19.3% (22)	11.4% (13)	0.9% (1)
Terroris	n 12.1% (12)	22.2% (22)	27.3% (27)	18.2% (18)	21.2% (21)	(7)

	Response Percent	Response Count
Yes	17.6%	2
No	58.8%	7
Not Sure	23.7%	3
	answered question	13
	skipped question	ł

13. Do you have flood insur	ance?	
	Response Percent	Response Count
Yes	23.8%	31
No	76.2%	99
	answered question	130
	skipped question	2

7 of 11

	Response Percent	Response Count
I don't need it/my property has never flooded	12.1%	14
Don't need it/my house is not in the floodplain	36.2%	42
My homeowners insurance will cover me	6.9%	8
My insurance will not cover it	4.3%	5
It is too expensive	14.7%	17
It is not worth it	1.7%	2
Not familiar with it/ don't know about it	24.1%	28
	answered question	116
	skipped guestion	16

15. Did you consider the impact a natural disaster could have on your home before you purchased/moved into your home?

Response Count	Response Percent	
38	30.4%	Yes
87	69.6%	No
125	answered question	
7	skipped question	

8 of 11

16. How much would you be willing to spend to retrofit your home from the impacts natural disasters? (Examples of retrofitting are: elevating a flood-prone home, installing storm shutters or upgrading to fire-resistant roofing material.)

Respon Percer	se	Response Count
5.6	3%	7
11,3	1%	14
16.1	%	20
11,3	1%	14
8.1	%	10
47.6	;%	59
answered question	on	124
skipped questi	on	8

9 of 11

17. Which of the following incentives would help to encourage you to spend money to retrofit your home from the possible impacts of natural disasters? (Please check all that apply)

	Respon Percen	se t	Response Count
Building permit fee waiver	26.4	%	33
Property tax break or incentive	59.5	%	7:
Insurance premium discount	51.2	%	62
Low interest loan	29.8	%	36
Grant funding with a cost-share	50.4	%	61
None	14.0	%	17
	Other (please speci	y)	4
	answered questi	n	121
	skipped questi	'n	11

18. If your property were located in a designated "high hazard" area, or had received repeated damages from a natural hazard event, would you consider a "buyout", elevation of the structure, or relocation offered by a public agency?

Count	Response Percent	
78	62.9%	Yes
46	37.1%	Na
124	answered question	
	skipped question	

10 of 11

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix F: Public Surveys

19. Other Comments		
		Response Count
		14
	answered question	14
	skipped question	118

1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	This page is intentionally blank.
11	

APPENDIX G: MITIGATION ACTION RANKING WORKSHEETS

G.1 Instructions

Mitigation Actions must be prioritized by each participating jurisdiction (SMC, Las Vegas, and Pecos). Each participating jurisdiction may have different priorities for implementing actions. To follow recommendations by FEMA, the actions should be ranked using the prioritization factors as listed below. For each mitigation action on the given jurisdiction worksheet (tab), rank each factor with one of the following:

0 = not likely 1 = neutral 2 = likely

Use the following explanations as reference for each prioritization factor:

Life Safety - How effectively will the action protect lives and prevent injuries?

Property Protection - How significant will the action be at eliminating or reducing damage to structures and infrastructure?

Technical - Is the mitigation action technically feasible? Is it a long-term solution? Eliminate actions that, from a technical standpoint, will not meet the goals.

Political - Does the public support the mitigation action? Is there the political will to support it?

Legal - Does the community have the authority to implement the action?

Environmental - What are the potential environmental impacts of the action? Will it comply with environmental regulations?

Social - Will the proposed action adversely affect one segment of the population? Will the action disrupt established neighborhoods, break up voting districts, or cause the relocation of lower income people?

Administrative - Does the community have the personnel and administrative capabilities to implement the action and maintain it, or will outside help be necessary?

Local Champion - Is there a strong advocate for the action or project among local departments and agencies who will support the action's implementation?

Other Community Objectives - Does the action advance other community objectives, such as capital improvements, economic development, environmental quality, or open space preservation? Does it support the policies of the comprehensive plan?

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix G: Mitigation Action Ranking Worksheets

G.2 San Miguel County

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
1.1.1	Conduct field testing & sampling of surface and sub-surface water sources	1	0	2	2	2	2	0	2	2	2	15	HIGH
1.1.2	Well exploration to identify potable water supplies	0	0	2	2	2	2	0	2	2	2	14	HIGH
1.1.5	Develop water storage/hydrant systems in for raw, drinking and effluent water.	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	19	HIGH
1.1.6	Conduct a more in depth hazard analysis for wildfires and their effects on residences, infrastructure, water supplies, and the economy.	0	0	2	1	2	2	0	1	1	1	10	MODERATE
1.1.7	Join the Community Rating System (CRS) and pursue opportunities to improve CRS ratings	0	0	2	1	2	2	0	1	2	1	11	MODERATE
1.2.1	Install flashing roadside emergency notification signs to advise of an emergency, web announcement, & AM Radio Broadcast with additional instructions	1	0	2	2	2	2	0	1	0	0	10	MODERATE
1.2.2	Construct a tower and transponder to have the ability to receive NOAA weather alert notification and purchase NOAA radios for public facilities and vulnerable populations to receive these messages	1	1	2	1	2	2	1	2	1	0	13	HIGH
1.2.3	Implement a county-wide mass notification/emergency messaging system to provide a centralized notification system	2	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix G: Mitigation Action Ranking Worksheets

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
1.2.4	Research and identify public warning systems that use redundant means of contact to reach stakeholders and the community to deliver and receive information regarding hazards, threats, impacts, and damage. Purchase, install, and implement the warning system.	0	0	2	1	2	2	1	1	2	0	11	MODERATE
1.2.5	Research the feasibility and benefits of becoming a NOAA StormReady Community	1	1	2	1	2	0	2	2	1	0	12	MODERATE
1.3.1	Design & develop an OEM web-site that provides drop down links toward mitigation/preparedness/response/recovery and identify funding sources toward hailstorm mitigation programs	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	1	0	16	HIGH
1.3.2	Create a centralized GIS/Data System to be able to obtain/compile/disseminate information for all hazard events (mapping, assessments, cost analysis, etc.)	0	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	18	HIGH
1.3.3	Install outdoor early warning systems at local parks, athletic fields, and on educational institution campuses	2	2	2	1	2	1	0	0	0	0	10	MODERATE
1.3.4	Work with the state and USDA NRCS to install additional high-elevation SNOTEL stations in the Sangre de Christo Mountains and Glorieta Mesa	1	2	2	1	2	2	0	0	1	0	11	MODERATE
Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
-----------	---	-------------	----------------------------	-----------	-----------	-------	---------------	--------	----------------	----------------	-------------------------------	-------	----------
1.3.5	Work with USGS to install continuous monitoring stream gages on Tecolote Creek, the Conchas River (above the lake), the Canadian River, the Pecos River, and the Gallinas River 1000' south of the diversion gate.	1	1	2	1	2	2	0	0	0	0	9	MODERATE
2.1.1	Review and develop the current building codes to include mitigation for seismic shaking in future construction	0	1	0	0	1	2	0	1	0	0	5	LOW
2.1.2	Review and implement mitigation concepts in foundation design toward soil expansion solutions and incorporate them into the building codes through formal adoption	0	1	1	0	2	0	0	1	0	0	5	LOW
2.1.3	Investigate availability of funding and/or for development of expansive soil data (including extent of hazard and probability of occurrence data) for use county-wide	0	1	1	0	2	1	0	1	0	0	6	LOW
2.1.4	Develop local building ordinances that require 1'-2' of freeboard in designated flood zones.	0	2	1	1	2	2	0	1	0	0	9	MODERATE
2.1.5	Improve on state building codes through local modifications that meet or exceed state and national models by ordinance, which would result in additional techniques to harden structures.	0	1	1	1	2	2	0	1	0	0	8	MODERATE

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
2.1.6	Improve state fire codes through local modifications that meet or exceed state and national models by ordinance, which would result in additional techniques to harden structures.	1	1	2	1	2	2	0	0	0	0	9	MODERATE
2.1.7	Identify funding sources to develop zoning regulations and ordinances to reduce loss from identified hazards.	0	1	2	0	2	2	0	0	0	0	7	LOW
2.1.8	Develop and implement zoning regulations and ordinances to reduce loss from identified hazards.	0	1	1	0	2	2	0	0	0	0	6	LOW
2.1.9	Research and study the feasibility of developing and implementing an environmental protection ordinance	0	0	2	0	2	1	0	0	0	0	5	LOW
2.2.1	Identify flood prone areas in the county and design effective water drainage systems to minimize flooding	1	2	2	2	2	1	0	2	2	2	16	HIGH
2.2.2	Pursue elevation/acquisition/floodproofing projects and structural solutions to flooding using available grant funding for the repetitive loss structures in the county and municipalities. Annually review and correct the Repetitive Loss List by submitting correction worksheets to FEMA.	0	2	2	0	2	1	0	1	0	0	8	MODERATE
2.3.1	Re-design and construction of the diversion gates to handle increase water flows during floods or heavy rains	1	2	2	2	1	2	0	0	2	2	14	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
2.3.2	Identify, design, & construct a levee control system within the county river basins to lower the water flows during a dam failure	2	2	1	1	1	2	0	1	1	2	13	HIGH
2.3.3	Require the use of hail resistant material in future county-funded construction projects	0	2	2	1	2	2	0	1	0	0	10	MODERATE
2.3.4	Identify critical infrastructure where safe rooms can be constructed for protection/safety of building occupants within the facility	2	0	1	1	2	2	1	0	1	0	10	MODERATE
2.3.5	Conduct a study to identify landslide areas within the county and install rock netting toward protection measures at the identified sites	0	1	1	1	2	2	0	1	1	0	9	MODERATE
2.3.6	Construct snow fences along major utilized highways in the county to minimize snow drifts and build up on roadways	-										0	LOW
2.3.7	Improve and protect existing culverts, arroyos, and acequias, and install new culverts within the county as needed to reduce flooding county-wide	1	2	2	2	2	2	1	1	2	2	17	HIGH
3.1.1	The Upper Pecos Watershed Association is completing a NEPA analysis for "roadside thinning" within the Pecos Canyon	1	1	0	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	5	LOW
3.1.3	Re-design and construct the levee just north of Storrie Lake to minimize the possible breakage during heavy flows	2	2	1	1	2	2	0	0	1	0	11	MODERATE

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
3.1.4	Harden the bay doors of the fire stations to reduce vulnerability to wind-related events.	0	2	1	0	2	2	0	1	0	0	8	MODERATE
3.1.5	Install a generator at each of the Fire and Police Stations to reduce vulnerability to power-outages during hazard events.	2	2	2	1	2	2	0	2	1	0	14	HIGH
3.1.7	Research vulnerable infrastructure and harden/improve water/sewer sanitation services in identified areas	0	2	2	2	2	2	0	1	2	0	13	HIGH
3.2.1	Conduct a seismic study of all critical infrastructure within the county to identify the effects of an earthquake on existing facilities	0	0	2	1	2	2	0	2	0	0	9	MODERATE
3.2.2	Research and meet with State Plant Pest and Disease Agencies such as USDA/APHIS to identify mitigation projects in this area	0	0	1	1	2	2	0	1	0	0	7	LOW
3.2.3	Research funding opportunities and garner support for repair to the reservoir seepage area.	1	0	2	2	2	2	0	2	2	2	15	HIGH
3.2.4	Identify funding streams and resources for technical assistance to scope bridge repair or reinforcement projects on identified vulnerable bridges	0	1	1	1	2	2	0	0	1	0	8	MODERATE
3.2.5	Conduct engineering studies on hardening, retrofitting, or rebuilding vulnerable bridges.	0	2	2	1	2	2	0	1	1	0	11	MODERATE

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
3.2.6	Harden, retrofit, or replace vulnerable, unsafe bridges that are used by heavy equipment to access areas vulnerable to wildfire, snowfall, landslide, and flooding.	1	2	2	1	2	2	0	1	1	0	12	MODERATE
3.3.1	Encourage new development areas to install underground utilities, which would help reduce the chances of power outages.	0	0	1	1	2	1	0	0	0	0	5	LOW
4.1.1	Gallinas Fuels Reduction project	1	2	2	1	2	2	0	2	1	2	15	HIGH
4.1.3	Develop emergency evacuation and sheltering plans	2	1	2	2	2	2	0	1	2	2	16	HIGH
4.2.1	Install and maintain ITAC channels in public safety radios to improve inter-operability with Santa Fe County	0	1	2	1	2	0	0	2	2	0	10	MODERATE
4.2.2	Identify critical infrastructure facilities to install generator hook-ups and purchase mobile generators to use in power outages	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	1	1	2	17	HIGH
4.3.1	Identify senior centers, community centers, and schools throughout the county that can be used for heating/cooling stations and install generator hook ups, towable generators and electric A/C & heating combination systems	2	1	2	2	2	2	2	1	1	2	17	HIGH
4.3.2	Encourage churches and community groups to assist vulnerable persons in the event of power loss and to develop an emergency plan.	1	0	1	1	0	2	2	0	1	0	8	MODERATE

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
5.2.1	Research and implement localized drainage projects in the repetitive loss areas to reduce flood potential and impacts.	1	2	2	2	2	2	0	1	2	2	16	HIGH
6.1.1	Travel Management Plan was approved in 2013. A map that depicts where camping is permitted will be issued annually	0	0	1	0	2	0	0	0	1	0	4	LOW
6.1.2	Respect the Rio: a public education campaign where rangers visit campgrounds to teach visitors about water quality hazards, and appropriate use of sites near streams	0	2	1	1	0	2	0	1	1	0	8	MODERATE
6.1.3	Create a public awareness program to promote "See Something, Say Something" in conjunction with New Mexico Department of Homeland Security	1	1	1	0	2	2	0	0	0	0	7	LOW
6.1.4	Increase public awareness of hazards and hazardous areas. Distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using the local newspaper, utility bill inserts, inserts in the phone book, county websites, and educational programs for school age children or "how to" classes in retrofitting by local merchants. Integrate "Disaster Resistance Education" into the public school curriculum.	2	2	2	2	2	2	0	2	1	0	15	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
6.1.5	Develop and distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using various means to reach adults, children, visitors, and vulnerable populations.	0	1	2	2	2	2	0	1	2	0	12	MODERATE
6.2.1	Develop, deliver, and maintain FireWise programs in the county.	1	2	2	2	2	2	0	1	2	1	15	HIGH
6.2.2	Promote the purchase of flood insurance. Advertise the availability, cost, and coverage of flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).	0	2	1	0	2	2	2	2	1	0	12	MODERATE
6.3.3	Identify funding sources to create a staff community outreach position to enhance mitigation and emergency preparedness in the community	0	0	2	0	2	0	1	0	0	0	5	LOW

G.3 City of Las Vegas

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
1.1.1	Conduct field testing & sampling of surface and sub-surface water sources	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
1.1.2	Well exploration to identify potable water supplies	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
1.1.3	Increase aquifer storage and recovery	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
1.1.4	Enlarge reservoir	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
1.1.5	Develop water storage/hydrant systems in for raw, drinking and effluent water.	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	20	HIGH
1.1.6	Conduct a more in depth hazard analysis for wildfires and their effects on residences, infrastructure, water supplies, and the economy.	0	0	2	2	2	0	1	1	2	2	12	MODERATE
1.1.7	Join the Community Rating System (CRS) and pursue opportunities to improve CRS ratings	0	0	2	1	2	2	0	1	2	1	11	MODERATE
1.2.1	Install flashing roadside emergency notification signs to advise of an emergency, web announcement, & AM Radio Broadcast with additional instructions	2	1	2	1	2	0	2	1	1	1	13	HIGH
1.2.2	Construct a tower and transponder to have the ability to receive NOAA weather alert notification and purchase NOAA radios for public facilities and vulnerable populations to receive these messages	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
1.2.3	Implement a county-wide mass notification/emergency messaging system to provide a centralized notification system	2	2	2	2	2	0	2	2	2	2	18	HIGH
1.2.4	Research and identify public warning systems that use redundant means of contact to reach stakeholders and the community to deliver and receive information regarding hazards, threats, impacts, and damage. Purchase, install, and implement the warning system.	2	2	2	2	2	0	2	2	2	2	18	HIGH
1.2.5	Research the feasibility and benefits of becoming a NOAA StormReady Community	1	1	2	1	2	0	2	2	1	0	12	MODERATE
1.3.1	Design & develop an OEM web-site that provides drop down links toward mitigation/preparedness/response/recovery and identify funding sources toward hailstorm mitigation programs	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
1.3.2	Create a centralized GIS/Data System to be able to obtain/compile/disseminate information for all hazard events (mapping, assessments, cost analysis, etc.)	2	2	2	2	2	0	2	2	2	2	18	HIGH
1.3.3	Install outdoor early warning systems at local parks, athletic fields, and on educational institution campuses	0	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	9	MODERATE

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
1.3.5	Work with USGS to install continuous monitoring stream gages on Tecolote Creek, the Conchas River (above the lake), the Canadian River, the Pecos River, and the Gallinas River 1000' south of the diversion gate.	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
2.1.1	Review and develop the current building codes to include mitigation for seismic shaking in future construction	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	10	MODERATE
2.1.3	Investigate availability of funding and/or for development of expansive soil data (including extent of hazard and probability of occurrence data) for use county-wide	0	1	2	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	10	MODERATE
2.1.5	Improve on state building codes through local modifications that meet or exceed state and national models by ordinance, which would result in additional techniques to harden structures.	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	10	MODERATE
2.1.7	Identify funding sources to develop zoning regulations and ordinances to reduce loss from identified hazards.	2	0	2	1	1	0	0	2	0	2	10	MODERATE
2.1.8	Develop and implement zoning regulations and ordinances to reduce loss from identified hazards.	2	0	2	1	1	0	0	2	0	2	10	MODERATE
2.1.9	Research and study the feasibility of developing and implementing an environmental protection ordinance	0	1	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	1	15	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
2.2.1	Identify flood prone areas in the county and design effective water drainage systems to minimize flooding	2	0	2	2	2	0	1	2	2	2	15	HIGH
2.2.2	Pursue elevation/acquisition/floodproofing projects and structural solutions to flooding using available grant funding for the repetitive loss structures in the county and municipalities. Annually review and correct the Repetitive Loss List by submitting correction worksheets to FEMA.	2	2	1	1	1	1	2	2	1	2	15	HIGH
2.3.4	Identify critical infrastructure where safe rooms can be constructed for protection/safety of building occupants within the facility	2	0	1	2	2	0	0	2	0	0	9	MODERATE
2.3.7	Improve and protect existing culverts, arroyos, and acequias, and install new culverts within the county as needed to reduce flooding county-wide	1	1	2	1	2	1	1	2	1	1	13	HIGH
3.1.2	Rehabilitate old wells	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
3.1.3	Re-design and construct the levee just north of Storrie Lake to minimize the possible breakage during heavy flows	2	2	2	2	0	2	0	2	2	2	16	HIGH
3.1.4	Harden the bay doors of the fire stations to reduce vulnerability to wind-related events.	2	2	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	12	MODERATE
3.1.5	Install a generator at each of the Fire and Police Stations to reduce vulnerability to power-outages during hazard events.	2	2	2	1	1	0	2	2	1	2	15	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
3.1.7	Research vulnerable infrastructure and harden/improve water/sewer sanitation services in identified areas	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
3.2.1	Conduct a seismic study of all critical infrastructure within the county to identify the effects of an earthquake on existing facilities	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
3.2.2	Research and meet with State Plant Pest and Disease Agencies such as USDA/APHIS to identify mitigation projects in this area	0	1	2	1	2	2	2	2	1	1	14	HIGH
3.2.3	Research funding opportunities and garner support for repair to the reservoir seepage area.	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	20	HIGH
3.2.4	Identify funding streams and resources for technical assistance to scope bridge repair or reinforcement projects on identified vulnerable bridges	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	10	MODERATE
3.2.5	Conduct engineering studies on hardening, retrofitting, or rebuilding vulnerable bridges.	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	10	MODERATE
3.2.6	Harden, retrofit, or replace vulnerable, unsafe bridges that are used by heavy equipment to access areas vulnerable to wildfire, snowfall, landslide, and flooding.	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	10	MODERATE
3.3.1	Encourage new development areas to install underground utilities, which would help reduce the chances of power outages.	2	1	2	0	1	1	1	2	0	1	11	MODERATE

Action ID	Project Historical tree thinning project on City of Las Vegas land that produced 200 to 300 cords of		Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
4.1.2	Historical tree thinning project on City of Las Vegas land that produced 200 to 300 cords of free firewood for residents.	0	2	2	2	2	1	0	2	2	2	15	HIGH
4.1.3	Develop emergency evacuation and sheltering plans	2	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
4.2.2	Identify critical infrastructure facilities to install generator hook-ups and purchase mobile generators to use in power outages	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	20	HIGH
4.3.1	Identify senior centers, community centers, and schools throughout the county that can be used for heating/cooling stations and install generator hook ups, towable generators and electric A/C & heating combination systems	2	0	2	2	2	0	1	2	2	2	15	HIGH
4.3.2	Encourage churches and community groups to assist vulnerable persons in the event of power loss and to develop an emergency plan.	2	0	1	1	0	0	2	1	1	2	10	MODERATE
5.1.1	Conduct a geological study on local structures, strengthen historic structures/chimneys in the Cat D seismic zone.	2	2	2	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
5.2.1	Research and implement localized drainage projects in the repetitive loss areas to reduce flood potential and impacts.	2	2	2	1	1	2	1	1	1	2	15	HIGH
6.1.3	Create a public awareness program to promote "See Something, Say Something" in conjunction with New Mexico Department of Homeland Security	2	2	2	2	2	0	2	2	2	2	18	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
6.1.4	Increase public awareness of hazards and hazardous areas. Distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using the local newspaper, utility bill inserts, inserts in the phone book, county websites, and educational programs for school age children or "how to" classes in retrofitting by local merchants. Integrate "Disaster Resistance Education" into the public school curriculum.	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	10	MODERATE
6.1.5	public school curriculum. Develop and distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using various means to reach adults, children, visitors, and vulnerable populations.		2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	19	HIGH
6.2.2	Promote the purchase of flood insurance. Advertise the availability, cost, and coverage of flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).	0	0	2	1	2	0	0	1	1	0	7	LOW
6.3.3	Identify funding sources to create a staff community outreach position to enhance mitigation and emergency preparedness in the community		0	2	1	1	0	0	2	0	2	10	MODERATE

G.4 Village of Pecos

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
1.1.1	Conduct field testing & sampling of surface and sub-surface water sources	1	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	4	LOW
1.1.2	Well exploration to identify potable water supplies	1	0	2	2	2	0	1	2	1	2	13	MODERATE
1.1.5	Develop water storage/hydrant systems in for raw, drinking and effluent water.	1	1	2	0	2	0	1	2	1	0	10	LOW
1.1.6	Conduct a more in depth hazard analysis for wildfires and their effects on residences, infrastructure, water supplies, and the economy.	2	1	2	2	2	0	1	2	1	2	15	HIGH
1.1.7	Join the Community Rating System (CRS) and pursue opportunities to improve CRS ratings	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
1.2.1	Install flashing roadside emergency notification signs to advise of an emergency, web announcement, & AM Radio Broadcast with additional instructions	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
1.2.2	Construct a tower and transponder to have the ability to receive NOAA weather alert notification and purchase NOAA radios for public facilities and vulnerable populations to receive these messages	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
1.2.3	Implement a county-wide mass notification/emergency messaging system to provide a centralized notification system	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
1.2.4	Research and identify public warning systems that use redundant means of contact to reach stakeholders and the community to deliver and receive information regarding hazards, threats, impacts, and damage. Purchase, install, and implement the warning system.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
1.2.5	Research the feasibility and benefits of becoming a NOAA StormReady Community	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
1.3.1	Design & develop an OEM web-site that provides drop down links toward mitigation/preparedness/response/recover y and identify funding sources toward hailstorm mitigation programs	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
1.3.3	Install outdoor early warning systems at local parks, athletic fields, and on educational institution campuses	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
1.3.4	Work with the state and USDA NRCS to install additional high-elevation SNOTEL stations in the Sangre de Christo Mountains and Glorieta Mesa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
1.3.5	Work with USGS to install continuous monitoring stream gages on Tecolote Creek, the Conchas River (above the lake), the Canadian River, the Pecos River, and the Gallinas River 1000' south of the diversion gate.	2	1	0	1	1	0	1	0	0	0	6	LOW

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
2.1.1	Review and develop the current building codes to include mitigation for seismic shaking in future construction	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.1.2	Review and implement mitigation concepts in foundation design toward soil expansion solutions and incorporate them into the building codes through formal adoption	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.1.3	Investigate availability of funding and/or for development of expansive soil data (including extent of hazard and probability of occurrence data) for use county-wide	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.1.5	Improve on state building codes through local modifications that meet or exceed state and national models by ordinance, which would result in additional techniques to harden structures.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.1.7	Identify funding sources to develop zoning regulations and ordinances to reduce loss from identified hazards.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.1.8	Develop and implement zoning regulations and ordinances to reduce loss from identified hazards.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.1.9	Research and study the feasibility of developing and implementing an environmental protection ordinance	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
2.2.1	Identify flood prone areas in the county and design effective water drainage systems to minimize flooding	1	1	2	2	2	0	1	2	1	2	14	HIGH
2.2.2	Pursue elevation/acquisition/floodproofing projects and structural solutions to flooding using available grant funding for the repetitive loss structures in the county and municipalities. Annually review and correct the Repetitive Loss List by submitting correction worksheets to FEMA.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.3.1	Re-design and construction of the diversion gates to handle increase water flows during floods or heavy rains	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.3.3	Require the use of hail resistant material in future county-funded construction projects	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.3.4	Identify critical infrastructure where safe rooms can be constructed for protection/safety of building occupants within the facility	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.3.5	Conduct a study to identify landslide areas within the county and install rock netting toward protection measures at the identified sites	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
2.3.7	Improve and protect existing culverts, arroyos, and acequias, and install new culverts within the county as needed to reduce flooding county-wide	2	1	2	2	2	0	1	2	1	2	15	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
3.1.1	The Upper Pecos Watershed Association is completing a NEPA analysis for "roadside thinning" within the Pecos Canyon	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	3	LOW
3.1.4	Harden the bay doors of the fire stations to reduce vulnerability to wind-related events.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
3.1.5	Install a generator at each of the Fire and Police Stations to reduce vulnerability to power-outages during hazard events.	2	1	0	1	1	0	1	2	0	0	8	LOW
3.1.6	Harden Pecos Village Complex Building to reduce vulnerabilities to various natural hazards.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
3.2.1	Conduct a seismic study of all critical infrastructure within the county to identify the effects of an earthquake on existing facilities	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
3.2.2	Research and meet with State Plant Pest and Disease Agencies such as USDA/APHIS to identify mitigation projects in this area	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
3.2.4	Identify funding streams and resources for technical assistance to scope bridge repair or reinforcement projects on identified vulnerable bridges	2	1	2	2	2	0	1	2	1	2	15	HIGH
3.2.5	Conduct engineering studies on hardening, retrofitting, or rebuilding vulnerable bridges.	2	1	2	2	2	0	1	2	1	2	15	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
3.2.6	Harden, retrofit, or replace vulnerable, unsafe bridges that are used by heavy equipment to access areas vulnerable to wildfire, snowfall, landslide, and flooding.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
3.3.1	Encourage new development areas to install underground utilities, which would help reduce the chances of power outages.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
4.1.3	Develop emergency evacuation and sheltering plans	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
4.2.1	Install and maintain ITAC channels in public safety radios to improve inter-operability with Santa Fe County	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
4.2.2	Identify critical infrastructure facilities to install generator hook-ups and purchase mobile generators to use in power outages	1	1	2	2	2	0	1	2	1	0	12	MODERATE
4.3.1	Identify senior centers, community centers, and schools throughout the county that can be used for heating/cooling stations and install generator hook ups, towable generators and electric A/C & heating combination systems	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
4.3.2	Encourage churches and community groups to assist vulnerable persons in the event of power loss and to develop an emergency plan.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
5.2.1	Research and implement localized drainage projects in the repetitive loss areas to reduce flood potential and impacts.	2	1	2	2	2	0	1	2	0	1	13	HIGH

Action ID	Project	Life Safety	Property Protection	Technical	Political	Legal	Environmental	Social	Administrative	Local Champion	Other Community Objectives	Score	Priority
6.1.3	Create a public awareness program to promote "See Something, Say Something" in conjunction with New Mexico Department of Homeland Security	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
6.1.4	Increase public awareness of hazards and hazardous areas. Distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using the local newspaper, utility bill inserts, inserts in the phone book, county websites, and educational programs for school age children or "how to" classes in retrofitting by local merchants. Integrate "Disaster Resistance Education" into the public school curriculum.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
6.1.5	Develop and distribute public awareness information regarding potential mitigation measures using various means to reach adults, children, visitors, and vulnerable populations.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW
6.2.2	Promote the purchase of flood insurance. Advertise the availability, cost, and coverage of flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	LOW

This page is intentionally blank.

APPENDIX H: CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT WORKSHEETS

H.1 San Miguel County

Hazard Mitigation Plan Capability Assessment Worksheet

Jurisdiction: San Miguel County

Local mitigation capabilities are existing authorities, policies, programs, and resources that reduce hazard impacts or that could be used to implement hazard mitigation activities. Please complete the tables and questions in the worksheet as completely as possible. One worksheet should be completed for each stakeholder jurisdiction in the hazard mitigation plan.

Task 1: Planning and Regulatory Capabilities

Planning and regulatory capabilities are the plans, policies, codes, and ordinances that prevent and reduce the impacts of hazards. Please indicate which of the following capabilities your jurisdiction has in place.

Plans	Yes / No	Year of latest updat e	Department/Agen cy Responsible for this plan	Does the plan address any of the identifie d hazards ?	Does the Plan identify projects to include in the mitigatio n strategy?	Can this plan be used to impleme nt mitigatio n actions?
EXAMPLE: Hazard Mitigation Plan	No	N/A	SMCLV OEM	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comprehensive/Mast er Plan (or other land use plans)	Yes	2004	Planning and Zoning	No	No	No
Open Space Management Plan (Parks/Rec or Greenways Plan)	No			No	No	No
Natural Resource Protection Plan	No			No	No	No

Plans	Yes / No	Year of latest updat e	Department/Agen cy Responsible for this plan	Does the plan address any of the identifie d hazards ?	Does the Plan identify projects to include in the mitigatio n strategy?	Can this plan be used to impleme nt mitigatio n actions?
Capital Improvements Plan	Yes	2012	Planning and Zoning`	No	No	No
Economic Development Plan	Yes		Planning & Zoning	Yes	Yes	Yes
Historic Preservation Plan	No			No	No	No
Farmland Preservation Plan	No			No	No	No
Local Emergency Operations Plan	Yes	2013	SMC/LV OEM	Yes	No	Yes
Disaster Recovery Plan	No			No	No	No
Evacuation Plan	No			No	No	No
Floodplain Management Plan	Yes	2010	Planning and Zoning	Yes	No	Yes
Continuity of Operations / Continuity of Government Plan	Yes	2013	SMC/LV OEM	Yes	No	Yes
Transportation Plan	No			No	No	No
Stormwater Mgmt. Plan	Yes	2010	Public Works Division	Yes	No	No
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	Yes	2009	Fire	Yes	Yes	Yes
Other special plans (e.g., brownfields redevelopment, disaster recovery, coastal zone management, climate change adaptation)	No			No	No	No

Building Code, Permitting, Inspections	Yes/No	Year of latest update	Is the code adequately enforced?	Does the code address any of the identified hazards?	Does the code identify projects to include in the mitigation strategy?	Can this code be used to implement mitigation actions?
Fire Code	No			No	No	No
Fire Department ISO rating	Yes	2011	Rating(s):10/6			
Building Code	No			No	No	No
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule (BCEGS) score	No		Score:	No	No	No
Site plan review requirements	No			No	No	No

Land Use Planning and Ordinances	Yes/N o	Year	Is the ordinance adequately administere d and enforced?	Does the regulatio n address any of the identified hazards?	Does the regulatio n identify projects to include in the mitigatio n strategy?	Can this regulation be used to implemen t mitigation actions?
Zoning Regulations/Ordinance	Yes	198 6	Yes	No	No	No
Subdivision Regulations/Ordinance	Yes	199 6	Yes	No	No	No
Floodplain Regulations or Ordinance	Yes	201 0	Yes	Yes	No	No
Stormwater Regulations/Ordinance	No			No	No	No
Steep Slope Regulations/Ordinance	No			No	No	No

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix H: Capability Assessment Worksheets

Land Use Planning and Ordinances	Yes/N o	Year	Is the ordinance adequately administere d and enforced?	Does the regulatio n address any of the identified hazards?	Does the regulatio n identify projects to include in the mitigatio n strategy?	Can this regulation be used to implemen t mitigation actions?
Wildfire Regulations/Ordinance	Yes	201 1	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Other Natural hazard specific Regulations/Ordinance s	No			No	No	No
NFIP/CRS/Flood Insurance Rate Maps	Yes	200 9	Yes	Yes	No	No
Acquisition of land for open space and public recreation uses	No			No	No	No
FireWise Community	No			No	No	No
Storm Ready Community	No			No	No	No
Other	No			No	No	No

How can the capabilities listed above be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

Funding sources need to be identified to develop and enhance these plans and ordinances

Task 2: Administrative and Technical Capabilities

Identify whether your community has the following administrative and technical capabilities. These include staff and their skills and tools that can be used for mitigation planning and to implement specific mitigation actions. For smaller jurisdictions without local staff resources, if there are public resources at the next higher level of government that can provide technical assistance, indicate so in your comments.

Administration	Yes/No	Describe capability	Is coordination effective?
Planning Commission	Yes	Reviews and addresses conditional use permit applications and sub-division requests	Yes
Mitigation Planning Committee	Yes	Recently organized to complete initial Mitigation Plan	Yes
Maintenance programs to reduce risk (e.g. tree trimming, drainage system cleaning/clearing)	Yes	Maintenance on County right of ways to include trimming and mowing of vegetation	No
Mutual aid agreements	Yes	County/ City Fire, NMWARN, DOH, Schools but minimal	No

Staff	Yes/No FT/PT	Is staffing adequate to enforce regulations?	Is staff trained on hazards and mitigation?	Is coordination between agencies and staff effective?
Chief Building Official	No			
Floodplain Administrator/Manager	Yes/FT	Yes	Somewhat	Yes
Emergency Manager	Yes/FT	No	Yes	yes
Community Planner	Yes/PT	No	No	Yes
Civil Engineer	No	No		
GIS Analyst/Tech/Coordinator	Yes/FT	No	No	Yes
Land Surveyors	No			
Grants writers/managers	Yes/FT	Somewhat	No	Yes
Other:				
Other:				

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix H: Capability Assessment Worksheets

Technical	Yes/No	Describe capability	Has capability been used to assess/mitigate risk in the past?
Warning systems/services (Reverse 911, outdoor warning sirens, smartphone applications, social media feeds)	Yes	 (1) Warning siren/ Detention Center (2) (3) Highway advisory stations (3) - (1) AM Highway advisory trailer (4) OEM Facebook/Twitter/Nixle 	Yes
Hazard data and information	No	Hazard data is obtained through local history LEPC , NOAA, web- sites	Yes
Grant writing	Yes	Planning & Zoning Supervisor handles these duties	Yes
HAZUS analysis	Yes	Minimal (earthquake/wildfire)	No
Other:			
Other:			

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

There is a need to identify a county wide emergency operation center and alert notification system. Staffing increase is needed to allow for data collection & processing of hazards and to be able to research for additional funding sources toward better grant writing applications for funding.

Tank 3: Financial Capabilities

Identify whether your jurisdiction has access to or is eligible to use the following funding sources for hazard mitigation.

Funding Resource	Access/ Eligibility (Yes/No)	Has the funding resource been used in the past and for what type of activities?	Could the resource be used to fund future mitigation actions?
Capital improvement programming/ project funding	Yes	CDBG Funds have been used for storm drain projects, road projects, buildings, equipment,	If identified projects are approved by local governing bodies

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix H: Capability Assessment Worksheets

		assisting Volunteer	and federal
		Fire Departments	regulation
			requirements
		¹ / ₄ percent excise tax to	
		assist county fire.	
		Various other	
Authority to levy taxes for	Yes	percentages of GRT	Yes
specific purposes		authority for	
		operations & capital	
		outlay projects	
		Have a solid waste	
Fees for water, sewer, gas, or		Dept. fees and working	
electric services	Yes	on isolated waste	
		water fees	
Impact fees for new	N		
development	No		
Stormwater utility fees	No		
			Commission would
		No general	have to approve
Incur debt through general		outstanding debt	specific purpose
obligation bonds and/or	No	based on GRT and ad	and the voters
special tax bonds		valorem tax	would have to
			approve
Incur debt through private			
activities	No		
Community Development		Road & Drainage	
Block Grant (CDBG)	Yes	projects	yes
Special purpose taxes	No	1 /	No
		Federal Highway	
		Administration funds,	
Other federal funding	Yes	PDMG, SHSGP, EMPG,	ves
programs		USDA, & Federal ear	y
		mark appropriations	
		NM Finance Authority.	
		Mortgage Finance	
State funding programs	Yes	Authority, Water Trust	Yes
		Board, local legislative	
		funds	
Other:			
Other:			

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

There is more need toward awareness for specific projects and there purpose to obtain funding sources available in an attempt to focus on Mitigation

Task 4: Education and Outreach

Identify education and outreach programs and methods already in place that could be used to implement mitigation activities and communicate hazard-related information.

Program/Organization	Yes/No	Describe program/organization and how it relates to disaster resilience and mitigation.	Could the program/organization help implement future mitigation activities?
Local citizen groups or non- profit organizations focused on environmental protection, emergency preparedness, access and functional needs populations, etc.	Yes	LEPC, Volunteer Fire departments, LE/Watersheds associations'/ Water users associations'/Public schools	Yes
Ongoing public education or information program (e.g., responsible water use, fire safety, household preparedness, environmental education)	Yes	OEM web-site <u>www.SMCLVOEM.com</u> (Facebook) works on public education outreach, Gallinas Watershed Association works on water issues in the watershed and education of watersheds, SMC Fire & City of LV work on fire education	Yes
Natural disaster or safety related school programs	No		
StormReady certification	No	Have conducted Storm ready presentations to community and ARES Group	Yes
FireWise Communities certification	No	SMC Fire is currently promoting the program, but personnel shortage hindering the process	Yes
Public-private partnership initiatives addressing disaster-related issues	Yes	Mostly through LEPC, Gallinas Watershed Association, Upper Pecos Watershed Association.	Yes
Other:			
Other:			

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

Would like to see a staff position be dedicated to community out-reach to be able to improve in these areas.

Task 5: Community Political Capability

Political capability in this instance is being measured by the degree to which local political leadership (including appointed boards) is willing to enact policies and programs that reduce the hazard vulnerabilities in your community, even if met with some opposition. Examples may include guiding development away from identified hazard areas, restricting public investments or capital improvements within hazard areas, or enforcing local development standards that go beyond minimum state and federal requirements (e.g. building codes, floodplain management, etc.). Rate the jurisdiction's political capability to enact policies and programs that reduce hazard vulnerabilities on a scale from 0 to 5. A higher score corresponds to a higher degree of community political capability.

0 – Unwilling to Adopt Policies/Programs	3 – Moderately Willing	5
Very Willing		

Score: 3

Task 6: Self-Assessment of Capability

Please provide an approximate measure of your jurisdiction's capability to effectively implement hazard mitigation strategies to reduce the hazard vulnerabilities. Using the following table, place an "X" in the box mark in the most appropriate degree of capability (Limited, Moderate, High) based on the best available information and the responses provided in the Capability Assessment Worksheet Tasks 1-5 above. The results from each participating jurisdiction's responses will be collected and referenced in the Capability Self-Assessment Matrix (Task 7).

Aroo	Degree of Capability					
Alea	Limited	Moderate	High			
Planning and Regulatory Capability		X				
Administrative and Technical Capability	Х					
Fiscal Capability	Х					
Community Political Capability	X					
Community Resiliency Capability		X				

Task 7: Capability Self-Assessment Matrix

Purpose: To record the results from the Capability Assessment Survey (Task 6) completed by each jurisdiction.

Instructions: Complete the table below by first listing all communities, then enter the degree of capability (limited, moderate, high) for each capability category that was recorded in Task 6 by each jurisdiction.

	Capability Category							
Community Name	Planning and Regulatory Capability	Administrative and Technical Capability	Fiscal Capability	Community Political Capability	Community Resiliency Capability			
EXAMPLE: Hometown City	Moderate	Limited	Moderate	Moderate	High			
San Miguel County	Moderate	Limited	Limited	Limited	Moderate			
City of Las Vegas								
Village of Pecos								

H.2 City of Las Vegas

Hazard Mitigation Plan Capability Assessment Worksheet

Jurisdiction: <u>City of Las Vegas</u>

Local mitigation capabilities are existing authorities, policies, programs, and resources that reduce hazard impacts or that could be used to implement hazard mitigation activities. Please complete the tables and questions in the worksheet as completely as possible. One worksheet should be completed for each stakeholder jurisdiction in the hazard mitigation plan.

Task 1: Planning and Regulatory Capabilities

Planning and regulatory capabilities are the plans, policies, codes, and ordinances that prevent and reduce the impacts of hazards. Please indicate which of the following capabilities your jurisdiction has in place.

Plans	Yes/N o	Year of latest updat e	Department/Age ncy Responsible for this plan	Does the plan address any of the identifie d hazards ?	Does the Plan identify projects to include in the mitigatio n strategy?	Can this plan be used to impleme nt mitigatio n actions?
EXAMPLE: Hazard Mitigation Plan	No	N/A	SMCLV OEM	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comprehensive/Mas ter Plan (or other land use plans)	Yes	2011	Community Development	Flood	Yes	Yes
Open Space Management Plan (Parks/Rec or Greenways Plan)	No	N/A	Public Works/Parks	Yes	Yes	Yes
Natural Resource						
Protection Plan						
Lapital Improvements Plan						
improvements Fian						
Plans	Yes/N o	Year of latest updat e	Department/Age ncy Responsible for this plan	Does the plan address any of the identifie d hazards ?	Does the Plan identify projects to include in the mitigatio n strategy?	Can this plan be used to impleme nt mitigatio n actions?
---	------------	------------------------------------	--	--	--	---
Economic						
Development Plan						
Historic						
Preservation Plan						
Farmland						
Preservation Plan						
Local Emergency						
Operations Plan						
Disaster Recovery						
Plan						
Evacuation Plan						
Floodplain	Yes	2011	Community	Yes	Yes	Yes
Management Plan			Development			
Operations / Continuity of						
Government Plan						
Transportation Plan	No	N/A	Public Works/Streets	Yes	Yes	Yes
Stormwater Mgmt. Plan	No	N/A	Public Works/Streets	Yes	Yes	Yes
Community Wildfire						
Protection Plan						
Other special plans (e.g., brownfields redevelopment, disaster recovery, coastal zone management, climate change adaptation)						

Building Code, Permitting, Inspections	Yes/No	Year of latest update	Is the code adequately enforced?	Does the code address any of the identified hazards?	Does the code identify projects to include in the mitigation strategy?	Can this code be used to implement mitigation actions?
Fire Code						
Fire						
Department			Rating(s):			
ISO rating						
Building Code	Yes	2009	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Building Code						
Effectiveness						
Grading			Score:			
Schedule						
(BCEGS) score						
Site plan						
review	Yes	2009	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
requirements						

Land Use Planning and Ordinances	Yes/N o	Year	Is the ordinance adequately administere d and enforced?	Does the regulatio n address any of the identified hazards?	Does the regulatio n identify projects to include in the mitigatio n strategy?	Can this regulation be used to implemen t mitigation actions?
Zoning Regulations/Ordinance	yes	n/a	SM CLV	YES	YES	YES
Subdivision Regulations/Ordinance	yes	n/a	SM CLV	YES	YES	YES
Floodplain Regulations or Ordinance	Yes	201 1	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Stormwater Regulations/Ordinance						
Steep Slope Regulations/Ordinance						
Wildfire Regulations/Ordinance						

Land Use Planning and Ordinances	Yes/N o	Year	Is the ordinance adequately administere d and enforced?	Does the regulatio n address any of the identified hazards?	Does the regulatio n identify projects to include in the mitigatio n strategy?	Can this regulation be used to implemen t mitigation actions?
Other Natural hazard specific Regulations/Ordinance s						
NFIP/CRS/Flood Insurance Rate Maps	Yes	201 0	Yes	Yes	See Comp Plan	Yes
Acquisition of land for open space and public recreation uses						
FireWise Community						
Storm Ready Community						
Other						

How can the capabilities listed above be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

Implementation of the designated plans

Task 2: Administrative and Technical Capabilities

Identify whether your community has the following administrative and technical capabilities. These include staff and their skills and tools that can be used for mitigation planning and to implement specific mitigation actions. For smaller jurisdictions without local staff resources, if there are public resources at the next higher level of government that can provide technical assistance, indicate so in your comments.

Administration	Yes/No	Describe capability	Is coordination effective?
Planning Commission			
Mitigation Planning			
Committee			
Maintenance programs to			
reduce risk (e.g. tree	Yes	Trimming and removal of	Yes
trimming, drainage system	105	hazardous trees	105
cleaning/clearing)			
Mutual aid agreements			

Staff	Yes/No FT/PT	Is staffing adequate to enforce regulations?	Is staff trained on hazards and mitigation?	Is coordination between agencies and staff effective?
Chief Building Official	Yes/FT	Yes	Yes	Yes
Floodplain Administrator/Manager	FT	Yes	Yes	Yes
Emergency Manager				
Community Planner				
Civil Engineer	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
GIS Analyst/Tech/Coordinator				
Land Surveyors	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Grants writers/managers				
Other:				
Other:				

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix H: Capability Assessment Worksheets

Technical	Yes/No	Describe capability	Has capability been used to assess/mitigate risk in the past?
Warning systems/services (Reverse 911, outdoor			
warning sirens, smartphone applications, social media feeds)			
Hazard data and information			
Grant writing			
HAZUS analysis			
Other:			
Other:			

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

Tank 3: Financial Capabilities

Identify whether your jurisdiction has access to or is eligible to use the following funding sources for hazard mitigation.

Funding Resource	Access/ Eligibility (Yes/No)	Has the funding resource been used in the past and for what type of activities?	Could the resource be used to fund future mitigation actions?
Capital improvement programming/ project funding	Yes	Building and roadway improvements to include storm drain improvements	Yes
Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes			
Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services			

Impact fees for new			
development			
Stormwater utility fees			
Incur debt through general			
obligation bonds and/or special			
tax bonds			
Incur debt through private			
activities			
Community Development Block	Voc	Building and roadway	Voc
Grant (CDBG)	165	improvements	165
Special purpose taxes			
Other federal funding programs			
State funding programs	Voc	Building and roadway	Ves
State funding programs	165	improvements	165
Other:			
Other:			

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk?

Task 4: Education and Outreach

Identify education and outreach programs and methods already in place that could be used to implement mitigation activities and communicate hazard-related information.

Program/Organization	Yes/No	Describe program/organization and how it relates to disaster resilience and mitigation.	Could the program/organization help implement future mitigation activities?
Local citizen groups or non- profit organizations focused on environmental protection, emergency preparedness, access and functional needs populations, etc.			
Ongoing public education or information program (e.g., responsible water use, fire safety, household preparedness, environmental education)			
Natural disaster or safety related school programs			
StormReady certification			
FireWise Communities certification			
Public-private partnership initiatives addressing disaster-related issues			
Other:	Yes	Annual Contractors Meetings	Yes
Other:			
How can these capabilities b	e expande	ed and improved to reduce	risk?

Task 5: Community Political Capability

Political capability in this instance is being measured by the degree to which local political leadership (including appointed boards) is willing to enact policies and programs that reduce the hazard vulnerabilities in your community, even if met with some opposition. Examples may include guiding development away from identified hazard areas, restricting public investments or capital improvements within hazard areas, or enforcing local development standards that go beyond minimum state and federal requirements (e.g. building codes, floodplain management, etc.). Rate the jurisdiction's political capability to enact policies and programs that reduce hazard vulnerabilities on a scale from 0 to 5. A higher score corresponds to a higher degree of community political capability.

0 – Unwilling to Adopt Policies/Programs	3 – Moderately Willing	5
Very Willing		

Score: 5

Task 6: Self-Assessment of Capability

Please provide an approximate measure of your jurisdiction's capability to effectively implement hazard mitigation strategies to reduce the hazard vulnerabilities. Using the following table, place an "X" in the box mark in the most appropriate degree of capability (Limited, Moderate, High) based on the best available information and the responses provided in the Capability Assessment Worksheet Tasks 1-5 above. The results from each participating jurisdiction's responses will be collected and referenced in the Capability Self-Assessment Matrix (Task 7).

Aroo	Degree of Capability				
Area	Limited	Moderate	High		
Planning and Regulatory Capability			Х		
Administrative and Technical Capability			Х		
Fiscal Capability			Х		
Community Political Capability			Х		
Community Resiliency Capability			Х		

Task 7: Capability Self-Assessment Matrix

Purpose: To record the results from the Capability Assessment Survey (Task 6) completed by each jurisdiction.

Instructions: Complete the table below by first listing all communities, then enter the degree of capability (limited, moderate, high) for each capability category that was recorded in Task 6 by each jurisdiction.

		Сара	bility Catego	ry	
Community Name	Planning and Regulatory Capability	Administrative and Technical Capability	Fiscal Capability	Community Political Capability	Community Resiliency Capability
EXAMPLE: Hometown City	Moderate	Limited	Moderate	Moderate	High
San Miguel County					
City of Las Vegas	High	High	High	High	High
Village of Pecos					

Hazard Mitigation Plan Capability Assessment Worksheet

Jurisdiction: VIIIage of Pecos

Local mitigation capabilities are existing authorities, policies, programs, and resources that reduce hazard impacts or that could be used to implement hazard mitigation activities. Please complete the tables and questions in the worksheet as completely as possible. One worksheet should be completed for each stakeholder jurisdiction in the hazard mitigation plan.

Task 1: Planning and Regulatory Capabilities

Planning and regulatory capabilities are the plans, policies, codes, and ordinances that prevent and reduce the impacts of hazards. Please indicate which of the following capabilities your jurisdiction has in place.

Plans	Yes/No	Year of latest update	Department/Agency Responsible for this plan	Does the plan address any of the identified hozards?	Does the Plan Identify projects to include in the mitigation strategy?	Care this plan be used to implement mitigation actions?
EXAMPLE: Hazard Mitigation Plan	No	N/A	WEO A TOWS	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comprehensive/Master Plan (or other land use plans)	No	N/A	N/A	N/N	N/A	V/N
Open Space Management Plan (Parks/Rec or Greenways Plan)	No	V/N	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A
Natural Resource Protection Plan	No	N/A	N/N	N/A	N/A	N/A

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix H: Capability Assessment Worksheets

H.3 Village of Pecos

	Yes/No	Year of latest update	Department/Agency Responsible for this plan	Boss the plan address any of the identified hexards?	Does the Plan identify projects to include in the mitigation strateev?	Can this plan be used to implement mitigation actions?
oital Improvements n	Yes	2013	Village of Pecos	No	No	Yes
nomic Development n	No	N/A	N/N	N/A	N/A	N/A
toric Preservation Plan	No	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
mland Preservation	No	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
al Emergency rrations Plan	Yes	10 Years Ago	State Police	No	No	Yes
aster Recovery Plan	Yes	2013	Village of Pecos for village operations only	Yes	No	Yes
cuation Plan	Yes	10 Year Ago	State Police	ND	No	Yes
odplain Management	No	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/N	N/A
tinuity of Operations / tinuity of Government	Yes	2013	Village of Pecos	Yes	No	Yes
Isportation Plan	No	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
mwater Mgmt. Plan	No	N/A	N/A	N/N	N/A	N/A
umunity Wildfire tection Plan	No	N/A	N/A	V/N	N/A	N/A
er special plans (e.g., wnfields vvelopment, disaster very, coastal zone	No	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	V/N



Task 6: Self-Assessment of Capability

Area Area	Degree of Capability Moderate 10gh X	Limited	Arrea Id Regulatory Capability tive and Technical Capability bility Political Capability
Accurate Montenate Muthod Regulatory Capability X X X e and Technical Capability X X X ty X X X Interval httical Capability X X X X		>	esiliency Canability
Limited Noticiate IIIgh Regulatory Capability X X X e and Technical Capability X X IIIgh ity X X IIIgh ity X X IIIgh olitical Capability X X IIIgh			
Regulatory Capability X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X		×	olitical Capability
Regulatory Capability X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X		Х	III
Regulatory Capability X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X		~	lite
Regulatory Capability X		×	ve and Technical Capability
Limited Noderate High	×		Regulatory Capability
	Moderate 10gh	Umitted	

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix H: Capability Assessment Worksheets



Matrix (Task 7).

Task 6: Self-Assessment of Capability

	ð	gree of Capabili	2
WITH .	Linuted	Moducate:	10ph
uning and Regulatory Capability		×	
ministrative and Technical Capability	x		
cal Capability	X		
mmunity Political Capability	x		
mmunity Resiliency Capability	X		



Examples may include guiding development away from identified hazard areas, restricting public investments or capital improvements Political capability in this instance is being measured by the degree to which local political leadership (including appointed hoards) is within hazard areas, or enforcing local development standards that go beyond minimum state and federal requirements (e.g. building willing to enact policies and programs that reduce the hazard vulnerabilities in your community, even if met with some opposition. codes, floodplain management, etc.). Rate the jurisdiction's political capability to enact policies and programs that reduce hazard vulnerabilities on a scale from 0 to 5. A higher score corresponds to a higher degree of community political capability.

0 - Unwilling to Adopt Policies/Programs 3 - Moderately Willing

5 Very Willing

Score: 3

Task 4: Education and Outreach

Identify education and outreach programs and methods already in place that could be used to implement mitigation activities and communicate hazard-related information.

Program/Organization	Yes/No	Describe program/organization and how it relates to disaster restlience and mitigation.	Could the program/organization help implement future milipation activities?
Local citizen groups or non-profit organizations focused on environmental protection, emergency preparedness, access and functional needs populations, etc.	Yes	Local business and conservation group exists whose primary functions are the environmental protection and protection of health and safety of the community. These entities address hazard mitigation and recovery efforts as funding becomes available.	Yes
Ongoing public education or information program (e.g., responsible water use, fire safety, household preparedness, environmental education)	No	N/A	V/N
Natural disaster or safety related school programs	No	N/A	N/A
Storm Ready certification	No	N/A	N/A
Fire wise Communities certification	No	N/A	N/A
Public-private partnership initiatives addressing disaster-related issues	No	N/N	N/A
Other:	No	N/A	N/A
Other:	No	N/A	N/A
low can those capabilities be expanded and imp	roved to re	duce risk?	

les	
ΞĒ	
q	
ğ	
S	
al	
nci	
na	
Ы	
ŝ	
¥	
Ta	

Identify whether your jurisdiction has access to or is eligible to use the following funding sources for hazard mitigation.

Funding Resource	Access/ Ilightity (Yms/No)	Has the funding resource been used in the past and for what type of activities?	Could the rendurce by used to fund future militation actions?
Capital improvement programming/ project funding	Yes	Yes, for funding Capital Projects	Yes
Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes	Yes	Na	Yes
Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services	Yes	For operational costs	Yes
Impact fees for new development	No	N/N	N/A
Storm water utility fees	No	N/N	N/A
Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or special tax bonds	Yes	Yes, for funding sewer and water infrastructure projects	Yes
Incur debt through private activities	No	N/A	N/N
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)	Yes	Yes, for funding Capital Projects	Yes
Special purpose taxes	No	N/A	N/A
Other federal funding programs	Yes	Yes, for funding sewer and water infrastructure projects	N/N
State funding programs	Yes	Yes, for funding Capital Projects	Yes
Other:	No	N/N	N/A
Other:	Na	N/A	N/A

By the Village of Pecos availing itself to future funding opportunities.

Staff	Yes/No FT/PT	Is staffing adequate to enfocte regulations?	in sum transa on hurarts and mitigation?	A concellization between agonciel and staff effective
Grants writers/managers	No	N/A	N/A	N/A
Other:	No	N/A	N/N	N/A
Other:	No	N/N	N/N	N/A

echnicai	Yes/No	Describe capability	Has capability been used to assess/mthgate rish in the past?
Varning systems/services Reverse 911, outdoor Parning sirens, smartphone pplications, social media reds)	No	N/A	N/N
azard data and information	No	N/A	N/A
rant writing	No	N/A	N/N
AZUS analysis	No	N/A	N/N
ther:	No	N/A	N/A
ther:	No	N/A	N/A

All Architectural, Engineering and other technical capabilities are contracted out as the Village of Pecos staff does not have the capability to address technical issues.

Administration	Nes/Mo	Describe capability	Is chordination
Planning Commission	No	N/A	N/A
Mitigation Planning Committee	No	N/A	N/A
Maintenance programs to reduce risk (e.g. tree trimming, drainage system cleaning/clearing)	No	N/N	V/N
Mutual aid agreements	Yes	Sufficient to address fire incidents	Yes

Identify whether your community has the following administrative and technical capabilities. These include staff and their skills and tools

Task 2: Administrative and Technical Capabilities

that can be used for mitigation planning and to implement specific mitigation actions. For smaller jurisdictions without local staff

Saft	With With	Is staffing adéquate to enforce regulations?	is staff trained on barards and mitigation?	Is coordination between agencies and shaff effective
Chief Building Official	No	N/A	N/A	N/A
Floodplain Administrator/Manager	No	N/A	N/A	N/A
Emergency Manager	No	N/A	N/A	N/A
Community Planner	No	N/A	N/N	N/A
Civil Engineer	No	N/A	N/A	N/A
GIS Analyst/Tech/Coordinator	No	N/N	N/N	N/N
Land Surveyors	No	N/N	N/A	N/A

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix H: Capability Assessment Worksheets

transitive Planning and New Ordinances	/No Vear	Is the ordination adequately administered and enforced?	regulation address may of the identified hazards?	regulation Identify projects to (octable in the mitigation strategy?	regulation be used to implement mitigation actions?
Ordinance					
Stormwater Regulations/Ordinance N	0 N/A	N/A	V/N	N/A	N/A
Steep Slope Regulations/Ordinance N	V/N 0	N/A	N/A	N/N	V/N
Wildfire Regulations/Ordinance N	o N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Other Natural hazard specific N Regulations/Ordinances	0 N/A	N/A	V/N	N/N	N/A
NFIP/CRS/Flood N Insurance Rate Maps	0 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/N	N/A
Acquisition of land for open space and public N recreation uses	0 N/A	N/A	N/A	V/N	N/A
Fire wise Community Ye	s 2013	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Storm Ready Community N	0 N/A	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A
Other N	0 N/A	N/N	N/A	N/A	N/A
Mow curribe capabilities listed	above ho ex	panded and supreved to volur-	a risk?		
The Village of Pecos needs to imp ensure annlicable risks are addres	lement plans	that address hazards that pose th	e greatest risk. Pla	ins should be updated	d periodically to

Building Code. Permitting, inspections	VesyNo	Year of listest update	Is the code adequately enforced?	Does the code address any of the (dentified funzards)	Does the code identify projects to include in the mitigation strategy?	Can this code the used to implement mitigation actions?
Fire Code	Yes	N/A	Yes, by NFPA	N/A	N/A	N/A
Fire Department ISO rating	6/9	2008	Rating(s): Yes	N/A	N/A	N/N
Building Code	Yes - use State Code	2013	Yes	N/A	N/A	V/N
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule (BCEGS) score	N/A		Score: N/A	N/A	N/A	V/N
Site plan review requirements	Yes	2013	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Land Use Planning and Ordinances	Yes/No	Year	to the ordinance adequately administered and entireced?	Donsthe regulation address any of the identified hazards?	Doesthe regulation (dentify projects to include in the mitigation strategy?	Can this regulation be used to implement multipation actions?
Zoning Regulations/Ordinance	No	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Subdivision Regulations/Ordinance	No	N/A	N/A	N/N	N/A	N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

No

Floodplain Regulations or

Plans	Yes, No	Year of Intest update	Department/Agoncy Aryponsible for this plan	Does the plan address any of the identified barards?	Diets the Plan Identify projects to include in the miligation strategr?	Can this plan be used to implement mulgation actions?
management, climate change adaptation]						
	No	N/A	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A

APPENDIX I: RISK ANALYSIS WORKSHEETS

Risk Analysis Worksheet Jurisdictional Risk Assessment

Each participating jurisdiction (San Miguel County, City of Las Vegas, and Village of Pecos) should complete a Risk Analysis Worksheet for <u>each hazard</u> identified for the Hazard Mitigation Plan. Those hazards are:

Dam Failure	Hailstorm	Severe Winter Weather
Drought	Haz-Mat Incident	Thunderstorm
Earthquake	High Wind	Tornado
Expansive Soil	Landslide	Terrorism
Extreme Heat	Levee Failure	Wildfire
Flood	Pests	

The following provides the key elements for completing the survey:

FREQUENCY: How often is this hazard likely to develop in your jurisdiction?

Frequency	Description
Highly Likely	Nearly 100% probability in the next year
Likely	10% - 100% probability in the next year or at least 1 chance over the next 10 years
Possible	1% - 10% probability or at least one chance in the next 100 years
Unlikely	Less than 1% chance in the next 100 years.

SEVERITY: What is the expected extent of damage caused by this type of hazard?

Severity	Description
Catastrophic	More than 50% of the jurisdiction affected

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix I: Risk Analysis Worksheets

Critical	25% - 50% of the jurisdiction affected
Limited	10% - 25% of the jurisdiction affected
Negligible	Less than 10% of the jurisdiction affected

RISK CLASS: What is the classification of the overall risk posed to the jurisdiction?

	Negligible	Limited	Critical	Catastrophic
Highly Likely	С	В	Α	Α
Likely	С	С	В	Α
Possible	D	С	В	В
Unlikely	D	D	С	С

SEASONAL PATTERN: When will hazard most likely occur?

PROBABLE DURATION: How long would this type of event typically impact the jurisdiction?

- **SPEED OF ONSET:** How much advance warning does the jurisdiction typically have prior to onset of this type of event?
- **RISKS:** What types of impacts does this hazard typically cause to the jurisdiction?

Risk Analysis Worksheet

Hazard: <u>Drought</u>

FREQUENCY:	Highly Likely
SEVERITY:	Critical
RISK CLASS:	А
SEASONAL PATTERN:	Year round
DURATION:	12 months
SPEED OF ONSET:	6 months
RISKS:	Water shortage/ Restrictions

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): San Miguel County has been going through drought conditions since the later part of the 1990's. There are three state wide declarations in NM approved by the governor toward drought conditions Executive Order 2003-019, 2006-012, & 2008-037 that have never been rescinded. San Miguel County requested a state disaster declaration in 2011 due to drought conditions. The El Creston Mutual Water Association requested a local declaration in 2011 due to 60 domestic wells drying up effecting 300 residences within the county. Over 78 protests were filed between 2010 and 2011 for the lowering of property taxes due to the lack of water which several of them were approved.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Public health Governmental Financial Impacts Loos of building & sales of homes Property value decreases Population decrease

Hazard: Expansive soil

FREQUENCY:	Likely
SEVERITY:	Limited
RISK CLASS:	С

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix I: Risk Analysis Worksheets

SEASONAL PATTERN:	May- September
DURATION:	years
SPEED OF ONSET:	monthly
RISKS:	Infrastructure Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard):

As a result of drought conditions occurring and then monsoon rains the soil surface in San Miguel County produces a cycle of shrinkage and swelling that places stress on structures. This has occurred to the City of Las Vegas Water Treatment Plant which has created a large crack in the walls of the facility. This was discovered during a seismic survey study completed by NM Tech University during 2010

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Economic Impact Environmental Impact

Hazard: Extreme Heat

FREQUENCY:	Likely
SEVERITY:	Critical
RISK CLASS:	В
SEASONAL PATTERN:	May- September
DURATION:	Days/weeks
SPEED OF ONSET:	hours
RISKS:	Public Health & Safety

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): Heat extremes may occur over a 2-3 day period. This has been becoming a more and more occurrence which is a direct result of drought conditions. Although there is no known reports of power outages due to overload of electrical infrastructure .There is the possibility of this occurring within the recent future. The reported cases of injuries that occur from extreme heat are handled by local privately owned hospital and it is not data that can be obtained.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Social Impact

Economic Impact Critical Infrastructure impact

Hazard: Levee Failure

EDEOUENCV.	Possible
TREQUENCI.	
SEVERITY:	Negligible
RISK CLASS:	D
SEASONAL PATTERN:	May- September
DURATION:	Weeks/months
SPEED OF ONSET:	24-48 hours
RISKS:	Infrastructure Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): There are a minimal amount of levees within San Miguel County. It is not known that the Critical infrastructures for the county has any levees, but there is a possibility that water users and acequias (non-profit organizations) located within San Miguel County do possibly have levees that could be affected under flash flooding conditions

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Economic Impact Agricultural impact

Hazard: Pests

FREQUENCY:	Possible
SEVERITY:	Negligible
RISK CLASS:	D
SEASONAL PATTERN:	June-September
DURATION:	Days/Months
SPEED OF ONSET:	5-15 days
RISKS:	Public Safety & Health

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard):

There are a few areas of Pests that affect San Miguel County as well as the state of NM. Hantavirus which is created by rodent bites has been reported in NM since 1993 and since then there is 94 confirmed cases reported this can be found on Google. There is also the West Nile Virus created by mosquitoes which 5 cases had been reported in NM for 2013, and finally the outbreak of Bark Beetles that started in 2002 according to the USDA are killing up to 2.1 million acres of pinion-juniper woodland and 1.3 million acres of ponderosa pine have been affected in AZ and NM during the 2002-2004 outbreak

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Economic Impact Agricultural impact Environmental Impact

Hazard: Flooding

FREQUENCY:	Likely
SEVERITY:	Critical
RISK CLASS:	В
SEASONAL PATTERN:	May-September
DURATION:	Weeks/months
SPEED OF ONSET:	24-48 hours
RISKS:	Infrastructure Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): San Miguel County records indicate that on average %150,000.00-\$350,000.00 is spent per year responding to flood damage. Executive Order 2005-025, June 2004, \$750,000.00 requested for culvert installation/replacements and equipment costs to address flood damages in the communities of Ojitos Frios, Las Dispensas, Pecos and lower Rociada in San Miguel County. FEMA DR-1659-NM, June 2006, \$44,708.00 requested for road restoration of eroded ditches and road shoulders, equipment, materials, and labor costs to address flood damages on County roads. Executive Order 2010-025, June 2007, \$316,005.00 requested for equipment, materials and labor costs to address flood damages in the communities of Chapelle, Bernal, Meyers, San Rafael, and Ojitos Frios. A HAZUS-MH model was completed for San Miguel County and estimated there are 1,376,710 buildings classified as residential within the 100 year flood plain. Currently for 2013 San Miguel County has two active declarations requesting state emergency funding. There is an active

executive order toward flood prevention resulting for the Tres Lagunas Post-Fire Floods in the amount of \$750,000.00 and possibly a presidential declaration resulting in floods that occurred during July 2013 (23-28th) which is the Conchas Dam area, San Rafael & Gonzales Ranch area, and a second local declaration on August 9, 2013 of a county road bridge which needs replaced due to floods.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Property Damage Critical Infrastructure (roads, bridges, drainage & public drinking water system) Life Safety Transportation problems with public traffic and school routes un-safe. Power outages (electrical systems damaged) Phone service problems EMS service problems Social impacts

Hazard: <u>Hailstorms</u>

FREQUENCY:	Highly Likely
SEVERITY:	Critical
RISK CLASS:	Α
SEASONAL PATTERN:	May-August
DURATION:	Minutes
SPEED OF ONSET:	Minutes to hours
RISKS:	Property Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): (Source: http://www4.ncdcnoaa.gov/cgiwin/wwcgi.dll/wwevent-storms) Events occur every year in San Miguel County mostly on the east side of the county (Conchas Dam Area. No reported injuries and mostly damages covered under personal insurance claims. 1995 a hail event was documented through the earlier mentioned source in excess of \$10,000.00 in property damage another one caused in excess of \$80,000.00 in property damages a year later. The National Climatic Data Center shows NM had 935 reported hail events between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2006 totaling 62.7 million in property damage and \$1.34 million in crop damage. There are also several motor vehicle damages and accidents on roadways that occur yearly that go unreported but insurance claims are made.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Critical Infrastructure Social Impact Economic Impact Agriculture impact Power outages

Hazard: <u>Haz-Mat Incident</u>

FREOUENCY:	Likelv
	- 5
SEVERITY:	Limited
RISK CLASS:	С
SEASONAL PATTERN:	Year round
DURATION:	Hours/days
SPEED OF ONSET:	Minutes/ hours
RISKS:	Public Safety & Health
	-

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard):

San Miguel County has identified the top chemical hazard as being propane from a 2013 Emergency Response Plan to respond to hazardous materials that were identified in the county for the Tier II reporting. This report can be found in the San Miguel County EOP as an appendix to ESF 10. There was an incident where the operator of the Waste Isolation Pilot Plant transportation vehicle had a medical incident and left the roadway hauling the containers but no damage or release occurred, and finally there was an EPA response to Luna Community College toward an illegal dumping site involving electronic waste There are still Chemistry labs at both of the higher institutes which have some hazardous chemicals but there are no further reports.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Economic Impact Social impact Environmental Impact Critical Infrastructure Impact

Hazard: <u>High Wind</u>

FREQUENCY:	Highly Likely
SEVERITY:	Catastrophic
RISK CLASS:	A
SEASONAL PATTERN:	Year Round
DURATION:	Weekly-monthly
SPEED OF ONSET:	hourly
RISKS:	Infrastructure Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard):

High winds are highly probable throughout the county, particularly during spring seasons but are known to continue throughout the fall and winter seasons as well. Damages from winds generally consist of debris flying (tree limbs), power outages, Electrical poles and line damages, residential roof damages that generally are reported through private insurance claims. Power outages can last hours some time days due to electrical poles and transformers being damaged. During winter season has created blizzard conditions. (2006 & 2010). It also creates white out conditions on roadways which leave travelers stranded as well as commercial trucking. According to the State Mitigation plan San Miguel County is in Zone II which denotes areas that can experience winds up to 160 mph. It also designates that the central portion of San Miguel County as a special wind region that should be examined for unusual wind conditions due to mountainous terrain.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Economic Impact Health & Public Safety issues

Hazard: Landslide

FREQUENCY:	Possible
-	
SEVERITY:	Limited
RISK CLASS:	С
SEASONAL PATTERN:	May- August
DURATION:	Hours-days

SPEED OF ONSET:	Minutes-hours
RISKS:	Infrastructure Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard):

There have been no reported fatalities or injuries that have occurred from landslides. The only items that have been affected are the critical infrastructure of roadways and possible residential or property damage from landslides that generally result through monsoons that occur on burn scars area that was created from wildfires. This would be a combination of debris (trees, land, etc.). San Miguel County's east side is mountain terrain and there is occasional rock slide caused by weather issues.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Economic Impact Road closures Private property damage

Hazard: <u>Terrorism</u>

FREQUENCY:	Unlikely
SEVERITY:	Negligible
RISK CLASS:	D
SEASONAL PATTERN:	August-May
DURATION:	Hours/days
SPEED OF ONSET:	Minutes/ hours
RISKS:	Public Safety & Health

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard):

San Miguel County has (2) higher Education institutes. New Mexico Highlands University and Luna Community College have thousands of students attending on a daily bases. This could be a very attractive location for anyone wanting to create a domestic –terrorism act at any given time. The other location is the Armand Hammer United World College of the American West which has 200 students ages 16-19 from 80 different countries; this is also a location that could possibly invite international terrorism as well as domestic.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Economic Impact Social impact International Impact Critical Infrastructure Impact

Hazard: <u>Thunderstorm</u>

FREQUENCY:	Highly Likely
SEVERITY:	Catastrophic
RISK CLASS:	А
SEASONAL PATTERN:	March-August
DURATION:	hours
SPEED OF ONSET:	hourly
RISKS:	Infrastructure Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard):

Thunderstorms occur yearly in San Miguel County of which there has been lightning strikes that have cause wildfires. These events also cause flash flooding issues such as events that occurred on July 2013 & August 2013. Which resulted into a state disaster during this timeframe and a possible presidential disaster for the time of July 23-28, 2013 if approved. San Miguel County has received an estimated damage of

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Economic Impact Health & Public Safety issues

Hazard: <u>Tornado</u>

FREQUENCY:	Likely
SEVERITY:	Limited
RISK CLASS:	С
SEASONAL PATTERN:	March-October

DURATION:	Hours-day
SPEED OF ONSET:	Minutes to hours
RISKS:	Property Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): On <u>www.tornadoproject.com/alltorns/nmtorn.htm</u> (4) F1 tornados recorded with damage June 18, 1966 property damage \$25,000.00 June 03, 1974 \$25,000.00, June 23, 1981, \$3,000.00, June 27, 1992 \$25,000.00 and the most recent tornado was an F-2 on October 17, 2010 F2 creating in the area of \$25,000.00. No fatalities or injuries reported to date.t

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Critical Infrastructure Social Impact Economic Impact

Hazard: Winter Storms

FREQUENCY:	Likely
SEVERITY:	Catastrophic
RISK CLASS:	А
SEASONAL PATTERN:	October-March
DURATION:	Days
SPEED OF ONSET:	24-48 hours
RISKS:	Infrastructure Damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): 2006/2007 100 year winter storm. State Disaster on December 29, 2006 covering Bernalillo, Colfax, Guadalupe, Harding, Los Alamos, Mora, Quay, Santa Fe, Sandoval, San Miguel, Taos, Torrance and Union counties. This required the opening of the NM EOC. Executive Order 01-10, December 2000, Snow Removal, San Miguel County \$24,786.00 Executive Order 04-08, February 2004, Snow Removal, San Miguel County, \$41,111.00 and Executive Order 05-016, March 2005 Snow Removal, San Miguel County, \$72,746.00

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Critical Infrastructure (Roads, drainage, power outages, pipeline (gas), equipment & contract rental,) Social Impact (schools, hospitals) Property Damage (roofs, water pipes, cement cracking) Economic Impact (business closures, pharmacy closures) Life Safety (medical service delays, home heating failures) Public Safety service disruptions Road Closures (Interstate 25 & NM 84) Traffic congestion upon closures Lack of hotels causing sheltering requirements.

Hazard: Dam Failure

EDEOUENOV	
FREQUENCY:	Possible
SEVERITY:	Limited
RISK CLASS:	С
	5
SEASONAL PATTERN:	July-August
	,,
DURATION:	immediately
SPEED OF ONSET:	hours
RISKS:	Life safety issues/property
	damage/flach flooding
	uaniage/nash noounig

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): None at the present time, according to the 2007 update to the National Inventory of Dams that approximately 1/3 of these propose a "high" or "significant" hazard to life and property. The probability of dam failure is low for most dams but as the dams in San Miguel County age the increasing probability for structural damage and failure increases. The City of Las Vegas has 2 dams that are classified as High and would affect population in the county if failure would occur.

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard:

Structural damage Flash flooding Life Safety issues Property Damage Recreational impacts Public drinking water disruption Irrigation /agricultural problems

Hazard: <u>Earthquake</u>

FREQUENCY:	Possible
SEVERITY:	Negligible
RISK CLASS:	D
SEASONAL PATTERN:	Unknown
DURATION:	Minutes
SPEED OF ONSET:	Minutes
RISKS:	Life safety issues/property damage

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard): Between 1990 and 2005 there were 6 earthquakes that occurred within 100 miles of the county center. There was a 3.8 Magnitude earthquake that occurred 54 miles away in 1995. There was a 3.7 magnitude that occurred 70 miles away in 1990

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard:

Lifesaving issues Property damage Critical Infrastructure damages (power/gas and water services Social impact

Hazard: Wildfire

FREQUENCY:	Highly Likely
SEVERITY:	Critical
RISK CLASS:	A
SEASONAL PATTERN:	May-July
DURATION:	Weeks
SPEED OF ONSET:	None
RISKS:	Life safety/property damage
2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix I: Risk Analysis Worksheets

List any known hazard history/hazard events in your jurisdiction (for this hazard):

San Miguel County has experienced a large number of wildfires. In regards to the USFS wildfire occurrences within the region's watershed there have been several fires that have stood out within the last 10 years that threatened critical infrastructure including the following; Hartman (2009), Solider (2009), Ortiz (2009), Tecolote (2010), Las Trampas Fire (2002), Dalton Fire (2002), Roybal (20002) and the Viveash Fire (2000). The states expenditures within the county for the last 10 years are approximately \$245,000 per year. In the county's CWPP all the community ranking run from Extreme to High and nothing lower than high risk

Provide any identified risks or vulnerabilities for the hazard: Life Safety Property Damage Critical Infrastructure damages Evacuations Social impacts Economic impacts (business) Recreational impacts Environmental impacts Water quality Air quality 2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix I: Risk Analysis Worksheets

This page is intentionally blank.

APPENDIX J: SAFE GROWTH AUDIT WORKSHEETS

J.1 San Miguel County

Jurisdiction: San Miguel County

Use this worksheet to identify gaps in your community's growth guidance instruments and improvements that could be made to reduce vulnerability to future development.

Comprehensive Plan	Yes	No
Land Use		
1. Does the future land-use map clearly identify natural hazard areas?		Х
2. Do the land-use policies discourage development or redevelopment within natural hazard areas?	Х	
Floodplain managers discourage building in flood zones but if the builder meets the fe requirements they are still allowed to build	ederal	
3. Does the plan provide adequate space for expected future growth in areas located outside natural hazard areas?		Х
Transportation		
1. Does the transportation plan limit access to hazard areas?		Х
2. Is transportation policy used to guide growth to safe locations?		
	,	
3. Are movement systems designed to function under disaster conditions (e.g. evacuation)?		Х
Environmental Management		
1. Are environmental systems that protect development from hazards identified and mapped?		X

2.	Do environmental policies maintain and restore protective ecosystems?		Х
3.	Do environmental policies provide incentives to development that is located outside protective ecosystems?		Х
Pu	blic Safety		
1.	Are the goals and policies of the comprehensive pan related to those of the FEMA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan?		Х
2.	Is safety explicitly included in the plan's growth and development policies?		Х
			T
3.	Does the monitoring and implementation section of the plan cover safe growth objectives?		Х
Zo	ning Ordinance		
1.	Does the zoning ordinance conform to the comprehensive plan in terms of discouraging development or redevelopment within natural hazard areas?	Х	
2.	Does the ordinance contain natural hazard overlay zones that set conditions for land use within such zones?		X
3.	Do rezoning procedures recognize hazard areas as limits on zoning changes that allow greater intensity or density of use?		X
			_

4. Does the ordinance floodways, and	ce prohibit development within, or filling of, wetlands, oodplains?	Х	
It regulates but does r	not prohibit		
Subdivision Regulat	ions		
1. Do the subdivision adjacent to natura	n regulations restrict the subdivision of land within or al hazard areas?		Х
They are required to l	be identified by the designers but the regulations do not restrict		
2. Do the regulations in order to conser	s provide for conservation subdivisions or cluster subdivisions we environmental resources?		
3. Do the regulations	s allow density transfers where hazard areas exist?		
	L		<u> </u>
Capital Improvemen	nt Program and Infrastructure Policies		
1. Does the capital ir would encourage	nprovement program limit expenditures on projects that development in areas vulnerable to natural hazards?		
2. Do infrastructure would encourage	policies limit extension of existing facilities and services that development in areas vulnerable to natural hazards?		
3. Does the capital in projects identified	nprovement program provide funding for hazard mitigation l in the FEMA Mitigation Plan?		
		_	
Other			
1. Do small area or c natural hazards?	orridor plans recognize the need to avoid or mitigation		
	I		1

2.	Does the building code contain provisions to strengthen or elevate construction to withstand hazard forces?		
3.	Do economic development or redevelopment strategies include provisions for mitigation natural hazards?	X	
4.	Is there an adopted evacuation and shelter plan to deal with emergencies from natural hazards?	X	

J.2 City of Las Vegas

Safe Growth Audit Worksheet

Jurisdiction: <u>Community Development</u>

Use this worksheet to identify gaps in your community's growth guidance instruments and improvements that could be made to reduce vulnerability to future development.

Com	iprehensive Plan	Yes	No
Lan	d Use		
4.]	Does the future land-use map clearly identify natural hazard areas?	Y	
FEM	A FLOODPLAIN		
5. I	Do the land-use policies discourage development or redevelopment within natural hazard areas?	Y	
6. I	Does the plan provide adequate space for expected future growth in areas		
]	located outside natural hazard areas?	L	

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix J: Risk Analysis Worksheets

Tr	ansportation		
4.	Does the transportation plan limit access to hazard areas?		
F	Is transportation policy used to guide growth to safe locations?		
5.	is transportation policy used to guide growth to sale locations:		
6.	Are movement systems designed to function under disaster conditions (e.g.		
	evacuation)?		
En	vironmental Management		
4.	Are environmental systems that protect development from hazards identified		
	and mapped?		N
_			
5.	Do environmental policies maintain and restore protective ecosystems?		
6.	Do environmental policies provide incentives to development that is located		
	outside protective ecosystems?		
D			
Pu A	Are the goals and policies of the comprehensive new related to these of the		
4.	FEMA Local Hazard Mitigation Plan?	Y	
5.	Is safety explicitly included in the plan's growth and development policies?	Y	
6	Door the monitoring and implementation section of the plan sever sets growth		
ю.	objectives?		

Zo	ning Ordinance		
5.	Does the zoning ordinance conform to the comprehensive plan in terms of discouraging development or redevelopment within natural hazard areas?		
6.	Does the ordinance contain natural hazard overlay zones that set conditions for land use within such zones?		
7.	Do rezoning procedures recognize hazard areas as limits on zoning changes that allow greater intensity or density of use?		
8.	Does the ordinance prohibit development within, or filling of, wetlands, floodways, and floodplains?	Y	
Su	bdivision Regulations		
4.	Do the subdivision regulations restrict the subdivision of land within or adjacent to natural hazard areas?		
5.	Do the regulations provide for conservation subdivisions or cluster subdivisions in order to conserve environmental resources?		
_			
6.	Do the regulations allow density transfers where hazard areas exist?		
Ca	pital Improvement Program and Infrastructure Policies		
4.	Does the capital improvement program limit expenditures on projects that would encourage development in areas vulnerable to natural hazards?		

5.	Do infrastructure policies limit extension of existing facilities and services that would encourage development in areas vulnerable to natural hazards?		
6.	Does the capital improvement program provide funding for hazard mitigation projects identified in the FEMA Mitigation Plan?		
Ot	her		
5.	Do small area or corridor plans recognize the need to avoid or mitigation natural hazards?		
6.	Does the building code contain provisions to strengthen or elevate construction to withstand hazard forces?	Y	
7.	Do economic development or redevelopment strategies include provisions for mitigation natural hazards?		
8.	Is there an adopted evacuation and shelter plan to deal with emergencies from natural hazards?		

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix J: Risk Analysis Worksheets

This page is intentionally blank.

APPENDIX K: NFIP WORKSHEETS

K.1 San Miguel County

National Flood Insurance Program Worksheet

Use this worksheet to collect information on your community's participation in and continued compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), as well as identify areas for improvement that could be potential mitigation actions. Indicate the source of information, if different from the one included.

NFIP Topic	Source of Information	Comments
Insurance Summary		
How many NFIP policies are in the community? What is the total premium and coverage?	State NFIP Coordinator or FEMA NFIP Specialist	See Attached Docs
How many claims have been paid in the community? What is the total amount of paid claims? How many of the claims were for substantial damage?	FEMA NFIP or Insurance Specialist	See Attached Docs
How many structures are exposed to flood risk within the community?	Community Floodplain Administrator (FPA)	See Attached Docs
Describe any areas of flood risk with limited NFIP policy coverage	Community FPA and FEMA Insurance Specialist	none
Staff Resources]
Is the Community FPA or NFIP Coordinator certified?	Community FPA	Yes, CFM March 9, 2011
Is floodplain management an auxiliary function?	Community FPA	Yes, Land Development Specialist
Provide an explanation of NFIP administration services (e.g., permit review, GIS, education or outreach, inspections, engineering capability)	Community FPA	Permit review for development ,GIS for identifying site location, site inspections, lowest flood level educational outreach LEPC/NMLZO
What are the barriers to running an effective NFIP program in the community, if any?	Community FPA	Un-permitted development
Compliance History		
Is the community in good standing with the NFIP?	State NFIP Coordinator, FEMA NFIP Specialist, community records	yes

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix K: NFIP Worksheets

Are there any outstanding compliance issues (i.e., current violations)?		No
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit (CAV) or Community Assistance Contact (CAC)?		Scheduled visit for November 2013
Is a CAV or CAC scheduled or needed?		Yes November 2013
Regulation		
When did the community enter the NFIP?	Community Status Book http://www.fema.gov/ national-flood-insurance- program/national-flood- insurance-program- community-status-book	Floodplain ordinance 9-14-10 NFIP-Firm data 10/19/10
Are the FIRMs digital or paper?	Community FPA	Yes, digital
Do floodplain development regulations meet or exceed FEMA or State minimum requirements? If so, in what ways?	Community FPA	
Provide an explanation of the permitting process.	Community FPA, State, FEMA NFIP Flood Insurance Manual http://www.fema.gov/ flood-insurance-manual Community FPA, FEMA CRS Coordinator, ISO representative CRS manual http:// www.fema.gov/library/ viewRecord.do?id=2434	Permit all new development Identify SFHA Reg./Develop Inspect site development Determine elevation for BFE Require elevation certificate Provide flood panel info
Community Rating System (CRS)		
Does the community participate in CRS?	Community FPA, State, FEMA NFIP	no
What is the community's CRS Class Ranking?	Flood Insurance Manual http://www.fema.gov/ flood-insurance-manual	10
What categories and activities provide CRS points and how can the class be improved?		See attached docs
Does the plan include CRS planning requirements	Community FPA, FEMA CRS Coordinator, ISO representative	yes

CRS manual http://	
www.fema.gov/library/	
viewRecord.do?id=2434	

J.2 City of Las Vegas

National Flood Insurance Program Worksheet

Use this worksheet to collect information on your community's participation in and continued compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), as well as identify areas for improvement that could be potential mitigation actions. Indicate the source of information, if different from the one included.

NFIP Topic	Source of Information	Comments
Insurance Summary		
How many NFIP policies are in the community? What is the total premium and coverage?	State NFIP Coordinator or FEMA NFIP Specialist	Not Available See State Coordinator
How many claims have been paid in the community? What is the total amount of paid claims? How many of the claims were for substantial damage?	FEMA NFIP or Insurance Specialist	Not Available See State Coordinator
How many structures are exposed to flood risk within the community?	Community Floodplain Administrator (FPA)	1110 +- Google Earth Data
Describe any areas of flood risk with limited NFIP policy coverage	Community FPA and FEMA Insurance Specialist	See State/FEMA Insurance Specialist
Staff Resources		
Is the Community FPA or NFIP Coordinator certified?	Community FPA	Yes
Is floodplain management an auxiliary function?	Community FPA	Yes
Provide an explanation of NFIP administration services (e.g., permit review, GIS, education or outreach, inspections, engineering capability)	Community FPA	Through our Building & Zoning Permitting Process
What are the barriers to running an effective NFIP program in the community, if any?	Community FPA	Be Part of a (CRS)Community Rating System
Compliance History		

Is the community in good standing with the NFIP?	State NFIP Coordinator, FEMA NFIP Specialist, community records	Yes
Are there any outstanding compliance issues (i.e., current violations)?		No
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit (CAV) or Community Assistance Contact (CAC)?		See State NFIP Coordinator
Is a CAV or CAC scheduled or needed?		Yes
Regulation		-
When did the community enter the NFIP?	Community Status Book http://www.fema.gov/ national-flood-insurance- program/national-flood- insurance-program- community-status-book	December 3, 2010
Are the FIRMs digital or paper?	Community FPA	Both
Do floodplain development regulations meet or exceed FEMA or State minimum requirements? If so, in what ways?	Community FPA	Meet
Provide an explanation of the permitting process.	Community FPA, State, FEMA NFIP Flood Insurance Manual http://www.fema.gov/ flood-insurance-manual Community FPA, FEMA CRS Coordinator, ISO representative CRS manual http:// www.fema.gov/library/ viewRecord.do?id=2434	Flood Development Permit Process/Flood Elevation Certificate procedures
Community Rating System (CRS)		
Does the community participate in CRS?	Community FPA, State, FEMA NFIP	Yes
What is the community's CRS Class Ranking?	Flood Insurance Manual http://www.fema.gov/ flood-insurance-manual	Unknown/See State NFIP Coord.
What categories and activities provide CRS points and how can the class be improved?		See State NFIP data

Does the plan include CRS	Community FPA, FEMA CRS Coordinator, ISO representative	
planning requirements	CRS manual http://	Yes
	www.fema.gov/library/	
	viewRecord.do?id=2434	

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix K: NFIP Worksheets

This page is intentionally blank.

APPENDIX L: REFERENCE DOCUMENTS AND MATERIALS

L.1 Literature Cited

Anchor Point Group and the Placitas Group. 2008. Wildland urban Interface Community Wildfire Protection Plan: San Miguel County. Las Vegas, NM.

Bennett, I. W. 1986. Climatic Information. In New Mexico in Maps, Edited by Jerry L. Williams, University of New Mexico Press, Albuquerque, NM, 1986.

BBER (Bureau of Business and Economic Research). 2010. An Assessment of the San Miguel County Economy. Prepared by Jeffrey Mitchell for the BBER. August 2010.

City of Las Vegas. 2011. City of Las Vegas Comprehensive Master Plan Update. Las Vegas, New Mexico. September 2011.

Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management. 2007. New Mexico Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan. Santa Fe, New Mexico. October 2007.

Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management/FEMA. 2010. HAZUS-MH: Multi-Hazard Loss Estimation Methodology for Natural Hazards. Version 10.0.0

FEMA. Planning for a Sustainable Future (FEMA 364); available online site at: http://www.fema.gov/paln/mitplanning/planning_resources.shtm#1.

FEMA. Multi-Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (MHIRA), available online at http://www.fema.gov/plan/prevent/fhm/ft_mhira.shtm>.

FEMA. State and Local Mitigation Planning How-to Guides (FEMA 386-1 through -8); available online at: http://www.fema.gov/plan/mitplanning/planning_resources.shtm#1.

Forrest. S. 1998. The Preservation of the Village: New Mexico's Hispanic and the New Deal. University of New Mexico Press. Albuquerque, NM.

Hall. G.E. 1991. San Miguel del Bado and the Common Lands of New Mexico Land Grants. N.M. Hist. Rev. Albuquerque, NM. 66:4.

Hawley, J. W., 1986, Physiographic provinces; in Williams, J. L. (ed.), New Mexico in maps, 2nd edition: University of New Mexico Press, Albuquerque.

Hopkins. S.J. 2001. Special Water Quality Survey of the Pecos and Gallinas Rivers below the Viveash and Mauelitas Fires. Prepared for the Surveillance and Standards Section, Surface Water Quality Bureau. New Mexico Environment Department. Santa Fe, New Mexico. February.

Love, David. 2001. "What Decision Makers Should Know about Collapsible Soils in New Mexico" in Johnson, Peggy S. (editor) Water, Watersheds and Land Use in New Mexico: Impacts of Population Growth on Natural Resources, New Mexico Decision Makers Field Guide No. 1. p. 95. New Mexico Bureau of Mines and Mineral Resources. Albuquerque, New Mexico

New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department, State Forestry Division, Statistical Fire Data, website, accessed July 26, 2010, Available at http://www.emnrd.state.nm.us/FD/FireMgt/historical.htm.

New Mexico Emergency Operation Center. 2007. New Mexico Situation Status (SIT/STAT) Summary. A-07-07 Winter Storm Number 5. Thursday January 18, 2007 to Monday January 22, 2007. Santa Fe, NM.

Prior-Magee, J.S., K.G. Boykin, D.F. Bradford, W.G. Kepner, J.H. Lowry, D.L. Schrupp, K.A. Thomas, and B.C. Thompson, Editors. 2007. Southwest Regional Gap Analysis

Project Final Report. U.S. Geological Survey, Gap Analysis Program, Moscow, ID. 422 pp.

San Miguel County. 2004. San Miguel County Comprehensive Plan 2004–2014.

Western Institute for Study of the Environment. Fire Tracking. 2010 Tecolote Fire. Available online at http://westinstenv.org/firetrack/2010/06/14/tecolote-fire/.

Wong. I.G. 2009. Earthquakes in New Mexico in New Mexico Earth Matters. New Mexico Bureau of Geology and Mineral Resources. Socorro, NM. Fall.

L.2 Earthquake Resources

http://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/qfaults/

http://www.city-data.com/county/San_Miguel_County-NM.html#ixzz15fn71DW8

http://earthquake.usgs.gov/earthquakes/states/new_mexico/history.php

HAZUS MH Estimated Annualized Earthquake Losses for the United States, FEMA 366, April 2008

L.3 General Mitigation Information

FEMA Mitigation Grant Programs Provides an overview of the Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program with links to other mitigation resources. Available at <http://www.fema.gov/fima/mitgrant/shtm#pdm>.

National Flood Insurance Program Provides information on the National Flood Insurance Program. Available at http://www.fema.gov/nfip/.

L.4 Regulatory Information

The Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA2000)/Public Law 106-390 – October 30, 2000 PDF version available at http://www.fema.gov/library/viewRecord.do?id=1935>.

The Interim Final Rule – Federal Register Part III, 44 CFR Parts 201 and 206, "Hazard Mitigation Planning and Hazard Mitigation Grant Program"

Published February 26, 2002. PDF version. Available at http://frwebgate.access.gpo.gov/cgibin/getdoc.cgi?dbname=2002_register&docid=02-4321-filed.pdf>.

L.5 Disasters and Natural Hazards Information

FEMA – Understanding Your Risks

Step-by-step guidance on completing a local risk assessment. Provides additional on-line resources. Available at http://www.fema.gov/fima/planning_toc3.shtm.

Natural Hazards Center, University of Colorado

A "clearinghouse for information on natural hazards and human adjustments to hazards and disasters." A comprehensive source for on-line publications and periodicals and the dissemination of information. Available at http://www.colorado.edu/hazards.

FEMA - How to Deal with Specific Hazards

Provides links to various hazards and information about dealing with a variety of natural hazards. Available at http://www.fema.gov/hazards/>.

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)

Provides information on various projects and research the agency is engaged in. Good source for information on climate and weather. Available at http://www.websites.noaa.gov.

National Climatic Data Center

"The world's largest active archive of weather data." Available at http://lwf.ncdc.noaa.gov/oa/ncdc.html.

L.6 Flood Related Hazards

National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) Available at <http://www.fema.gov/nfip>.

Digital Quality Level 3 Flood Maps Available at <http://msc.fema.gov/MSC/statemap.htm>.

Association of State Floodplain Managers Available at http://www.floods.org>.

Massachusetts Coastal Zone Management Available at <http://www.state.ma.us/czm>.

New England Floodplain and Stormwater Managers Association Available at <http://www.nefsma.org>.

The Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution Sea Grant Program Available at <www.whoi.edu/seagrant>.

L.7 Wind-Related Hazards

ASCE Wind Speed Maps Available at <http://www.ascepub.infor.com/windload.html>.

U.S. Wind Zone Maps Available at <http://www.fema.gov/mit/bpat_tsfs.htm>.

Tornado Project Online Available at <http://www.fornadoproject.com>.

National Hurricane Center Available at <http://www.nhc.noaa.gov>.

Community Hurricane Preparedness Tutorial Available at <http://meted.ucar.edu/hurrican/chp/hp.htm>.

L.8 Fire Related Hazards

FireWise Available at <http://www.FireWise.org>.

NOAA Fire Event Satellite Photos Available at <http://www.osei.noaa.gov/Events/Fires>.

U.S. Forest Service, USDA Available at <http://www.fs.fed.us/land/wfas/welcome.htm>.

USGS Topographic Maps Available at <http://www.mecmcweb.er.usgs.gov/topomaps>.

L.9 Geologic Related Hazards

HAZUS Available at <http://www.hazus.org>.

Building Seismic Safety Council Available at <http://www.bsscononline.org>.

Earthquake hazard history by state Available at <http://www.neic.cr.usgs.gov/neis/states/states.html>.

GIS Data Available on Earthquakes Available at <http://geohazards.cr.usgs.gov/eq/html/genmap.html>.

USGS Earthquake Homepage Available at <http://quake.wr.usgs.gov>.

U.S. Geological Survey's Landslide Risk Areas Available at <http://landslides.usgs.gov/html_files/landslides/nationalmap/national.html?>.

L.10 Determining Risk and Vulnerability

Vulnerability Assessment Tutorial

On-line tutorial developed by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) with step-by-step instructions on how to complete a local risk and vulnerability assessment. Available at http://www.csc.noaa.gov/products/nchaz/htm/mitigate.htm.

Case Study: An example of a completed risk and vulnerability assessment Available at <http://www.csc.noaa.gov/products/nchaz/htm/case.htm>.

L.11 Mapping the Hazards – Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and Mapping

The Multi-Hazard Mapping Initiative (MMI)

The MMI Provides "A living atlas of hazards data and map services for advisory purposes supplied from a network of hazard and base map providers." An initiative of FEMA and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), this site provides users with a search engine for finding hazards data specific to their areas of location. Data includes maps addressing flood, earthquake, windstorms, etc. Available at http://www.HazardMaps.gov.

The National Spatial Data Infrastructure & Clearinghouse (NSDI) and Federal Geographic Data Committee (FGDC)

Source for information on producing and sharing geographic data. Available at<http://www.fgdc.gov>.

The OpenGIS Consortium

Industry source for developing standards and specifications for GIS data. Available at http://www.opengis.org>.

Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration (FIMA) Provides information on the Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration. Lists links to additional resources. Available at http://www.fema.gov/fima.

Community Rating System (CRS) Summarizes the Federal Community Rating System. Available at <http://www.fema.gov/nfip/crs.htm>.

L.12 Other On-line Publications

FEMA's DMA 2000, State & Local Plan Interim Criteria Mitigation Planning Workshop for Local Governments. Available at http://www.fema.gov/fima/planning_toc4.shtm.

FEMA's Understanding Your Community's Risks: Identifying Hazards, And Determining Risks. Available at <http://www.fema.gov/fima/planning_toc3.shtm>.

L.13 Federal Resources

Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region 6 Office. Available at <www.fema.gov>.

- Mitigation Division: Administers National Flood Insurance Program and Community Rating System; prepares and revises flood insurance studies and maps; information on past and current acquisition, relocation and retrofitting programs; expertise in other natural and technological hazards, including hurricanes, earthquakes and hazardous materials. Financial assistance includes Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (post-disaster), Flood Mitigation Assistance Program (pre- and post-flood), Hurricane Property Protection Grants (pre-disaster) and training for local officials at Emergency Management Institute in Emmetsburg, Maryland.
- Response and Recovery Division: Information on dollar amounts of past disaster assistance, including Public Assistance, Individual Assistance and Temporary Housing; information on retrofitting and acquisition/relocation initiatives. Coordinates federal disaster assistance programs, including 75 percent grants for mitigation projects to protect eligible damaged public, private and nonprofit facilities from future damage through the Public Assistance Program, and 100 percent "minimization" grants through the Individual and Family Grant Program and/or Home Repair Grants.

Computer Sciences Corporation Corporate Headquarters 2100 East Grand Avenue El Segundo, CA 90245 Tel: (310) 615-0311 Website: www.csc.com

• A private company contracted by the Federal Insurance Administration as the National Flood Insurance Program Statistical Agent, CSC provides information and assistance on flood insurance, including handling policy and claims questions, and providing workshops to lenders, insurance agents and communities.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers New England Division 696 Virginia Road Concord, MA 01742-2751 Chief, Special Studies Branch: John Kennelly Tel: (978) 318-8505/Fax: (978) 318-8080 Website: www.nae.usace.army.mil

• Provides 100 percent funding for floodplain management planning and technical assistance under the Floodplain Management Services (FPMS) program and on a 50/50 matching basis for other water resources issues under the Section 22 Planning Assistance to States program. Various flood protection measures such as beach re-nourishment, stream clearance and snagging projects, floodproofing and flood preparedness funded through other programs.

Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service

451 West Street Amherst, MA 01002 Tel: (413) 253-4350 Website: www.nrcs.usda.gov

• Technical assistance to individual land owners, groups of landowners, communities, and soil and water conservation districts on land-use and conservation planning, resource development, stormwater management, flood prevention, erosion control and sediment reduction, detailed soil surveys, watershed/river-basin planning, and recreation, fish and wildlife management. Financial assistance is available to reduce flood damage in small watersheds and to improve water quality. See Local Conservation District listing under "State Resources" heading.

Rural Economic and Community Development 451 West Street, Suite 2 Amherst, MA 01002 Tel: (413) 253-4300 Website: www.rurdev.usda.gov

• Technical assistance to rural areas and smaller communities in rural areas on financing public works projects; can purchase local bond issues to help obtain lower interest rates.

Farm Service Agency 445 West Street Amherst, MA 01002 Tel: (413) 253-4500 Website: www.fsa.usda.gov

• Manages the Wetlands Reserve Program (useful in open space or acquisition projects by purchasing easements on wetlands properties) and farmland set aside programs. Can also cost-share on wetlands restoration projects (good for flood control, stormwater management and water quality).

Department of Commerce National Weather Service Forecast Office 445 Myles Standish Blvd. Taunton, MA 02780 Tel: (508) 823-2262/Fax: (508) 823-2321 Website: www.weather.gov

• Prepares and issues flood, severe weather and coastal storm warnings. Staff hydrologists can work with communities on flood warning issues; can give technical assistance in preparing flood-warning plans.

Economic Development Administration (EDA) Regional Office Curtis Center, Suite 140 South Independence Square West

Philadelphia, PA 19106-3821 Tel: (215) 597-4603/Fax: (215) 597-6669 Website: www.osec.doc.gov/eda/default.htm

• Assists communities with technical assistance for economic development planning. Following disasters funding is sometimes available for programs designed to assist in the long-term economic recovery of the affected area; can include relocation and redevelopment of hazard prone businesses to a safer location.

Department of the Interior National Park Service Rivers and Trails Conservation Assistance Regional Office 15 State Street Boston, MA 02109 Tel: (617) 223-5203 Website: www.nps.gov

• Technical assistance with open space preservation planning; can help facilitate meetings and identify non-structural options for floodplain redevelopment.

Fish and Wildlife Services Regional Office 300 Westgate Center Drive Hadley, MA 01035 Tel: (413) 253-8200 Website: www.fws.gov

Can provide technical and financial assistance to restore wetlands and riparian habitats through the North American Wetland Conservation Fund and the Partners for Wildlife programs.

Small Business Administration Disaster Area 1 Office 360 Rainbow Boulevard South, 3rd Floor Niagara Falls, NY 14303 Disaster Area Director: William Leggiero (800) 659-2955 Website: www.sba.gov/disaster

• SBA has the authority to "declare" disaster areas following disasters that affect a significant number of homes and businesses, but that would not need additional assistance through FEMA. (SBA is triggered by a FEMA declaration, however.) SBA can provide additional low-interest funds (up to 20 percent above what an eligible applicant would "normally" qualify for) to install mitigation measures. They can also loan the cost of bringing a damaged property up to state or local code requirements. Can be used in combination with the new "mitigation insurance" under the NFIP, or in lieu of that coverage.

Environmental Protection Agency Region 1

1 Congress Street, Suite 1100 Boston, MA 02114 Tel: (888) 372-7341 Website: www.epa.gov

- *Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds* Low interest loans to governments to repair, replace or relocate wastewater treatment plants damaged in floods. Does not apply to drinking water or other utilities.
- *Clean Water Act Section 319 Grants* Cost-share grants to state agencies that can be used for funding watershed resource restoration activities, including wetlands and other aquatic habitat (riparian zones). Only those activities that control nonpoint pollution are eligible.
- *Wetlands Protection State Development Grants* Grants for states and federally recognized Indian Tribes to develop and enhance wetland protection programs. Projects must demonstrate a direct link to increasing a state's ability to protect wetland resources. (Funds can be used for identification of, but not purchase of, flood easements.)

This page is intentionally blank.

1 APPENDIX M: Multi-Jurisdiction Participation Summary

							R	equireme	ents Met (Y/N)	ts Met (Y/N)			
#	Jurisdiction Name	Jurisdiction Type	Plan POC	Mailing Address	Email	A. Planning Process	B. Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment	C. Mitigati on Strategy	D. Plan Review, Evaluation & Implementation	E. Plan Adoption	F. State Require- ments		
1	San Miguel County	County	Dennis English	518 Valencia St Suite 102 Las Vegas NM 87701	denglish@smcounty.net	✓	1	~	\checkmark	~	~		
2	City of Las Vegas	City	Ken Garcia	905 12th Street Las Vegas NM 87701	kgarcia@ ci.las-vegas.nm.us	\checkmark	~	~	\checkmark	\checkmark	~		
3	Village of Pecos	Village	Arthur Varela	92 S Main Street Pecos NM 87552	art@villageofpecos.com	✓	~	~	✓	~	~		
4	NM Highlands University	School	James Fries	Box 9000 Las Vegas NM 87701	president_office@ nmhu.edu	✓	~	~	✓				
5	Luna Community College	School	Pete Campos	366 Luna Drive Las Vegas NM 87701	PCampos@luna.edu	✓	1	~	✓				
6	City of Las Vegas Schools	School System	Sheryl McNellis- Martinez	901 Douglas Ave Las Vegas NM 87701	LVCS@cybercardinal.com	✓	1	~	✓				
7	West Las Vegas Schools	School System	Gene Parsons	179 Bridge Street Las Vegas NM 87701	gene_parson@ wlvs.k12.nm.us	✓	~	~	✓				
8	Pecos Schools	School System	Fred Trujillo	PO Box 368 Pecos NM 87552	ftrujillo@ pecos.k12.nm.us	✓	✓	~	\checkmark				
9	United World College	School	Lauren Ogden	State Route 65 PO Box 248 Montezuma NM 87731	lauren.ogden@ uwc-usa.org	✓							
10	Harding County	Neighboring Community	Vanita Menapace	35 Pine St Mosquero NM 87733	hardingcocomm@ plateautel.net	\checkmark							
11	Santa Fe County	Neighboring Community	Katherine Miller	102 Grant Ave Santa Fe NM 87504	countymanager@ santafecountynm.gov	~							

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix M: Multi-Jurisdiction Participation Summary

							R	equireme	ents Met (Y/N)		
#	Jurisdiction Name	Jurisdiction Type	Plan POC	Mailing Address	Email	A. Planning Process	B. Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment	C. Mitigati on Strategy	D. Plan Review, Evaluation & Implementation	E. Plan Adoption	F. State Require- ments
12	Quay County	Neighboring Community	Richard Primrose	300 S 3rd St Tucumcari NM 88433	richard.primrose@ quaycounty-nm.gov	~					
13	Mora County	Neighboring Community	Roger Gonzales	518 Main St Mora NM 87732	rgonzales@ countyofmora.com	~					
14	NMDHSEM	State Government	Wendy Blackwell	PO Box 27111 Santa Fe NM 87502	Wendy.Blackwell@ state.nm.us	~	1	~	\checkmark	\checkmark	~
15	OSE	State Government	Richard Trujillo	Office of the State Engineer 130 South Capitol Street Conchas Ortiz & Pino Building PO Box 25102 Santa Fe NM 87504	richard.trujillo123@ state.nm.us	V	~				
16	NMSP	State Government	Tommy Hooper	520 S. Commerce Las Vegas NM 87701	tommy.hooper@ state.nm.us	~	~	~	\checkmark		
17	NMBHI	State Government	Troy D. Jones	3695 Hot Springs Blvd Las Vegas NM 87701	troy.jones@state.nm.us	~	4	~			
18	EMNRD	State Government	Carmelita Austin	53 Storrie Lake Dr Las Vegas NM 87701	CarmelitaM.Austin@ state.nm.us	\checkmark	~	~			
19	NMDOT	State Government	Kenny Lujan	South HWY 85 PO Box 10 Las Vegas NM 87701	Kenny.Lujan@ state.nm.us	~	~	~	✓		
20	Storrie Lake	State	Stephen Coca	HC33 PO Box109#2 1190 S St Francis Dr N Santa Fe NM 87504	stephen.coca@ state.nm.us	V	✓	~	✓		
21	DOH	State	Dante Halleck	605 Lefrao St Santa Fe NM 87505	Dante.Halleck@ state.nm.us	~	1	~	✓		

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix M: Multi-Jurisdiction Participation Summary

						R	equireme	ents Met (Y/N)			
#	Jurisdiction Name	Jurisdiction Type	Plan POC	Mailing Address	Email	A. Planning Process	B. Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment	C. Mitigati on Strategy	D. Plan Review, Evaluation & Implementation	E. Plan Adoption	F. State Require- ments
22	USACE	Federal Government	Steve Peterson	PO Box 1008 201 Bell Ranch Road Conchas Dam NM 88416	steven.d.peterson@ usace.army.mil	√	V	~	✓		
23	EL Valle Water	Water Association	Ramon Lucero	2501 West Zia RD Santa Fe, NM 87505- 5763	ramon.lucero@ soudermiller.com	✓	1	~	✓		
24	Storrie Project	Water Association	Robert Quintana	RT 1 Box 400 Las Vegas NM 87701	quintanafarms@msn.com	\checkmark	~	~	\checkmark		
25	Rio Gallinas Acequias	Water Association	William Gonzales	4000 8th Street Las Vegas NM 87701	wilogonzales@ yahoo.com	~	✓	~	~		
26	Pecos/LV	Federal Agency	Steve Romero	1926 N 7th Street	sfromero@fs.fed.us	\checkmark					
27	Ranger District National Forest Wildlife Refuge	Federal Agency	Rob Larranaga	Northern NM National Wild Life Refuge Complex Rt 1 Box 399	rob_larranaga@fws.gov	ß					
28	Optic Newspaper	NGO	Tom McDonald	614 Lincoln Street Las Vegas NM 87701	tmcdonald@ lasvegasoptic.com	\checkmark	\checkmark		\checkmark		
29	American Red Cross	NGO	Connie Chavez	2109 8th Street Las Vegas NM 87701	conniec@desertgate.com	~	✓	~	~		
30	LV/SMC Economic Developmen t/ Chambers of Commerce	NGO	Lavinia Fenzi	1224 Raild Road Las Vegas NM 87701	lavinia.fenzi@yahoo.com	¥	√	~	✓		
31	Historic Society	NGO	Jeannie McKinnley	727 Grand Ave Las Vegas NM 87701	historic@cybermesa.com	~	✓	~	~		

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix M: Multi-Jurisdiction Participation Summary

							R	equireme	ents Met (Y/N)		
#	Jurisdiction Name	Jurisdiction Type	Plan POC	Mailing Address	Email	A. Planning Process	B. Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment	C. Mitigati on Strategy	D. Plan Review, Evaluation & Implementation	E. Plan Adoption	F. State Require- ments
32	Alta Vista Regional Hospital	NGO	Kathleen Cahill	104 Legion Drive Las Vegas NM 87701	Kathleen_Cahill3@ chs.net	~	V	~	√		

1

APPENDIX N: Public and Stakeholder Draft Comments

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan

Stakeholder Comment Form

Reviewer Name: Dennis English

Reviewer Phone Number/email: 505-425-6190 denglish@smcounty.net

Page #	Line #	Table or Figure #	Notes
			You state 2 hospitals with 472 beds. I know of one in Las Vegas
124	8		(Alta Vista Regional) but the one in Pecos NM is the Pecos Medical
			center if you are referring to that jurisdiction.
124	9		We have 12 full time volunteer fire stations in San Miguel and 2
127	,		Fire stations in the Las Vegas City limits that totals 14
127	5-9	Table 6.3.1-	Everything that reads Montezuma Volunteer Fire should read La
127	5-9	2	Placita Volunteer Fire Dept.
128	1	Table 6.3.1- 2	Change Manager's Office to Administrative Annex building
129	3	Table 6.3.2- 2	Airport address 910 Airport Rd.
129	3	Table 6.3.2- 2	Meadow City Transportation address 500 Railroad Ave.
129	3	Table 6.3.2- 2	Pecos Senior Center address 76 Camino Rael Pecos NM 87552
120	2	Table 6.3.2-	San Miguel Senior Center should be changed to Ribera Senior
129	5	2	Center address State Hwy 3 Ribera NM 87560
129	3	Table 6.3.2- 2	Las Vegas Senior center address is 500 Sabino Street
			Under the Summary Vulnerability I read nothing of the state
122	2		declared disasters that occurred. I put a share file in the
155	2		Mitigation Data file for floods which has all the executive orders
			there. Is this not included in this section?
135	15		6.6.4 Identified Data Limitations Do you have suggestions or
100	15		references where you can obtain such data for the next up-date.
			6.9.3 Estimate of Potential losses; Why is there no mention of the
138	32		previous data within the mitigation data we sent you on
100	52		describing the state disasters that had previously occurred under
			the governor executive orders?
			We have 12 activate fire stations and () sub-stations and () sub-
141	11-12		stations in the planning stages for the county and 2 active
			stations in the City of Las Vegas

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix N: Public and Stakeholder Draft Comments

-			
			I see a lot of plans that need to be added to the City of Las Vegas
151	10	Table 7.5.1-	they do have the following plans, Capital Improvement, Economic
151	10	1	Development, Local Emergency Operation Plan, Continuity of
			Operation, and Transportation plan
154 2	2	Table 7.5.2-	City of Las Vegas is part of the Mitigation Planning Committee.
154	2	1	They do have an Emergency Manager and community planner
157	2	Table 7.5.4-	City of Las Vegas has the same three sections that were X'd for the
157	2	1	county
210	27		Let's change the title of OEM director to the Emergency Manager
219	27		throughout section 9.2 Method for monitoring the plan
221	5-11		This is our very first plan
1		1	

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan

Stakeholder Comment Form

Reviewer Name: Dennis English

Reviewer Phone Number/email: 505-425-6190 denglish@smcounty.net

Page #	Line #	Table or Figure #	Notes
174		Table 6.3.1 $_{-}$ 2	Change San Miguel County to San Miguel County
124		Table 0.3.1-2	Administration building
125	125	Table 6 2 1 2	Change SMC Courthouse to 4 th Judicial District,
125		Table 0.3.1-2	District Attorney address is 1800 New Mexico Ave.
			Change SMC Courthouse to 4 th Judicial District Court
125		Table 6.3.1-2	and make the second box just say District Courthouse
			address is 496 W. National Ave.
			Change the Administrative Annex Building to San
128		Table 6.3.1-2	Miguel County Annex Building. Drop the
			Administrative wording

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan

Stakeholder Comment Form

Reviewer Name: Dale R. Wagoner

Reviewer Phone Number/email: (505) 425-6771//dale.wagoner@state.nm.us

Page #	Line #	Table or Figure #	Notes	
i	40	State of NM	Please change to read New Mexico State Police	
1	10	State of MM	instead of New Mexico State Patrol	

	Rosters 2014 San Miguel	Blake's name.
D-4	Meetings Notes	instead of New Mexico State Patrol by Christopher
	Appendix D:	Please change to read New Mexico State Police

Stakeholder Comment Form

 Reviewer Name:
 Rob Larrañaga, Storrie Project Water Users Association Board Member

 Reviewer Phone Number/email:
 505-425-3581 ext. 201 rob_larranaga@fws.gov

Page #	Line #	Table or Figure #	Notes
35	10	5.1.2 Significant Past Occurrences	Add to this section to capture the delivery system to Storrie Lake Reservoir (Intermediate size dam of 22,000 acre feet) which provides water supply for domestic, agricultural, wildlife, and recreational/community use; in addition to flood control. The September 13, 2014 (DR-4152) flood event caused considerable damage to the headgates structure on the Storrie Project Water Users Association (SPWUA) main delivery canal to Storrie Lake Reservoir, off of the Gallinas River. The SPWUA is a private non-profit association that serves 50 shareholders and currently stores over 50% of the water supply for the City of Las Vegas. The headgates control the water being diverted into the canal thus managing the amount of water that flows downstream into Las Vegas and the surrounding communities along the Gallinas River. The need to control the flow in the canal to facilitate the repair to the September 13, 2014 flood caused breach prompted the use of heavy equipment to close the headgates, thus causing further damage to the gates and railing system. Preliminary estimates to replace the gates and upgrade the diversion structure are \$900,000.0
165	22	8.3 Mitigation Goals & Objectives: 3. Reduce vulnerability of major infrastructure	Objective 3.2, calling for the promotion of partnerships between jurisdictions is an excellent idea as potential funding opportunities could be enhanced. The private non-profit SPWUA is limited in capital improvement project funds and would not be able to finance the improvements to the headgates within their budget.

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix N: Public and Stakeholder Draft Comments

			2.3.1=Re-design and construction of the diversion
			gates to handle increase water flows during
			floods or heavy rain events. The installation of
		Table 8.4-1,	remotely manageable, automated Langemann (or
169		Goal/Objective	comparable) headgates would eliminate the safety
		/Action ID# 2.3.1	concerns associated with the current antiquated,
			original headgates. Preliminary estimates to replace
			the gates and upgrade the diversion structure are
			\$900,000.00.
			The statement is not true as recreation is allowed at
37	5		Storrie Lake Reservoir, and managed by the New
			Mexico State Parks Department.

APPENDIX 0: FEMA Plan Review Tool

FEMA Courtesy Review of Chapters 1-5:

LOCAL MITIGATION PLAN REVIEW TOOL

The *Local Mitigation Plan Review Tool* demonstrates how the Local Mitigation Plan meets the regulation in 44 CFR §201.6 and offers States and FEMA Mitigation Planners an opportunity to provide feedback to the community.

- The <u>Regulation Checklist</u> provides a summary of FEMA's evaluation of whether the Plan has addressed all requirements.
- The <u>Plan Assessment</u> identifies the plan's strengths as well as documents areas for future improvement.
- The <u>Multi-jurisdiction Summary Sheet</u> is an optional worksheet that can be used to document how each jurisdiction met the requirements of the each Element of the Plan (Planning Process; Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment; Mitigation Strategy; Plan Review, Evaluation, and Implementation; and Plan Adoption).

The FEMA Mitigation Planner must reference this *Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide* when completing the *Local Mitigation Plan Review Tool*.

Jurisdiction:	Title of Plan:		Date of Plan:
San Miguel County	2014 San Miguel Mitigation Plan	County Hazard	May 22, 2014
Local Point of Contact:		Address:	
Dennis English		518 Valencia Street, Ste. 102	
Title:		Las Vegas, New Mexico 87701	
Emergency Manager			
Agency:		-	
SMC/LV Office of Emergency Management			
Phone Number:		E-Mail:	
(505) 426-3034		denglish@smcoun	ty.net

State Reviewer:	Title:	Date:

FEMA Reviewer:	Title:	Date:
Cheryl Copeland	HM Community Planner	March 12, 2014
Date Received in FEMA Region VI		
Plan Not Approved		
Plan Approvable Pending Adoption		
Plan Approved		

SECTION 1:

REGULATION CHECKLIST

1. REGULATION CHECKLIST	Location in Plan		Not
Regulation (44 CFR 201.6 Local Mitigation Plans)	(section and/or	Met	Met
ELEMENT A. PLANNING PROCESS		-	<u></u>
A1. Does the Plan document the planning process, including how it was prepared and who was involved in the process for each jurisdiction? (Requirement §201.6(c)(1))	Acknowledgements, p.i Appendix M Sec 3.3 and 3.4, p12- 14	Y	
A2. Does the Plan document an opportunity for neighboring communities, local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, agencies that have the authority to regulate development as well as other interests to be involved in the planning process? (Requirement §201.6(b)(2))	Sec 3.2, p11 Sec 3.3, p12 Appendix D Appendix E Appendix M	Y	
A3. Does the Plan document how the public was involved in the planning process during the drafting stage? (Requirement §201.6(b)(1))	Sec 3.7, p14-15 Appendix F	Y	
A4. Does the Plan describe the review and incorporation of existing plans, studies, reports, and technical information? (Requirement §201.6(b)(3))	Sec. 3.8 – p15-16	Y	
2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix O: FEMA Plan Review Tool

1. REGULATION CHECKLIST	Location in Plan		Not
Regulation (44 CFR 201.6 Local Mitigation Plans)	(section and/or	Met	Met
A5. Is there discussion of how the community(ies) will continue public participation in the plan maintenance process? (Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(iii))	Sec 9 .7 – p224-225	Y	
A6. Is there a description of the method and schedule for keeping the plan current (monitoring, evaluating and updating the mitigation plan within a 5-year cycle)? (Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(i))	Sec 9 – p220-225	Y	

ELEMENT A: REQUIRED REVISIONS

A.1 The plan **must** document who was involved in the planning process for each jurisdiction, including the schedule or timeframe and activities that made up the plan's development. The Planning Process section of the plan references the MPG (p. 9, line 17), the Planning team (p. 9, line 38) and Project Team (p.10, line 33). Are these references, 3 different groups? The Plan identifies the type of people or entities involved in the planning process (p.9, line 28-31) but not by name, title and jurisdiction represented. Local Mitigation Planning Handbook, 2-6 states "Multi-jurisdictional plans **must** identify who represented each jurisdiction, including the person's position or title and agency".

Statements clarified om Sections 3.2-3.4, and also addressed through the "Acknowledgements" (p.i) and in Appendix M

A.2 The plan **must** identify stakeholders who were involved or given an opportunity to be involved in the planning process, including the agency/organization and the person's position or title within the agency. Reference is made throughout Section 2 and 3 but: Who did you invite? How were they involved? Did they come to the meetings, did they provide written comments? Are they documented on the meeting sign-in sheet? Local Mitigation Planning Handbook, pages 2-2 and 3-1 &2 states: "You **must** invite stakeholder participation from neighboring communities that are not part of the planning area...". (This information may be located in Appendix C which has not been submitted to FEMA for courtesy review.)

Clarified in 3.1 and 3.2, and itemized in Appendices D, E, and M.

A.3 The plan **must** document how the public was given the opportunity to be involved in the planning process and how their feedback was incorporated into the plan. Was the survey available to the non-internet public? No documentation of public notices or dates and time of public comment periods. Also, how the public comment period was conducted. (p.12, line 1) (Appendix D?)

Additional language added to 3.7 to detail opportunities and how they were conducted. Appendix F includes all survey results.

A.4 The plan **must** document **what** existing plans, studies, reports, and technical information were reviewed. Plan states project team "reviewed various existing plans". (p.13, line 1) Documentation of which plans, studies, reports and technical information were reviewed and/or incorporated were not included in section submitted to FEMA for courtesy review.

Related plans and reports were added as bullet items in 3.8, p15-16

A.5 Not included in sections submitted to FEMA for courtesy review.

See 9.7, page 224-225

A.6 The plan **must** identify how, when, and by whom the plan will be **monitored**, **evaluated** and **updated**. The plan **must** include the title of the individual or name of the department/ agency responsible for leading **each** of these efforts. Mentioned on page 2 but not included in sections submitted to FEMA for courtesy review.

See Section 9, p220-225

ELEMENT B. HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND RISK ASSESSMENT

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix O: FEMA Plan Review Tool

1. REGULATION CHECKLIST	Location in Plan		Not
Regulation (44 CFR 201.6 Local Mitigation Plans)	(section and/or	Met	Met
B1. Does the Plan include a description of the type, location, and extent of all natural hazards that can affect each jurisdiction(s)? (Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(i))	Sec. 5.11-5.18, p34- 121	Y	
B2. Does the Plan include information on previous occurrences of hazard events and on the probability of future hazard events for each jurisdiction? (Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(i))	Sec. 5.1-5.18 p34- 121	Y	
B3. Is there a description of each identified hazard's impact on the community as well as an overall summary of the community's vulnerability for each jurisdiction? (Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(ii))	Table 5-3 Sec. 5.1-5.18 Sec 6.1-6.11, p123- 147	Y	
B4. Does the Plan address NFIP insured structures within the jurisdiction that have been repetitively damaged by floods? (Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(ii))	Sec 5.6.3, p66-68 Sec 6.6.1, p135-138	Y	

ELEMENT B: REQUIRED REVISIONS

B3. Required: The plan **must** provide an overall summary of each jurisdiction's vulnerability to the identified hazards. The overall summary of vulnerability identifies structures, systems, populations or other community assets as defined by the community that are susceptible to damage and loss from hazard events.

See Section 6.1-6.11, p123-147

B4. Required: Sentence stating how many, if any, insured structures are repetitive or severe repetitive loss. If none, state there are no repetitive or severe repetitive loss structures in San Miguel County.

See Section 6.6.1 p135-138

ELEMENT C. MITIGATION STRATEGY		
C1. Does the plan document each jurisdiction's existing authorities, policies, programs and resources and its ability to expand on and improve these existing policies and programs? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3))	Sec 7.5. p152-161	
C2. Does the Plan address each jurisdiction's participation in the NFIP and continued compliance with NFIP requirements, as appropriate? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(ii))	Sec 7.6, p163-164	
C3. Does the Plan include goals to reduce/avoid long-term vulnerabilities to the identified hazards? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(i))	Sec 8.3 p166-167	
C4. Does the Plan identify and analyze a comprehensive range of specific mitigation actions and projects for each jurisdiction being considered to reduce the effects of hazards, with emphasis on new and existing buildings and infrastructure? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(ii))	Sec 8.4, Tables 8.4-1 through 8.4-3, p168- 216	

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix O: FEMA Plan Review Tool

1. REGULATION CHECKLIST	Location in Plan		Not
Regulation (44 CFR 201.6 Local Mitigation Plans)	(section and/or	Met	Met
C5. Does the Plan contain an action plan that describes how the actions identified will be prioritized (including cost benefit review), implemented, and administered by each jurisdiction? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(iv)); (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(iii))	Sec 8.2, p165-166 Sec 8.4, Tables 8.4-1 through 8.4-3, p168- 216 Appendix G, Mitigation Ranking Worksheets		
integrate the requirements of the mitigation plan into other planning mechanisms, such as comprehensive or capital improvement plans, when appropriate? (Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(ii))	Sec 9.5, p223-224		
ELEMENT C: REQUIRED REVISIONS			
ELEMENT D. PLAN REVIEW, EVALUATION, AND IMPLEMENTATIO	N (applicable to plan up	dates on	ly)
D1. Was the plan revised to reflect changes in development?	N/A		
D2. Was the plan revised to reflect progress in local mitigation efforts? (Requirement §201.6(d)(3))	N/A		
D3. Was the plan revised to reflect changes in priorities? (Requirement §201.6(d)(3))	N/A		
ELEMENT D: REQUIRED REVISIONS			
ELEMENT E. PLAN ADOPTION			
E1. Does the Plan include documentation that the plan has been formally adopted by the governing body of the jurisdiction requesting approval? (Requirement §201.6(c)(5))	The plan will not be locally adopted until it is approved pending adoption (APA) by FEMA		х
E2. For multi-jurisdictional plans, has each jurisdiction requesting approval of the plan documented formal plan adoption? (Requirement §201.6(c)(5))	The plan will not be locally adopted until it is approved pending adoption (APA) by FEMA		Х

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix O: FEMA Plan Review Tool

1. REGULATION CHECKLIST	Location in Plan		Not
Regulation (44 CFR 201.6 Local Mitigation Plans)	(section and/or	Met	Met
ELEMENT E: REQUIRED REVISIONS			
ELEMENT F. ADDITIONAL STATE REQUIREMENTS (OPTIONAL FOR	R STATE REVIEWERS O	NLY; NO	OT TO
BE COMPLETED BY FEMA)			
F1.			
F2.			

SECTION 2:

PLAN ASSESSMENT

A. Plan Strengths and Opportunities for Improvement

This section provides a discussion of the strengths of the plan document and identifies areas where these could be improved beyond minimum requirements.

Element A: Planning Process

The planning process was well documented throughout the first 4 sections of the plan. The HMP identifies the type of people or entities involved in the planning process (p.9, line 28-31) but not by name, title and jurisdiction represented.

A1: Recommendation: Include a matrix of names, titles and jurisdiction they represent.

A1: Recommendation: A matrix works well to document how participating jurisdictions were involved in the planning process, with a check mark for meetings and activities the jurisdictions attended.

A2: Recommendation: A table would work well to identify stakeholders who were involved or given an opportunity to be involved in the planning process, including the agency/organization and the person's position or title within the agency.

A4: Recommendation: Again, using a table to list existing plans, studies, reports and data to help inform the mitigation and which help to identify the existing capabilities and planning mechanisms to implement the mitigation strategy.

Element B: Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment

B1. Recommendation: If the MPG feels the hazard isn't prevalent in San Miguel County, you might choose to narrow the list of hazards profiled (expansive soils, landslide, levee failure (may address in future). You can acknowledge they occur at the beginning of the Hazard Profile section but for example state: These hazards may be possible, but the likelihood and magnitude are so minimal that the planning team decides not to provide a detailed description or risk assessment. If you profile the hazard in your risk assessment, you must address this hazard in your mitigation strategy and identify at least two mitigations projects for each jurisdiction. See Local Mitigation Handbook, Task 5, p. 5-3 Task 6, p.6-3

B3. The hazard impact matrix, Table 5-3, does a good job of ranking the consequence or effect of the hazard on the community and its assets. The intent of this element is to consider, for each jurisdiction, not only the potential impacts of future hazard events but also, to identify the vulnerabilities that could be reduced through hazard mitigation actions. Recommendation: Map the critical facilities located in the Wildlife Urban Interface, Special Flood Hazard Areas and other hazards where appropriate.

B3. A Dam Inundation Map for high hazard dams is reference in Sec. 5.1.4.1, 5.1.4.2 & 5.1.4.3 but not included in the section.

B4. The plan describes repetitive loss but does not state if the county and participating jurisdictions have any repetitive loss properties. If none, must be stated. Just add a sentence after definition.

LOCAL MITIGATION PLAN REVIEW TOOL

The *Local Mitigation Plan Review Tool* demonstrates how the Local Mitigation Plan meets the regulation in 44 CFR §201.6 and offers States and FEMA Mitigation Planners an opportunity to provide feedback to the community.

- The <u>Regulation Checklist</u> provides a summary of FEMA's evaluation of whether the Plan has addressed all requirements.
- The <u>Plan Assessment</u> identifies the plan's strengths as well as documents areas for future improvement.
- The <u>Multi-jurisdiction Summary Sheet</u> is an optional worksheet that can be used to document how each jurisdiction met the requirements of the each Element of the Plan (Planning Process; Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment; Mitigation Strategy; Plan Review, Evaluation, and Implementation; and Plan Adoption).

The FEMA Mitigation Planner must reference this *Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide* when completing the *Local Mitigation Plan Review Tool*.

Jurisdiction:	Title of Plan:		Date of Plan:
San Miguel County	2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan		May 22, 2014
Local Point of Contact:	1	Address:	
Dennis English		518 Valencia Stree	t, Ste. 102
Title:		Las Vegas, New Me	exico 87701
Emergency Manager			
Agency:			
SMC/LV Office of Emergency Mana	gement		
Phone Number:		E-Mail:	
(505) 426-3034		denglish@smcoun	ty.net

State Reviewer:	Title:	Date:
FFMA Reviewer:	Title	Date:
FEMA Reviewer:	Title:	Date:
FEMA Reviewer:	Title:	Date:

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix O: FEMA Planning Review Tool

Date Received in FEMA Region VI	
Plan Not Approved	
Plan Approvable Pending Adoption	
Plan Approved	

SECTION 1:

REGULATION CHECKLIST

1. REGULATION CHECKLIST Regulation (44 CFR 201.6 Local Mitigation Plans)	Location in Plan	Met	Not Met
ELEMENT A. PLANNING PROCESS			
A1. Does the Plan document the planning process, including how it was prepared and who was involved in the process for each jurisdiction? (Requirement §201.6(c)(1))	Acknowledgements, p.i Sec 3.3 and 3.4, p12- 13 Appendix M	х	
A2. Does the Plan document an opportunity for neighboring communities, local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, agencies that have the authority to regulate development as well as other interests to be involved in the planning process? (Requirement §201.6(b)(2))	Sec 3.2, p11 Sec 3.3, p12 Appendix D Appendix E Appendix M	х	
A3. Does the Plan document how the public was involved in the planning process during the drafting stage? (Requirement §201.6(b)(1))	Sec 3.7, p14-15 Appendix F	Х	
A4. Does the Plan describe the review and incorporation of existing plans, studies, reports, and technical information? (Requirement §201.6(b)(3))	Sec. 3.8 – p15-16	Х	
A5. Is there discussion of how the community(ies) will continue public participation in the plan maintenance process? (Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(iii))	Sec 9 .7 – p223-224	Х	
A6. Is there a description of the method and schedule for keeping the plan current (monitoring, evaluating and updating the mitigation plan within a 5-year cycle)? (Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(i))	Sec 9 – p219-224	Х	
ELEMENT A: REQUIRED REVISIONS			
ELEMENT B. HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND RISK ASSESSMENT			
B1. Does the Plan include a description of the type, location, and extent of all natural hazards that can affect each jurisdiction(s)? (Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(i))	Sec. 5.1-5.18, p33- 120	Х	
B2. Does the Plan include information on previous occurrences of hazard events and on the probability of future hazard events for each jurisdiction? (Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(i))	Sec. 5.1-5.18 p33- 120	х	
B3. Is there a description of each identified hazard's impact on the community as well as an overall summary of the community's vulnerability for each jurisdiction? (Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(ii))	Table 5-3 Sec. 5.1-5.18, p33- 120 Sec 6.1-6.11, p121- 145	х	

1. REGULATION CHECKLIST	Location in Plan		Not
Regulation (44 CFR 201.6 Local Mitigation Plans)	(section and/or	Met	Met
B4. Does the Plan address NFIP insured structures within the jurisdiction that have been repetitively damaged by floods? (Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(ii))	Sec 5.6.3, p65-67 Sec 6.6.1, p133-136	Х	
ELEMENT B: REQUIRED REVISIONS			
ELEMENT C. MITIGATION STRATEGY			
C1. Does the plan document each jurisdiction's existing authorities, policies, programs and resources and its ability to expand on and improve these existing policies and programs? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3))	Sec 7.5. p149-160	х	
C2. Does the Plan address each jurisdiction's participation in the NFIP and continued compliance with NFIP requirements, as appropriate? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(ii))	Sec 7.6, p160-162	Х	
C3. Does the Plan include goals to reduce/avoid long-term vulnerabilities to the identified hazards? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(i))	Sec 8.3 p164-165	Х	
C4. Does the Plan identify and analyze a comprehensive range of specific mitigation actions and projects for each jurisdiction being considered to reduce the effects of hazards, with emphasis on new and existing buildings and infrastructure? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(ii))	Sec 8.4, Tables 8.4-1 through 8.4-3, p167- 214	x	
C5. Does the Plan contain an action plan that describes how the actions identified will be prioritized (including cost benefit review), implemented, and administered by each jurisdiction? (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(iv)); (Requirement §201.6(c)(3)(iii))	Sec 8.2, p163-164 Sec 8.4, Tables 8.4-1 through 8.4-3, p167- 214 Appendix G, Mitigation Ranking Worksheets	х	
C6. Does the Plan describe a process by which local governments will integrate the requirements of the mitigation plan into other planning mechanisms, such as comprehensive or capital improvement plans, when appropriate? (Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(ii))	Sec 9.5, p221-222	х	
ELEMENT C: REQUIRED REVISIONS			
ELEMENT D. PLAN REVIEW, EVALUATION, AND IMPLEMENTATIC	DN (applicable to plan up	odates on	ly)
D1. Was the plan revised to reflect changes in development? (Requirement §201.6(d)(3))	N/A		

(
D2. Was the plan revised to reflect progress in local mitigation efforts?	N/A	
(Requirement §201.6(d)(3))		
D3. Was the plan revised to reflect changes in priorities?	N/A	
(Requirement §201.6(d)(3))		

1. REGULATION CHECKLIST	Location in Plan		Not
Regulation (44 CFR 201.6 Local Mitigation Plans)	(section and/or	Met	Met
ELEMENT D: REQUIRED REVISIONS			l
ELEMENT E. PLAN ADOPTION			
E1. Does the Plan include documentation that the plan has been	The plan will not be		
formally adopted by the governing body of the jurisdiction requesting	locally adopted until		x
	It is approved		
	(APA) by FEMA		
E2. For multi-jurisdictional plans, has each jurisdiction requesting	The plan will not be		
approval of the plan documented formal plan adoption? (Requirement	locally adopted until		v
§201.6(c)(5))	it is approved		X
	pending adoption		
	(APA) by FEMA		
ELEMENT E. REQUIRED REVISIONS			
ELEMENT F. ADDITIONAL STATE REQUIREMENTS (OPTIONAL FO	R STATE REVIEWERS C	NLY: NO	от то
BE COMPLETED BY FEMA)		···, ···	
F1.			
FZ.			
ELEMENT F: REQUIRED REVISIONS		l	I

2014 San Miguel County Hazard Mitigation Plan Appendix O: FEMA Planning Review Tool

SECTION 2:

PLAN ASSESSMENT

A. Plan Strengths and Opportunities for Improvement

Element A: Planning Process

Element B: Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment